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CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FAMILIES. IN THE
SOUTHEAST;

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 14, 1983

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
,' SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FAMILIES,

Miami, Fla,
The select committee met, p'ursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m., in the

Board Administration Building. Miami, Fla., Hon. George Miller
(chairman of the select committee) presiding.*

Members present: Representatives Miller, Lehman, Boggs, and
Bliley.

Staff present: Ann Rosewater, deputy director; Karabelle
Pizzigati, professional staff; Christine El tt-Grovos, minority staff
director; and Joan Godley, committee clerk.

Chbirman MILLER. The House Select Committee on Children,
Youth, and Families will now convene the third regional hearing
of the select committee.

Earlier this month the corfimittee held a regional hearing in
New \ York, and a week ago we were in St. Paul, Minn. In the
coming weeks the select- committee will go to Salt Lake City and to

---,-.southern California to complete this year's regional hearings.
The purpose of these hearings is to gather information from indi-

viduals involved at tho State and local level with children, youth,
and Carpilies. We want to hear not only about the problems that..
theyare seeing, but also hopefully learn about strategies that have
been developed at the local and State levels which have teen suc-
cessful. We should act as a conduit for bringing the best available
information to the Congress of the United States, so that those who
make public policy on almost a daily basis will be fully informed
about current conditions, so that we do not make mistakes or
create policies that iifiact are detrimental to the interests of our
children and to our families.

I am delighted that the committee is represented today by Mrs.
Lindy Boggs, who is the chairmap of our Task Force on Crisis
Intervention. Lindy, as most of you know, represents New Orleans,
and has been a very, very *active participant in children and fami-
lies issues in the Appropriations Committee.

Arid also we are joined by Congresgman Lehman of Miami, who
was very helpful in creating this committee, who also serves on the
Appropriations Committee, and is The chairman of our Task Force
on Prevention Strategies. Mr. IAhman was nice enough to host a
site visit yesterday for myself and the staff of the committee at the

(1)
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Mailman Clinic, where I think we learned a lot about efforts being
made in the Miami area with respect to prevention strategies.

We are also joined by Congressman Bliley of Virginia, who is the
ranking member on the Task Force on Prevention-Strategies and
serves on the Energy and Commerce Committee, and is very.much
involved in health issues on that committee.

Members of the public can see that we have selected members
from the various committees of jurisdiction in the U.S. Congress, so
that the information that is developed through our hearings will
provide input into the decisions that various other committees
make.

I would like to now recognize CongressIman Lehman, if you have
an opening statement that you would lik% to make.

Mr. LEHMAN. Thank you, Mi. Chairman. I. really, for the sake of
time, will snot make an opening statement, except to thank the
members of the committee for being here. Miami is a good place to
look .at some of the problems we are dealing with, because what-
ever we have not only in this country but throughout the world, I
think that Miami and South Florida is a microcointi of the stresses
and the strains and the problems socially, politically, and economi-
cally of the families that exist. throughout the world.

I only wish Superintendent Britton had said we were going to
change some school attendance balances, then I know we would
have had an overflowing room today.

Chairman MILLER. Congresswoman Boggs& " '7

Mrs. BooGs. Thank you Mr. Chairman. I, too, would like to
thank the host committee for having us here and thank the school
board for being able to cooperate with us in such a splendid fash-
ion.

Mr" Lehman, we are very, pleased with all the'arrangements that
you and your staff and committee staff have been able to make for .us. I am especially pleased to be here and to welcome with ,great
particularity Eva LeOard, who is with the Governor's task force on
education in Louisiana, my_horhe State, and Linda Irwin from New
Orleans, who heads a wonderful organization called.Youth Alterna-
tives. < ,

I. am so pleased, too, Mr. Chairman, that we are having this
meeting in the South. Southern States have particular difficulties
due to rural areas, but have been so open to innovative ways of
Meeting the problems. I know that we will gain a great deal of in-
sight and knowledge from the testimony that we will hear today. I
thank you for holding this hearing in the South.

Chairman MILLER. Congressman Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Ghairman. First of all, I would like

to thank all of our witnesses for taking, time from their busy sched-
ules in order to be with us today. I know that that time is valuable
and I hope that by the end of the day that they will consider it
time well spent.

On my own part, I would like to take this opportunity to explain
w I consider these regional hearings -to be s9 very important.
Thy are important, first of all, becat14e they reflect one of the pri-
mary political facts in America. That is, that the ideas which really
run this country, which make it an international and historical
success story, do not come from Washington. Rather, those ideas

7
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come front the people in the country who deal daily with our na-
tional problems on their own local level, in. their communities,
their churches, their schools, their families, and their neighbor-
hoods.

It has been shown time and again that the best solutions to prob-
lems are found most often by the people who work most directly
with the problem.

Further, it is only when those same people are committed to the
ideas upon which solutions are'based that those solutions will have
a real chance of success. So what is the role of the Fedetal Govern-
ment in all this? Clearly its' role is not to impose solutions from
above, rather it is to find out what the people in the front lines
want to do to solve their problems and then to help them do it.

Many examples come to mind of groups and organizations which
have come up with good workable solutions, and require only the
smallest assistance to help, them succeed. Parents groups are
Springing up all of the time and that seems to me to be a very
hopeful sign. We ought to be listening to these truly grassroots or-
ganizations and hearing what they have to say about the best solu-
tions to their problems.

One rather frightening example of the Federal Government not
listening to those it attempts to help will be touched upon by one of
our witnesses on the third panel, Marie Mitchell, from the teen
services program at Grady Memorial Hospital in Atlafita. Appar-
ently a random sampling showed that the information most wanted
by sexually active girls 16 and under was "how ,to say 'no: without
hurting the other person's feelings." Yet, how many federally
funded planning clinics do you suppose makaaransmission of that
kind of information a top priority in their services 'to teens? I cer-
tainly haven't heard of many.

In closing, I would just like to reiterate my thanks to all of the
witnesses on 'our panels today. I am certain their testimony will be
informative and I am looking forward to hearing it.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
I Prepared statement of Congressman Lawrence Smith follows:

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. LAWRENCE J. SMITH, A REPRESeNTATIVE IN ComutEss
FROM itE STATE OF FLORIDA

MISSING (7HILDREN

Mr. Cha4man, earlier this week the madefor-TV movie "Adam" premiered on
NBC "Adam" is the Awry of an heinous crime perpetrated against an innocent t;
year old boy and his family. Adam Walsh of Hollywood, Florida, was abducted from
the Hollywood Shopping Mall on July 27, 1981. After two weeks of the largest man-
hunt in Florida:5)history, Adam's remains were found 150 miles north of his home.
His killer has never been apprehended.

Each :Nor thousands of children are missing, disappearing from their homes, van-
ishing without a trace by abduction, assault and child molestatiOn, and murder.
Recent, infamous cases in Florida, such as the Adam Walsh case, have involved not
only the kidnapping of children, but grue'ome murders that have received attention
in Florida and throughout the country. Adam's parents, John and Reve Walsh, have
riot let Adam's death become mint her statistic and have launched a national cam-
paign %%Inch resulted in the passage in 1982 of t he Missing Children's Act and the
establishment of a national computerized file for missing children and unidentified
bodies.

a
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Floridians are familiar with cases where missing children have been found safe.
But far more have disappeared without a trace. I want to draw the attention of my
colleagues to this national problem. It, is time to change a national law enforcement
system that has been unresponsive to children. We must stress in our communities
that parents need to educate their children to protect them from injury or death at
the hand of an abductor. Children are vulnerable. Too many children would talk to
a stranger for the offer of an ice cream cone.

It is an unfortunate fact that approximately two million children will disappear
this year. Over one million children are being abused annually in the United States
with 2,000 of these children being killed. An estimated 60 percent of missing chil-
dren are sexually abused, physically exploited, and psychologically damaged
through abduction and kidnapping.

In 1982, as chairman of the Criminal Justice Committee, I was successful in ob-
taining a $76,000 appropriation from the Florida State legislature to establish a
state-wide computer system for missing children though the Florida Department of
Law Enforcement. Florida has taken a leadership role by instituting a clearing-
house computer system that is designed to collect, store and disseminate informa-
tion on missing children ancfact as a central depository. Today, this is the only fully
operational system of its kind to trace miss* children in the U.S. This unique
system searches on the basis of physical description alone, without name or birth-
date. Also, it provides assistance to parents as a liaison from law enforcement agen-
cies to the public. .

The FBI is in the process of creating a system comparable to Florida's clearing-
house. A five member national panel including Broward County's medical examiner,
Dr. Ronald Wright, was established to help the FBI create a national unidentified
dead body file. The FBI has two-thirds of this capability implemented. Mr. Chair-
man, having reviewed the statistics previously mentioned, I would like to see the
select committee urge each state to emulate Florida's clearing house computer
system. Each community should have a tie-in to a state computer system and a toll
free number to disseminate information. If these missing unidentified children could
have been identified through a computer search, they might be alive today.

The Adam Walsh Child Resource Center of Fort Lauderdale, Florida, has spon-
soi ed voluntary fingerprinting of children and child abuse speakers programs, and
it has established a computerized system for missing children in Broward County,
Florida, upon which the state of Florida modeled its statewide system. The FBI is
now modeling its computer after Florida's computer system, to trace missing slid-
dren by physical characteristics.

Through the efforts of the Adam Walsh Child Resource Center, the Florida clear-
ing house now publishes a monthly missing children's bulletin that is distributed to
all State law enforcement agencies. Also, the center was instrumental in the pas-
sage of a new State law requiring a list of all missing children to be distributed to
all Florida school districts. In the case of parental abduction, the likelihood of a
child'robeing enrolled in another school is very high. It is important that all school
systems throughout the Unifed States distribute lists of missing children to all
school districts.

Our children are our future. We need to protect our childrenby voluntary fin-
gerprinting, "safety with strangers" programs, and monitoring court proceedings of
child molester cases. Other preventive measures include: keeping a recent photo of
your children. a record of a child's scars and identifying marks, dental records, vol-
untary fingerprinting, and making sure your children know their address and
phone number including area code.

The select committee could play a crucial role in a national effort to prevent more
Adam Walsh cases. Your support for programs, such as those now in operation in
Florida, would go a long way toward ending the national tragedy that could touch
any child and family at any time.

Chairman MILLER. Our first witness this morning will be me.
Nat Moore of the Miami Dolphins.

Mr. Moore, welcome to the committee.

STATEMENT OF NAT MOORE. MIAMI DOLPHINS
Mr. MOORE. Thank you.
Chairman MII.I.ER. We are honored that you have taken the time

to come in and talk with us. If you have an opening statement, feel
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free to make it in the manner with which you are most comforta-
ble. We may have some questions for you.

Mr. MOORE. Mr. Chairman, members or the select committee,
first of all, I would like to thank you for giving me this opportunity
to give my testimony on what has been my life growing up here in
Miami, as well as what I see today with the youth of Miami
in try everyday experiences. I would guess that, you know, my
story is a human interest story. Because I grew up here in Miami,
and I feel the need to put something back within the community. I
find myself working with different grodps, YMCA, fOr one, the
summer canip for two, and trying to give the guidance that I think
kept me from going astray as a youth.

We all grew up with a lot of disadvantages as youths. We all
wanted to be part of a group of select group of guys or girlA or
whatever that is supposedly a fun group. You know when I came up
here in Miami, the biggest problem I had was trying to decipher who
were my friends and who weren't. And when I look back on that day,
if it hadn't been for the guidance of some of the coaches that I had as
a junior high student, as well as my mother and step-father, that I
might be like some of my friends today, who are jobless, uneducated,
have spent a lot of time in different prisons.

That is not to say that when I was a teenager that I didn't do
things that were wrong, that I didn't take chances or get wild
every now and then. But I had some people that I respected that
took time out of their busy schedules to say, hey, wait a minute.
You know, what you are doing is wrong. Let us reevaluate the sit-
uation. Let us see if we can't find something else to do with all of
that energy that you have.

In junior high school I had several friends. First of all, I have
always been an athlete. I think that is what has saved me. I had
several friends that were better athletes than I, and I have had
several friends that also came out of the ghetto here in Miami that
have made it. But I had several who were better athletes. than
myself and some who did make it.

There were guys from broken homes. The way of life was "what-
ever way I can make it that is what I am going to do." For one guy,

." you .know, he didn't spend as much time with his family as I did
with mine. And in a way, sometime you wonder if that wasn't

o
better for him because the background that the guy came from, his
entire family was always in trouble. That that was his guidance.
That was his leadership.

Ile had two or three brothers before him who spent time in
prison. And I guess it was just his de'stiny to do the same thing.
And he was a very close friend, and I think that if it hadn't been
for my morn pulling pie away from him at times, that I could have
ended up the same way.

Now, when I first went to high school, I had some problems. The
first time I had ever been to an integrated school. And coming
from an all-black junior high school, I went in with a' chip on my
shoulder. I felt like the world owed me something. I found myself
getting in fights, and arguments that really didn't make any sense.
But when I was able to go back and talk to an old coach I had in
junior high school to make me understand that, you know, the
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world didn't owe me anything2That I had to go out and get it for
myself. That I had to apply myself if I really ever wanted to make
it. That was important. And you know, the guy, William Lee and
myselfand he is no longer a coach or instructor, he is an insur-
ance man, and you'cknow to me that is sad, because here is a guy
that has directed kids' lives for sp long in the right direction. And
he had to leave the profession. that he loved most because of eco-
nomics.

You look at parents today. With inflation and unemployment,
how many parents really have the time to put in with their kids?
How many parents actually know what their kids are doing? The
last 6 years I have been in teen disco, because when I was a teen-
ager, having something to do on Friday and Saturday night kept
me off the streets, kept me out of trouble. And one of my young er

.disk jockeys came to me once and said, "I got a great idea. Let us
have an all-night 'dance:" I said, "What do you mean an all-night
dance ?" I said, "The, kids' parents would have a heart attack."
"hat will show you how naive I was.

I said, "OK, we'll do it. We'll try it. We'll see what happen3.", .
The all-night dance goes from 9 o'clock in the evening ountil 6

o'clock 'the next morning. We had over 1,500 kids. At 6 o'clock the
next morning we still had over 1,000 kids. And to me, something is
wrong. Because even though I did it to satisfy my employees and to
see would it work, it was ironic that at that time of the morning
the parents would have their kids still out. It got so bad that
this was real!: their only outlet. And I just can't understand today,
you know, we talk about the school system, how the doors are
closed at 3:15.

Everybody. is not an athlete. Everybody is not a drum major or a
band participant. But there is what you call,extrticurricular activi-
ties after school. This is something that was available when I was
in school that I don't see now. So what do you have kids do? They
leave school, they have no jobs. Their, parents are working, or
whatever. And they have nothing to do but hang out. We all know
that no matter how hard you try, if yolt don't have anything to do
but hang out on the corner, someone is going to come up with a
bright idea. And usually bright ideas result in trouble.

I am just what happened to the park and recreation
facilities that carried teams for people who were not the top ath-
letes, or people who just wanted to come out and play tennis, et
cetera. These are the things that I feel today are missing from
when I was a kid. You know I had discipline. I had people to care
about me. When I was a.kid, if I did ;Anybody wrong, not only did d
get paddled by the principal of the school, but he also called my
mom and she came out and paddled me.

But now, today, you know I go out and I talk to kids in different
schools, during Career Week, Black Education Week. And to see the
lack of discipline within the school system and the fact that teachers
or instructors are so ham cuffed, it is amazing that they can teach at
all. And I guess this is one of the reasons that, you know, when
:3:15 comes, the teachers are the first ones out of the doors.

Hopefully, through these meetings, hopefully we can find some
answers to generate some activities for kids so that they don't have
to hang out on the bus bench. They can go to the park, and there

c
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are team sports or different games, or anything to occupy kids'
time. I am a father of three. And I don't get to spend as much time
with my kids as I would like to, because of my involvements in
'different things. The one thing that my wife and I do do is
that we make sure when our kids come home from school that we
spend time with them doing homework, playing games or what-
ever.

We make sure that we have dinner together. This was important
for me as a kid. Now, I didn't get to meet my father until I was 14
years old. I did not grow up with my real father. But when I was 5
years old my mother remarried and moved to Miami. And the once
a month trip to the beach, the once a month trip to the drive-in
movies as a familiar was very important to me. It was a time when
myself and my four sisters and one brother, my mom and dad, we
all worked together. And I think that is so important today,' be-
cauie you know everybody is going in opposite directions, especially
the parents and kids.

The parents are so caught up in trying to make ends meet that
they -don't have time for the kids, especially in the single-parent
homes. I had previously planned on bringing a kid here. Very .in-
Westing kid; 14 years old, very talented, extremely bright. L-have
had the pleasure of working with him in the summer gulf coast
camp for about 5 years straight. He has been there every year.

The kid comes for a week, has a chance to leave home and spend
some time with 15() other kids. And this kid, as small as he,is, is
probably the best athlete to ever come through there. He is also a
great dancer, speaker, you name it. And recently, 3 years ago, I
bought a roller skating rink here in the community, and I put the
kid to work. And the irony of the whole situation is that he comes
from a broken home family where his mother works as a barmaid
at one of the local nightclubs. And through all of this .he has been
able to stay on the straight-and-narrow path, with the fact of his
mother going from boyfriend to boyfriend.

lie talks to myself and Larry at times about the situation. But
the fact that he is able to spend time around people like myself
and Larry really helps him a great deal. But the thing that worries
me about it is that in the afternoon when he has nothing else to
do, he is starting to hang out with the wrong crowd. And for the
first time, I guess about a month ago, I caught him smoking mari-
huana-14 years old.

It is such a waste because all he is doing is trying to belong. He
is trying to belong with a group of guys that are in that same,
neighborhood. Peer pressure. It is something I guess we all go
through; not only kids, adults. The fact of trying to belong. When I
asked him why was he doing this, he says, "Everybody else does it.
You know, I want to be like everybody else."

Hopefully the talk he and I had will get him back on the tight
track. But it worries me because I am not his dad, and I don't nec-
essarily have the time or will always be there when he needs me.
But because he has nothing else to do but hang out, he is starting
to get into trouble. Ile works for me on weekends at my roller skat-
ing rink, but what about Mondays through Fridays, when there is
no guidance and there is no one there to help him, there is nothing
for him to do.

-t



Where are 'the answers? You tell me. If I had the answers, I
would be a politician myself.

Chairman MILLER. That is not the criteria.
Mr. MOORE. But that is basically my story. I guess what I should

do is just .open up and arkwer questions ,from here .on in.
Chairman MILLER. Qne of the things' we have' learned, Mr.

Moore, as we.talk torople who work with our children and ado-
lescents, is that it is very easy to learn about the number of chil-
dren who have failed, the children that end up in the juvenile jus-
tice system or drop out of high school. There are ways to measure
that.

We do not know as much about children who succeed. Why is it
that some succeed and others don't? Why is it that children who
live in similar neighborhoods_angl.conditions with regard to family
structure and income levels turn out, so differently.

I had' the pleasure some years ago of taking the new principal of
Eastern !Sigh School of Washington, 'D.C., to lunch. I had read
about hilt) in the paper, didn't know him,.and asked him to come
have, lungh with me. Eastern High School is a t 15 Kocks from
the Capitol), and at that time was repute one of the toughest
high schools in the United States.

We talked about Eastern High School. 11 said, "we have guns,
we have drugs, we have prostitutes, we have cops, we have every-
body on our campus, and a few students," He also talked abolit the
fact that he was teaching German, arili advanced chemistiey, while
others were teaching Latin. Some of their students were going out
to the various universities for advanced studies./ His student enrollment is made up of 85 percent AFDC children.
There is usually'dnly one adult in the home and income levels are
very low. Why do some' of these kids excel? His answer was that he
didn't know, except that when he went to that home, somebody
was cheering fot that kid, whether it was a sister or a brother or
an aunt or stepfather or what have you. Somebody was saying, all

4: right, you got a C. We are all right. You made the team. Or fantas-
tic, you got through. the quiz. But somebody was cheering. What
you are suggesting today is that when you and I grew up there
were role models in a community, people you looked up to. That is
not to .suggest that they do not exist today.

But the question is whether today he support stru cture is ade-
quate, especially in neighborhoods wife children have more diffi-
cultotimes because of unemployment, oor 'rig, and fewer role
models.

Mr. MOORE. Well, I think role models are very important. When
I grew up here as a kid, ironically I hated the Dolphins. I tho'ught
they were the worst team in footballwhich the-, were.

Chairman MILLER. There is some eviderice to LIM,.
Mrs. Boccs. That was a "Saint-ly" statement.
Chairman MILLER. Not everyone can be a Redskin fan.
Mr. MOORE. But a guy by the name of Jimmy Warren who

played for the Miami Dolphins, which I thought was the worst
team in football, took time out to come to my high school and
speak with the senior class, and afterward spent time with a lot of
the athletes in just preparing us for the future, not only for athlet-
ics. And to me that meant so much, because it showed that some-
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body did care. I guess that is basically. what I have been trying to
do, is be a role model. Be around tie `kids for whatever reason it
might be. If nothing else but to just sit there and say hello, and
carry on a conversation.

I find myself trying to get more players involved within the com-
munity with refrencv to coming out and spending time with the
kids, When I opened -up my roller skating rink it was both for
profit, as well as trying to help the community. With the idea that

a if I can get some of my tteammates, the A. J. Deweys, Tony Na-
thans, the Torn Bowers, at if these guys would come out and
'Spend some time with thekids, the impression it would make on
the kids.

Now, I know that everything' starts at home with reference to-
helping a kid. You have got to have that support, from your family,
your parents or from whatever. And I think that guys like myself,
people who have made it, who are a sign that you elfin get out,
there is a light at the end of the tunnel. It is important for us to be
a part of it. But the problem as t 'see it, and I could be wrong, in
reference to trying to get these type of things sponsoryd or put on,
we haven't been able to. I ha 'e talked to several individuals about
the athletes in the off-season doing clinics.

Let us face it. There is not much you can teach kids in 1 hour
about football. That:is not where my head is. My head is inOte fact
of getting eight or nine, at least, each weekend to go to Broward
.County, Dade iCounty, and just spend some time with the kids be-
cause, you know, when kids see that you care, and that you have

/made it, they start to think that they can. When I saw Jimmy
Warren, I felt like I could be a professional football player.

The guy was no bigger than me. I was 160 pounds in high school,
he was 175. I am saying, well, if he can make it, what is to keep
Nat Moore from making it.' I have 'talent. I have brains. And if we
can't get the parks and recreation facilities open so we can come in
and do these type of things, it is a problem. It turns the athletes off
because they have other things they would like to do as well.

Half the time we can't get transportation. Everybody wants it to
be at their park. Someone's got to bus kids somewhere. We went
through it this year during, last yeafrshall I say, during the strike.
We tried to run a couple clinics. They went fairly decent when we
were able to get them established. But the problem still stems from
everybody wants to take the credit, but nobody 'wants to do the
work. And who suffers? The kids.

Chairman MILLER. Mrs. Boggs.
Mrs. BouGs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Moore, thank you .tio much for takhng your time this morning

to be with us and giving us your valuaPle testimony. 1, too, had a
stepfather when I was 5'/2, and he wa the, most stabilizing, won-

. derful and supportive influence in my' life. I realize what a fine
model your stepfather must have been/ for you and your siblings.
That has come through loudly and cledrlythat children need the
image of a person they can respect and admire who loves them suf-
ficiently well to discipline them.

And did your mom make you pick out your own switch? Mine
did. What really is concerning me here mostly is the question of
economics. What you are saying is that we hear this great huge na-
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tional push about education, about whether we should have merit
pay. for exceptionally good teachers. Do we need to reach out and
make certain we have merit pay for our science and math teachers
to lure them from the private sector, and so on.

Apparently it is a question of economics. If we don't pay those
talented teachers, such as that coach, sufficiently well so that for
his own falily's sake can't afford to remain in the profession he
loves, is it a question of economics? At 3:15 we lock the gates to the
schools and don't have the teachers there who would be willing to
give their time and their talent to give a study hour, maybe shop,
maybe arts and crafts as well as athletici? Shouldn't we address
the problem of school closings, and the loss of the teachers, from
some realization that communities must feel that they can afford
to have the kind of teachers and extracurricular activities that are
needed?

Mr. MooRE. I would say that possibly the problem is, as you say,
unarpaid teachers, people who really do care that can no longer
stay within the school system because of financial problems. Some-
where in there we have got to find a way to pay the teachers
enough. I mean we are talking about people who educate our kids,
and they are the lowest paid people in the process. You know,
when I was a senior in high school, because of economic reasons we
had people coaching sports that had never coached, played, and
had no idea what that sport was all about.

But they needed the coaching supplement. They needed that
extra money to make ends meet so they could stay in teaching. The
most ironic thing I have ever seen is to have a swimming coach
who couldn't swim. But we had this. I mean the kids eventually
taught him to swim. You know, he was a great English teacher,
and he needed the coaching supplement to be able to continue to
teach. .

Now, you know, we had funds directed at all these different ave-
nues and we came up with all these different programs where we
gave kids jobs, et cetera. But I think that education, first of all, is
the road to success. Because awareness is the key. I mean, I talk
with kids a lot when I go through Career Week. And you will be
surprised how many kids today have no knowledge at all, or have
no feeling as to what they want to do in life.

They are going through the motions. And I did it early in My
life. But you would think today, that, 15 years later from when I
was in high school, that the kids would have some general concept
of what they would like to do or some role model they would like to
follow. But they don't. So it has got to start at home and within the
schools. From there, everything filters out. If we can find some
ways, I mean we can't give everybody jobs. That is evident.

But I think when we are talking about educating the leaders of
tomorrow, somewhere in there we have got to generate some funds
for education, for teaching, to make teaching worthwhile to the in-
structors.

Mrs. BOGGS. Thank you so much, Mr. Moore.
Chairman MILLER. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just want to thank Mr.

Moore for sharing his thoughts and valuable time with us as we
grope with these problems. I don't have any questions.

15
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Chairman MILLER. Mr. Lehman.
Mr. LEHMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. think Mr. Moore per-

sonifies the quotation, "Better to light one candle than curse the
darkness." And that is your story as far as I am concerned. That
too many ofus are cursing the.darkness of our community rather
than to try to light one candle to help o e boy. I think that is the
way out of this predicament we sotret Iles find ourselves bogged
down in. I will talk to you at some of otter er time about paddling be-
cause I disagree with you on that.

I would also like to talk to you further about the fact that the
program is oriented toward mainly young men. I think that just
adds to the problem. I don't want to take up any moreof your time
now. But perhaps our staff can work something out with you. We
can have a luncheon together or something and maybe bring a few
people together from around here and help you with your efforts
because c-.41ainly your candle can be increased to a 1,000-watt bulb-l
with a little help from people in this area.

Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. I want to thank you very much for taking

your time to be with us. I think that you have-laid some of the fun -
damntal issues certainly with respect to our children, right before
this committee. I also want to thank you in your capacity as the
repwsentative of the Players Association.. Congresswoman Boggs
aild I have enjoyed the support of the Players Association on a
number of pieces of legislation, including those dealing with domes-
tic N'iorkee,child abuse, and spousal abuse.

Also, I have had an opportunity to work with a number of people
who are graduates of the Players Fellowship Camp. It is quite re-
markable. These ere young people who have taken a second look,
as you say, at what they want to do with thc kr lives and many have
turned out to be exciting success stories..

Thank you very much. You don't mind if I still hope for the
19'es to stay one game ahead of you all the time.

Mr. Moon. Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you very much for your testimony.
Mr. Moon. Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Next the committee will hear from aptifiel

made up of Marcia Weaver, who is project coordinator for the Mis-
sissippi Chaptet_ of the American Academy of Pediatrics; Don
Cao executive director, Arkansas Advocates fok Children and
/'an.ilies; Eva LeGard, member, East Baton Rotige'Xarish School
lioa..d and member of the Governor's Task Force on Priority Set-
ting for Education in Louisiana; and David Pingree, secretary, De-
partment of fiealt h and Rehabilitative Services, Florida.

Welcome to the committee. If you *save a prepared statement, it
will be put in the record in is entirety. To the extent to which you
can summarize, it will be appreciated by the conimittee.*-

We will hear from Marcia Weaver first,
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STATEMENT OF MARCIA WEAVER, PROJECT COORDINATOR, MIS-
. SISSIPPI CHAPTER, AMNRICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS AND

FORMER COMMUNITY PLANNER, GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION
FOR CHILDREN AND YOUTH, MISS.

Ms. WEAVER. Mr. Chairman and members of the select commit-
tee, ram pleased to come before you today to tell you about some
of the problems- Mississippi's children and thdir families face. What
I will describe focuses on prevention, not the more expensive crisis-
oriented supports.

Mississippi is on the move. 'We lead the Nation in education
reform, before "Nation at Risk". swept the country. Mississippi is
investing in its own future.

The State legislature passed an Education Reform Act in Decem-
ber 1982, including a sales tax increase. The board of higher learn-
flg has increased college entry level standards calling for more

math, science, gnd foreign languages.
The board or economic development has planned an aggressive

program for selling our heritage, resources, and potential for indus-
trial growth to in- Stale visitors and to companies considering relo-
cating.

Vocatibnal and technical education was recently reorganized in
Mississippi.

Approximately 809,000 children are among the most valuable of
A our plentiful resources in Mississippi. Some children are well pro-

yided for from the very beginning of life. Some are not.
Mississippi has the highest teenage pregnancy rate in the

Nation.
Mississippi has the second highest infant death rate in the

Nation; 155,000 children live with only one parent; 33 percent live
' beloW the poverty level; 39 percent 'Wye in deteriorated housing;

almost 100,000 children under age 6 have mothers who work and
over 28,000 children aro, without licensed care while their parents
work.

Mississippi has the highest school dropout rate in the Nation.
Military rejection rates are the highest in the Nation. Mississippi
has the lowest per capita income in the Nation.

Unemployment has been above 10 percent for 21 mo ths.
Mississippi has been counting on the predicted ec omic recov-

ery. Unfortunately, those anticiRated enues have not yet come
to Mississippi. Last week our tax conimmission reported that $52.5
million were short in anticipated State revenues in the first 3
months of the fiscal year. State budgets have already been cut 5
percent. State public officials must begin to make some devastating
choices.

Let me tell eau how some of the congressional decisions are af-
fecting three families that live in Hinds County. Cloteal, with her
husband and 9 of her 11 children, moved back to Mississippi 3
years ago io be close to family! Cloteal is a domestic worker, head-
of-household with an eighth grade education. Before their return to
the State, her earnings were supplemented with AFDC. Cloteal's
husband receives disability. In Mississippi, they were not eligible to
receive this entitlement.

Cloteal desires to do better but in her own words "My hands are
tied." Her hope is that her children can get an education preparing
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them for good jobs so that they are not bound with 'the problems
she has faced. Recently Cloteal borrowed out of the family budget
and from her church $301 to pay for books, fees, and transportation
for one son to eater a local ijunior college in September.

Cloteal and h4r family depehd heavily on food stamps. With, the
proposed monthly reporting any change in her $62 weekly earnings
wil! haye to be reported. At the very least her food stamps will go
up or down evry month.

What 'is expbcted from the new reporting system? From a 4-
onth pilot in six Mississippi counties, the State welfare depart-
ent found that about 70 percent of the clients reported some

change. Tenopercent lost food stamps because they did not meet the
reporting deadline. At best, the cost of administering the program
breaks even with the cost savings. However, this is because of the
sayings of withholding stamps from those who; could not get their
pitpernerk complleted on time.

Shirley is a 29-year-old mother of three children. Her first two
children were delivered by Caesarian section by her obstetrician at
a local county hospital just a few blocks from her Jackson home.

When Shirley was in the second month of her third pregnancy
her husband lost his job as an offshore oil driller. With the loss of
his job came the loss of the family's health insurance. The family
took all of their savings to (pay the obstetrician. Then they visited
the finance office of the hospital where they were told not to come
back until they had at lead half of the cost of the atection deliv-
ery.

The Mississippi State Legislature secured passage of the first lim-
ited medically 'needy bill in the country. Funding was delayed until
July 1984. Now because of Federal reductions in medicaid match-
ing rates, Mississippi is faced with a $10 to $12 million State
budget deficit which will mean a $43 million progratn reduction if
additional State funds are not appropriated. This puts in jeopardy
the potential funding'Of limited medically needy.

Juanita is a success story. Juanita is a single mother who grew
up near Utica with her mother, grandmother, and three siblings.
She completed high school, junior, and senior college. Now Juanita
is employed as the coordinator of the WIC program housed at a
rural health clinic nearby.

Juanita's daughter has caught the spirit. Her oldest child recent-
ly scored above the 95th percentile on the California Achievement
Test. Her school is depi.ndent on both State and Federtil funds.
Ninety-one percent of the students at her school receive free or re-
duced lunches.

Public school support is key if Juanita's child is going to make it.
Tax Tuition credits will encourage more students to leave the
public schools. There is no child care facility available to Juanita
for her 3-year-old in this rural communtiy. Child care is difficult
for working mothers to find hz rural Mississippi.

What is the responsibility of the Federal Government to Missis-
sippi.families? Essentially, it is to provide certain services for the
Nation's advancement. Mississippi, a high risk State and at best
only able to provide the very basics, is still, unfortunately, the
pporest State. We are trying to help ourselves, yet we continue to
need assistance from the Federal Government.

I - ;
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In our State there are too many people who lack the basic securi-
ty to be able to progress steadily toward self-sufficiency. Only when
all our people can see the hope of self:sufficiency can the State
move out of its impoverished status.

I ask that this committee give full consideration for continued
support to Mississippi in the areas of health care for mothers and
babies, public schools for educating our children and supports like
food stamps and child care. Mississippi is'counting on your leader-
shin, your direction to provide the policies to encourdge self-suffi-
cient families.

Thank you for kind attention and for allowing me to testify
before this committee.

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
[Prepared statement of Marcia Weaver follows:1

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARCIA WEAVER, MISSISSIPPI

Mr. Chairman and members of the Select Committee. I am pleased to con before
you today to tell you about some of the problems Mississippi s children and their
families face. As a native Mississippian, who has worked with and for children and
their families for over twenty years, I woulsj like to talk with you about cost-effec-
tive programs that encourage self-sufficient families.0/hat I will describe focuses on
prevention, not the more expensive crisis-oriented supliorts.

Mississippi is on the move. We lead the nation in education reform, before
"Nation at Risk" swept-the country. Mississippi is investing in its own future.

The 'state legislature passed an education reform act .in December 19142. Compre-
hensive features of the act include salary increases for teachers, kindergarten, com-
pulsory attendance, accreditation and certification improvements, school consolida-
tion study, and professional development far school administrators: To pay for these
improvements. ..the sales tax w.as increased, Already the state has hired reading
aides for all first grade classes, hired and trained school attendance counselors, and
appointed a commission to set new teacher eddcation and certification standards.

Additionally, the Boai-d of Higher Learning has increased the college entry level
standards calling for more math. science and for)ign languages.

The Board of Economic Deyeloptnent has planned an aggressive program for sell-
ing our heritage, resources and potential for industrial growth to in-state visitors
and to companies considering re-locating.

Vocational and technical education was recently reorganized in Mississippi. This
will 'provide a match between training institutions and industrial needs. A direct
result of this state effort was the Tuesday, October 10 announcement of a Hughes
Aircraft expansion in Forest, Mississippi.

Mississippi has an excellent record in health immunization. Ninety-eight percent
of all school age children have received basic immunizations. Numerous other
health care services are provided with emphasis on prevention. A wide range of
services are avaiable statewide such as children's medical program, family planning,
home health se...vices, WIC and services provided by Medicaid. Most of these services
are available thrbugh state and federal match.

Approximately 509.000 children are aftnong the most valuable of our plentiful re-
sources in Mississippi. They constitute almost one-third of the state population.
Some 2:i7,00 are under six years of age. The 6,1100 children that w' be horn this
year in Mississippi will reach the age of majority in the year 200.

However, all is not well,
Support systems surrounds children from the moment of conception. Some chi!

dren are well-provided fur from the very beginning of life. Some are not.
Mississippi has the highest teen-age pregnancy rate in the nation
Mississippi has the 2nd highest infant death rate in the nation

55,000 children live with only one parent
33 percent live below the poverty level-39 percent live in deteriorated housing
Almost 100,000 children under age six have mothers who work

28,00 children are without licensed care while thtiL parents work
'Mississippi has the highest school dropout rate in the nation
Military rejection rates ore the highest in the nation
Missi .sippi has the lowest per capita income in the nation
l'nemployment has been above 10 percent for twenty-one month
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Mississippi has been counting on the predicted ecohomic recovery. We wee count-
ing cn Sunbelt growth. We were counting on more people out of state willing tq
invest and live in Mississippi.

Unfortunately, those anticipated revenues have not yet come to Mississhipi. No
real growth has occurred. Unemployment remains over 12 percent. Mississippi is in
the shadebelt. On October 6, last week, the Mississippi Tax Commission reported
that Mississippi was $52.5 million short of anticipated state revenue in the first
three months of the fiscal year. State budgets have already been cut five percent.

The cut-back philosophy at the federal level is hitting Mississippi like a ton of
rocks. In 43 of the states 82 counties, transfer payments are the largest source of
income.

State public officials must begin to make some devastating choices. Dq we contin-
ue to maintain Medicaid standards at the state mental hospital or cut high-
way spending? Do we support good prenatal care and delivery or provide physics
teachers in rural Mississippi schools? Do we pay court incurre obligations or do we
liqf e. the justice department will hold the tab a while longer? e decisions are diffi-
c61t.

Let me tell you how some of the Congressional decisions are effecting three fami-
lies that live in Hinds county. Two families live in Jackson, the stela capitol and a
rather progressive, well-to-do community. The other familyslives in Utica, a small
town of 867 people who proudly reported four weeks ago the installation of its
second stop light. Two of these families are black. One is white.

Cloteal, with her husband and nine of her eleven children, moved back to Missis-
sippi three years ago to be close to family. Cloteal is a domestic worker, head-of-
household with an 8th grade education. Before their return to the state, her .earn-
ings were supplemented with AFDC. Cioteal's husband receives disability. In Missis-
sippi, they were not eligible to receive this entitlement.

Cloteal desires to do better hot in her own words "My hands are tied. Her hope
is that her children can get an education preparing them for good jobs so that they
are not bound with the probleths she has faced. Recently Cloteal borrowed out of the
family budget and from her church $301.00 to pay for books, fees and transportation
for one son to enter a local junior college in September. That money will be difficult
to repay.

Cloteal and her family depend heavily on food stamps. With the proposed monthly
reporting any change in her $62.Q0 weekly earnings will have to be reported. If she
misses a week of work or picks up an extra job, or simply finds a fifth payday in a
month, she now has to report that change. At the very least her food stamps will go
up or down every month. If she makes an error or the report is late, their food
stamps will be cut Off. Cloteal's case will be closed and she will have to apply for re-
certification, a delay of a month or two. Even worse, her son will likely have to drop
out of school so they can eat.

What is expected from the new reporting system? From a four month pilot in six
counties, the to Welfare Department found that about 70 percent of

the clients reported some change. Ten percent lost food stamps because they did not
meet the reporting deadline. Some automatic changes occured. Rather than a basing
eligibility on a standard pay period such as 4.3 pay periods per month, monthly re-
porting will have some four and five week pay days per month. At best, the cost of
administering the program breaks even with the "cost savings", Howeveri this is
because of the "savings" of witholding stamps from those who could not get their
paperwork completed on time.

Implementation of the monthly reporting for food stamps has been delayed. If en-
acted, Cloteal and her family will be significantly affected: Changes in persons and
income in her home do change from month to month. Just understanding the paper
work and completing the necessary reporting forms on time become primary to
their survival and can eliminate hopes for her children to ever become self suffi-
cient.

Shirley is a 29 year old mother of three children. Her first two children were de-
livered by Caesarian section by her obstetrician at a local county hospital just a few
blocks from her Jackson home.

When Shirley was in the second month of her third pregnancy her husband lost
his job as an offshore oil driller. With the loss of his job came the loss of the fami-
ly's health insurance. The family took all of their savings to pay the obstetrician-.
Then they visited the finance office of the hospital where they Were told not to plan
to come back to the hospital without at least $1000 of the $2000, necessary for a C-
sect ion delivery.

The social work department suggested that Shirley might be. able to deliver as an
indigent patient at University Medical Center. But her doctor told her he did not

so
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have staff privileges at that hospitpl. He advised her to come to the cnunty hospital
emergency room when she was in labor where he would meet her. After finding no
other resources Shirley went to emergency where the phypician arranged admission.
Despite the two previous surgical deliveries, her baby was delivered normally one
evening. Concerned about how she would ever pay the bill, the next morning Shir-
ley picked op her baby and went home, against her doctor's advice.

With the help of Shirldy's testimony, advocates were successful in the 1983 state
legislature in securing passage of the first Limited Medically Needy bill in the coun-
try. Funding was delayed until July 1984. Wow because of Federal reductions in to
Medicaid matching rates, Mississippi is faced with a $10 to $12 million state budget
deficit which will mean a $43 million program reduction if additional state funds 0
are not appropriated. This puts in jeopardy the potential funding of Limited Medi-
cally Needy.

The Congress is now considering proposals' which could help Shelley. Representa-
tive Waxman has proposed 100 percent Federal funding for married poor women
with unemployed husbands and health care benefits for their infants. (HR 4059)
Federal proposals are also being considered to reduce the cost-shifting to the states
in the Fqderal matching formula. .

Juanita is a success story. Juanita is a single mother Who grew up near Utica
with her mother, grandmother and 3 siblings. She completed high school, junior and
senior college. Now Juanita is employed as the coordinator of the WIC. program It
housed at a rural health clinic nearby.

Juanita's daughter has caught the spirit. Her hest child recently scored above
the 95th percentile on the California Achievement Test. Her school is dependent on
both state and Federal funds. Ninety-one percent of the students at her school re
ceive free or reduced lunches.

Public school support is key if Juanita's child is going to make it. Close by there is
a private school attended by all white students. Tax tuition credits will encourage
more students to leave the public schools diluting both community support and
dollar vigues. In Mississippi 86 percent of our children attend public school and dol-
lars are distributed on a per pupil basis. Tax credits would offer little choice to fami-
lies like Juanita.

There is no child care facility available to Juanita for her three-yearold in this
rural community. She is completely dependent on a friend or relative to keep her
baby. When grandmother, who is almost 70 years old, is ill Juanita has to be absent
from work if she is not able to locate some place to take her child for that day.
Child care is difficult for working mothers to find in rural Mississippi.

Juanita needs consistent avaftable child care. Federal initiatives to expand family
child care and employer-sponsored child care are vital in rural communities where
mo s must have child care to be self sufficient.

Vhat is the responsibility of the Federal Government to Mississippi families? Es-
. entially, it is to provide certain services for the nation's advancement.

For the first'time in my lifetime there is a united effort for economic progress for
all of our citizens. State policies have been established to invest in people and pre-
vention rather than treat neglect. To encourage self-sufficiency, policies such as the
Education Reform Act and the Limited Medically Needy expansion of Medicaid
were enacted.

Mississippi, a high risk state and at best only able to provide the very basics, is
still unfortunately the poorest state. We are trying to help ourselvel, yet we contin-

, ue to need assistance from the federal government. High tech is slow coming to Ty-
lertowii, Wiggins and Ma Rena.

The state s history of civil rights conflict is rapidly changing. Opportunities for
black citizens are better than ever. Yet educational and economic differences be-
tween blacks and whites are still significant.

In our state there too many people who lack the basic security to be able to
progress steadily toward self sufficiency. Only wn all our people can see the hope
of self%ufficiency can the state move out of its impoverished status, .

I ask that this committee give full, consideration for continued support to Missis-
sippi in the area of health care for mothers and babies, public schools for educating
our children and supports like food stamps and child care for families, to the great-
est extent possible. Cloteal, Shirley and Juanita and hundreds of thousands in Mis-
sissippi are counting on your leadership, your direction to provide the policies to en
courage self sufficient families.

Thank you for your kind attention and for allowing me to testify before this com-
mittee.

Chairmin MILLER. Mr. Crary.
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STATEMENT OF DON (7RARY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ARKANSAS
ADVOCATES FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES, LITTLE ROCK, ARK.

Mr. CRARY. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, thank
you for giving me a chance to be here today to talk some about Ar-
kansas children and their prbblems. I perhaps should have con-
ferred with Marcia ahead of time, the. problems sound so similar
between Mississippi and Akansas. In the brief time I have I want
to cover three fairly big aieas of children's programs and services
that currently are not being adequately provided for and are caus-
ing enormous problems to children and youth in Arkansas.

I am going to cover them generally in my opinion in the order in
which the tragedy of not meeting the needs is greatest, and also in
terms ofthe greatest number of children affected. The first clearly
in Arkansas, as mentioned with Mississippi, is basic income and
health support programs for poor children in the State. eine out of
four children in Arkansas lives in poverty. That is a huge percent-
age. Arkansas established its standard of need for AFDC in 1976,
and has never adjusted it since that time.

At that time we decided to pay '9 percent of it as payment level
and since then have lowered that 0,60 percent. Therefore, today in
Arkansas a mother with absolutely no other source of income and
three children to take care of gets $164 a month. None of you, not
myself, and no one in this room can pay for rent, water, electricity,
gas, transportation, clothes for three children and basic household
supplies that wouldn't be covered under food stamps on $164 a
month.

If thatimothe, out of concern for her children, seeks some form
of additional income, borrows income from neighbors and relatives,
clearly, the choices, she reports it and has benefits reduced, she
doesn t report it and stands the risk of a fraud investigation. If She
doesn't seek additional income, can't continue to pay rent and utili-
ties and provide for her children, she obviously runs the risk or
State inyestigating. Investigating for neglect of the children who
may be ibiously neglected.

And it is interesting to note that if in fact We took her children,
we would put them in foster care and pay someone else $400 a
month to take care of her three children. It is an absurd system
and has incredibly tragic consequences on familiei in Arkansas.
Related clearly are the problems of health care because medicaid
has been tied to AFDC. If you have low standards for AFDC you
also have thousands of children not getting health care, which is
the case in Arkansas.

We have literally thousands that don't qualify because the stand-
and of need is so outdated in Arkansas. We also do not cover the
unemployed parent so we do not provide those kinds of programs
for poor people if there are two parents in the household. Thus, in
periods of high unemployment if a husband loses a job, cannot find
another one, the family desperately needs financial assistance from
the State, the option is to abandon the family. Again, that has to
be true abandonment or risk fraud in order to provide for his chil-
dren.

We also do not cover prenatal care for first time pregnancies.
This k a critical problem in poor areas and for poor children
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throughout the State; there is a desperate need for providing good
prenatal care. In. rh it obviously is also the most cost-effec-
tive way to spend health do rs I can name. Prenatal care is rela;
tively inexpensive, eipecially hen you compare it with.the cost of
caring for premature, low-birth- eight babies at $1,000 a day. You
do not need that for women covered with prenatal care for a great
number of women.

It would be of tremendous benefit for the Federal Government to
require States to periodically adjust their standard.of need or to set
a minimum level that is acceptable as a national level of income
that families ought to be able to have when circumstances leave
that their only source of income.

The second area I wanted to mention has to db with child wel-
fare services. In Arkansas we have the greatest problem in the
area of preventive services. We simply don't have an array of serv-
ices to keep children in their own homes. Part of that obviously is
economics, as I said before. Our emergency assistance fund is so
poorly funded in the State of Arkansas that at best a family may
get a $40 ,one -time emergency assistance check. That clearly is not
going to hefp'a family being evicted -kom an apartment or who has
a utility being turned off, someone who needs to overcome that fi-
nancial problem to care for their own c ildren.

We also do not have nearly enough y care. We have 22 home-
makers covering 16 of the 75 counties in rkansas. We clearly, es I
think was recognized throughout the Natio in Public Law 96-272,
are continuing in Arkansas for most of the c 'ld welfare funding to
go into out-of-home .placements.,Our hope is t t that law [96-272],
if it stays intact and has its owh monetary app cpriation, will pro-
vide monetary incentive to redirect efforts toward prevention. But
it will be important for it to remain a separate act to provide that
incentive.

The third area I want to mention is the problem of juvenile jus-
tice in Arkansas. The biggest problem we have is an antiquated ju-
venile court system in which at least a fourth of the judges in juve-
nile service, have no legal training. In additiOn probably 90 percent
of the remaining juvenile courts have part-time judges also main-
taining a full-time legal practice. So obviously the priorities come
out often in terms of where one's livelihood comes from, whi4 is
more' often the legal practice than the juvenile court judge's rble.

We also have concurrent jurisdiction for juve/lile court and
criminal court for 15- to 19-year-olds and with the 'proAecutor
making the choice of where the trial will take place. Provisions of
the Juvenile Justice Act which mandate the unjailing of juveniles
does not really protect these kids because the act has essentiallr
defined juveniles as kids under the jurisdiction of juvenile court, '
which these kids are not once they, have been charged as adults.

So for many of those children who are continuing to be sent
through adult courts and end up in adult jail, I would like to see
the Juvenile Justice Act be more specific in its definition. That a
juvenile be a specific age group. And if there is a need to allow for
some kind of concurrent jurisdiction adult court, that it [the JJDP
Act] specify violent and serious offenseswhich only 10 percent of
the kids going through the courts in Arkansas have committed.

I
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I appreciate the opportunity to be here. Clearly Arkansas chil-
dren have some -very severe problems. It is, as Mississippi is, a very
poor State. I would be the first to argue Arkansas has not done
what it can do for the children and youth of the State, but I also
recognize it has limited resources, and in reality may never do all
that is necessary without the assistance of the Federal Govern-

. ment.
It is a great pleasure for me and the people who care about chil-

dren and youth in Arkansas to know that there is a Select Commit-
tee on Children and Youth that we can discuss the problems with.

Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
[Prepared statement of Don Crary follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DON CRARY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ARKANSAS ADV,OCATES
FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Don Crary, Executive Director of
Arkansas Advocates for Children and Families. I would like to express my gratitude
to you fqr allowing me to be here today and for your concern for the children, youth'
and families of Arkansas.

Though there are many problems facing large numkprs of Arkansas children, I
will review for you only three or four major areas of concern. These areas are: (1)
the ,impact of basic financial and health support programs on children, (2) the cur-
relit child welfar9 system in Arkansos, and (3) the current juvenile justice system.

Ra.qic financial and health support piograms
Thousands of Arkansas children are living lives of abject poverty, with all the

known consequences of such a life. In fact, almost one of every' four children in Ar-
kansas is currently living in poverty. Many of these children live in homes with in-
adequate heat and water, have too few clothes to stay warm in the winter, and too
little food to be free from hunger. The programs designed to help these children,
primarily AFDC (Aid to Families with Dependent Children) and Medicaid, are woe-
fully inadequate.

The Arkansas AFDC "standard of need" was determined 7 years ago. The state,
at that time, established the AFDC payment rate to be only 69 percent of the stand-
ard. In 'srate of the enormously high sates of inflation causing prices for all necessi-
ties to increase, Arkansas has never adjusted its standard. We have, however,
dropped our payment to only 60 percent of that standard. We now provide a single
mother, with no other source of income and three children to care for, $164 per
month. Surely, no one in this room not that mother can pay rent, gas electricity,
water bills, pay for transportation, and purchase clothing for three children on that
amount of money. But if this mother, out of concern for, ter children, seeks and re
ceives assistance from somewhere else, either her AFDC will be further reduced or
she may be charged in court with fraud. A more tragic consequence, however, is
that when she fails to provide her children with the basic necessities, a social
worker may investigate her for."neglect" and possibly seek the removal of her chil-
dren' and their placement in foster care (where, by the way, we will pay other
people. $101) per month to care for the same children.)

An additional tragedy, with unemployment. rates extremely high in Arkansas, is
my state's refusal to participate in the "unemployed parent' AFDC program. Cur.
rcntly, if a father loses his job, cannot find another one, and his family needs finan
vial assistance through AFDC, he must first abandon his wife and children. Again,
he must actually abandon them or risk being charged with AFDC fraud. It seems
tragic to me that we would demand that a father desert his family in order to pro
vide for them.

Unfortunately, for children in Arkansas, Medicaid eligibility is tied directly to
MIX' eligibilitythe maximum income being 150 percent of the state standard of
need. Since our standard is unrealistically low, so is our eligibility or Medicaid.
Thus, thousands of children in Arkansas are essentially without basic health care
and area therefore, at risk of developing critical illnesses and perhaps even life-long
disabilities which might otherwise be prevented an obvious waste of human poten
nal and needed dollars. Further, Arkansas does not offer Medicaid coveri.ge to poor
women until the birth of their first childwhen they become AFIX' eligible Thus,
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many of the poorest women in Arkansas cannot afford and do not receive prenatal
care resulting in increases in the number of premature births, low birth weight
babies. and babies born with some preventable defect. Agairt, such pregnancy out
comes are both tragic and expensive.

I would urge you, for these children in Arkansas, to give serious consideration to
requring states to make periodic adjustments in their standard of need and to man-
date Medicaid coverage for first -time pregnant women from th date of pregnancy
confirmation.

(lila welfare services

The second area I want to focus on is child welfare services. I use this broad term
to cover all of the services traditionally associated with the handling of child abuse
and neglect: preventive and protective services to enable children to remain with
their natural families, foster care services for children who must be removed tempo-
rarily front their homes because of the severity 6f the abuse or neglect, And adoption
services to place children with another permanent family when they cannot be re-
turned to their natural parents. Surely no children are more vulnerable than those
at risk of; being taken from their families and put in state custody.

Yet, in Arkansas, very little is done to maintain these children in their` own
homes. We have twenty-two homemakers covering 16 of our 75 counties. we have
virtually no intensive in-home counseling; we have only a small fraction of the pro-
tective service day care needed; and we have an emergency assistance program
which is so poorly funded that, at most, those families which I mentioned earlier
who may lose their children for lack of financial resources) may receive $40 in an

emergency payment.
Our hope is that the p:ovisions of Public Law 96-272, with its emphasis on pre-

vention. will push Arkansas to develop these tnissing services. For Public Law 96-
272 to do so, however, it is important that it remain a separate ACT with its own
appropriation and that at not become part of a Block Grant. I am convinced that
only the fiscal incentives provided in Public Law 97-272 will force the development
of new and desperately needed preventive services in Arkansas. Hopefully, Public
Law 96-272 with its focus on the qualityAand frequency of judicial reviews for chil-
dren in out-of-home placements will alsMerve to force many of the changes-needed
un the juvenile justice system of my state.

dat,cnt le jiistrce

The Juvenile Court System in Arkansas is perhaps the most antiquated, and most
damaging, of any in the nation. We have seventy-five juvenile courts, one in each
county. More than one quarter of these courts are presided over by a "judge" with
no legal training and 90 percent of the others have judges who are part-time and,
therefore, also actively engaged in their own legal practice. Further, the Supreme
Court in Arkansas has failed, or refused, to establish rules of procedure fer juvenile
courts It is, as some have said, "justice by geography" where what happens to chil-
dren 'nut families is more dependent upon where they live than the charge against
t hem.

In addition, any child 15-1/s years of age may, at the discretion of the prosecutor
in .the county, be charged for a crime end sent to adult court rather than being
charged as a delinquent in juvenile court. In 19SI, 47 percent of the juveniles in
Arkansas were sent to adult rather than juvenile court. The consequences of this
are that thousands of juveniles are held in adult jails before trial, sentenced to adult
jails following trial, and acquire a criminal record. Unfortunately, for these youth.

.the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act which prohibits the jading of
juveniles has defined "juvenile as youth under the jurisdiction of juvenile courts.
Obviously. to be of significant benefit for large numbers of our youth, the Act needs
to use an age definition of juvenile. h would also he of great benefit to Arkansas
youth for the J.J.D.P. Act to specify that the due process rights due them are pro-
vided for each youth, and for the Juvenile Justice monies to be tied to a state's coin
pliance with t hose provisions.

In conclusion, let me say that there are numerous other problems: a :i5-15 per
cent school dropout rate, an enormous shortage of affordable child care for the
working poor, very few services for multiproblem or emotionally disturbed youth, to
list a few on which 1 have not had time to elaborate, In all areas, however, the role
of the federal government in helping solve the problems is a critical one. Arkansas
is an extremely poor state. Though 1 would be the first to argue our state has not
done all it can to meet the needs of its children, the fact i4 it Iiif:kti the resources to
do ;III that is necessary The importance of the federal government in mandating
the services needed for children in may state to have the same opportunities as Chit-
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dren of other states, and in providing the financial assistance needed to make such
services possible cannot by overemphasized.

I appreciate.the opportunity to share my concerns,about children and families in
Arkansas with you and look forward to the results of yo'ur committee's work.

Chairman MILLER. Eva.

STATEMENT OF -,EVA LeGARD, MEMBER, EAST BATON ROUGE
PARISH SCHOOL\ BOARD, AND MEMBER, GOVERNOR'S TASK
FORCE ON PRIORITY SETTING FOR EDUCATIQN IN ME EIGHT-
IES, LA.
Mrs. LEGARD. Thank you. Good morning.
Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, thank you very much

for, giving me the opportunity to address you this morning. I am
going to only talk about fpur of the subtopics which I have listed,
as after hearing your opening statements, and ,testimony from the
others, I am going to try to bring to focus what I really hear- in
connection with what is being discussed.

Chairman MILLER. The people in the back of the room are unable
to hear you.

Mrs. LEGARD. Is that better? I am going to talk first about curric-
ula. The inner city 'schools have traditionally received old, outdated
books, instructional materials and supplies passed on from.the af-
fluent areas, which in many instances could not be of benefit to the
college bound student'These ills were brought to public focus when
schools were desegregated: However, parents had been echoing
these facts all along. Every Tom, Dick, end Harry has a pet project
he wants to experiment on poor and minority students.

Of course when desegregation came about,, students were sent in
many instances 20 miles into suburbia. He got into the other school
where he was clustered. He became confused and disturbed with
the fact that where he was an A student previously, now he may
be a C student, or he may be a failure. Not necessarily because he
couldn't read or didn't understand, but because he had been taught,
on the level that, on a level much inferior to what was being
taught in the school where he had been transferred.

So it becomes a problem. He becomes a problem. He is suspended
and is sent home and gets into the street with other boys and girls.
And naturally they become prey to drugs and other things. So
something we feel as parents, by the way, I am a mother of 12 and
this is why I am speaking from this perspective because it does con-
cern me tremendously. And parents in inner city schools feel that
the books, materials, and supplies which they are using and the ex-
periments that are being done with the'special project should cease
and something should be done about that.

On student s4sOnsionwe are talking about,Baton Rouge right
nowand let me say we have a, very good school district. We
have very good student attendance...We have some good teachers
and good principals, but we do have some th.at are insensitive and
we do have some problems and these are the problems I am ad-
dressing, not necessarily condeMning all of them.

In addition to the 56#00, we have approximately 15,000 students
suspended. Of course if a child is not in school, he cannot learn. If
he is in the street he is going to be prey for every ill in that eom-.
munity. This has been the major, major reason for many of the
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suspensions were very minor such as chewing gum, talking in
school and tardiness. Many times the children are tardy because
the buses were late. And if the bus is late, picking up the students,
sometimes they are not there for 2 hours.

The mother has gone to work. If the parent has gone to work, if
the bus is late, many don't have someone to contact the school bus
transportation office to see they are picked up. So what do they do?
Mom thinks he is in scly0-1. He is out there headed for trouble. So
we 'need alternatives.

First, we need to have some alternative to suspension. And I
don't know how we are going to handle the students whose parents
have put them on the corners to catch their buses and they have to
go to work and the student never goes to school. I don't know how
you are going to handle that, but we do need to have alternatives
to suspensions. We do have one form of alternative, but we have
that in only abputi five schools. The other schools have. no alterna-
tive programs so these kids that'are.suspended are in the streets.

Then I talk about incentive educators and ignorance of school
board policy. Many times students are suspended not because of
any real reason that he has but because he has broken school
board ruldt. Many principals who are promoted don't even know
what the school board policy is themselves.

I would like to give you one illustration. I sat in on a hearing,
which I am not supposed to do. But then I was elected to represent
my district, parents and children;, and as a mother of 12, I felt a
need to find out why so many students were being suspended. One
parent called and asked me if I would please come and sit in on a
hearing. And I did. Of course I was told that you can't make policy
and implement policy at the same time. And I agree with that. But
in sitting in on this policy, first of all, the teacher was extremely
wrong. The child had a cut on his arm. which had been stitched.
The teacher pulled him on the arm. The child tried to explain to
her, please don't, I'm hurt. But of course we have some school dis-
tricts, the teacher is never wrong. I am not saying that, and I am
not condemning teachers and I am not speaking in favor of parents
against teachers, because we have many, many good teachers and
we have many bold parents. We also have many good parents.

But the principal who brought the child in did not give the child
an opportunity to explain. Simply said Jane said this is what hap-
pened and you are expelled for 20 days.

Now, in Louisiana just. recently the Board passed a policy that if
a student misses 10 days he must automatically fail. This policy
was handed down about a week after school had opened. Students
don't come to school, many of them, until after Labor Day, which
means that these students who were not in 'school prior to Labor
Day were already in jeopardy of failing for that entire semester.
With no prior notice.

This was put on the board's agenda as an emergency item. The
school diitrict did not know anything about it. The parents, there
wa's no way to inform the parents. And the only, even if the par-
ents had an excuse and the children had been there prior to Labor
Day, if the parents would havewrote a letter stating why that
student was out of school, couldn't even take the word of the par-
ents.

27



23

It had to come through Child Welfare and Attendance. We have
asked the Attorney Generak for an opinion, but I cannot see how I
as a parent, if I write an exbijse fop my child, it has to go to Child
Welfare and Attendance, and--thfy have to give the principal a
reason why my child is out.

Chairman MILLER. I will have to ask'you to summarize so we can
hear from the other witnesses.

Mrs. LEGARD. One other thing, parental involvement. That dis-
turbs me quite a bit, because I think lip service has been given to
parental involvement, not only by the school district but by the
Congress, also. You mandated parental involvement in Title 1. Par-
ents brought credibility, plus the training the parents received
through Chapter 1 or Title 1, were beneficial not only to the 'chil-
dren but brought family and schools closer together.

So I would ask that you would consider asking to put that back
into the Chapter 1 program. Parental involvement, although my
school district has it, many do n6t. I thank you and apologize for
having taken up more time than I should have but this is only the
surface.

Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
[Prepared statement of Eva LeGard follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF EVA R. LEGARD, EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD,
MEMBER: PUPIL SERVICES COMMITTEE, CVAIRPERSON; ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
COMMITTEE, VICE-CHAIRPERSON; MANAGEMENT & PLANNING SERVICES COMMITTEE,
MEMBER

CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES IN THE SOUTHEASTERN REGION

Maturity is the art of living in peace with that which we cannot change, the cour-
age to change that which can be changed and the wisdom to know the difference. I
believe that we in the Southeastern Region can cope with the many issues facing us
with help, Mr. Miller, coming from you and your Committee and the entire Con-
gress. The theme "Children, Youth and Families in the Southeastern Region" is
broad enough to cover many, many issues.

I have chosen to demonstrate the direct correlation of 1) curricula, 2) suspensions
"push-outs" as I like to refer to most suspensions, 3) expulsions, 4) too many insensi
tive educators and teachers, 51 ignorance of School Board Policy and 6) too often
only lip service to parental and community involvement to the importance of either
a lack or availability of good and sound mental and physical'health services, day
care services and the lack of knowledge to deal with child abuse.

Curricula.Inner city schools have traditionally received old, outdated books, in-
structional materials and supplies passed on from the affluent areas, which in many
instances could not be of benefit to the college bound student. These ills were
brought to public focus when schools were desegregated. However, parents had been
echoing these ft. -ts all along. Every Tom, Dick and Harry has a pet project he wants
to experiment on poor and minority students.

Suspensiou (or "push-outs") expulsions.It is evident that poor and minority stu-
dents are suspended or expelled at the very least provocation. Affluent or non-mi-
noity students are warned and given verbal reprimands for many of the same of-
fenses for which poor and minority students are suspended or expelled. The major
reasons for the largest number of suspensions are tardiness and the missing of be-..
havior clinics, some of which are as far as 22 miles from their assigned school with-
out transportation service. In an October 11, 1983 suspensions/expulsions report re-
leasing statistics for the first six weeks of 1983-84 school year, of 1,188 suspensions
reported $2 percent were black as compared to IS percent white; 21 expulsions re-
ported 90 percent black again as compared to only 9 percent white. I might add that
the total suspensions/expulsions statistics for the 1982-83 school year is reflective as
same, with 73 percent suspensions black, 27 percent white and 86 percent of the ex-
pulsions black as compared to 14 percent white. There is a need for funds to imple-
ment programs that address suspension. (Note the new attendance laws as estab-
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limited by the LA State.I3oard Departrn it of Elementary' and Secondary Education
of August 19831. Suspensions/expulsions or 1982-83 school year totaled 15,(362.

Insensitive educators and ignorance of Iwol board policy.What is sometimes re-
ferred to as educators not caring is rea y ignorance of the students culture and
quite often ignorance of School Board Pol y.

Lip service to parental and communi v involvement. The Congress and local
school district: have failed not only the S itheastern Region but the nation as well.
You threw us a carrot Chapter One i'I'it' I) by mandating parental and commu-
nity involvement and after saving 'hundreds f thousands and most likely millions of
dollars for you and us taxpayers you snatche t back. We brought credibility to the
program by demanding educational progruai beneficial to students. We stepped
practices which were not in keeping with the Regulations or Law, you seldom heard
of audit exceptions, and more training provided the parents and community enabled
them to monitor the Chapter 1 (Title 1) program which benefitted not only our chit.
dren but parents and community as well. The mandate eventually brought together-
ness in many school districts where there was suspicion, accusations and down right
hostility. An informed parent arid community become allies.

Rights and responsibilities in academics, political and social world.Too often
the only time that the general public and parents are called upon and lengthy ex-
planations given about the school district is when it is time to pass a tax elections.
Our political, academic and social rights and responsibilities are then explained and
the school districts share good and bad plight. The poor Lind the minority are the
ones who pass tax elections. Therefore rights and responsibilities work both ways, it
is up to the school district and Congress to 'keep us informed at regular intervals
with what is happening to us and not at the crisis moment. Poor and minority par-
ents have not had the kinds of impact they desire on local districts or the Congress.
Hence, we have decided to form coalitions or educational and social reforms. What
did Congress doyou have or you are saying to the poor no morestop now. We are
no longer going to allow Legal Services to handle many school related problems and
crtainy coalitions can in no way he supported, Finally, parents and the community
were locked and fenced out and PIA practically driven out after desegregation.

As a result of desegregation. many former Chapter 1 students are assigned to
schools which are not eligible for Chapter 1 services. There is a need for the continu-
ation of the ESAA funds to provide remedial activities through the follow the child
phase of ESAA. There is a need for funds to implement supplementary activities in
the area of human relations. Teachers and school administrators need in-service
training in working with children and parents of a race different from their own.

Ai/aria:no/ .special education funding. In many of the local schools, special edu-
cation students are mainstreamed in various classes with regular -,tudents. There is
a need for additional activities and/or Programs to help eliminate problems created,
as a result of a lack of understanding of the needs of special education students by
the regular students. The regular students must understand that there are different
policies regarding discipline. There is a need for special safi tr:easues. Not only
should the regular students understand the needs of special students but the par-
ents of regular students must understand the special. needs of these children in
order, to continue to give support to schools,

There is a shortage of teachers who are v.ble to maintain a proper classroom set-
ting with hoth regular children and special education children.

tiwational educatom.Funding in this area has diminished over the years. when
in fact the needs of society require a definite increase. With the cost of college edu-
cation increasing, the availability of college education for many families is out of
the realm of economic reason That coupled with the fact that many blue collar and
skilled labor areas of work have SUbstautially increased their wages for workers put
tremendous pressure upon school systems to provide courses and curriculum to pr
pare students for the Job market, and increased funding would help to preserve dig-
nity nf productive and self-supporting citizens. That self respect would make signifi-
cant inroads toward more homogenecus communities.

moan(( educomm. --The amount of external support for community education
so seems to have diminished over the past 10 years. in today's rapidly changing

society the average individual will change vocations on the average of three to five
times in their lifetime. With the rapid influx of new knowledge and information citi

ns eagiAly respond to community Hucation to keep them informed and to help
in adjust to their changing lifestyles. And support in the area of community edu

cation should provide stablw growth in a growing community.
ontriv .qappoct um/ dov core centers. -Research studies have shown that family

support cnter's intervention strategy can help stressed. dependent, isolated parents
considered to be a high risk of abuse and neltipo improve child rearing practices
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and learn to provide their children with the experiences and skills necessary for
school success and eventual self-support. Studies have found that programs can
reduce abuse and neglect, substantially reduce the need for costly out-of-home care
and help to maintain and strengthen family life. It is also cost-effective.

Community health center: --The Community Health Centers concept provide
family-centered, comprehensive health services to low-income residents in facilities
located as close as possible to the people who need care. These Community Health
Centers operate on a full staff basis each weekday from 8:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. and
from 8:00 a.m. to noon on Saturdays. Services available to the residents include
medical, dental, health education, nutrition, pharmacy, x-ray and laboratory. Pa-
tient registration and treatment in the Health Centers Program are conducted on a
total family basis. When one member of a family comes in for care, other members
are registered and scheduled for appointments. The importance of preventive check-
up and immunization is emphasized, especially in the case of children. The Clinic
chart for each family member is accompanied by information on the entire family.

Thus a Community Health Center's Social Worker consulted by the Public School
about a child with learning problems has at hand results of the child's developmen-
tal screening tests as well as information about conditions in his home which might
be influencing his behavior at school.

Besides health care, the neighborhood health program provides for many patients
their first friendly link with the world outside the isolation of poverty. In their over-\
whelmingly favorable comments about the program, patients have indicated that
they appreciate almost as much as the care itself the personal relationship possible
with staff members. Said one patient "I have a feeling they care if you get well."

There are not many new ideas in health care but the Community Health Center
is one. The concept borrows from the past, from the ideas of voluntary association
and group practice and public responsibility for the indigent, but it is a new combin-
ation that makes a new whole:

Although Community Centers have come a long way, despite many frustrating ob-
stacles and different hurdles, current economic and funding dilemmas suggest that
the future portends no easier course.

In a time when significant minority seeks identification through militancy, the
health center offers identification through participation. In a time when even the
rich complain that care is fragmented, the Health Center offers comprehensive care.
In a time when urban hospitals ponder flight or failure, the health care center offers
meaningful ways to relate to a changed population.

"There was some concern at the outset of this program that, with its emphasis on
ambulatory care, hospitals would not be friendly". This has been disproved by the
enthusiasm of those who have participated." This has been a Godsend and a crisis
need to be continued.

RECOMMENDATIONS

We must seriously consider whether or not the "back to basic" movement will
jeopardize the full development of students. This is especially critical in the areas of
art, music, and foreign languages. At the same time, we should not abandon high
standards of achievement for students.

We must also consider whether or not the current focus on the achievement of
minimum standardsa phenomenon prevelant in the Southeastlowers our expec
tations and subsequently lowered student achievement.

Drug Ind alcohol abuse must continue to be a high priority. Priority should be
given to finding opportunities for children to participate in organized activities di-
rected by suitable role models. Education and awareness programs should be in-
creased, and treatment programs continued.

A critical area in our efforts to reach a broad state of excellence in our schools is
the relationship between. parents and teachers and the. school. Convenient opportu-
nities for parents to feel more a part of the school need to be explored. The distance
between parents and the schools must be decreased so that parents can shoulder
more responsibility for sending a child who is ready and eager to learn. Joint pro-.
grams in discipline should be encouraged with communication between parent and
school.

Public schools will remain the central activity in the lives of most children for the
next two decades. Educators, parents, communities, and businesses should form co-
operalive coalitions in every community to explore- our attitudes and methods of
shepherding our most valuable and precious resource and our hope for tomorrow,

We should direct our efforts to reaching children earlier and better. Many chil-
dren come unprepared for the school experience. Materials and assistance should he
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made available to parents who wish it. These could be directed to parents as earlyas possible.
Finally, we need to take care that we do not create a "technology gap" in ourschools by providing computers and other learning resources on an equitable basis.These resources must be distributed equitably in all school districts. There is a seri-ous risk that only the wealthiest school districts and the brightest children willhave access to this itnportanto tool, along with the smaller classes and increase inmaterials that often accompany them. Over the years, research has shown thatyoungsters in the Southern oart of the United States consistently score lower onachievement tests than do their counterparts in the West, North or East.A variety of resources are required to give the assistance needed to enable South-ern youngsters to overcome these academic deficits. Unless these youngsters can ac-quire the necessary computational and communication skills to enter the nation'seconomic mainstream, we will find that it will cost even more to provide welfare orcustodial care. Who can place a price to on helping a disadvantaged youngster torealize his or her true potential and enable them to become productive citizens?Overcoming the deficits of these youngsters requires a sustained and dedicatedteam effort from the parents, schools, communities, as well as local, state, and mt.%lanai political leaders. The bottom line is funding. Education must be the numberone priority.

Education is not a national priority when a nation ppends more to build and equipan aircraft carrier than it does to support educatiorn. Education is not a local orstate priority when millions are spent on sports palaces and elaborate municipalcomplexes.
An adequate funding base must be found for public education. Remember that thesupremacy- of a nation in the field of technology is built on the skills of well- educat-ed citizens. Remember that it does not matter how sophisticated are the militaryweapons in our arsenal. These are of no use if soldiersclack the education and tech-Meal ability to use and maintain them.
To provide the necessary human and financial resources to ensure the educationof our youngsters is a costly endeavor. However, the cost of not doing so is evengreater. We must ensure that America is recommitted to providing equal opportuni-ty for all its citizens, whether they arc rich, poor, black, white, red or brown.Education and mental health go hand in hand. Recent research has shown one ofthe greatest assest each one of us can have is a feeling of competence. One of thebest ways to create good mental health in our children thus is to create an environ-ment in which they can succeed in mastering the skills,and tasks of school. In avery real sense academic is the foundation stone of mental health.
A child who succeeds in learning feels competent and this in turn makes him feelgood about himself. Feeling good about himself, he can and will tackle harder andmore difficult material, which will enhance the ledining process. Thus, we create anever expanding upward spiral.
Conversely, the child who fails, and who feels inadequate will not achieve or eventry those' tasks which would lead to a positive self image. The downward spiral offailure, frustration, and defeat is produced.
Good mental health and good education are thus almost synonymous.Each and every child needs: to believe they matter very much to someone, to be-lieve that people care what happens to them, to believe that they belongto agroup or someplace, to feel that protective adults will be there in time of need, toknow that they will not be harmed, to know that someone is there to help them, tofeel that they are liked for themselves, just the way they are, to feel that they areiccepted, to have a set of standards to live by, to have a belief in human values ofkindness, courage, honesty, generosity and justice, to know that they will be encour-age to try new things and to grow in a variety of dimensions, to know that someonehas confidence in them and their ability, to have friendly help in learning how tobehave toward people and things, to have adults around them who show them byEXAMPLE how to get along with others, to know that there are limits, to be able toaccept their feelings but that they will not b.e allowed to hurt others, and to succeed

in mastering themselves and their academic world.
A child who has learned is a adult who can cope. The cycle of poverty, depriva-tion, abuse and failure can be broken. Education is the instrument we can and mustuse to achieve this end. Truly, they need ay, we need them tomorrow.In summary poor and minority pares udents and communities in the South-eastern Region have had to bear the brun of inferior education, inadequate physi-cal facilities, inferior materials. etc. When I refer to inferior education especially

before desegration I am not referring to teachers. However, since desegregation pre-dominately non-white school districts have gotten the inexperienced teachers. But
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we are told that is not by do sign and does not mean that these teachers are not good
teachers. If this is true and is some cases it is, why not place one to three year
teachers equally in affluenct, poverty or non-white areas.

I challenge all of youparentseducatorslocal, state, and national leaders to
unite in a common effort, That effort is a Moral; financial, and political commit-
ment to providing the youth of our nation with good, sound education.

And, finally I can emphasize the need and to support the recommendation of se-
curing funds to implement programs that address suspensions and/or explusions.

Chairman MILLER: Mr. Pingree.

STATEMENT OF DAVID H. PINGREE, SECRETARY, DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH AND REHABILITATIVE SERVICES, FLA.

Mr. PINGREE. Mr. Chairman, members of the select committee,
thank you for this opportunity to be with you today to discuss the
challenges and opportunities facing the Nation's children, youth,
and families.

In 1980 the Florida Legislature established within the depart-
ment of health and rehabilitative services a children, youth, and
families program. By consolidating a number of children's services,
this State committed itself to a public policy which holdFthat the
fundamental problems facing children; youth, and families are in-
separable and intertwinedand that the solutions to these prob-
lems must incorporate an approach that addressee the full range of
social and medical needs facing the whole family unit.

In addition, Gov. Bob Graham has made improved and expanded
services to children and youth a top priority of his second term. He
is committed to improving the quality of life for Florida's young

--/people through an integrated, holistic approach to meeting the
needs of the changing 20th century family.

During the time I have with you today, I would like to briefly
outline some of the important successes Florida has attained rela-
tive to children and their families. Also, I would like to touch on
some of the areas which I believe present us with the greatest chal-
lenges for the future.

The one essential element that is central to what we have accom-
plished, and what we hope to achieve, is prevention. We in Florida
strongly believe that the quality of life we offer to the next genera-

/ tion of Floridians will be directly proportionate to the level of re-
sources we devote to prevention services today.

As a point of departure, I will briefly describe the organization
and structure of the Florida Department of Health and Rehabilita-
tive Services. The department provides a wide range of health and
social services to the 'citizens of Florida through a decentralized, in-
tegrated service delivery system. What this means is that we ad-
minister nearly all of the State's human services programs through
one agency, organized at the local level into 11 service districts.

Medical services for children, training for developmentally dis-
abled, public health programs, mental health services, econo is as-
sistance, services to our elderly population, and many of ers are
delivered in local communities under. the overall directi 'of one
administrator. This unique structure provides our 35,000 e ployees
the framework for addressing the multiple problems often 'con-
fronting a single family or individual'in need.

39
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This structure is especially suited to providing services to chil-
dren. And it is particularly valuable to our emphasis on preven-
tion services.

An excellent example is Florida's, regional perinatal intensive
care program. I understand .Dr. Shiebler is unable to be here todayl
but he is the father of this program. This model program, estab
lished in 1974, *vides medical cafe to women with high risk preg-
nancies and to sick and/or low birth weight newborns. Through a
network of 10 highly specialized intensive care centers, Florida has
provided intensive neonatal care to more than 34,000 newborns
since this program began. This year the program will spend $24.5
million providing prenatal and obstetrical services to women at
risk of having a sick or low birth weight baby and providing inten-
sive medical care of neonates.

The program includes a 24-hour toll free telephone line, 'called
the CARE line, enabling physicians from throughout the State to
find the nearest available placement for a patient in need. We are
particularly pleased with the expansion of the program in 1982 to
include what is called stepdown. This element of the program pro-
vides less costly, yet still very specialized care, to neonates who
have graduated from the intensive care units. Not only is this
measure cost saving, but it also provideS an essential form of fol-
lowup care that can have an effect on the infant's long-term health
and development, while at the same time freeing uplbeds for other
low weight newborns.

We believe that the program has had a significant impact on
Florida's infant mortality rate, which has dropped since 1972 from
14.2 deaths per 1,000 live births, to 10.3 per 1,000 in 1982, which is
well below the Nation's rate of 11.7 deaths per 1,000 births.

We recognize in our emphasis on prevention programs that ini-
tiatives for children and youthwhether they be to prevent handi-
capping conditions or to reduce the level of delinquencyImust
strike at the health and societal factors inherent in the lifestyles of
families at risk.

In 198'2 the department, under the direction of the State health
offiter, established a Maternal and Infant Health Care Task Force.
This group was charged with advising' the State on problems and
priorities that must be addressed to improve access and availability
to maternity and infant care.

After a year-long study, this group deOloped a series of recom-
mendations aimed at improving maternal and child health with a
major emphasis on prevention.

The task force found that in spite of the provision of services of
maternal and child healthfor example, our participation

in the WIC program-10,000 low birth weight babies were born in
Florida last year.

The task force concluded that maternal and child health prob-
lenis cannot be addressild in isolatiok Increased medicaid services,
expanded transportation services, and supplemental food and nutri-
tion programs are also needed. I have provided your staff with that
particular report. If you like, thfitt can be read into the record.

Pe-rhaps one of the most poignant issues/facing children, youth,
and families is the tragic and vicious cycle of child abuse, where
the abus0 child often eventually becomes the abusive parent. Flor-
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ida has esttiblished 14 multidisciplinary child abuse teams that, we
believe, offer an exemplary standard and a model approach towad-
dressing the problem. These teams are composed of medical ex-,
pelts, psychologistg, social, workers, and other professionals skilled
at providing treatment to the abused child and intervention serv-
ices to the family. Last year, these teams served 17,300 children.
Most important, they worked with the children's families trying to
get at the causes of abuse.

During the past 3 years the dramatic influx of Haitian, Cuban,
and other refugees and entrants has had an enormous impact on
this State's need to provide e diversity bf health and human serv-
ices for children; youth, and families.

Since 19 0, more than 160,000 Cuban and Hattian immigrants
have arrived in Florida. Since approximately 90 percent of these
entrants settled in the State, Florida's population increased a full
percentage point just as a result of the massive immigrations..

The arrival of the Caribbean immigrants placd an immediate
demand on nearly every service provided by the State of Florida
ranging from prenatal care to edtication to employment services.

The unreimbursed costs to State and local governments has been
Calculated to be almost $200 million; the exact costs are probably
incalculable.

For'example, Jackson Memorial Hospital, located here in Miami,
,estimates that it is currently spending $1 million each month serv-
ing the refugee and entrant population in this county. A significant
portion of this will be spent on obstetrical services. Yet for Federal
fiscal year 1983, the hospital will only be allocated $7.1 million of
Federal targeted assistance for health care. The total allocation to
Florida to provide health care,'services to this population this year
is $8.9 million-50 percent less than we received from the Federal
Government last year.

There are currently 19,000 refugees and entrants in grades K-12
in Florida public schools. We estimate that State and local govern-
ments have incurred a staggering $112 million in costs above those
reimbursed by the Federal Government in ,providing'K-12 educa-
tion for refugees and entrants.

Another population presenting a special challenge in the provi-
sion of heanh and social services is the large number of 'migrant
workers for whom Florida is a home base. .

We estimate that more than 200,000 migrants arrive in Florida
between October and May of each year. With an average family
size of 4.7 people, we are barely scratching the surface of need pre-
sented by this mobile population. The greatest need is day care.

The Redlands Christian Migrant Association, which operates 32
day care centers to serve 2,500 children has a waiting list of more
than 80() migrant children who were brought in by their parents
yet turned away because no space was available.

Florida's migrant child education program is among the largest
in the Nation. Last year, it served about 5,800 migrant children in
grades K-12. In addition, the State has provided $2.3 pillion for
preschool education for migrant children. Although we have made
great strides in serving Florida's families and children we still face
many challenges.

I
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. Just recently Governor Graham took another important step in
that direction by appointing the Constituency for Children. This
group, comprised of concerned citizens from the private and public
sectors, is currently in its formative stage. Spearheaded by the ef-
forts of Circuit Judge "William E. Gladstone, one of Miami's strong-
est child advocates,lhe group will work with grassroots child advo-
cacy groups across the State to address the unmet needs of Flor-
ida's children in the areas of education, substance abuse, juvenile
justibe, and social services. The aim is to develop a statewide con-
stituency that can work outside of the traditional program and bu-
reaucratic structure but with the singular goal of improving the
lives of the State's Children.

By the way, this not a heavily funded program. It is funded
with an $80,000, State appropriation. These are citizen participants
and volunteers who are concerned about the welfare of children in
the State. The challenges facing us in providing for children, youth,
and families .must be addressed through partnerships, public and
private, State and local, education and human services, profession-
al and volunteer.

The fact that the Select Committee on Children, Youth and Fam-
ilies is here in Miami, and is holding similar meetings elsewhere
we hope is # signal of a national recognition of-the need for an ad-
ditional partnership on behalf of children and youtha Federal/
State partnership leading to a national constituency with a net-
work of 50 State organizations similar to the one being established
in Florida.

We strongly feel that a national policy on children, youth, and
families is essential and hope that this select committee will serve
as the catalyst for the development, adoption, and implementation
of such a policy. The Nation's future does rest with its children.
Therefore, they warrant priority attention. We in Florida are desir-
ous of working with you to forge a national policy framework
which ,will provide future generations of children with both hope
and opportunity fora healthier and generally. better environment.

When I was a college student, I was a delegate to the White
.' House Conference on Children and Youth in 1960. Today in 1983

we are talking about some of the same problems, I think the time
has come for us to really sit down and address these issues and
stop talking about them.

Chairman MILLER Thank you.
[Prepared statement of David Pingree follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DAVID H. PINOREE, SECRETARY, DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND
REHABILITATIVE SERVICES, STATE OF FLORIDA

Mr. Chairman, members of the Select Committee on Children, Youth and Fami-
lies. Thank you for this opportunity to be with you today to discuss the challenges
and opportunities facing the nation's children, youth and families.

In 1980 the Florida Legislature established within the Department of Health and
Rehabilitative Services a Children, Youth and Families Program. By consolidating a
number of children's services, this state committed itself to a public policy which
holds shat the fundamental problems facing children, youth and families are insepa-.
rable and intertwinedand that the solutions to these problems must incorporate
an approach that addresses the full range of social and medical needs facing the
whole family unit.

In addition, Governor Bob Graham has made improved and expanded services to
children and youth a top priority of his second term. He is committed to improving
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the quality of life for Florid& young people through an integrated, holistic ap-
proach to meeting the needs of the changing 20th century family.

During the time I have with you today, I would like to briefly outline some of the
important successes Florida has attained relative to children and their families.
Also. I would like to touch on some of the areas, which I believe present us with the
greates, challenges for the future.

The one essential element that is central to what we have accomplished, and
what we hope to achieve, is prevention. We in Florida strongly belieVe that the
quality of life we offer to the next generation of Floridians will be directly propor-
tionate to the level of resources we devote to prevention services today.

As a point of departure, I will briefly describe the organization and structure of
the Florida Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services. The Department pro-
vides a wide range of health and social services to the citizens of Florida through a
decentralized, integrated service delivery system. What this means is that we ad-
minister nearly all of the state's human services programs through one agency, or-
ganized at the local level into eleven service districts.

Medical services for children, training for developmentally disabled, public health v
programs, mental health services, economic assistance, services to our elderly popu-
lation, and many others are delivered in local communities under the overall direc
tion of one administrator. This unique structure provides our 35,000 employees the
framework for addressing the multiple problems often confronting a single family or
individual in need.

This structure is especially suited to providing services to children. And, it is par-
ticularly valuable to our emphasis on prevention services.

An excellent example is Florida's Regional Perinatal Intensive Care Program.
'rtis model program, established in 1974, provides medical care to women with high
risk pregnancies and to sick and/or low birth weight newborns. Through a network
of 10 highly specialized intensive care centers, Florida has provided intensive neona-
tal care to more than 34,000 newborns since this program began. This year the pro-
gram will spend $24.5 million providing prenatal and obstetrical services to women
at risk of having a sick or low birth weight baby and providing intensive medical
care to neonates.

The program includes a 24hour toll free telephone line, called the CARE line, en-
abling physicians from throughout the state to find the nearest available placement
for a patient in need. We are particularly pleased with the expansion of the pro-
gram in 1982 to include what is called "step-down." This element of the program
provides less costly, yet still very specialized care, to neonates who have "graduat-
ed" from the intensive care units. Not only is this measure cost-saving, but it also
provides an essential form of follow-up care that can have an effect on the infant's
long-term health and development, while at the same time freeing up beds for other
low weight newborns.

The Regional Perinatal Intensive Coie Program is one of the most important pre-
vention programs in existence in Florida. It provides us with the ability for medical
intervention when men are at risk with a problem pregnancy, and it provides IV
with the facilities to ive comprehensive care to newborns. We believe that the pro-
gram has had a sign ficant impact on Florida's infant mortality rate, which has
dropped since 1972 fro 14.2 deaths per 1,000 live births, to 10.3 per 1,000 in 1982,
which is well below th nation's rate of 11.7 deaths per 1,000 births.

We recognize in ouvemphasis on prevention programs that initiatives for children
and youthwhethef they be to prevent handicapping conditions or to reduce the
level of delinquencymust strike at the health and societal factors inherent in the
lifestyles of families at risk.

In 1922 the Department, under the direction of the state health officer, estab-
lished a Maternal and Infant Health ('.are Task Force. This group was charged with
advising the state on problems and priorities that must be addressed to improve
access and availability to maternity and infant care.

After a year-long study, this group developed a series of recommendations aimed
at improving maternal and child health with a major emphasis on prevention.

The task force found that in spite of the provision of services affecting maternal
and child healthfor example, our participation in the WIC (Women, Infants and
('hildren) program-19,000 low birth weight babies were born in Florida last year.

The task force concluded that maternal and child health problems cannot be ad-
dressed in isolation. Increased Medicaid services, expanded transportation services,
and supplemental food and nutrition programs are also needed.

Perhaps one of the most poignant issues facing children. youth and families is the
tragic and vicious cycle of child abuse. where the abused child often eventually be-
comes the abusive parent. Florida has established 14 multi-disciplinary child abuse
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teams that, we believe, offer an exemplary standard and e' approach to ad
dressing the problem. These teams are composed of medical experts, psychologists,
social workers and other professionals skilled at providing treatment to the abused
child and intervention services to the family. Last year, these teams served 17;400
children. Most important, they worked with the children's families trying to get at
the causes of abuse.

Yet, even with the important strides made by the Child Abuse Protection Teams,
we are not even close to meeting the needs. Last year in iorida, more than 91,000
children were reported abused or neglected. While apprbximately 50 percent of
these reports were confirmed, we realized that at the very 'least, more than half of
all child abuse and neglect goes unreported.

In addition to an innovative service delivery system, Florida has unique circum-
stances and populations. During the past three years the dramatic influx of Haitian,
Cuban. and other refugees and entrants has had an enormous impact on this state's
need to provide a diversity of health and human services for children, youth and
families.

Since 1980, more than 160,000 Cuban and Haitian immigrants have arrived in
Florida. Since approximately 90 percent of these entrants settled in the state, Flor-
ida's population increased a full percentage point just as a result of the massive im-
migrations.

The arrival of the Ca#ibbean immigrants placed an immediate demand on nearly
stateevery service provided by the :ate of Floridaranging from prenatal care to educa-

tion to employment services.
The unreimbursed costs to state and local governments has been calculated to be

almost $200 million; the exact costs are probably incalculable.
For example, Jackson Memorial Hospital, located here in Miami, estimates that it

is currently spending one million dollars each month serving the refugee and en
trant population in this country. A significant portion of this will be spent on obstet-
rical services. Yet for federal fiscal year 1983, the hosiiital will only be allocated $7.1
million of federal Targeted Assistance'for health care. The total allocation to Flori
da to provide health care services to this population this year is $8.9 million-50
percent less than we received from the federal government last year.

There are currently 19,000 refugees and entrants in grades K-12 in Florida public
schools. We estimate that state and local governments have incurred a staggering
$112 million in costs above those reimbursed by the federal government in providing
K-12 education for refugees and entrants.

We.have been adamant in our demands that this is a federal responsibility. Our
cries for full reimbursement for services provided to refugee children and families
have fallen on deaf ears.

While the refugee crisis has fallen from the headlinesthe demands on our sys-
tems from this population continue to grow. Immigrants and refugee require many
of the same basic services needed by our population at lafgeemployment services,
health care, mental health services and social services.,an many areas the level of
need is a great deal higher as a result of the stresses of assimilation and the handi-
caps of a language barrier.

Yet, as this issue continues to fade from public attention, the level of federal sup-
port shrinks. This is particularly troublesome in light of the realization that the
young people who have come to our shores from other countries will only be afford-
ed the fruits of our societythe health and well-being sought for them by their par-
entsif we provide the support services they now require.

Another population presenting a special challenge in the provision of health and
social services is the large number of migrant workers for whom Florida is a home
base.

We estimate that more than 200,000 inigrants arrive in Florida between October
anci May of each year. With an aveK* family size of 4.7 people, we are, barely
scrfttching the surface of need preseQted by this mobile porulatiop.

We continue to lack adequate funds for the acute medical cafe needs of riligrant
workers. There continues to be insufficient housing. Child care resources continue to
be inadequate. The Redlands Christian Migrant Association, which opetptes'32 day
care centers to serve 2,500 children has a waiting list of more than 800 iingrant chil-
dren who were brought in by their parents yet turned away because no space was
available.

Florida's Migrant Child Education Program is among the largest in the nation.
Last year. it served about 5,800 migrant children in grades K-12. In addition, the
state has provided $2.5 million for preschool education for migrant children.

Despite these efforts, we have found that there is about an 80 percent school drop-
out rate for migrant children. One study has shown that out of 1011 migrant children
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mitering first grade this year, only two will graduate from high school. These statist
tics are obvious indicators that we have been unsuccessful in significantly reducing
the prospect of continuing poverty for migrant families in this country.

We have made some strides in serving Florida's families and childrenand we
face many challenges for the future.

We continue to work toward improving the reach of our service delivery system
with partici, sr emphasis on prevention--and on establishing those that can work
on behalf of Florida's young people.

Just recently Governor Graham took another important step in that direction by
appointing the C4nstituency for Children. This group, comprised of, concerned citi-
zens from the private and public sectors, is currently in its formative stage. Spear-
headed by the efforts of Circuit Judge William E. Gladstone, one of Miami's strong-
est child advocates, the group will work with grassroots child advocacy groups
across the state to address the unmet needs of Florida's children in the areas of edu-
cation, substance abuse, juvenile justice and social services. The aim is to develop
statewide constitutency that can work outside of the traditional proi,ram and bu-
reaucratic structure but with the singular goal of improving the lives of the state's
children.

Establishing this group reaffirmed Florida's commitment to pool whatever re-
sources are available from whatever source in order to better serve our young
people. At the same time, it is also a recognition that the challenges meeting us in
providing for children, youth and families must be addreised through partner-
shipspublic and private, state and local, education and human services, profession-
al and volunteer.

The fact that the Select Committee on Children, Youth and Families is here and
is holding similar meetings elsewhere we hope is a signal of a national recognition
of the need for an additional partnership on behalf of children and youtha feder-
al/stateropartnership leading to a national constituency-with a network of 50 state
organizations similar to the one being established in Flordia. We strongly feel that a
national policy on children, youth and family is essential and hope that this Select
Committee will serve as the catalyst for the development, adoption and implementa-
tion of such a policy. The nation's future does rest with its children. Therefore, they
warrant priority attention. We in Florida are desirous of working with you to forge
a national policy framework which will prgvide future generations of children with
both hope and opportunity for a healthier and generally better environment.

198J -84 Approved Budget (as of 9/S0/881

Office of the Secretary $3,245,092
Assistant Secretary for Administrative Services 30,265,979
Assistant Secretary for Program Planning 36,381,829
Assistant Secretary for Operations 64,519,331
District Administration 38,700,447
Children's Medical Services 66,691,434'
Aging and Adult Services 95,634,107
Children'and Youth Institutions 13,066,041
Children, Youth and Families Services 207,059,711
Mental Health Institutions 142,681,019
Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health 121,869,511
Developmental Services Institutions 136,217,918
Developmental Services 134,841,210
Vocational Rehabilitation 42,419,530
Economic Services 420,119,973
Health Services iincludes CHUsi 232,085,057
T 13 Hospital 5,692,492
Medicaid 878,660,030

Total 2,620,210,711
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CYF Budget Allocation by Program
Component Fiscal Year 1983-84

Community Mental Health Services 18,158,673

Community Drug Abuse Services:
Residential and Non-Residential Services

for Emotionally Disturbed Children and
Youth including Wilderness Therapeutic
Care, Therapeutic Foster Homes,
Therapeuti c Group Homes

Detention Services

Secure and ion- Secure Detention;
Client Transportation

Intake and Assessment 23,039,408

Single Intake (for Delinquency and
Dependency); Emergency Shelters;
Runaway Shelters; Crisis Homes;
Transportation of Runaways

20,424,207'

Child Da' Care /Case Management and
Related Services or Fami e s and Depen-
dent Youth

Child Day Care; Specialized Family Ser-
vices; Intensive Crisis Counseling;
Housekeeping Services; Local Services
Programs; Individual and Family Coun-
seling; Parent Education Training;
Protective Services; Services to
Status Offenders

57,285,945

Non-Residential Services for Delinquent 16,077,672

Youth

Community Control and Furlough; Special
Intensive Groups; Intensive Crisis Coun-
seling; TRY Centers; Associated Marine
Institutes; Juvenile Alternative Services
Program; Operation LIvolvement; Project
CREST; Intensive Learning Alternative
Program

1
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Residential Services for Delinquent Youth 10,237,833

STOP Camps; START Centers; Halfway
Houses; Group Treatment Homes; Project
STEP; Florida Keys Marine Institute;
Pinellas Youth Home; Family Group Homes;
San Antonio Boys Village; Serious Offender
Pilot Program

Placement/Supervision for Children 35,311,173

Foster Care; Residential Group Care;
Adoption Services; Maintenance
and MedicalAdoption Subsidies;
Purchase of Adoption Services

District Program Management and 5,135,959
Supervision

Children and Youth Institutions 12,853,072

Dozier School for Boys in Mariahna;
Alyce D. McPherson School in Ocala;
Florida Sghool for Boys at Okeechobee

TOTAL BUDGET

2
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Chairman MILLER. There is a recurrent theme this morning that
is very disturbing to me. That is this question of prenatal and ma-
ternal health Are. Three of you pointed out that Federal policy
does notjapfriaMe coverage for the first pregnancy.- Yet, when we
were tai with doctors at the Mailman Clinic, there seemed to
be somewhat of a consensus that it was during the first pregnancy
that information about the kind of care the mother should provide
for herself during pregnancy was most lacking.

What have each of your States done with respect to the first
prwancy? What are you doing to piovide the necessary coverage?

Ms. WEAVER. Mississippi, it is my understanding, does cover first
pregnancy. However, in Mississippi, that first pregnancy is covered
if you are single. In Mississippi, if you are married and poor, there
is no coverage. I understand you are currently considering propos-
als that would help us to provide care to poor pregnant women who
have no income to purchase health insurance, help there. get- -

Chairman MILLER. What is Arkansas's policy with respect to
married women?

Mr. CRARY. We don't cover first-time pregnancies regardless of
marital status. The person becomes eligible only after the birth of
the child and AFDC and medicaid starts there. Medicaid can be
retroactive and pickup delivery costs but it does not cover prenatal
pare. So we do not do that at all for single women, either.

Chairman MILLER. So other than some who are eligibile for the
WIC program who might see a doctor periodically in combination
with the nutrition component, there is no other program in the
State?

Mr. CRARY. For the mist part that is right, not in Arkansas.
There are a very small number, of women who receive some serv-
ices under the MCH blocie.grant. For WIC, a lot of the people who
were in the WIC program say that is one of the biggest advantages
of the WIC program is that it does attract the women into the
clinic. They do see them. I might mention also that we have 33
counties in Arkansas that do not have health department prenatal
clinics, period. So there is a crisis situation, and we pay for it I am
sure through the outcomes of those pregnancies:

Chairman MILLER. I believe you are right. Again I go back to yes-
terday. While we saw a rather wonderful and dramatic level of
medicine being delivered to these premature children, we were told
that the cost was running from $1,000 to $6,000 to $7,000 and more
per day. That is one obvious immediate cost we pay for not provid-
ing adequate prenatal care. But there was also substantial testimo-
ny yesterday in terms of the long-telm health prospects for low
birth weight babies. There are children that they had been follow-
ing who are now 6 or 7 years old and who are coming back with
additional difficulties. But Florida does have this program.

Mr. PINGRRE. Only under AFDC. And there are other programs
that might apply. There is a continuing argument relative to how
much help you can provide. A lot of it is an information problem.
Whether you should be .providing information to children in the
schools and so forth. Various State legislation has been introduced,
but we find ourselves in a losing battle with certain intermit/4 at
various points. It is very difficult for us to get the information out
there.
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Teenage pregancies have been identified for at least the past 7
years as one of the areas of priority concern within the Depart-
ment of Health and Rehabilitative Services. It is not one which
'seems to have a lot of support when it comes to funding from the
legislature or with respect to providing information to that particu-
lar target population.

Chairman MILLER. Mrs. Boggs.
Mrs. BOGGS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I thank all of you very

much.
Mrs. Le Gard, I am sorry we did not have time for you to telt us

some of your recommendations that you have so specifically point-
ed out in your written estimony. They will be of tremendous value
to this committee and to all of the people in the Congress who have
jurisdiction over the various areas that you have touched. We can
only get this kind of an input from the mother of 12 children who
has a lively interest in their welfare and the welfare of all of thpir
peers.

I was very interested in-the health care aspects of all of your tes
timony, particularly in the field of teenage pregnancy. We h: e
talked a great deal about prevention. Of course, it is the 1 ast
costly in the long run, and the finest method of achiev. gnu oals
in both the long kind short run. But I wonder in the evention-of-
teenage-pregnancy situations, if we should bring into coordination,
as you have here in Florida, all of the groups that are out there
working on drug abuse and alcohol abuse and so opr`. This is one
area that the teens can relate to, because they already have pro-
grams that are directed toward them in these-'regards. Do you
bring in all of the other programs that can be 'helpful to the people
in knowing how they must react in a pregnant state, they must
stay off of drugs, they must stay off of alcohol, they must, of
course, take care of their/ nutritional problems the best way that
they can?, ..

Mr. PINGREE. We
`the

excellent cooperation with the school
system generally in the State and at the local level, but I would
still have to say that the cbordinatio$ mot phat it should be, that
in fact the ,first line of defense, the fi t pldce to provide informa-
tion is within the schools. For our agenci to get involved is gener-
ally an after-the-fact type of thing. School systems have all that in
one place and are better able to get information to them. Even

,

though they may be coordinated, our programs are still selective:
one on substance abuse, one on something else. I think the key is
to utilize the school systems better than we have in the past;

Ms. WEAVER. We have.in Mississippi done that on a statewide
basis. However, there are a couple projebts that do come to mind
that have utilized within the school systems what you are talking
about; comprehensive service to particularly teenaged . mothers
within the school setting through some funded clinics.

Mrs. Boccs. Mrs. Weaver, I am so admiring of what Mississippi
is doing with its educational system.

Ms. WEAVER. I might say, that is an important \c`Orept for the
total community to feel good about in those particula cases where
the clinics are operating within the school setting. ft.has been well-
rece i ved
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rs.'limitis. I think the recent success of the programs on drunk
dr ing among teenagers has come when they have recognized that
th greatest killek of teenagers is someone who is driving while
drunk, including themselves. You have been able to reach out, and
the country has been able to reach out through a program that
brings in the young people to combat this terrible difficulty that
their teenage group finds itself in. The other great difficulty they
are finding themselves in is in the area of teenage pregnancy. I
would just hope that we will 'bring peer groups in to combat this
difficulty as we have been able to dramatically with alcohol abuSe.

Ms. WEAVER. What you are saying is, we were able to do that by
offering driver education in the schools. But we have not yet con-
vinced communities of the importance in terms of both life and
money, how important bringing someof these Area§ we are talking
about, teenage pregnancies, effects of drugs, directly into the school
system.

Chairman MILLER. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Currently before the Commerce Committee in the House on

which I sit there is legislation that would extend prenatal care
under the medicaid program. I would be interested to know your
opinion as to whether or not if this legislation were to become law,
and there is some consideration for it in Washington, what is the
likelihood in your State of picking it up and participating in it?

Ms. WEAVER. Mississippi did pa.ss,as I mentioned a limited medi-
cal need provision, where if that money becomes available will
enable us to utilize it immediately. In our State in rural areas
some people have to travel many miles before they can find a hos-
pital that can accept them as a patient to deliver. It also would be
able to provide for that unborn baby coverage which is prenatal
are which is cost effective, absolutely.

Mr. BLILEY. Mr. Crary.
Mr. CitA Y. I think Arkansas would pick it up if it were there

and there were some financial assistance. The problem is critical
and is w ely recognized in the State as a critical problem. I think
with so e assistance we would opt for that program.

Mr. PINGREE. We sup7ort the provision for it, and I would recom-
mend lo the Governor and legislature that we participate.

Mr. BLILEY. Perhaps through the Governors' conference the Gov-
ernor can get us some additional help through the form of a resolu-
tion.

Mr. PINGREE. lie serves on hat particular committee.
Mr. BLILEY. Mrs. LeGard, I am just curious as to why so many

children in Baton Rouge do not report to school until after Labor
Day. Is there a particular reason from that community, or is it tra-
dition or what?

Mrs. LEGARD. It is a tradition.
Mr. BLILEY. I am one who questions why we begin school, par-

ticularly coming from the South, b4ore Labor Day anyway with
some of our sthools not being air-conllitioned. Do you think it is a
mistake really to try to begin school before Labor Day in o'zr
region?

Mrs. LEGAko. Yes, and I proposed that and could not get enough
votes to get it passed. So maybe now that the board has stated this,
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I am of the opinion that the attorney general is going to uphold it,
but it was just timing, maybe now we will be able to get it done
that way.

Mr. BLILEY. Did they ever tell you the reason why they began to
start before Labor way?

Mrs. LEGARD. Before I got on the board we, you know, addressed
the 'board on several occasions. And they felt that they did not
want to have school last longer, you know, this meant 'we would
have to go a little longer than the end of the time, May 30. So
teachers and some administrators just felt it might be wise. And
the few days they missed before Labor Day were not important, so
they say, anyway. But it is important.

Mr. BLILEY. Yet they say if you miss 10, you are out, you have to
repeat thesrade if yqu miss 10 days.

Mrs. LEGARD. Right.
Mr. BLILEY. CatCh;.22.
Mrs. LEGARD. I think 'it is going to force the board to pass the

resolution starting -school after Labor Day because many students
are either working. or -- .T4

Mr. BLILEY. Have to work.
Mrs. LEGARD. That is right, and that is why they do not report.

Very few would be because of vacation. Most of them is because.
they are working and need that extra money.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mrs. LEGARD. May I justI was asked by Mrs. Cole, who is the

food service director, to ask you if you would support House bill
19S. 1913 and H.R. 4056, which' relates to nuts ition and is really
important for the children.

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
What is the situation with respect to the waiting list for preg-

nant women who are currently qualified and on waiting lists in
areas of our State that do not have the WIC program?

Ms. WEAVER. I am sorry, I do not have that information from
Mississippi, unfortunately.

Mr. PINGREE. We have WIC operational in all 67 Florida coun-
ties, and there is no waiting list.

Chairman MILLER. You have no waiting list currently in Florida.
Mrs. LeGard, as you know I am a very strong advocate of paren-

tal involvement in education. I dare say that the parents of those
Chapter 1 studbnts were probably responsible for pointing out to
the Federal Government mismanagement and misuse of those
funds far beyond anything our own auditors did. What we have
found is that parents have become rather sophisticated in the law,
inotnderstanding that the Congress has made a very conscious deci-
sion about what those funds were to be used for. And I must say, in
my own area that I represent, Chapter 1 parents probably provided
more headaches for that local school board than anyone. But the
parents also turned out correct each and every time, including
before the Supreme Court.

This was not supposed to be a free pot of money that was to be
used at the discretion of the board. It was specifically targeted
funds that, over a period of time, returned some rather dramatic
results for those children who resided in districts where they are
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properly used. Unfortunately, parental involvement is no longer
mandated as it once was. I think one of the best developments we
are now seeing in education js inviting all parents back to school,
after 'flushing them out with new math some 20 years ago: We
have now determined that 2 and 2 is stil? 4, and thatAghey are wel-
come to come back. So perhaps we will extend parental involve-
ment So rich and poor parents alike in the future.

Also on that point I think it is very interesting that while educa-
tion jumped to the frdnt pages of the national periodicals and
newspapers, and-politicians were beating their chests and arguing
over whether we were going to put up $11 billion or $14 billion for
new education initiatives at the national level, that there was the
State of Mississippi deciding to take the initiative to improve their
own 'system. It seems to have begun with the Governor actually
going somewhat over the head of the legislature at one point, and
then the legislature coming back and deciding to substantially up-
grade that system. I guess this is your first year and first semester.
It will be very interesting for tuose of us who sit on the Education
Committee to watch your effort. I am not convinced that there are
enough Federal dollars to repair this system.

Ms. WEAVER. I did point out we put dome money in place to im-
plement it. We think that is the key.

Chairman MILLER. Yes.
Mr. Lehman.
Mr. LEHMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to make

one comment. If poverty was a form of contraception, then we
would not have my subcommittee on preventive strategies, but un-
fortunately or fortunately that is not the case. We have such a
weird system of medical application. So I think we,should educate
our poor mothers to have their second child first and their first
child second. [Laughter.]

We have placed poor mothers in a Catch-22 position where it is
impossible for them to get the funds they need when they need it
the worst. So I will support the Waxman bill that would provide
medical services for first-time pregnancies, for not only the human
factor but for the fact that this will save megabucks in the long
run for every dollar we spend in the first-time pregnancies for poor
mothers. I thank you for being here.

Chairman MILLER. Thank you very much.
Next the committee will hear from a panel made up of Mr. Jack

Levine, executive director of the Florida Center flr Children and
Youth; Ms. Janet Reno, who will be accompanied by Albertha Bell,
from the State attorney's office in Miami; Gann Watson, who is
Southeastern Public Education Programs; Roger Biamby, executive
director of the Haitian American Community Association, D..de
County; Michael Cupoli, director of the Section on Child Develop-
ment, University of South Florida; Janet McAliley, member, Dade
County Board of Education; and Jane Snecinski, director of Day
Care Center, Baptist Memorial Hospital of Miami.

We will take you in that order if that is all right.

J
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STATEMENT OF' JACK LEVINE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, FLORIDA
CENTER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUTH, TALLAHASSEE, FLA.

Mr. LEVINE. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am
Jack Levine, executive director of the Florida Center for Children
and Youth, a private nonprofit organization based in Tallahassee.
As a note of personal introduction want to tell you that I learned
the concept of kosher on my grandma's knee. My grandmother
taught me that kosher goes beyond the kitchen and what you eat
and how you keep your household. It goes into the community as
well, how you interact with people, and more broadly how a State
handles families and children can be another definition of kosher.
Sol see it as my job to help make Florida a more kosher State for
families to live and for children to develop.

I am going to focus my remarks on four areas: juvenile justice,
status offender services, school discipline, and poverty..

In the realm of juvenile justice my perception is that we are
riding on a horse that is going off in many directions. We are
riding toward the future but we are also pulling back to the past.
We are seeking to retain rehabilitative goals but we are weighed
down by the need to punish. First comes the bad news.

Florida has the highest pretrial detention rate in the Nation.
During the last fiscal.year we have detained over 25,000 Florida ju-
veniles, which is one-third of all delinquency referrals.

Funding for secure detention in the last fiscal year, $14.4 million,
represents 25 percent of the State's total budget for delinquency
services. Due to the detainees' preadjudicatory status, the detention
program is not intended to provide treatment, just custodial care,
at the cost of $40 a day, $1,200 a month.

We are also suffering an accelerated adult court transfer rate.
During fiscal year 1981-82 770 juveniles were :ncarcerated in

Florida'a adult correctional system, 40 percent of whom were age
16 or younger. It is my perception that taking a 16-year-old burglar
and placing him in an adult prison for 2 years, we are paying not
only a $20,000 installment on a long-term debt, but also we are
bringing added violence to our communities.

In tandem with accelerated adult court transfers, commitments
ci.4.1/2,/o juvenile programs are at an all-time high. Although the State

boasts a range of nonresidential and residential community-based
delinquency programs, each of these continually operates at capac-
ity. As a result, the State's 3 training schools are grossly overuti-
lized, housing a total of some 1,000 youths a day. Two of the train-
ing schools house over 400 males each, in remote institutional set-
tings.

Nearly one-half of all youths committed to State training schools
are serving first commitments; they never received treatment in
community programs. Less than 20 percent of the youths in train-
ing schools have any crimes of violence on record. Although State
policy prohibits the placement of misdemeanants in training
school, waiver of this policy occurred 144 times during fiscal year
198142-3o percent of these waivers permitted the placement of
second degree misdemeanants in training school.

The cost of a training-school commitment is approximately
$12,000 per client per year. Little of this expenditure goes for
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mental health servicespsychologists' caseloads are at 1 -to -200
ratioand basic supervision is provided by cottage parents who
earn less than $9,000 ,annually. My perception is putting 400 bad
boys in an enclosed institution with scant treatment services pro-
duces 400 worse boys. Institutions for delinquents have never, and
will never, work.

Now the good news. Despite our overexpenditure of resources for
both secure detention and training schools, Florida has managed to
develop an excellent continuum of services for delinquent youth
which may well serve as a model for other States. Unfortunately,
as secure detention and training schools consume nearly one-half
of the delinquency services budget allocation, the range of more ef-
fective programing is severely restricted. A degcription of several
innovative program models follows:

In 1978 the juvenile alternatives services project.[JASR] was pi-
loted in three districts of the State. JASP is a court diversion pro-
gram for nonserious juvenile offenders which provides appropriate
services and sanctions such as arbitration, restitution, family coun-
seling, and community work services. After initial evaluations re-.
ported low recidivismless than 20 percentJASP was expanded
over the years to all districts.' In fiscal year 1982-83, 16,000 clients
were served, more than 300,000 hours of community work service
were performed, and restitution payments reached nearly one-quar-
ter million dollars [$228,834]. JASP services are provided at a per-
client cost of approximately $170.

The nonsecure detention program provides intensive supervision
to youths in preheating status at one-third the cost of secure deten-
tion placement. All evaluations show that this alternative to secure
confinement is successful in that the youths appear at their hear-
ings and are not accused of additional offenses in the interim.

We have excellent nonresidential delinquency programs that
serve some -24,000 youths with services ranging frota community
control superVision to marine science skills treatment programs.
The latter, contracted with a private provider, evidences the lowest
recidivism rate of all delinquency services available in Florida.

Community-based residential commitment programs served 2,284
youths in fiscal year 1983-84. A range of such programs exist from
a 28-day wilderness survival model to group homes to more tradi-
tional halfway houses. Several of these prograins are contracted
with private providers, while the majority are State-operated facili-
ties. Recidivism rates from communitybased programs are more fa-
vorable than those of training schools.

We have the potential to properly support the continuum of ef-
fective, cost-efficient programs if resources were shifted away from
costly detention lockup and institutional training schools.

Moving to status offender services, approximately 25,000 children
were referred last year to the department of HRS for a range of
status offenses. The great majority of these youths received np
services. Those that come to court frequently are put under court
order, and that order basically states do not repeat yuur truancy
behavior: do not run away from home; obey your parents We per.
ceive these court orders to be paper authority and nothing more.
When a child is brought back in front of the judge, frequently a
finding of contempt of court is the response of the judge. With in-
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creasing frequency we are finding that Contempt also means a stay
in secure detention.

The legislature called upon the detention center superintendents
to report on three specific days within the last 2 years how many
clients they were housing who were status offenders held on con-
tempt of court. The results were shocking. Over 10 percent of our
detention population were there on status offenses. These children
served twice the time accused delinquents were serving.

Secure detention certainly prevents status offense behavior
during the term of incarceration. There are no parents'to disobey.
The child cannot run through the walls or steel doors. Attendance
at the on-facility school is mandatory. But our perception is such
confinement operates to inflict more harm than good. It is a forced
choice that cripples any chance to solve the child's myriad prob-
lems which are, of course, social, familial, and, of course, based in
the school. .

In examining the problem of delinquent and dependent children
the role of the school cannot be ignored.

Although schools are responsible for the enforcement of attend-
ance laws, few schools have effective programs to do this. The
truant or misbehaving child is viewed as a discipline problem who
requires punishment. Some facts will underline this. In the 1981-82
school year over 180,000 Florida public school students received
corporal punishment-on one or more occasions. We do not know
how many instances that translates into as incidents are reported
to the State once per child,per year. That could mean once a week.
once a month, we just don t know the depth of the problem. I be-
lieve violence begets violence and that humiliation begets disre-
spect.

In 1980-81, over 83,000 students were suspended from Florida
public schools. Again this is a single child count. The child can be
suspended up to 10 days. A child can be suspended once a month
up to 10 days and will still be counted once in the statistics. There
is a Catch-22 with suspensions. There is'something called the aca-
demic penalty which means that if you do not attend class a cer-
tain specified number of days you will receive a fail4ig grade. Sus-
pensions are unexcused absences. Therefore, being sispended from
school frequently means failure from school. This translates into a
horrible dropout rate in Florida; for every two graduates, one child
will drop out.

We do have an excellent alternative education statute on the
books. But the programmatic implementation is sporadic. That is
evidenced by our discipline rates and dropout rate. The 1983 legis-
lature made graduation requirements more stringent. My fear is
that raising the academic standards will force even higher dropout
rates, increasing the population of undereducated, frustrated, and
very desperate young people.

I will briefly touch on some poverty issues, because there is some
overlap with previous testimony. Seventy percent of Florida's poor
rt,..eive no cash assistance. For those who do, the basic cash rate for
a mother with two children is $209. Add to that $190 per month
food stamp rate. We are talking about a per child per day payment
for food, clothing, transportation and shelter of $4. I do not know
how a person can survive on thqt subsistence level without being
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guilty of eithor neglect or fraud. Our AFDC payments in Florida
have increased just 12 percent over the past decade. Our prison
budget in Florida, oh the other hand, has increased over 1,000 per-
cent in the past decade. It is my perception that in many aspects of
family services we are pennywise and $10,000 foolish.

Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
[Prepared statement of Jack Levine follows:)

PREPARED STATEMENT AND SUPPORTIVE DOCUMENTATION OF JACK LEVINE, EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR. THE FLORIDA CENTER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUTH

JUVENILE JUSTICE

As is the case nationwide, Florida is experiencing a philosophical and fiscal tug-of-
war over the issue of juvenile justice. The continuous struggle between rehabilita-
tion and punishment has resulted in major statutory revisions in Florida in four of
the past five years. In budgetary terms, the state is trying to pay for both treatment
and punishment, and this dual emphasis has diluted the potential for rehabilitative
success.

In 1982, approximately 75,000 youths aged 17 and under were arrested in Flori-
daa decrease of'25 percent over the past five years. Less than 7 percent of all ar-
rests of young people are for crimes of violence. The public perception, however,
fueled by sensational reports of isolated serious crimes perpetrated by juveniles, is
that youth crime is on the rise, and young people are responsible for: the majority of
serious offenses. The justification for such perceptions is probably due to an actual
rise in crime rates of the 18 to 25 year-old group; but the resultant outcry to "get
tough on kids" has been scattershot, and proves detrimental to the younger class of
juveniles.

Examination of Florida's juvenile _justice system reveals several disturbing trends:
Florida has the highest pre-trial detention rate in the nation. Fiscal year 1982-83

)July I, 1982-June 30, 19831 saw 25,809 youths admitted to secure detentiohover
one-third of all delinquency referrals during that same period. The total average
daily population in Florida's 20 regional detention centers was 1,016 youths, who
were detained an average of 12.7 days each.

Funding for secure detention ($19.4 million in fiscal year 1982-83) represents 25
percent of the state's total budget for delinquency services. Due to the detainees pre-
adjudicatory status, the detention program is not intended to provide treatment,
just custodial care at the cost of $40.00 per child per day.

1981 statutory changes permit the transfer of 16 and 17 year-olds for adult court
prosecution at the discretion of the state attorney. The sole criterion for this trans-
fer is a felony charge, and no prior record needs to be in evidence. During 1982,
some 3,00 juveniles were waived to the adult court, and were subject to pre-trial
jailing and possible incarceration within the prison system. During fiscal year 1981-
'2, 771 juveniles were incarcerated in Florida's adult correctional system, 40 percent
of whom were aged 16 or younger.

In tandem with accelerated adult court transfers, commitments to juvenile pro-
grams are at an all-time high. Although the state boasts a range of non-residential
and residential community-based delinquency programs, each of these continually
operates at capacity. As a result, the state's three training schools are grossly over
utilized, housing a total of some 1,000 youths per day. Two of the training schools
house over 401) males each, in remote institutional settings.

Nearly half of all youths committed to state training schools are serving first com-
mitments: they never received treatment in community programs. Less than 20 per-
cent of the youths in training schools have any crimes of violence on record. Al-
though state policy prohibits the placement of misdemeanants in tfaming school,
waiver of this policy occurred 144 times during fiscal year 1981-82 130 percent of
these waivers permitted the placement of second.degree misdemeanants in training
school h.

The cost of a training school commitment, Is approximately $12,000 per client per
year. lank of this expenditure goes for mental health services (psychologists' case-
loads are at 1.210 ratio) and basic supervision is provided by cottage parents who
earn less than $9,000 annually.

Despite the overexpendirure of resources for both secure detention and training
schools, Florida has managed to develop an excellent continuum of services for de-
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linquent youth which may well serve as a model for othbr states. Unfortunately, as
secure detention and training schools consume nearly half of the delinquency serv-
ices budget allocation, the range of more effective programming is severely restrict-
ed. A description of several innovative program models follows:- .... In 1978, the Juvenile Alternative Sources Project (JASP) was piloted in three dis-
tricts of the state. JASP is a court diversk,n program for non-serious juvenile offend-
ers which provides appropriate services and sanctions such as arbitration, restitu-
tion, family counselling and community work services. After initial evaluations re-
ported low recidivism (less than 20 percent), JASP was expanded over the years to
all districts. In fiscal yeat' 1982-83, 16000 clients were served, more than 300,000
hours of community work service were performed, and restitution payments reached
nearly one-quarter million dollars ($228,834). JASP services are provided at a per
client cost of approximately $170.

The Non-Secure Detention Program provides intensive supervision to youths in
pre-hearing status at one-third the cost of secure detention placement. During fiscal
year 1982-83, 5,873 yd hs were served in non-secure detention status, with an aver-
age daily population of 1 All evaluations show that this alternative to secure con-
finement is successful in t t the youths appear at their hearings and are not ac-
cused of additional offenses in he interim.

Non-residential delinquency programs served some 24,000 youths during fiscal
year 19K-83, with services ra ging from community control supervision to marine ,

evidences the lowest recidivisn rate of all delinquency services available in Florida.
science .kills treatment progr ms. The latter, contracted with a private provider,
e
The per client cost for non-residential services is approximately $11.00 per day.

Communitybased residential commitment programs served 2,284 youths in fiscal
year 1983444. A range of such programs exist from a 28-day wilderness survival
model to group homes to more traditional halfway houses. Several of these pro-
grams are contracted with private providers, while the majority are state operated
facilities, Recidivism rates from community-based programs are more favorable
than those of training schools.

Florida has the potential to properly support the continuum of effective, cost-effi-
cient programs if resources were shifted from costly detention lock-up and institu-
tional training schools. High expenditure for these two least successful programs
hampers the ability of Florida to achieve its goal of rehabilitative treatment for
young people who get into trouble with the law.

STATUS OFFENDERS

During 1982, approxim'ately 25,000 children were referred to the state of Florida
as either runaways, truants, or generally being beyond the control of their parents
Iungovernable). Of this total. some 40 percent are local (in-county) runaways, 30 per-

oit of the referrals are for ungovernability, 20 percent for truancy, and 10 percent
at

ercent) of status offense referrals are handled informally,
.0171.fg stateta

majority
runaways.

hr
uti-

without the intervention of the court. In nearly all ofethese cases, no further action
or referral is made by the state due to the dearth of appropriate voluntary commu-
nity resources le.g., mental health, crisis counselling). The children who exhibit
status offense behavior may come before court and be adjudicated dependent. This
adjudication usually is followed by the issuance of an order which prohibits the
child from continuing the behavior. In addition nearly half 145 percent) of judicially
handled status cases are placed under protective supervision and 12 percent are
placed in !Oster care.

Due t,) the complexity of familial, social, school and personal problems which give
rise to status offense behavior, the order of the court to cease such activity is fre-
quently a meaningless gesture of authority in the eyes of the child. The court order
does nothing to sort out the problems, and as a result, the behaviors usually reoc-
cur With increasing frequency. repeated appearances before the court for running
Away troancy or general disobedience evokes a finding of contempt of court. and a
sentence to secure detention.

At the request of the legislature several single days surveys of detention populte
tams Were CnIelkled in 182 and 19K1 to determine the prevalence of courtordered
i,nlinement for chronic status offense behavior. These surveys revealed that as
mam ,i, la percent of the detainees in secure lock-ups were status offense cases
These children. many Of shorn were serving specified sentences, remained in deten-
tum I" Ice iis long '2.1.s daYsi its youths who were held pending delinquency hear-
ings No pro% 'slims for separating the two groups of chow.., "ere mandateci or im-
plemented
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Secure detention certainly prevents status offense behavior during the ternkof im-
prisonment. The child cannot run though the solid bloat walls or steel doors, there
are no parents to disobey, and attendance at the on-facility school program is man-
datory. But such confinement operates to inflict more harm by aggravating the coml.
plex problems which give rise to status offense behavior. Out of familial, school, and
court frustraton, and the lack of effective treatment resources, incarceration is the
expedient option. But it is a forced choice which cripples the chance to solve the
real problems of the child.

EDUCATION

In extunining the problems of children identified as status offenders, the role of
the school cannot be ignored. While truancy accounts for a fifth of status referrals,
sporadic school attendance and misbehavior are also characteristic of runaways and
children who are labelled as ungovernable.

Although schools are responsible for the enforcement of compulsory attendance
laws, few school districts in Florida have effective programs to respond to the com-
plex reason for nonattendance or misbehavior. The truant or misbehaving child is
viewed by school Administrators as a discipline problem who requires punishment.
This tendency to punish shows itself in these statistical indexes:

In 1981-82, over 180,000 public school students received corporal punishment on a
single or on numerous occasiona.

In 1980-81, over 83,000 students were suspended from public schools.
In 1980-81, over 40,000 young people dropped out of public schools and another

112,001twere not promoted to the next highest grade.
In Jury, 1979 the federal Office of Civil Rights released a major study entitled "El-

ementary and Secondary Schools Civil Rights Survey". This report included a rank-
ing .of' the 100 worst school districts in the nation for overrepresentation of black
students who were corporally punished, suspended or expelled. Ten Florida school
districts.were in the ranking:
District: No. in ranking of 100

Pinellas 7
Hillsborough 20
Brevard 35
Escambia :36

Broward 39
Dade 52
Polk 67

Palm Beach 68
Lee 71

Seminole 96

These districts are 10 of the 12 largest Florida school districts, encompassing
nearly fill percent of the state's public school population.

In the 1980-81 school year, black students comprised 23 percent of the Florida
public school population but represented :33 percent of the non-promoted students,
37 percent of the corporally punished students, 38 percent of the suspended students
and 3 percent of the students who were expelled.

A majority of Florida's school districts operate alternative education programs.
These programs are designed to provide special help for students who are 'disruptive
or unsuccessful. While the intent of the Alternative Education Act is to offer educa-
tional programs which would be positive rather than punitive, and emphasize each
student's abilities, close examination of the programs within most school districts
reveals a perversion of that intent. One invettigation, initiated by the Governor's
office. concluded that the alternative education programs have been generally inef-
Fective. The study found marked philosophical rifts between state and district ad-
ministators. little evidence of cooperative planning within school districts, and few
innovative ideas in the offering of nontraditional learning experiences for disrup-
tive. disinterested and unsuccessful students. The prime recommendations of the
study focused directly upon local initiative in planning and implementing pro-active
alternative programs.

While changes in school curriculum to make a child's education more challenging
is a primary strategy toward resolving truancy and conduct problems, school admin-
istrators cannot act alone in this effort. Increased ties with community agencies are
essential for proper handling of family-based problems. At present, schools operate
in a vacuum. Social services are used so infrequently that crisis points must often be
reached -and then a court referrill is the usual response. The coersion of the court,
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in most matters of family and school problems, is an ineffective measure. The chal-
lenge to communities is to orchestrate professional and volunteer resources that will
work to respond to and remediate the complex problems of young people who are
not building foundations for their future. Punitive responses, which have been the
rule in Florida, only result in escalating drop-out rates, and a population of un-
skilled, frustrated, desperate young people.

The Florida Center for Children and Youth is a nonprofit advocacy organization
made up of thousands of Floridians who are concerned with the problems of our
state's children and their families. The Center provides information to county-based
groups of child advocates, the Children's Action Network, on a range of children's
issuesnutrition, mental health, child care, adoption, education, juvenile justice,and others.

Over the past seven years, the Center has built a successful partnership for
progress with local child advocates. Among our shared accomplishments are the pas-
sage of important child abuse legislation, the strengthening of services to runaway
teenagers, and the improverhent of education in Kindergarten-3rd grade (see ac-
complishments list, attached).

Each affiliate of the Children's Action Network (see map, attached) is led by a
team of volunteer coordinators who are trained by the Center torecruit
pants, conduct community meetings, and make contacts with officials on the localand state levels.

Information on children's concerns is disseminated regularly through the FCCY
Newsline and the Legislitive Update, Publications of the Florida Center for Chil-
dren, and Youth.

The Center's office in Tallahassee houses an Executive DIjrector and a part-time
Administrative Assistant. These individuals serve as the ey(A.0 and ears of local child
adVocates. Center staff monitor the legislature, the Cabinet, and. the State agencies
(Dept. of HRS, Education, Corrections) for issues and actions which affect children'sliv in Florida. The Center serves as both a receiver of information from county
affi ates, and a sender of.information back to the counties. This three way commu-ni tionThe Children's Action Network, the Center, and policy makersis the
key to effective.child advocacy in Florida.

The Center's function is a valuable supplement to the important services 1:ovided
in each community by local agenciese.g. adoption counselling, shelters for abused
children, drug rehabilitation. Because the Center works to improve laws, state poli-
cies and budget allocations, local family agencies derive direct benefit from our
statewide efforts.

The strength of the Florida Center for Children and Youth depends upon the com-
mitment of volunteers and the support of individuals, service agencies, organiza-
tions and businesses who believe that there is a value to a unified voice for our chil-
dren.

THE FLORIDA CENTER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUTH

CHILD ADVOCACY ACHIEVEMENTS

1. Enhanceeprograms for prevention and treatment of child abuse and neglect
1977Passage of HB 402 which strengthened provisions of Chapter 827, Florida

Statutes relating to the reporting of suspected cFltid abus,'
1978Establishment of pilot Child Protection Team in one HRS District IV. Es-

tablished provisions for the appointment of Guardians Ad Liteni in abuse and neglecteases.
1979Passage of CS/HB 1433 further strengthening the child abuse reporting

statute. Expansion of Child Protection Teams for four additional HRS Districts.
1980Guardian Ad Litem funding provided for seven judicial circuits. Intensive

Crisis Counselling Program established as a support service for families.
1981Increases in protective services staff established in three HRS Districts as

pilot project. Intensive Crisis Counselling Program expanded to four additional HRS
Districts. Guardian Ad Litem funding extended to three additional judicial circuits.
Child Protection Teams expanded to three additional HRS Districts. Child Abuse
Registry system funded for.computerization of information.

1952Passage of HR 296 (Mills Bill) providing for planning and implementation
of statewide program for prevention of child abuse and neglect. $1.1 million appro-
priated to fund programs proposed by planning process. Continuation of Intensive
Crisis Counselling Program. Expansion of Homemaker Service Program to provide
parenting skills training. Expansion of Guardian Ad Litem Program. Loss of federal
funds for Child Protection Teams picked up by state revenues.

6 o
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Strengthening requirements for judicial review of foster care placements to expe-
dite child's return to natural parent or placement in permanent adoptive home

1977Statutory expansion of "special needs" adoption category to include sibling
groups. Increased appropriations fen adoption workers within state child welfare de-
livery system.

1978Passage of SB 248 which provided subsidies for special needs adoptions
through the adoptee's 18th birthday , rather than just for three years after place-
ment.

1979Legislature impr6ves funding of Specialized Family Services and Adoption
Services in order to promote better attention to permanency needs of foster care cli-
ents.

1980Passage of SB 357 (Skinner BO requiring permanency plans within 30
days of foster care placement; prohibiting parental waiver of judicial review; requir-
ing proof that other options were explored prior to foster care placement of child.
Passage arCS/SB 533 requiring annual status reports by Department of HRS on
children in foster care. Foster ca?e suit, Quaintance v. Pingree enforces requirement
for judicial review of foster care placement. Expanded training for foster care work-
ers and foster parents provided through appropriationkExpanded funding of special
needs adoption subsidies.

1981Adoption subsidy funding level .improved to equal foster care reimburse-
ment rate. Improved funding of medical payments for special needs adoption place-
ments.

1982Passage of HB 738 pruviditig for safeguarding interests of parties in inter-
mediary adoptions and determining criteria for confidential handling of adoption in-
formation. Funding shifts away from foster care program into adoption services in-
cluding subsidy payments for special needs placements.
III. Improved public education by reducing exclusionary practices and enhancing al-

ternative education programming
1978Passage of HB 282 (Florida's Alternative Education Act) which provides

statutory definition and enhanced F.T.E. funding for disinterestse disruptive and
unsuccessful students.

1979Passage of HB 1327 to provide for equitable funding of education programs
for children who are placed in residential care of the Department of HRS. ?assage
bf statutory guidelines for due process rights of children who are corporally punished
in school.

1980Defeat of legislation whic)) would have expanded use of suspension for "se-
rious breach of conduct" without prior inclusion of parents in process. Defeat of leg-
islation which would have removed principal's authority to prohibit the use of cor-
poral punishment. Passage of HB 222 expanding requirements for school districts to
provide education programs for pregnant students.

1981Defeat of numerous measures in Legislature which would have broadened
the authority of school officials to suspend and expel students. SB 299requiring
automatic suspension if student is charged with a property offense. HB 414grant-
ing broad exemption from use of parental assistance prior to suspension. SB 295
expanding time of suspension beyond 10 days. SB 154permitting suspension for tru-
ancy. HB 479imposing financial penalties on parents if child did not exert "mini-
mum expenditure of effort" to complete school work. HB 779terminating family's
AFDC payments if child violates compulsory school attendance law.

1982Improved funding by 10% of per-student allocation for alternative educa-
tion. Improved funding for student development servicesincluding guidance coun-
sellors, placement specialists and career counsellors. Creation of statewide Task
Force on Truancy and Discipline which has as its purpose an examination of poli-
cies and practices which impede educational participation by students. Task Force
has requirement to report to Legislature regarding findings and recommendations.
IV. Reduce institutional placement of emotionally disturbed children and expand

access to appropriate community-based services for these children
1979Legislature appropriated $4.5 million for a range' of community -based

mental health services for children.
1980Passage of HB 1643 requiring comprehensive county plans to include provi-

sions forolie location of residential group homes. Improved funding for community-
based purchase of services for emotionally disturbed children.

1981New appropriations for mental health day treatment programs. This pro-
vided funds to supplement local school district's programs with family services and
afterschool treatment. Improved appropriations for community residential mental
health programs--therapeutic foster care and therapeutic group homes.
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1982Passage of CS/HB 665revising major provisions of Florida Mental Health
Act. Changes included separation of children from adults on wards of state hospi-
WI; requireme9t to document attempts at placement of children in least restrictive
setting; elimination of hearing waiver provisions in cases of 'involuntary placement
of minors in residential settings; requirement for Department of HRS to submit
deinstitutionalization plan to the Legislature in order to accomplish goal of commu-
nity services for children in need of mental health care. Increased appropriations
for nonresidential service programs for emotionally disturbed childrenout-patient
care for foster children, prevention projects, specialized children's programs in com-
munity mental health settings, and HRS day treatment programs.

In addition to the four categories of child advocacy achievement delineated above,
Florida has improved services to children in several other areas, in part as a result
of strong child advocacy activities:

PREP program.The 1979 LegiEllature passed the Primary Education Act (PREP)
to improlle the quality of educational programs in kindergarten through third
grade. The four components of PREP are: (1) health and education screening to
evaluate learning potential and to identify any handicaps which might impede the
child's' ability to learn; (2) individual instructional strategies suited to children's spe-
cific needs; (3) reduction in class size to enhance teacher/student interaction; and (4)
staff development and training to enable school personnel to improve their profes-
sional skills. PREP funding has increased in each budget year sincethe initial 1979-

. 80 implementation of the program.
Perinatal intensive care program.This program represents one of the premiere

efforts in Florida to establish true primary prevention of health and emotional dis-
orders in children. During their eight years of operation, Florida's perinatal inten-
sive care centers have served more than 15,000 women who were high risk obstetric
patients and over 25,000 newborns who required intensive health services for surviv-
al and proper early development. The program also conducts developmental evalua-
tions of children up to age fourmore than 4,000 evaluations were accomplished in
FY 1981-82. Increased funding for more perinatal centersnumbering six in 1976
and increasing to 10 in 1982has been /I major achievement of child advocates in
Florida.

Aid to families with dependent children.The AFDC program provides payments
to families which are unable to. manage due to extreme poverty. Three quarters of
the recipients of AFDC payments are children, the remainder being sole caretakers
and disabled persons. Florida AFDC payments have traditionally been among the
lowest in the nation. In February, 1983, as a result of a payment level increase,
AFDC payments for a family of four (one parent and three children) total $263 per
month. Expenses to be covered by this amount are shelter, utilities, transportation,
clothing, and household supplies. Florida's AFDC rules do not permit an intact
family to receive payments. Therefore, if two parents are unemployed, the father
must abandon the family in order for the children to receive AFDC.

Despite this dismal picture, Florida's AFDC program has realized slow, but steady
improvements in both payment levels and increased standards of need. Although
the payment level remains near the bottom nationally, standards of need adjust-
ments allow more needy children to participate in the program.

Day caretitle XX, This program provides quality day care to children of low
income families. The purpose of Title XX Day Care is to permit parents to work,
obtain job training, or pursue further education so that their families can become
more self-sufficient. The state and local communities pay approximately 25% of the
Title XX Day Care costs, and 75% is paid by federal dollars. For every dollar spent
on this program, more than two dollars of tax revenue is generated by the working
parent.

Improvements to Title XX Day Care services in Florida are two-fold. There has
been a steady increase in the numbers of children servedFY 1981-82, 1K,380 --
and concommitant increases in the maximum reimbursement rates for providers of
infant and pre-school care. Despite steady improvements, economic conditions have
increased the need for care, and waiting lists in Florida have some 15,000 children
in need of care.

Juvenile alternative services project (JASP).The JASP began in 1978 in three
pilot MIS Districts to establish diversionary programs to keep first-time nonserious
offenders out of formal court processing. The range of services includes community
arbitration, restitetion to vidtims. local work assignments for community agencies
and family counselling. JASP was a component of the resource reallocation plan to
improve "upfront" delinquency services, thereby re ing recidivism into the
system Cost savings and reduced criminal involvemer juveniles are the goals of
the plan. Since 1978, JASP has been evaluated to sho, rent success on both mess-
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urns. As a result, the project has been expanded to each of the.11 HRS Districts.
JASP continues to serve the community through use of a core counselling staff, sup-

° plemented by volunteer arbiters, and excellent cooperation from law enforcement
agencies, the state's attorneys And judges.

Runaway youth shelters. Florida's network of runaway youth centers, which
number 11 statewide, provide 29-hour, 7-day per week supervised child welfare serv-
ices to children who are away from home. Research reveals that a great majority of
runaway youth are in need of therapeutic, supportive treatment due to damaging
experiences of physical and emoti5nal abuse. In 1981, Florida took an important
step in maintaining vital shelter services by replacing $307,000 which has been cut
from Florida's allocation at the federal level. In 1982, the Legislature supplemented
its 1981 appropriation with an additional one-half million dollars to augment run-
away services to include more family counselling and follow-up services. The 1983
Legislature acted to mandate the creation of a statewide task force to develop a
comprehensive plan for runaway youthincluding evaluation criteria for shelter
programs.
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STATEMENT Oli"l'OM PETERSEN, CHIEF' ASSISTANT STATE AT-
TORNEY, THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF' FLORIDA,
DADE COUNTY, ACCOMPANIED BY ALBERTHA BELL.

Mr. PETERSEN. Let me point out the obvious. I am not Janet
Reno. Unfortunately, she has been in Tallahassee today. I and her
chief-assistant, Tom Petersen. To my left is Albertha Bell. Ms. Bell
and I are going to share our lot. In doing so I think we will amplify
on Mr. Levine s remarks.

I think there have been few who would question the proposition
that delinquency among our youth is directly related to poverty.
Data indicate to an alarming extent that delinquency is related to
single-parent families. This is especially acute in inner-city fami-
lies. We found that 83 percent of black children in a study came
from one-parent homes. As to the connection between poverty and
the black, single-parent family, a report produced by the Center for
Study of Social Policy in Washington, D.C. found that not only had
the difference between black and white family incomenemained
relatively constant between 1960 and 1981, blacks have during the
same time period consistently been three times more likely to live
below the poverty standard than whites, and the poverty rate for
blacks is most severe for children and elderly. In 1981, 45 percent
of all black children under age 18 lived in poverty, while only 15
percent of all white children. For children in black, female-headed

6 families, which comprise almost half of all black fainilies with chil-
dren, in 1981 the poverty rate was 68 percent, and 81 percent of
black children under age 6 in female-headed households in inner-
city areas were poor. Yet there is darkness at the end of, the
tunnel. In 1960, 20 percent of, all black families in the United
States were female headed. By 1970 the percentage was 30 percent,
and by 1980, 47 percent, with moire than half of all these families
living below the poverty level.

In a recently published book entitled "The Underclass" this phe-
nomenon ,was described as the feminization of poverty, and noted
while the number of families headed by men declined 25 percent
from 1970 to 1977, the number of women who heqded families
below the poverty line jumped by 710,000, or 39 percent. He further
pointed out that the 13th annual report of the President's National
Advisory Chuncil on Economic Opportunity published in September
1981 carried a troubling warning, and I quote:

All other things being equal, if the proportion of the poor in female households or
families were to continue to increase at the same rate it did from 1967 to P175, the
poverty populatim would ha composed solely of women and their children Wore
the year 2014

What do these figures mean in terms of delinquency pt event ion'?
They clearly imply that instead of pursuing panaceas for eradica-
tion of all delinquency we should instead focus on specific problem
areas which most need addressing. The salient problem area is that
of the black single mother living below the poverty level and her
children. The number of these families as I have stated has in-
creased dramatically during the last decade. If the relationship
does exist between delinquency and poverty and poverty and inner-
city single-parent family, we should not be surprised if 111 years
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from now the urban felinquency rates will be significantly larger
than they are today.
'The data clearly suggest this prognosis is ominous, particularly

in light of the fact that our response to the situation is a welfare
system which perpetuates and even aggravates the problem. For
example, take Ms. Bell. In 1980 Ms. Bell is an AFDC recipient with
four children. By virtue of her own initiative she is no longer on
welfare and' kg employed and going to school in the evening. In
Florida in 1980 the monthly AFDC payments for a family of five
was $520 per month, $6,000 per year. This represents 66 percent,
two-thirds of the Federal poverty level. Ms. Bell enrolled in a
('LTA-subsidized secretarial trainingprogram for about 30 hours a
week and during a 4-month period received a monthly stipend of
$340. During that 4-month period her combined AFDC, food stamp,
and CETA subsidy annual income would have amounted to $8,000
if she continued to receive that for a full year. That represents 108
percent of the Federal poVerty level. The simple reality is that wel-
fare even when combined with an undeclared employment or train-
ing stipend leaves most recipients barely at the poverty level. She
failed to report this and was charged with a felony for not having
clone so. Last year that would have meant arrest, booking, and
criminal record. Fortunately this year it means Ms. Bell will be
working to institute a free day-care center designed to benefit
other parents who wish to seek employment or training. She is par-
ticipating in a new program jointly administered by the State at-
torney's office and Dade Community ..'iction Agency which is at-
tempting to provide constructive training and community service
for recipients for failing to declare employment or who are finan-
cially unable to make restitution. This program provides specified
hours of community service or vocational or educational training.
It must be completed as prerequisite to the dropping of crimirl
charges.

In addition we have instituted an early intervention effort, a cro-
gram which is placed in an elementary school in Liberty City
which is designed to provide aftercare, sort of a Head Start pro-
gram for children exhibiting difficulties in school. The school has
2 percent black enrollment. In that school, 27 of 877 students
come from families whose income is high enough to disqualify
them for the free lunch program. This program began yesterday,
simultnneously will provide tutors, cultural activities for the chil-
dren identified, as well as training and educational opportunities
for their parents, about two-thirds of whom will be AFDC mothers.

Now I would like to introduce Ms. Albertha Bell.
I Prepared statement of Thomas K. Petersen Follows:)

I'ItFPAKF.D SIA'FFMENT OF' THOMAS K. PKTERsEN. CHIEF ASSISTANT STATE ATTORNFY.
THE ELEVENTH JI'DICIAL Cincurr OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR I)AHF: COUNIY

Mr Chairman and members of the Select Committee, there are but a few who
%%)old quest mit the proposition that delinquency among our youth is directly related

'overt% And the data indicate, to an alarming extent, that poverty is directly
related to single parent family status. This problem is distressingly acute in .the
inner city Black community

A study conducted here in Dade County by Judge Seymour ( ;ether of lour hun-
dred and ninety 1\1. :ffliudicated delinquents found that `:i percent of Black chit
&en in the 'hh: came I root one parent homes
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As to the connection between poverty and the Black single parent family, a report
produced by the Center for the Study of Social Policy in Washington found that not
only had the difference between Black and White family income remained relatively
constant between 1960 and 1981, but that Blacks have during the sanie time period
consistently have been three times more likely to live below the poverty standard
than Whites; and that the poverty rate, for Blacks, is most severe for children and
the elderly. In 1981, 45 percent of all Black children under age eighteen lived in
poverty while only 15 percent of all White children were below the poverty limit.
For children in Black female headed familiesfamilies which comprised almost half
of all Black families with children in 1981-7-the poverty rate was 68 percent. And 81
percent of Black children under age six in female headed households in inner city
areas were poor.

Yet there is darkness at the end of thajunnel. In 1960 20 percent of all Black
families in the United States were female headed families with children under
eighteen. By 1970, the percentage had risen to 30 rcent and by 1980 to 47 percent,

more than half of all these families live below the poverty level.
a recently published book entitled 'The Underclass", Ken Auletta described
phenomenon as "The Feminization of Poverty", and noted that while the

r of poor families headed by men declined by 25 percent between 1970 and'
he number of women who headed families below the poverty line jumped by

seven hundred and ten thousand (710,000) or 39 percent. He further pointed out that
the thirteenth annual report of the President's National Advisory Council on Eco-
nomic Opportunity, published in September of ,1981, carries a troubling warning:
"All other things being equal, if the proportion of the poor in female households or
families were to continue to increase at the same rate as it did from 1967 to 1978, the
poverty population would be composed solely of women and their children before the
year 2000".

What do all these figurts mean in terms of delinquency prevention? They clearly
imply that instead of pursuing panaceas for the eradication of all delinquenc,y we
should instead focus on specific problem, areas which most need to be addressed. The
salient problem area in delinquency prevention today is.that of the Black single
mother living at below the poverty level and her children. The number of these fam-
ilies has increased dramatically during the past decade, as has the number of Black
infants growing up in poverty today.

If the relationship does exist between delinquency and poverty, and between pov-
erty and the inner city single parent family, then we should not be surprised if ten,
years from now our urban delinquency rates are significantly larger than they are
today. And the data clearly suggest that the prognosis is ominous.

Particularly in light of the fact that our response to this situation is a welfare
system which perpetuates, even aggravates the problem. As an example, take Al-
bertha Bell. In 1980, Ms. Bell was an AFDC recipient with four children. By virtue
of her own initiative, she is no longer on welfare and is presently employed and
going to school in the evening. In Florida im 1980 the monthly AFDC and food
stamp payments to a family of five was at that time $520 per month, or $6,240 per
year. This re resented 66 percent of the fedefal poverty, level. Ms. Bell enrolled in a
CETA subsidized secretarial training program and during a four month period re-
ceived a monthly stipend of $341. During that four month period Ms. Bell's com-
bined AFDC-food stamp and CETA subsidy annual income would have amounted to
$8,400 had she continued to receive that income over a full year. That represents
109 percent of the federal poverty level. The simple reality is that welfare, even
when combined with an undeclared employment or training stipend, leaves most
AFDC recipients barely at the poverty level. Ms. Bell failed to declare the CETA
income (to do so would have returned her to 2/3 the poverty level) and she was
charged with a felony for not having done so. Last year that would have meant an
arrest, a booking and a criminal record.

Fortunately, this year it means Albertha Bell will be working to institute a free
day care center designed to benefit other single parents who wish to seek employ-
ment or training but cannot afford to do so because of an inability to pay for day
care.

Ms. Bell is participating in a new program, jointly administered by the State At-
torney's Office and the Dade Community Action Agency, which is attempting to pro-
vide constructive training and community service for AFDC recipients who have
failed to declare employment and who are financially unable to make restitution.
The program provides that specified hours of either community service or vocational
or educational training must be completed as a prerequisite to the dropping of
criminal charges. These women are performing valuable community service and are
eager to develop employable skills, as well as interested in creating self-run enter-
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prises such as free day care centers for those unable to pay for the day care of their
children.

Another p'wgram, based at the Edison Park Elementary schoola school with a
92 percent Black enrollment in which only twenty seven of eight hundred and sev
enty seven students come from families whose income is high enough to disqualify
them from the free lunch program, now offers a free after care school program
from 2:00 until 010 p.m. Thivprogram provides tutoring and organized educational,
recreational and cultural activities for children experiencing learning, behavioral or
,..motional difficulties. This program, the Dade County Early Intervention Program,
is funded by a combination of Federal, State and local monies. Most of the children
who will be enrolled in this iirogram will be children of single parent families sub-
sisting at below the poverty level and the program is designed to simultaneously
provide for the educatinnai, vocational training, and parenting activities to be pro-
vided to families intere.ied in participating.

STATEMENT OF ALBERTHA BELL

Ms. BELL. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Al-
betha Bell. I am 32 years old. I live at 2101 Northwest Avenue in
the city of Miami. Dade County. I have four kids. I am not on wel-
fare at the present time. I did not like the system.. I motivated
myself to get off the system. In the welfare system there is a dehu-
manizing factor involved. You feel you are condemned to remain in
this type of situation the rest of your life and you do not have
enough of anything. Being a welfare recipient, there is not enough
for food; new clothing is nonexistent. Your living conditions are
worse. I live in the same building I lived in when I was getting a
check. And it is bad. For example, the hallways of the building I
live in are used for bathrooms, and there is urine running out into
the streets. Many dumpsters are placed downstairs by the building,
and in summertime it is like nothing you ever smelled before in
your life.

The effect on the kids and myself is terrible. There is a very real
possibility of delinquency involved in a system like this. My son fell
into the system and got caught. He was picked up for dealing
drugs. There is always that possibility with delinquency when chil-
dren do not have enough of anything. You have young mothers.
Some of these chilaren are totally devoid of any type of affection.
They need something. Their mothers are on welfare and parents as
we all know, poverty-level parents tend not to have a great deal of
love and affection for anyone, particularly themselves and their
children. A young girl falls into the trap where a. guy comes by and
says hey, I love you. I want you to have my baby. They figure why
not. I don't have to take care of it. Welfare will take care of my
babies. They know they are not going anywhere. They have been
culturally culturized to believe that they will never get out of the
system, therefore what the hell?

There are young kids in the ghetto that were born there, raised
there, and probably will die there in that same particular neighbor-
hood. In the building where I live there is a lady, she has been
there 21 years. ahe raised all of her children on welfare and she
still has kids at Wome, and they are on welfare. Therefore you have
generations of welfare mothers.

Every young man on the street corner sells dope. Ile has nothing
else that he can do except sell dope. There is no food on the table,
and with young children they have to do something. Dope is a very
convenient way to do something. Hustling is a lull time job. You
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cannot hustle and go to school at the same time. You cannot go to
school if you are hungry. Education means nothing. But there are
solutions to this problem,, and the solution has to be resolved
sooner or later. It is like the social security 'system. There are a few
taking care of a lot. This is happening every day. The solutions are
vlucation. If we do not educate these people to where they are em-
ployable, they can hold a job, they will be in the system for the rest.
of their lives. But you cannot educate a hungry person'or hungry
child. You hav to feed them first. You cannot educate a child that
is embarrassed because he does not have the proper clothes to
wear. lie has to have some type of feelings for himself. He has to
like himself before you can educate him.

The system has to be changed. AFDC, the entire system has to be
totally changed. It cannot automatically be cut off and expect you
to survive. There has to be a gradual weaning of mothers from the
system. Make it mandatory that they go to school. If they get preg-
nant and have a child, give them day care centers so they can get
out to work or go to school. You cannot leave the child by himself.
H. you have children in school, afternoon care, if you do not get bff
until 5 in the afternoon somebody has to care for the child. You
have to make people realize, we are not going to support you for
the rest of your lives. It has to be a slow weaning off the system.

Social workers have a funky attitude. They have this star atti-
tude. This is one of the reasons why I got off. I do not like crawling
or bowing down to anybody. The system has to support what the
recipients need, It has to give them something that is going to be
very much more humanizing. They have to feel their own way.
They have to gain respect, confidence, and have to know their re-
sponsibilities. You have to be able to stand up on your own two
feet. IF the system does not give you this, then you will be on the
system For the rest or your life.

Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
[ Prepared statement of Albertha Bell follows:

nia.:1ma.:1) STATEMENT OF AIMERTHA WEL OviairowN, NliAmi. DADE ('fl 1Y

Mr Chairman and members of the Select Committee, my name is Albert ha Bell,
.11n thirty-three years old, I live at 211)1 N W. and Avenue, in the heart of Ovetown,
in the city of Miami, Dade Clunty.

I have tour kids, the oldest is seventeen; I have 011C fifteen, thirteen and the youn-
gest is ten I am nut on welfare at the present time. I didn't like the system there-
for': I motivated myself enough to get off the system. In the welfare system there is

delionianuing teeling that is involved. You feel that you're condemned to remain
in this type 01 situation tor the rest of your life, you don't have enough of anything
And hffig a welfare recipient, hug] stamps Just does not cut the mustard. I'her Is
(I.) nione y Inc loud, new (111111111g are totally inadequate, your living conditions are
Aen worse I live in a building now that I lived in when I was getting a check and
the tairwells are used fora bathroom, I have urine running nut of the stairw(11s,
%%I- have Dempsy Dumpsters downstairs and sometimes it smells like all hell. The
ellect on me and the kids is horrible There is a possibility of delinquency involved
in a s%istern like this NIy sun in trying to help me and his sisters, the is the only boy
I to into the system, he got picked up, he was arrested for dealing v.ith
411111.:7" 1;1(.111 ('111,4, delinquency There is always a possibility of delinquency
% hen children ion t /MVP enough ot anything N').. have young mothers. these
%gum: ,11'e In ;1 that is tutony devuld of any type of affection They 1114(1

1111. 111441 ()111v(rf11'. 111(.11 tout hers ifre ()11 (A,r11;1/1, And, ;1!.. ySe ;111
-11!; 1%1.11 11,11/11. tend 1i) nn( /1;1%1' ;1 i111';11 ili,11 of luyt. fur ;triNhody .111..

hey 1.111 win lin tI.Ip hero. ,1 utf% cufill's iI11(1 I 10%1' Vial, ;111(1 I
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want you to have my baby." They realize that welfare would take care of the baby
whether he is there or not, why not? They know that they are not going anywhere,
they have been culturally socialized to believe that they would never get out of
where they are, and there are young kids that were born there, raised there and
would probably die there. A lady in my building, she has been there for 21 years.
she raised everyone of her children there and she still has children at home, growr
people, and they are on welfare. We have generations of welfare mothers.

In the boys, every young man in the neighborhood sells dope. When there is no
food on the table and no clothe i for them, their mothers, or the young kids in their
family, they have to do something so they sell dope. Once they get a few dollars in
their pocket, hey, the hell with school. Hustling is a full time job and you can't
hustle and get an education at the same time; if you don't hay( P. ny money to eat on
school is not really that important.

Hut there are solutions to this problem and this situation has to be resolved soon
or it will be like the social security system, it will be a few taking care of a lot, and
that's exactly what is happening. The solutions are education: you have to educate
young people, you have to educate parents, but you can't educate a hungry child.
You cannot educate a child that is embarrassed because he isn't properly attired.
The system has to be changed. AFDC's entire system has to be totally, totally
changed within. There has to be a gradual weaning of mothers from the system.
Make it mandatory that they. go to school, if they get pregnant and have a child,
give them day care centers so that they can getout and work or go to school, it has
to be a thing that they have to know that "we are not going to support you and
your children for the rest of your lives, you have to get it together. yourselves."
There has to be a support system for them. Social workers have the funkiest atti-
tudes in the world, they have a God attitude towards recipients and its not fair and
you feel like you're crawling.

The system has to support this affection that they need. The system ha§ to give
them something that's going to be very much more humanizingand here comes
that word again, humanizingthey have to feel their own worth, they have to
regain respect, confidence and they have to know how to deaf with their respongibil-
ities. They have to be able to stand up on their own two feet and. if the system
doesn't give them this along with day care centers and employability, skills, these
people will be here forever.

STATEMENT OF GANN WATSON, SOUTHEASTERN PUBLU7
EDUCATION PROGRAM, COLUMBIA, S.C.

Ms. WATSON. Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
My name is Gann Watson, and I am pr ram associate for the

Southeastern Public Education Program in olumbia, S.C. Ours is
an organization which for the past 15 years as instigated and pro-
moted educational reform in the South in the hope of achieving a
public education system of high quality and full access for all chil-
Jren.

I appreciate the opportunity to speak before your Select Commit-
tee and hope that my comments will help broaden your views and
increase your understanding of those issues which have a signifi-
cant impact on children, youth, and families.

I understand that a component of your committee's task is to
identify and address situations which affect the economic security
of young people. My comments today will focus on a topic which is
very closely linked to the economic well-being of youth; that topic
is vocational training for students in high school.

In South Carolina we have a vocational system whose stated pur-
pose is "to deliver vocational training and supportive services for
meeting the identified needs of people and State manpower re-
quirementS.

The system was formally instituted in the mid-1960's to respond
to two basic conditions: One, the fact that South Carolina did not
have a well - trained, highly skilled labor force, and, two, the fact
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that about half of the students who graduated from high school
chose not to continue their education but instead sought immediate
entry into the job market.

Out of the response to these two situations grew the vocational
education system as we know it today in South Carolina. A system
which boasts more than 55 area vocational centers around the
State, has a yearly expenditure of State/local funds amounting to
almost $50 million and an additional $12 million in Federal dollars,
and which serves about two-thirds of all of the students in grades
9-12 in South Carolina's public schools.

I have heard it said that South Carolina has one of the best voca-
tional systems in the region in terms of facilities. But while ade-
quate facilities are certainly essential to the efficient operation of
any public education system, what is fundamental to that system is
the content of the curriculum. In vocational education, curriculum
is the kind of occupational training offered and how that training
translates into employment skills for vocational graduates.

One way to measure and evaluate the effectiveness of the voca-
tional education system is on the basis of how many students who
complete their vocational training actually find jobs in fields relat-
ed to that training. Following are a few job placement statistics for
vocational completers in South Carolina.

In school year 1980-81, 87,288 students were enrolled in occupa
tional training programs. In that same school year, 15,292 students
completed their vocational training and were ready for placement.
About 6 percent of these completers enlisted in the military and
about 43 percent went into post-secondary education programs. The
'remaining 7,681 were available. and waiting for employment. Of
those 7,681, 2,568 found employment in the field for which they
were trained. Less than a third found jobs in a field unrelated to
the vocational skills they obtained, and about 18 percent were un-
errlployed.

What we have here is an occupational training funnel. Poised
above it is the vocational education system and waiting below is
the job market pail. While a gush of students enter the mouth of
the funnel in search of training that will enable them to compete
for employment, only a narrow stream flows through the neck, and
what emerges at the base of the funnel represents little more than
a drop in the bucket.

To what extent, then, is the vocational education system really
providing students with a direct link to employment in their
chosen field'? The above examp.9 suggests that it is to a very limit-
ed extent. More than 80,000 go in, but only 2,000-plus emerge and
hit their target. Of what value was vocational education to those
students who do not use the skills in the jobs they get, and more
importantly, to those students who couldn't find jobs at all?

It is safe to say tbat the extent to which South Carolina's voca-
tional system is cor&ributing to the economic well-being of the ma-
jority of its students is not what it could be. What factors inhibit
greater effectiveness of the voc-ed system in terns of job placement
and program enrollment'?

One, occupational training programs offered in the vocational
education system in 1983 are, by and large, the same ones that
were offered in the MO's. Despite occupational demand projections

7 1
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which forecast to the contrary, we continue to offer training in
auto mechanics, carpentry, brick masonry and cosmetology. And
while these courses do provide a usable skill, the extent to which
they contribute to actual employment is /elatively small.

Furthermore, in some locations there is little connection between
vocational training and the industrial makeup of a community. For
instance, in'the State's most highly concentrated resort, recreation

d tourism area the school district's vocational system is teaching
ut 100 students how to repair lawnmowers, but only 14 students

son thing about the hotel And motel industry.
Two, vocational enrollment in' South Carolina continues' to fall

along traditional, gender-related lines. Machine shop programs
which offer reasonable opportunities for employment have 97 per-
cent male enrollment in 1982-83; and in the health occupations
programs, which also provide comparatively high chances for em-
ployment, girls are over-represented by 94 percent. The significance
of this Continued sex stereotyping in vocational programs is that it
serves to inhibit the boy who is interested in science and the help-
ing professions, as well as the girl who demonstrates an interest in
and talent for occupations which require a high degree of manual
dexterity.

Despite. the improvements that were noted in enrollment pat-
terns in 016 years when grants were available t.o local districts to
overcome sex stereotyping, in the past 2 years South Carolina has
not allocated any moneys toward this effort. It is my suspicion that
if the Federal requirement to maintain an office for sex' equity
within vocational education were eliminated that in South Caro-
lina the job woulde eliminated as well.

Three, the vociitional education system continues operate
under the perception that it is a system for the academic under-
achiever. This perception is held by students, by parents, by busi-
ness ppople and by educators. The significance of this perception is
that it is absolutely self-perpetuating.

Four, vocational advisory\councils are, for the most part, councils
on paper only. This seems to be particularly true in".the more rural
areas of the state. Such situations suggest that very little input
from the noneducation community is received for discussion in re-
lation to how voc-ed is identifying and keeping up with the needs of
people and manpower requirements at the local level.

Five, individual guidance and career counseling for vocational
students is obtained by relatively lew of them. High school stu-
Oents I have observed and talked with have indicated that they had
seen a guidanc(k counselor only once or twice by the time they were
seniors. The above situations suggest that students make voca' ion-
ai enrollment decisions based primarily on personal familiarity
rather than on 'knowledge and information obtained from the
system.

Vocational educators, government officials. and representatives
of business and industry all claim and decry the importance of
high school students obtaining job-related skills by the time they
graduate. Further. it goes without saving that the high school grad.
uate in rural Calhoun County who learned a vocational skill and
i)und a job which demanded and utilized that skill is contributing.
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significantly to the economic security of herself, her family and the
community.

Yet when the time comes to make bold new plans for improving
education, little focus is placed on the vocational system. Since this
is a system that can make a difference in the adult experiences of
graduating students, it is imperative that we make substantive and

. continuing efforts to insure that it is succeeding at its intended
purpose.

Thank you.
[Prepared statement of Gann Watson follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF GANN WATSON, PROGRAM ASSOCIATE FOR THE % 5

SOUTHEASTERN PUBLIC EDUCATION PROGRAM IN COLUMBIA, S.C.

Good morning. My, name is Gann Watson and I am Program Associate for the
Southeastern Public Education Program in Columbia, South Carolina. Ours is an or-
ganization which for the past 15 years has instigated and promoted educational
reform in the South in the hope of achieving a public education system of high qual-
ity and full access for all children.

I appreciate the opportunity to speak before your Select Committee and hope that
my comments will help broaden your views and increase your understanding of
those issues which have a significant impact on children, youth, and families.

I understand that a component of your Committee's task is to identify and ad-'
dress situations which affect the economic security of young people. My comments
today will focus on a topic which is very closely linked to the economic well being of
youth; that topic is vocational training for students in high school.

In South Carolina we haver vocational system whose stated purpose is "to deliver
vocational training and supportive services for meeting the identified needs of .
people and State manpower requirements." The system was formally instituted in

the mid-1900's to respond to two basic conditions: (1) the fact that South Carolina
did not have a well-trained, highly skilled labor force, and (2) the fact that about

half of the students who graduated from high school choose not to continue their
education but instead sought immediate entry into the job market. '

Out of the response to these two situations, grew the vocational education system
as we know it today in South Carolina. A system which boasts more than 55 area
vocational centers around the state; has a yearly expenditure of state/local funds
amounting to almost $50 and an additional $12 million in federal dollars;
and which serves about 2/3 of all of the students in.grades 9-12 in South Carolina's
public schools.

I have heard it said that South Carolina has one of the best vocational systems in
the region in terms of facilities. But while adequate facilities are certainly essential
to the efficient operation of any public education system, what is fundamental to
that system is the'content of the curriculum. In vocational education curriculum is

the kinds of occupational training offered and how that training transil,ates into em-
ployment skills for vocational graduates.

One way to measure and evaluate the effectiveness of the vocational education
system is on the basis of how many students who complete their vocational training
actually find jobs in fields related to that training. Following are a' few job place-
ment statistics for vocational completers in South Carolina.

In school year 1980- SI, $7.2 students were enrolled in occupational training pro-
grams In that same school year. 15.292 students completed their vocational training
and wer. ready for placement. About hO percent of these completers enlisted in the
military and about 43 percent went into post-secondary education programs. The re.
maiming 7.hS1 I half of the 15,2921 were iviailahle and waiting for employment Of

those 7.I 1, 2.56S (331 percents found employment in the field for which they were
trained Less than r. third found jobs in a field unrelated to the vocational skills
they obtained. and about 15 percent were unemployed.

Wh;it we have here is an occupational training funnel. Poised above it is the voca-
tional education system, and waiting below is the job market pail. While a gush of
student enter the mouth of the funnel in search of training that will enable them to
ciimpere for emiiliiyment, only a narrow stream flows through the neck, and what
emerges at the base el the funnel represents little more than a drop in the bucket.

Tu what extent. then, is the viicational education system really providing students
%% h direct link to employment in their chosen field'? The above example suggests
hot It Is In it %cry Innited extent. Eighty thousand plus go in, but only 2,0011 plus
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emerge and hit their target. Of what value was vocational education to those stu-
dents who do not use the skills in the jobs they get, and more importantly, to those
students who couldn't find jobs at all?

It is safe to say that the extent to which South Carolina's vocational system 'is
contributing to the economic well-being of tkte majority of its students is not what it
could be. What factors inhibit greater effec 'veness of the voc-ed system in terms of
job placement and program enrollment?

(11 Occupational training programs offered in the vocational education system in
1983 are, by and large, the same ones that were offered in the 1960's. Despite occu-
pational demand projections which forecast to the contrary, we continue to offer
training in auto mechanics, carpentry, brick masonry, and cosmetology. And while
these courses do provide a usable skill, the extent to which they contribute to actual
employment is relatively small. Furthermore, in some locations there is little con-
nection between vocational training and the industrial make-up of a community.
For instance, in the state's most highly concentrated resort, recreation and tourism
area the school district's vocational system is teaching about 100 students how to
repair lawn mowers, but only 14 students something about the hotel and motel in-
dustry.

(2 Vocational enrollment in South Carolina continues V) fall along traditional,
gender-related lines. Machine shop,programs which offer reasonable opportunities
for employment have 97 percent male enrollment. in 1982-83; and inthe health oc-
cupations programs which also provide comparatively high chances for employment,
girls are overrepresented by 94 percent. The significance of this continued sex
stereotyping in vocational programs is that it serves to inhibit the boy who is inter-
ested in science and the helping professions, as well as the girl who demonstratgi an
interest in and talent for occupations which require a high degree of manual dexter-
ity. Despite the improvements that Were noted in enrollment patterns in the year
when grants were available to local districts to overcome sex stereotyping, in tht
past two years South Carolina has not allocated any monies towards this effort. It is
my suspicion that if the federal requirement to maintain an office tor sex equity
within vocational education were eliminated that in South Carolina the job would
be eliminated as well.
4(31 The vocatibnal education system continues to operate under the perception

that it is a system for the academic underachiever. This perception is held by stu-
dents, by parents, by business people, And by educators. The significance of this per-
cept ['on is that it is absolutely self-perpetuating.

(4) Vocational advisory councils mandated by public law '44-482 are, for the most
part councils on paper ,-1y. This seems to be particularly true in the more rural
areas of the state. Such situations suggest that very little in input from the non-
education community is received for discussion in relation to how voc ed is identify-
ing and keeping up with the needs of people and manpower requirements at the
local level.

15) Individual guidance and career counseling for vocational students is obtained
by relatively few of them. South Carolina has a prevocational education component
of the system which is designed to expose 9th and 10th graders to a variety of career
areas and opportunities. Only 14 percent of the vocational student population,%ow-
ever. avail themselves of the prevoc experience and the vast majority of pre-voc stu-
dents are, for sonic reason, boys:nigh school students 1 have observed and talked
with have indicated that they had seen a guidance counselor only once or twice by
t fiv t 'me t hey were seniors. The above situations suggest that students make voca-
tional enrollment decisions based primarily on personal familiarity rather than on
knowledge and information obtained fcgm the system.

Vocational educators, government officials, arid representatives of business and
industry all claim and decry the importance of high school students obtaining job-
related skills by the time they graduate. Further,, it goes without saying that the
high school graduate in rural Calhoun county who learned a vocational skill and
found a job which demanded and utilized that skill is contributing significantly to
the economic .iecurity of herself, her family, and the community. Yet when the time
conies to make bold new plans for improving education little focus is placed on the
vocational system. Since this is a system that can make a difference in the adult
experiences of graduating students it is imperative that we make substantive hnd
continuing efforts to ensure that it is succeeding at its intended purpose.

Thank you
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TABLE 9

IV. A. ACHIEVEMENT OF FY 1981 ENROLLMENT AND SUPPLY GOALS"

s.

Service Ares/Agency

ENROLLMENT SUPPLY (Placed In Field)

Actual Projected Difference( 51 Actual Projected DIfferance(51

AGRICULTURE

10,530
513

Trin
12,54;

627

M74

145if 1,662
' 102ma -:Trg

VOC. ED. -
TEC -
TOTAL. -

DISTRIBUTIVE ED.
4,952

1_,____224
5,329
1813
ii7t-42 =fir

544
151

1,165
277

rxra .-1771

VOC. ED. -
TEC -
TOTAL - 77-97

HEALT14 OCCUPATIONS
1,997
3,..._329

5-,42-6 711
311
747

635
682Uri

VOC. ED. -
TEC -
TOTAL -

1,1159
1_956
57C55 Mg -19.7

°cc. HOME ECONOMICS
2, 200

105rrn .,--n--

52
13

n
443

14
ri:

VOC. ED.
TEC -
TOTAL -

3, 037
362

17141 -- Fri

NOSINESS AhD OFFICE
32,69.5
17 515
Tb.Tri

.
...

845
896

3,847
....L___1128
11.-fiS 'WI

VOC. ED. -
TEC -
TOTAL -

44.110
17 013
UtITI .21.5 1747

TECHNICAL \
-0-
51,..__452

5,11-Ei

-0-
089 = -0-

561
31-0

-0-
748

71a
VOC. ED. -
TEC -
TOTAL

___12
17 069 -25.0

TRADE AND INDUSTRIAL
27,150
11_242
WITY "7"173

1,243
823

5,435
932

CIO -173
VOC. ED. -
TEC -
TOTAL -

24.200
12,680
317136 2. 066

GRAND TOTAL
q7,28D

96.267
81,838
47 713

3,'40
.3,268

13,187
3 383 al

VOC. ED. -

TEC .
TOTAL 133,555 129,561 . 3.1 '6,408 17,070

v)t 1stim.tes based un sample fullow up results.
Does not nclucit placements in Higher Education.

F Ilroliment flijur vs reflect occupanunal tour .es only.
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g. 1
VOCA,IIONAL EDUCATION FOLLOW-UP OF FY 1981 COMPLETERSILEAVERS

SERVICE
AkFA

FY 1981
COMP,. E FERS

AND
LEAVERS

FY 1962 PLACEMENT FOLLOW-UP*

Put suing
Additional

.-Ltharaiten
No,

military
and nut in
Labor, Fun

Available
For

r-LIC
No.

mit

Employed
In

FI_d
5

Employed
Out

Field
No.

of

S

TOTAL
EMPLOYED

No. S

UNEMPLOYED

No. I.
S No. I 5 No.

Agriculture 1186 536 45.2 83 7.0 567 47.0 151 12.7 151 12.7 302 25.5 263 22. 3

Marketing and
Distribution

1680 601 35.6 114 6.7 965

1

57.4 407 24.2 238 14.0 643 36.3 322 19.2

Health Occupations 308 169 54.9 IS 6.1 121 39.3 47 15.3 26 5.4 73 23.7 47 15. 3

Occupational
Home Economics

i 526 211 40.0 18 7.1 280 53.0 56 12.5 50 5.5 116 22,Q 163 30.9

Business Education 5697 2896 SO., 128 4, 0 2572 45. I 572 17.1 737 12.5 1709 30.0 BEA 15. 2

Trades and
Industry

5893 2188 37.1 529 9.0 31 76 53.1 925 15.7 1152 19.5 2077 35.2 1099 18. 7

----]
TOT AL CO 6601 43.2. toil 6,6 col mt. CD 11.1 2752

..
15,4 4920 32.rGD IL 0

Sample Follow-Up Results Expanded to Totaltmpleter and 1.4ver Count.

5/
101..00t6 3

#µ;

(0
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION SCHOOL ENROLLMENT, BY SEX
19E2 - 53 SCHOOL YEAR

'

June 1983

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

. :
Dr. Charlie G. Williams, State Superintendent

Mr. Sidney B. Cooper, Deputy Superintendent for instruction

Dr. Moody Oswald, Director, Office of Vocational Education

Dr. John C. Smiley, Chief Supervisor, Ancillary Services Section



IY 197n TO ry 1982

1976-77 ENROLMENT 1982 -83 ENROLU4ENT

.-..---.)

Female
'. E. CODE COURSE NAML Total Female % Female Total % Female

04.16

OISTRIOUTIVE EDUCATION (continued)

36

98

3

46
36

471

17

42

b
7

15 '

15%
41%
36%

Petroleum

04.17 Peal Lstate

771(iTarrIourism04.18
(14.19 Transportation 123 28 23% 1 57 30 53%

04.20
117711

Business Services .- -- -- 79 54 68%

-ifillNOSS OfTtOrshiP .. .. -- 78 31 401

04.22 Con. Marketing 1,011
116

645
43

64%
37V

452 297

211

66%
72%

A4.9000 Sdlos and Marketing, Other

07.0101

HEALTH OCCUPATIONS
Of

5,268--.- 3,281-.-- 62%

-

1,134--- 2.718-.--- 661

100%
bental Assisting -- .. 4

-----
4

u7.0302 Practical Nursing 421 412 981 118 112 95%

07.0303 Nursing Assistant 308 291 94% 152 147 97%*

07.99 health Ocuptions 674 611 948 878 y 931

09.0101
CONSUMPR 4 lirefrMAKINv,

11403403---- 1 314 ---

9S%

1 125-4- _- 1,141-- 1 931-----
83%

15,955 14,867 11.145 9.301
Maud Cnncumer Offomemaking

09.0102 Child Development 4.6/49 4 211 9UA 3.231 2.663 82%

09.0103 Clothing A Textiles 5,540
2'733l
9 017

5;17 7

/4037
S 20

93%
74;
63%

3,385
1 485
4.911

3L010

699

3.288

89%
47%

09.0104 Consumer Education

09.0106 Family 17117 Education

09.0107 Foods 4 Nutrition 5 04

1./ 115 : 1/

ro2
17_50

360

831
961-
66%

6,064
1 305

829

4 104
1,091
548

_671
68%
84

..09.0109 Housing 6 Home FurnisiiIng

09.0191 human Sexnnlit
1 1 arentiood ucnt on -- -- -- 2 779 2,120 76%

49.0198 Experimental

OCCUPATIONAL Hoch rCONOM1CS

429
4T,838

280
40-264

58%
AZ%

223
..

L

349

35,483

213

- 27,017

61%
761
....,

94t
100%
166%

09.0201

09.6T527--

--L--- --L---
-----.

..1....... ..L..
.

UETYTTE741;rvIcos 634 627 564 -
90

110
_ 90

clni5171T3W-7,1,, 86 81

_

9 IL.
6(1

.

1,1.6203 rood service 1.302 854 L-JuL 724
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1976-77 ENROLL/CCHT 1982-83 ENROLLMENT

--..----.
F. COOL COURSE NAME

.

Total Famale
x

% Female Total Female 1 Feiaie

7.0601

TRANS 6 INDUSTRIAL (continued)
1 0 0% .. .. .. ,

Dry Cleaning
7.19 (-rai4lic Communications 1 118

1,114
4

136 .

574
29
0

3 2%

969
1.054

29
157

564

44

2

ya.
4%

lA
---..-21---

3%

7.2302

T:(13-1T

Machine Shop
Hetalmoirg Fabrication

).2305 Ahect Hotel

7.2306 freldin 1,635 24 1% 1.484

31
47
11.2601 Barber ng -- -. --

7,7(i07..:-zsxIo.y
77800'olc-IPatons

982 934 95%

100%
48%

1.303

--
..

j1230
..

..

44%
--

..
7

23
7

117.7000 QuantIty Food Occupations

r724bi Ikatvutter 8 '
...

0 014 -- .. ..
41.7j6 4 Waiter/Waitress 16 IS 94$__

2%

41.
578

-- ..

7.310u Small Engine Pepair 781 17 9 21

1.3300 Textiles
Tailoring '

67g-

135
197

85

29%

631

410_

74

92

/3

22%
971t.3M2 1

7.3359 Industrial Sewing 1 912 1,814 95% 1.640 1.537 04%

7.3601 Catinetmakint .
,-

u11 13 8%

291
192
357

22,694s

8

43
4 657-A---

at

1211

20%

---
18%

T E 1, Other tExperlmontal) 252 74

)Aion
PREVOCATIONAL

27-159 4 400 IA
---
20%21,310 4,350 12,550

4.609

2.207

718

Fi7c17ijiiTritial

1.0400 '

INdlISTRIAL ARTS
5.645 677 12%Industrial Arts

MMOMMY
324417 1.175

3.281

1.314

40.21)4

1.716

_'% 8.662 1.084
2.718
1A41

27,017
1.491

\-1 ,

13%

66%

.21%

76%

7;%

_51-aiiure
Distributive Education 5.768

1.403
47.858

2.184

'...__6:%
94%

84%
79i

4.134
1.225

35.483
1.829

Health Occupations
-Zonsumer 4 Homemaking
occupational Home Iconnoics
Office Occupations 30.380 23.916

--.9._____J7%
4-150

7% 17.253

Trades 4 Industrial 27-159
214624 4.657 20%

P"---:"c'tt°11111
21 3i0 20% 12..550
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STATEMENT OF ROGER E, BIAMBY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, HAI-
TIAN ANIERICAN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION OF DADE COUNTY,
INC

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Roger.
Mil. BIAMBY. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, other members of

committee. Let me take this opportunity to thank you for allowing
me to speak before you today.

My name is Roger E. Biamby, executive director of the Haitian
American Community Association of Dade County, Inc. [HACAD].

HACAD is the only Haitian social service agency serving primar-
ily Haitians. Presently we provide assistance to the Haitian com-
munity in the areas of legal matters related to housing, employ-
ment services, English as a second language [ESOL], emergency
food and shelter and general, social services.

In fact, I cannot in 5 minutes enumerate the various problems
and serious issues HACAD is facing; however, I am taking this op-
portunity to present some highlights for your consideration.

It is estimated that apptoximately 60,000 to 70,000 Haitians
reside in south Florida. Little Haiti, an enclave within Edison-
Little River, represents the largest community; 26,000 to 35,000
Haitians live in that section of Miami. Other Haitian communities
are found in Belle Glade, Immokalee, Delray, Deerfield, Home-
stead, and other predominantly agricultural areas of south Florida.

Unemployment remains the most serious problem facing Hai-
tians. A recent survey conducted by HACAD in 1982-83 reveals
that over (0 percent do not have stable, permanent jobs and over
90 percent are looking for work; more than one-half of the latter
category earn less than $145 a month per person. Yet very few Hai-
tians receive any kind of government or private assistance.

Housing in Little Haiti is overcrowded and is in deteriorating
conditions. U.S. census figures show a population increase of 27
percent in a decadefrom 29,000 in 1970 to 35,000 in 1980. Since
1980, however, the population has increased significantly.

A planner for the city of Miami's planning dep rtment estimated
at "over 40,000 people, all squeezed into about t . same number of
houses as existed in 1970." Most of the structur were built in the
1920's. HACAD's two attorneys are in court pr tically every day
litigating landlords on matters dealing with housing code viola-
tions, illegal withholding of clients' security deposits.

Mr. Chairman, in the past year, our two staff attorneys recov-
ered through litigations over $30,000 in security deposits illegally
held by the landlords, and as immigrant groups, we are being
taken advantage of by the established community. This year alone,
close to $20,000 has already been recovered. The fact of the matter
is that the Haitian community stilt does not know its rights. It is a
gradual process, and we are helping with this process.

Discrimination is widespread. Health problems are usually used
as an excuse to deny Haitians jobs. The latest example is the
unfair classification of Haitians as a nationality by the Center for
Disease Control as a high risk group in the Nation's No. I health
problem, namely AIDS.

fj
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This tis having also a serious impact on the Haitian children
when they come to the public school system. They are seriously
psychologically affected. Peer pressure is tremendous. No one
wants to associate with the Haitians. This issue has served °ray- to
exacerbate an already explosive situation in the schools. Haitian
children at present refuse to identify themselves as Haitians.

The parents are unable to assuage their fear. However, the coop-
eration of Paul Bell and T. Greer, associate superintendents of
the Dade County Public Schools, represents a great support to the
Haitian parents. We hope with his concern that eventually many
of our children's problems will be solved.

There is a very high birth rate in the Haitian community. Since
January 1982 to date, approximately 21 percent of the recorded
births at Jackson Memorial Hospital were to Haitian mothers.
There is a dire need for a family planning program in this commu-
nity.

Day care and child facilities are practically nonexistent. Many
Haitian mothers are willing to work but such facilities are practi-
cally nonexistent. Many would like to go to school and learn skills,
but they are unable to pay for private day care. They would like to
become contributing members of their respective households.

The Haitian children are all black. They are classified as such,
but the Hispanic children have a special position in the school
system. The system hires the appropriate number of teachers based
on the population. Yet though Haitian children comprise 3,000 to
4,000 of the children in the public school system, the language bar-
rier must be recognized, and they must provide some additional
guidance to those students; otherwise they will not be able to func-
tion adequately in the school system.

The after-school program is a much needed program for the Hai-
tian children. None exists at present to the best of our knowledge
for Haitian children in elementary, junior high and high schools.
In the past, intermittent fundings were provided to certain schools
for remedial education on math and science. A more consistent ap-
proach must be adopted to enhance their performance.

Health care is an area where a lot of attention must be focused,
especially preventive health care. Only one primary health clinic
funded by HHS operates in this community. Jackson Memorial
Hospital receives a very large portion of the Haitian population. It
is remotely located from the Haitian community and the quality of
care provided to Haitians must be questioned. Though they do not
cease to cry out for financial assistance to Washington, and they
have indeed received such allocation, but much improvement is
needed in the delivery of quality health care.

Last Saturday a Haitian woman went to Jackson Memorial. She
complained to the emergency room that she was about to have her
baby. The doctors told her she was not ready. They called the
police and forcefully had her removed from the premises. Two
hours later the infant died.

Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, I could go on, but
I think the Haitian community represents the Nation's newest im-
migrant. I think efforts must be made by Washington. Dade
County, Florida, cannot do it alone. We need your assistance.

Thank you.
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IPrepared statement of Roger E. 13iamby.follows..]

PREI'ARED STATEMENT OF ROGER E. BIAMBY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, HAITIAN
AMERICAN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION OF DADE COUNTY, INC. IHACAD)

I want to thank you Mr. Chairman and other members of the Cpmmittee for invit-
ing MP to speak before you today. My name is Roger E. Biamby, Executive Director
Of the Haitian American Community Association of Dade County, Inc. iHACAD).

IIA('AI) is the only social service agency serving primarily Haitians. Presently we
provide, assistance to the ifaitian community in the areas of legal matters related to
housing, employment services, English as a Second Language IESOIA, emergency
food and shelter and general social services.

In fact, I cannot in five minutes enumerate the various problems and serious
issues IIACAI) is facing, however, I am taking thiS opportunity to present some
highlights for your consideration.

Population
It is estimated that approximately 60,000 to 76,000 Haitians reside in South Flori-

da. Little Haiti, an enclave within EdisonLittle River, represents the largest com-
munity. 25,1100 to 35,000 Haitians live in that section of Miami. Other Haitian com-
munities are found in Belle Glade, Immokalee, Delray, Deerfield, Homestead and
other predominantly agricultural areas of South Florida.

(iriernii/mnient
Unemployment remains the most serious problem facing Haitians. A recent

survey conducted by IIACAD in 1982-1983 reveals that over 60 percent do no have
stable, permanent jobs and over 90 percent are looking ifor workmore than one
half of the latter category earn less than $145 a month per person. Yet, very few
Haitians receive any kind of government or private assistance.

/biasing
Housing in Little Haiti is overcrowded and is in deteriordting conditions. United

States Census figures show a population increase of 27 percent in a decadefrom
29.000 in 1970'to 35,000 in 198O. Since 198O, however, the population has increased
significantly. A planner for the City of Miami's Planning Department estimated at
"over 0,000 people. all squeezed into about the same number of houses as existed in
1970-. Most of the structures were built in the 1920's. HACAD's two attorneys are
in court practically every day litigating landlords on maters dealing with housing
code violations. illegal withholding of clients' security deposits.

Discrimination
Discrimination is widespread. Health problems are usually used as an excuse to

deny Haitians jobs. The latest example is the unfair classification of Haitians as a
nationality by the Center for Disease Control as a. high risk group in the nation's
number one health problem namely A.I.D.S.

Haitian children in the Dade County Public Schools are also psychologically af-
fected. Per pressure is tremendous. The AIDS. issue has served to exacerbate an
already explosive situation in the schools. Haitian children at present 'refuse to
ident4 themselves as Haitians. Their parents are unable to assuage their fear.
However. the cooperation of Paul Bell, the Associate Superintendent of the Dade
County Public Schools, represents a great support to the Haitian parents. We hope
tiith his concern that, eventually, many of our children's problems will he solved.

High birth rate
Since January Ilts2 to.date, approximately, 21 percent of the recorded births at

.1,tckson :Mmorial Hospital were to Haitian mothers There is a dire need for a
planninv, program in this community

Dal rare child care factIttles
Many Haitian mothers are willing to work but such facilities are practicnIly non-

existent The need exists for day care and child care facilities to allow women to
work and to It':1111 VIIC:tt I ?kills so that they can become contributing,nienthrs
of their respectivr households

ittrr s, him,/ rolkolirti
IL I, :t much needed program tor the Haitian children. None exists at present to

the hest of our knowledge l'or II,titi,in children in ell.nr.ntin.y. junior high and high
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schools In the past, intermittent fundings were provided to certain schools for re-
inedMI educat WU on math and science. A more consistent approach must be adopted
to enhance their performance. HACAD will attempt to initiate such program with
the support of the Dade County School Board. But the, school system must be provid-
ed with additional resources,

/MIMI care
Attention. must be focused on preventiVe health care. Only one primary health

dinic funded by [IRS operates in this community. Jackson Memorial Hospital re-
ceives a very large portion of the Haitian population. It is remotely located from the
flak ian community and the quality of care provided to !Initial's must be questioned.
Though. they do not cease to cry out for finitneial assistance. to Washington and
they have, indeed, received such allocation but much improvement is needed in the
delivery of quality health care.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I could go on and on highlighting
the different problems faced by the Haitians in this community. For further refer-
ence. I haveenclosed conies of surveys done in the Haitian community in Miami as
well as copies of various newspaper articles related to Haitians issues. The fact of
the matter is that the children are directly and indirectly affected by problems con-
fronting:their parents.

Haitians pre the poorest of the poor in South Florida. They need your help so that
our children can be properly enculturated and can become productive members of
the American ,ociety while retaining their cultural identity.

STATEMENT OF J. MICHAEL ('I'POLI, M.D., DIRECTOR, SECTION
ON CHILD DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF VEDIATRICS, UNI-
vmsn'y OF SOUTH FLORIDA
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Dr. ('(pone. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am tired

of hearing depressing news this morning. I also give you a docu-
ment that is full of' depressing news. I would like to review that
document very quickly so there might be a minute to give some en-
couraging news.

As bad as the literature is about child abuse and neglect, the real
life story is worse than what is on paper. I have called all over the
country to people I have worked with in Boston, Denver, Washing-
ton, Florida. None of them had real numbers, but we have a lot of
educated guesses. And I will try to give you my own experience.

The jails are, full of people who were abused as children. Most
data show that So to 90 percent of those in jail were abused and
neglected as children. Seventy to PO percent of people in juvenile
detention and delinquency homes' have been abused or neglected as
children.

Seventy to percent of those people had learning disabilities.
liow many educational problems and learning problems came from
being abused or neglected? More than 60 percent of children who
are called mentally retarded don't have a diagnosis that ade.quateiy
explains their retardation, even in those clinics who spend much
time seeking a cause. I.Ve simply dpn't know why they are retad-
(.(1

Yet we know from neglect and from the clinics that -10 to :4) pe
cept ut the kids who are retarded for no known reasons are retad-
cd Ope ,w,..u. of poet' language skills, often becatise of the envicon-
m,lit;i1 do.niation that others hitte have mentioned. Probahly
put on, of children v. it lt cerolmil palsy acquired cerehr:t1 ovt!'
-He t the fears Ii tune. dell ins; the Itr..:1 ...tr of life. We think as

27, to :-.1) 'Dire( nt of chIldren who niPwally retardiql,
\ ;ehii ell.



What is the impact on our educational system'? You know better
than I the cost of special programs for people who are mentally re-
tavied, emotionally handicapped, and learning disabled. A large
percentageI have found in the literature 25 to 50 percent of those
childrenwere abused.

I have heard today people talking about the impact of the region-
al perinatal program in Florida. The average cost for those chil-
dren is $10,000 for their first 3 weeks of life. Medicaid pays $100 for
the rest of the 0 weeks of their first year.

We try to fbIlOw those children, but we do not have funds for
that. We tend to sort of do it anyway. I am fortunate to be in a
State program. and what I get paid is constant so I can see who I
want to see. Unfortunately, others don't want to see them.

I get to see the parents. I get to see people who don't have jobs
because they are learning disabled. I get to see people who don't
have jobs because of physical deformities. I get to see people who
have bad children, and I said "bad" in quotations, because they
don't know how to bring up children, because that is how they
were brought up.

During the cumulation of the morning I am close to tears be-
cause I also see the dead kick. We all kind of sighed when we heard
about the one Haitian today and the numbers of Haitians who are
dying in our country due to poor medical care. Yet, more than
2,000 children a year die in the United States of child abuse. I see
four or five a year every year, year after year, just in the city of
Tampa. The bulk of those are un,' he age of 2.

A concern that came up repe. today and probably isn't in
my testimony, written testimony: . am beginning to see that pri-
vate-for-profit hospitals are taking the paying people from our
public, hospitals and county hospitals. These hospitals used to take
as it community responsibility the care of indigent people.

You take the paying patients, as unfair as that is, from other
hospitals, and when the Government cuts back State and Federal
funds to care for indigent, the result is more medically poor people,
people who have poor pregnancies, people whom we have to treat
over the next 20 or 30 years of their lifespans.

When we look at the cost of what we don't do for our children,
we see that it is very expensive. The numbers for prevention are so
astounding that I don't know if you will believe them, but one child
who has been severely damaged by a head blow who is in a vegeta-
tive state costs the State during that child's life span $-100,000.
That would pay for two home visitors fbr 10 years, and each of
those home visitors in my situation see 0 to 100 kids as year, and.,
they do it well.

What works in education? The education of child care works.
You were very concerned about teenage pregnancy. The rate of
teenage pregnancy vent down 350 lu,rcent in Orlando simply by
teaching children an awareness of ,:ontemporary medical problems.
It an t sex education. Many p, aple are scared of that. If we just
taught Is-year ()Ids what 2-yea olds were like, we would probably
hAve a lot less pregnant IS-y(ar olds.

What works legally? Every case of criminal abuse and sexual
(1)11,-4, in Pinellas County is reviewed by a protection team. We
keep a lot of p,.ople out of jail and out of court just by having
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people who are experts in children helping the State attorney
make decisions about what we can do so the juvenile court isn't so
intrusive to children.

What works medically? We have a group of programs in the
county I am very proud of. We have seen 50 children with faihre
to thrive, none of whom have failed to thrive again. We have kept
them out of the hospital and documented that we have saved
$2,000 per child in hospital costs.

We have in Tampa a Rainbow House that deals with known
child abuse. That is a lovely program, as prejudiced as I am. We
use elderly volunteers, foster grandparents to take care of the kids
because the mothers themselves are emotionally deprived, and they
need some help from the grandmothers and grandfathers.

Institutionally we have really done poorly with the children of
this country. You have heard that this morning. One of the privi-
leges of being a physician is that I get to see ho.v individuals cope
in impossible situations. You need to know that child abusers were
abused themselves, but more importantly in spite of that, they love
their children. Think of yourself in terms .of a 19-year old who
comes to me whose children has severe bruises, and she'breaks
down when I ask her about it, and she tells me that she was fearful
for her child.

"Well, why did you come? Were you afraid you were going, that
you were going to be arrested?" Well, it is not true that she. was
going to be arrested, but she thought she was. Over.and over again
I see people who at great risk to themselves come tv-the emergency
room "knowing" that they are going to go to jair,

bri
TheN don t, by

the way, but they have that perception. Yet they ng.their kids.
There is no question that they love their k'ds. The Iproblem is we

have made them nonpeople, called them abusers and neglectors.
And that sounds bad. And the people of whom we have heard
about this morning who are just completely overwhelmed, stuck
and don't know where to go. We are not dealing very well with the
poor. Hospitals are making money on the insured and rich, yet
poor people are getting no or little care.

To put it in perspective, 10 to 30 percent of children who are
abused physically, if it happens again, they die. If I had a choice
between my child having meningitis and being the victim of repeat-
ed abuse, I would be safer having meningitis. He also would be
sal- than the kids who fail to thrive, who fail in school and fail
into adulthood. The recidivist rate with good c. re, now, somebody
who knows what they are doing, is less than 5 percent.

And you k -.ow there are a lot of people across the country who
know how to care for these people. It is caring, being with them for
a year or so as support people and knowing how tosupport. It is
not easy, but we know how to do it, damn it. We have known how
to do it for 20 years. And we are not doing it. It is because people
are afraid if they pay taxes it going to come out of their pockets.

One final thing, because it was brought up before. There are a
ninuF,er of recommendatior.. in the back of my testimony. One that

I th,ink that is fearful for some people. Corporal punishment means
that the community as a whole has decided that we should show
our children that it is appropriate to hit kids. Many of us here
have been hit as children. Many of us have been humiliated as
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children, We say in the State of Florida that there isn't a good edu-
cational course in child development. Well, there is a damn good
one. It is, "when all else4fails, hit the little bastard." And our kids
who never have had any experience raising children of their own
see the experts hitting them and their classmates.

believe in discipline. Discipline comes from the person knowing
what is good and what is wrong. There are ways to discipline.
People who train animals know the best way. They reward them.
They don't hit even dolphins anymore.

So I think it would be very important and something that would
he very important that there be guidelines that corporal punish-
ment not be shown as the example to our children, that there be

-.4.1.14Thatives to corporal punishnient, and those alternatives reward'
us perhaps in financial or tax ways.

I think it is very difficult for me to say what those alternatives
are, but as long as we fall back on suspending kids and hitting
kids, we are going to continue to have kids drop out. And you have
heard all that. I remember being hit once in school. And I still re-
member it. And I think that it was a very humiliating experience. I
would like to think it was an accident.

The fact is it makes an incredible impression on children. Chil-
dren want to do right. We ought to build on that.

Thank you for your patience.
Intination submitted by .J. Michael Cupoli follows:
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THE ( 'oNsEQUENCEN u CHILD' AMINE BY .1. MICHAEL CUPOLL M.D., F.A.AP., ASSOCI-
A l'E PRoyEssolt, PEDIATRICS DUO:Molt, SECTION OF CHILD ABUSE, UNIVERSITY OF
Sortil FI.DRIDA OF MEDICINE

We 'are guilty
of many errors and many faults

but our worst
Is abandoni..7g the children,

neglecting the fountain of
Many of the .things we need

can wait. The child cannot.
Right now is the time

his bones are being formed,- his
blood is being made, and

his senses are being developed
To him we cannot answer

Tomorrow.'
His name is 'Today:'
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LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH IN CHILDHOOD

Ages 1-4
Rank

1 Accidents (Unknown % due to Abuse, Neglect)

2 Congenital Malformations

3 Influenza and Pneumonia

4 Homocide (All due to Abuse)

Ages 15-19

1 Accident (Unknown % due to Abuse, Neglect)

2 Malignancy

3 Homocide (Unknown % due to Abuse, Neglect)

4 Suicide (Unknown % due to Abuse, Neglect)

I

c
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CHILD ABUSE IN THE UNITED STATES

Published Numbers Estimates of "Real" Numbers
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The mistreatment of children in the United States produces incredible human
and financial burdens Although little of this information is new, I hope that this
review of the known effects will have a cumulative effect. The human suffering here
documented is usually described from the prospective of children suffering, but you
must widen the scope of your understanding to see child abuse as a major problem
14 adults in our country.

The physical pain and physical limitations caused by direct injury to children is
astounding but at least concretely understood and documented. The emotional and
mental damage that results from abuse and neglect of children is less well under-
stood and is very difficult to document as the true effects may not be manifested
until the next generation. More and more therapists are discovering that the final
effects of abuse are seen in the children and grandchildren of the abused child.

PHYSICAL EFFECTS

The term maltreatment of children refers to the fact that millions of children in
the United States are victims of physical abuse, sexual abuse, incest, and emotional
abuse. The neglect of childrenthe failure of caregivers to provide adequate food.
shelter and medical carealso results in severe handicaps.

Physical ahuse can be einanifested by medical evidence of fractures, bruising and
burns, head injury, abdofbinal injury, and failure to thrive. These physical injuries
will briefly be discussed.

Physical abuse. the trauma of our children by parents, results in fractures of the
skull. arms, legs, and ribs. These fractures often require hospitalization and a mini-
mum of s weeks of treatment. Many of these childrenperhaps 20 percent have
chronic handicapping conditions throughout their adult lives. Such trauma is often
(25 percent ) .(issociated with brain injury (So lomen, 19791. As many as 20 percent of
injured infants have neurological damage severe enough to produce life-long disabil-
ity. ('erehral palsy refers to brain injury which causes permanent motor weakness
or spastisity. Outside of the newhorn period, the most common cause of cerebral
palsy is child abuse. Nelson. Ellenburg (197s) stated that 2 percent of cerebral
palsy in the t State:- was caused by trauma. Mackeith 1197.1) in England was
more specific. saying that 25 percent of all cerebral palsy was due to child abuse.
Diamond & Lauds noted that 10 percent of cerebral palsy was caused by abuse, but
15 percent of cerebral palsy children had abuse occur after the diagnosis of cerebral
palsy Their study showed that 13 percent of their cerebral palsy clinic children had
had an abuse episode!

Neurological damage also can cause enough loss of brain function For a child to be
mentally retarded. More than CM percent of all retarded citizens are retarded due to
-unknown causes-. At least half of these "unknown" cases are due to neurological
damage from abuse. i11170) in one study showed 211 percent of abused children
.rre developmentally disahlvd. F,Imr (1977) noted that 30 percent had central nerv-
ous sy.stern damage, .)2 percent had earlier I.Q. scores less than tql, of which 2 per-
cent (.m161111(41 to be delayed. Martin (197) noted 33 percent of abused/neglected
children had I.Q.'s less than sn. Sandgrund 119741 noted a developmental delay 8-
.told higher in abused children then in his control. When one also includes the great
O11101111t of children who are functionally retarded due to neglect or environmental
deprivotion. then we can say that more than half of all retarded children iahout
prynt of all children( are 11;111111 due to abuse or neglect. What happens to these
1111,1H.11' Most grow up. Many grow up to ht, retarded or marginal adults requirng

-tate :ad fir support
,prci,i1 of brinn dann,,',e needs further description. Dr. Carley who to 1910;

dscibed child ',.ruses described the "shaken Minot syndrome" Walley, ltd 71. In
tants usually under 111 months are held under the arms and shaken so vigorously
t 11.1t the brain I, t,% hipOt'd 11ICk and Forth in the skull cawing blepling. In 'Fatima at
least one child per yvar is known to from this injury. We have nu ale. how
many rytarded (giddier, acquired their retardation after being shaken as irirants

r.ittey surmised that this syndrome may. be the must common cause of mild
mental retardation .ind of mild motor retardation. -Mild" refers to degree of relay
(I.it inn It in no vas refers to th, impact nn chdd or

.1 third tnrin it injury to children are those injuries caused by blow. usually
t hi. ;ibifonen In the past 1; yea's, I have treated 5 hildryn with ',overt.

1 lurnu+;rl in urn wilirtyd by a Yarotaker Two infants died friirl ohdorninal injuries
'k%.) required ived, but with ,ever- reeding problems. Ora did not

but v;;s hn,prtalir.ed for a priiltinge(l period of time Alidninin,11
.4.c1,1111 ff,u./ , nnunnn d,' :1111 in uhu= 'd children Otti,n Own,
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are no bruises on Ow abdomen, so the .internal injuries are hidden causing fatal
delay in diagnosis and treatment.

Another heartbreaking form of abuse is the intentional burning or scalding of
children. 16 percent of scalded children die (Feldman. 1978), We know from the lit-
erature that 50 percent of children with severe burns have severe mental and emo-
tional illness as adults. I would expect those who were intentionally burned to be
dispropartionally represented in the mentally ill group. The human cost is extrenie
pain and suffering. The financial cost is overwhelming for the family as well as for
society. 50-60 percent of children with burns admitted to our hospital Jae year were
burned intentionally by an adult, most under 3 years of age. "N

LEARNING AND BEHAVIORAL. EFFECTS

Learn i ng problems
Non-specific learning problems are found in a large number of abused children,

even those children without any demonstrable neurological damage. The most con-
sistent finding is that these children have poor social and poor language skills.

Other papers show this delayed development begins, frightfully early. Appelbaum
(19771 demonstrated effects as early as 4 months) I have seen failure to thrive in-
fants demonstrate motor and developmental delays as early as 8 weeks (Cupoli, Elal-

lock, 1980). Some of this delay is treatable. Xoski and Ingram (1977)

showed that one-third of the abused children studied under 30 months of age were
developmentally delayed. Some of this delay was due to poor social skills.

The phrase "developmental delay" has a sterile quality, but when seen in individ-
uals, the quality of need is more forceful. I have seen patients fail one, two, or three
grades of school. They 'have poor self image, often resulting in hyperactive,' acting
out, behavior. Many fail to complete school. "Developmental delay" is easy to con-
firm by the I.Q. score, however, the speech delays and behavior maladaptations can
he more destructive to a good outcome, and are more difficult to closely define. We
find that stressed children, especially abused and neglected children, tend to lose
verbal abilities first, and re-establish verbal skills last along the road to recovery.
This can be devastating in that the first 3-4 years of school is based primarily on
verbal skills. Freidrich, et al., (1983, Martin (1974), Gaensbauer and Saub, all note
this delay in expressive language.

Behavior problems
Behavior problems, usually described as hyperactivity, distractability, or poor im-

pulse control is a consistent finding in child abuse studies. Friedrich 11983) empha-
sizes the distractability of these children. Blumberg (1979) emphasizes the acting -out
and aggressive behavior of both abused and handicapped children. Unfortunately,
this aggressive behavior frequently is self-distructive, resulting in a higher incidence
of suicide, suicide behavior, and self-mutilation. This is a little-known result of
abuse (Green, 1978)

Problems in adult~
Our experience in school problem and home behavior clinic is that these be-

havior and emotional problems are not limited to children. These abused and ne-
glected children grow up. We all have a vague notion that abused children grow up
to be abusing adults. This is true for some. But far more are debilitated by self-
doubt They have no early models to fall back on. They have had no experience of
good parents. They do not know how to parent. They also are fearful of discipline,
fearful they will lost' control. As a result, their children have poor understanding of
limits, do not have self-discipline, and tend to fail in school for at least two reasons.
Most obviously they fail due to the 1.Q., behavior and speech problems described
above. IA.ss obvious and not well reported is that children whose parents were
abused as children have severe discipline or control problems at home and at school,
since their parents are fearful oRtaking control. This acts across generations. We
have all seen and reported 3-4 generations of physical abuse, but we are just now
becoming aware of 3rd and 4th generations of chool failures due to poor parenting
skills and a particular form of emotional lacuna that interfere with the child "grow-
ing up. These 2nd and 3rd generation children present to me as hyperactive or as
delayed, or as severe behavior problem I have seen several families with children,
failing, in school directly due to mother's delayed reactions to seeing her mother
abused
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binlure to thrwe
Five percent of our pediatric population are small enough to be diagnosed as fail

ure to thrive. Outside of the United States this is caused by, lack of available food,
but in the United States the most common cause of failure to thrive is isolation of
the mother with emotional deprivation of the mother, and/or poor feeding skills. In
the past "maternal deprivation" has implied guilt on the mother's part, but now we
understand "maternal deprivation" to refer to the mother as isolated and emotion-
ally deprived (Cana, Ha Hoek, Harness, 1980).

The short term effects of failure to thrive include growth failure for the child
(Fitzhardinge & Steven, 19721, separation of mother and child, severe self-image
problems in the.mother, and worsening of her depression. The short and long term
effects on the child include mental retardation, developmental delay, delayed ex-
pressive speech (Chase & Martin, 1970), (Klein, Forbes & Nader, 1975 and Martin,
1973), growth retardation, depression, and poor inter-personal relations reaching
into adult life (Ilufton & Oates, 1977).

The ultimate outcome is based on the severity of the weight' loss, the age of the
child, and the delay in initiating weight gain.

Five forms of non organic failure to thrive are described (Evans, Reinhart &
Succop, 197( and Cupoli, Ha Hock & Harness, 1980). The form of failure to thrive as-
sociated with an angry abusive mother is most severe, has the worst prognosis and
probably should be treated by early termination of parental rights.'Non-organic fail-
ure to thrive' due to chronic maternal depression, with a. long history of repeated
loss, has a poor prognosis and requires long-term therapy. However, failure to thrive
due. to acute maternal depression, or due to maternal anxiety, can be treated within
a short period of time. Those who fail to thrive due to parental inexperience are
also treatable with short-term intervention. Families and mothers at risk for failure
to thrive ran easily be predicted and prevented. Early diagnosis and treatment
markedly decreases the negative effects. Yet, the effects of delay of treatment are
serious.

One-third have mental retardation, one-third have learning disabilities, and one-
half have severe behavior disturbances into adulthood (1 lufton & Oates, 1977). Their
physical growth is retarded in half of the children (Fitzhardinge & Steven, 1972).

In spite of our knowledge of the prevention, diagnosis and treatment of failure to
thrive', and in spite of our knowledge of the poor outcome, very few programs exist
to pre've'nt and trent this disease.

SEXUAL ABUSE

Svxual abuse of children has been shown to have all the developmental (cognitive)
and behavioral problems as other forms or abuse. They also have specific problems
related to the' sexual nature of the abuse, and related to the awful insult to the
child's developing t rust 1M razek, 198M.

The incteence of sexual abusa.of children is not known. Kempe (1977) thinks it is
just as common as physichl abuse and failure to thrive. Scherzer and Lela t1980)
document that II percent of child abuse cases in Baltimore were reported as sex ual
abuse in 1976, and :il percent were so reported in 1978. In 1982, 234 children came
to the Tampa General Hospital emergency room with some form of sexual abuse.
This is not just an adolescent problem; many infants, toddlers and preschool chil-
dren are molested. Approximately one-third 0/3 i of sexual abuse cases occur under
the age of 1)) eleven percent (11 percent) of the cases are boys. Silbert & Pines
1911 noted that sexual child abuse was an "antecedent to prostitution", CO percent

of prostitute's were sexuall; exploited, 79 percent reported their choice of prostitu-
tion ;es a life Style was based on their own sexual exploitation. The authors state,
-The evidence linking juvenile sexual abuse to prostitution is overwhelming".

Kempeil9771 also noted sexual abuse to result in prostitution, sexual dysfunction,
and marital discord.

I have seen encopresis in adolescents, run-away behavior, drug use, depression,
school failure and suicide as the immediate' effects of sexual abuse or incest. The
delayed impact on future family, future parenting and future' sexual function is well
described but difficult to predict (('onnell, 1978).

hate heard mati.v speakers and read many authors who confirm the' mental, be-
ha% 'oral and sexual impart of incest and sexual abuse upon the victim. Only recent -
le we all begun to read that incest can be successfully treated. Incest has been
treated in the past as an assault victim relationship. we are learning that incest is
part ot a complex. failing family relationship thaf includes mother :end often the
siblings 119!il and others have reported wonderful results in the treat-
miiit ima tanolles it least III hour of therapy. Changes in philosophy have result-
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ed in recent improvements in how sexual abuse is prosecuted and treated by the
state attorney and public and private agencies. This is important, for many of us
have noted that the handling of the incest and sexual abuse episode by authorities
may be more important to the final outcome then the actual abuse incident. Dr.
Kempe (19771 also documented the emergence of sexual abuse as a major pediatric
problem. Physicians who are just now adjusting to the reality of child abuse, must
now accept their role of diagnosing, reporting and refering sexual abuse.

Many of us are sick of the physical and emotional damage done to children by
abuse. Yet, we are more confused and frustrated by the damage done to the family
by the current level of resources available to the families of abused children.

CONCLUSIONS

Child abuse, failure to thrive, neglect and sexual abuse have severe long-term ef-
fects on the children of our country. But those children become adults who cannot
hold jobs due to physical impairments, adults who can not get jobs due to school
failure and drop out caused by "low-level" learning problems. Adults who cannot
work due to severe emotional and behavior probl9ms. These behavior problems in-
clude angry, acting out, "inadequate" personalities, and inability to effectively deal
with others. This is especially devastating if the "other" is his or her child.

The "criminalizotion" (Bowens, Newberger, 1978) of abuse, treating it is an isolat-
ed "illness," results in single-minded, "rescue" attempts that usually fail. Forgotten
effects of the "treatment" of abuse are the result of shelter care of foster care. None
of i's can clearly distinguished how many of the bad effects are due to abuse and
how much is due to our community treatment. Should we be so quick to legislate
intervention when good help is so rare? Ofcourse we must intervene, and we should
intervenethat means help, early. In the case of physical abuse, we know that the
abuse incidents tend to escalate in severity. Unacceptable (to the adult) force tends
to become acceptable. Physical injury tends to worsen and is more likely to be
chronic. Sexual abuse also escalates with age. Failure to thrive worsens, often re-
sulting in death. or destroying the family.

Most -abusive" and "neglectful" parents the words are disturbing are they not?)
love their children. Most of us who care for these people over time will testify to
their love. But I must also testify to their hick of skills, their isolation, their anger
which they inherit and build on as they discover their inability to deal with theirworld.

The long term effects documented here are in the context of absence of good care.
Our level of understanding limits our treatment of severe, psychotic, or criminal
abuse. However, even now we do have the knowledge to successfully treat most
cases. With resources and societal pressure we could treat these people. They arepeople. They are our people.

As I again review the literature concerning abuse, I am reminded that we do
know a lot about abuse and neglect. There is far more to know

Just how many children with cerebral palsy are handicapped due to abuse?
flow many adults with mental retardation are retarded due to abuse episodes in

their childhood?
Is it true that 100 percent of criminals in court were abused, that 80 percent of

juvenile delinquents were abused, that 80 percent of ch Unguents have learning prob-
lems')

Whin is the total COSI of abuse in terms of loss of jobs and loss of human poten-tial')
What is the role of alcohol in child abuse?
What is the role of child abuse in leading to alcohol and other substance abuse.?
But what we do not know should not interfere with acting on what we do know.

We di) known that child abuse cost the United States billions of dollars a year in:
la) t'ourt costs. law enforcement, jails and detention centers.
hi Medical treatment, psychiatric treatment.
ci Social services, social investigation.

idi Special educational services for: mentally retarded, emotionally handicapped,
learning disabled.

We do know that the lack of services can result in severe personal disability, suf-
fering and death

Id percent of children die if in a home with recurrent physical abuse
:ill 611 percent are ttt for chronic physical handicapping conditions if left in ahome with :those
:to 1;1) percent have severe mental. emotional or behavioral disturbances that doit :eery to disappear in ildulthood
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Yet early and adequate treatment can result in a recidivist rate of less than 5
percent. We know that abuse can he.prevented by 'providing human servicesmedi-
cal, social, emotional and educational services to those in need, or at risk.

- SUGGESTIONS

Educational
Children at all ages should be instructed in school in normal child development

and care. Children need to know they have a right to not be abused. Education on
child care issues harbeen shown in OrlandQ, Florida to reduce teenage pregnancy
by Ma percent! This ditl not serve in anyway as "sex education".

Med /.socin /
Support systems for isolated mothers need to be put in place prior to delivery, and

presented to the family over time, but especially in the first few months. Home visi-
tors should be available for all predictable high-risk groups. These would include
isolated teens, mothers of twins, prematufes, and any first born child jn an isolated
family. Also parents who are menially retarded, mentally ill, or suffering from
recent loss would benefit from eurly.support.

Legal changes
The judiciary. law enforcement, and the bar must confront the problem of pediat-'

ic or juvenile law. Most laws are for adults, by adults and show no understanding
of the special needs of children. We are encouraged by the use of Guardian Ad
Litem program in the State of Florida.

Business
Business must identify that stress on the family due to moves, and meetings is a

major contribution to abuse. Private pre-school and nurserys at work would allevi-
ate much added stress for the single parent. Business needs to see the possibility of
increased potential and increased productivity when families needs are answered,

Military
The high rate of abuse in the military is a major scandal. Isolation of single

parent, poor pay. use of "TDY" time and multiple moves all lead to isolation, de-
pression and anger. The huge problem of abuse, neglect and sexual abuse in the
military is preventable.

.41011Cal ellUnges

The medical profession needs to use existing knowledge of the obstvrical and new
horn periods to enhance parenting behaviors and to decrease stress of new parents.

Cultural changes
We need to look at the severe negative effects of our culture's permissiveness of

violence, and violence to children. Schools that explore alternatives to corporal pun-
ishment should be rewarded. A national policy to teach adults that corporal punish-
ment does not work and contributes to abuse should be initiated using the media.
1.1slottin.

I hope that the legislature will come to we the immensity of the problem of abuse
and neglect of our children and parents. Naitonal model law should be drawn up to
stop corporal punishment in schools, but providing direction to set up alternatives
that allow appropriate control by schools and while developing selfdiscipline in the
sti.dents The problem has major impact on the funding needs of law. medicine,
eduAtion and social services. It has a gr...at cumulative impact as adults who were
abused enter our society ill prepared to work or to parent.

Child abuse programs need to draw on many levels of experience and training.
Current national programs are too limited in scope and too limited in philosophical
alternatives :Ind too limited in professional resources

Legislature must continue to draw from private experience and begin to demand
help Iron, busmess, for the problem can not be handled by government alone.

Ii1111,10GRAI11Y
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STATEMENT OF JANET McALILEY, MEMBER, DADE COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION, MIAMI. FLA.

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Janet.
Ms, McM.H.F.v. Thank you, Mr. ChAirman.
After hearing the tefitimony of the other panelists today, I feel

very privileged to be invited to participate in this hearing.
I am Janet McAliley, member of the Dade County School Board.

And I want to welcome you all here to Dade County and to this
auditorium. And, in particular:Congressman Bill Lehman, who is a
past.chairman of our school board.

In response to legislation passed by the Florida Legislature in
1982, a task force on child abuse was formed in FIRS district XI,
which includes Dade and Monroe Counties. The purpose of the task
force is: .

One, to analyze the prdblem in district XI.
Tw,q, to identify and evaluate existing resources for the preven-

tion hied treatMent of child abuse.
Three, to develop a continuum of services for prevention and

treatment
Four, to prioritize prevention needs and suggest services which

should be considered for allocation of funds.
I am submitting for your consideration copies of the district 'XI

plan of action on child abuse. Perhaps there are others present
today who are pi epared to give additional details of all aspects Of
the handling of child abuse. ,

I would like to describe some of the major problems the task
force research identified and the steps taken by the Dade County
school system, in conjunction with FIRS and 'other agencies, to ad-
dress those problems.

First is the underreporting of child abuse in Dade,County. Ac-
cording to 1950-51 data published by the children', youth, and fami-
lies program, district XI is ranked first in population at risk and
last of the 11 districts in reports per 1,000 children. The statewide
referral rate was 25.; in district XI, it was 15.7. In 1951-52, the
State rate was 36,6; district XI was 16.3.

fi
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AS to neighborhood isolation, on a statewide basis, neighbors
were the source of 20.2 percent of child abuse reports while in
Dade County, the incidence of reporting by neighbors was only 14.7
percent. One can only speculate that this figure may reflect com-
munity language and cultural barriers. Dade County is home to
refugees and others who may become residents of transitional.
neighborhoods.

Children reDurting their own abuse: A most troubling fact was
that Dade County had one of the highest incidents of children re-
porting their own abuse, at 3.3 percent compared to 2.6 percent
statewide. Reporting from the schools was also slightly lower than
the State average.

I remember when I first became a member of the task force visit-
ing schools and speaking with counselors informally and asking
them had they much experience with reporting child abuse, the an-
swers varied, but one response that certainly had impact was the
statement of a counselor who said she thought other counselors
gave children the number so that they could report their own
abuse. So naturally we felt we had a lot more work to do with
people in the schools.

It was determined that the school system needed to do a better
job of trAining employees to identify. and to report child abuse pop-
ely. Florida statute 827.07 mandates reporting of Mild abuse by
all school board employees, but in Dade County, with 224,000 stu-
dents spread out in 251 schools, school-by-school meetings with in-
dividual faculties was not feasible.

As athaltenative, with the assistance of our superintendent, Dr.
Leonard Britton, and the cooperation of Gov. Bob Graham, State
attorney Janet Reno, HRS management systems director Phil Ma-
guire and others from the child protection team and victims advo
rates, school board -owned WLRN taped a 37-minute television pro-
gram. Governor Grahhm and Dr. Britton, as well as a principal and
a school counselor, stressed the importance of reporting. State at-
torney Reno explained the law. Mr. Maguire described how reports*
were handled by his staff. Visual aids illustrated symptoms and ex-
amples of abuse. Written materials reiterating all of this informa-
tion were sent to each school.

Dr. Britton made .the program required viewir.g by all Dade
County school personnel on April 1, and at the beginning of school
on August 27 of this year.

Since these efforts began, reporting from schools has increased to
12 percent in Dade County, while the statewide average has re-
mained at 5 percent for the period January through June 1983.

Another interesting thing happened. Dade County, as Dr. Cupoli
has talked about and others have mentioned today, does use corpo-
ral punishment. Fldrida is a corporal punishment State. But while
we were feeding in all this information to school system personnel,
which really dealt with physical abuse of children, I think that per-
sonnel in the schools became more aware of the sanctity of chil-
dren's bodies.

And I am very happy to tell you that last year, particularly in
the last semester of last year, corporal punishment in Dade County
scFools dropped to the lowest level it has been since this school

11.

a



94

system began keeping: records on it. We were working on child,
abuse in other ways too.

The Parent Resource Center, working with a grant from HRS
and the Switchboard of Miami, is planning a campaign to publicize
a number for children to tall if they need help because of abuse or
neglect. Mr. A. J. Duhe, a Miami Dolphin, has agreed to film public
service announcements, directed to children, advertising the special
number to call. The Parent Resource Center and the school system
are presently exploring ways to distribute the telephone number to
elementary s hool children.

The idea w robably be something like baseball cards, only it
will be somethin ith Mr. Duhe's picture and message, and it will .

be distributed to children. -
Neglect is the most frequent complaint reported in Dade County,

and we believe this is an indicator of the need for additional low-
cost child care facilities. Some of the persons who testified earlier
this morning talked about locking up the schools at 3 p.m. Well, we
are really not doing that in Dade County. We have a number of
proglams after regular school hours in which children and other
young people may participate.

Our community schools program, about which I have given Mr.
Lehman information which I hope will be distributed to you, de-
serves comment. We have 53 community schools in Dade County
with all sorts of programs, including recreational and help with
homework. We have 26 adult vocational programs. You have to be
16 years old to participate in those.

Dade County Public Schools, in cooperation with the YMCA,
YWCA, the United Way and others, houses 117 after-school care
programs and is making efforts to establish others. There is a fee
fbr this nervice, $15 a week per child. We don't have enough pro-
grams to go around, and this is particularly true in low socioeco-
nomic neighborhoods.

I was visiting one of our Chapter I sclols which happens to be
loCated right near this, building where we 4re'this morning. I asked
the principal if they had an after-school care program. She said 95
percent of the children in her school are on free lunch. She said if
their parents can't afford to pay for their lunch, they certainly
can't afford to pay for after-school care.

So I would urge you to support the School Facilities Child Care
Act, which- I understand is still pending in the Congress. This ,

woukl give us a great deal of help in an area where we need it.
Pogress has been made in uniting the efforts of the school

system and other agencies to help children who are hurt or ne-
glected. The 1982-83 reporting period, with a total of 7,500 reports,
reflects an increase of 1,000 over the prior year.

Recent State revenue shortages have caused the loss of 11 HRS
child abuse counselors in district XI, thiA decrease, coupled with
the Increase in reporting, is likely to cause delays in responding to
children who are in need of assistance.

Another significant a2pect of child abuse which must receive
greeter attention is prevention. Health departments that receive
Federal. maternal and child health .grants could train appropriate
workers to identify potentially abusive families. The grants must
be expanded to increase the social service staff in order to do this.

..--
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These social workers 'could also provide treatment to identified
families.

This is happening to a very limited extent in Dade County now,
because there are workers who, are going beyond the call of duty to
provide these services. But they need to have help in order to
expand it appropriately.

Consideration- should be given to amending H.R. 1397, the
Family Violence Prevention Act, to place greater emphasis than 20
percent of the proposed funding for prevention. Families whose be-
havibrs signal potential violence should be helped before it becomes
necessary to flee to shelters.

[Prepared statement of Janet R. McAliley follows:]
/tPimpiff:1) STATEMENT OF JANET R. Mettuta4, DAVE COUNTY PUBLIC SIII0OIS,

FLA.
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I would like to describe some of the major problems the task force,sesearch identi-
fied and the steps taken by the Dade County School System, in conjunction with
IIRS and other agencies, to address those problems.

Underreporting of child abuse'in Dade County
According to 19s0--S1 data published by the chOldren, ywth and families program,

District XI is ranked first in population at risk and legt of the 11' districts in reports
per 1,000 children. The statewide refe'rral rate wits :n District XI, it was 15.7.
In I9S1-82, the State rate was,30.6; District XI was 16.3.

Neighborhood isolation.
On a statewide basis, neighbors were the source of 20.2 percent of child abuse re-

ports. while in Dade County, the incidence of rvorting by neighbors wns only 1.1.7
percent. One can only.spejulate that this figure nifty reflect community language
and cultural barriers. Dade County is home to refugees and others who become rel-
dents of transitional neighborhoods.

Children reporting their men abuse
A most troubling fact was that Dade County had °kw of the highest incidents of

children reporting their own abuse: at 3.3 percent compared to 2.6 percent state-
wide. Report ing from the schools was also slightly lower than the State average.

It was determined that the school system needed to do a better job of training
employees to identify and to report child abuse properly. Florida statute $27.07
mandi.tes reporting of child abuse by all school board employees. W'th 224,000 stu-
dents spread out in 251 schools, school by school meetings with individual faculties
was ntot feasible. As an alternative. with the assistance of our superintendent, Dr.
Leonard Britton and the cooperation of governor Bob Graham, state attorney Janet.
Ret o, IIRS management systems director Phil Maguire and others from the child
protection team and victims advocates, school hoard owned WI.RN taped a 37
minute television program. Governor Graham and Dr. Britton, as well as a principal
and a counselor. stressed the importance of reporting. State attorney Reno ex
plained the law. Mr. ;Maguire described how reports were handled by his staff.
Visual aids illustrated symptom.. and exampl4 of abuse. Written materials reiterat-
ing all of tfiis information were sent.tO eiich school.

Hr. Britton made the !migrant required viewing by all Dude county shookierson-
nel on April I and at the beginning of school on August 27 of this year.
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Since these efforts Wien, reporting from schools had increased to 12 percent in
Dade county, while the statewide averag% has remained at 5 percent for the period
January through June 1983.

The parent resource center, working with a grant from HRS and the switchboard
. of Miami, is planping a campaign to publicize a number for children to call if they .

need help because of abuse or, neglect. Mr. A. J. Duhe,.a Miami Dolphin, has agreed
to film public service announcements directed to children and ,advertising the spe- .

cial nuniber to call. The parent resource center and the school system are presently
exploring ways to distribute the tele,phone number to elementary school children.

Neglect is the most frequent complaint reported in Dade county, an indicator of .
the need for additional low cost child care facilities. Dade county public schools, in
cooperation with YMCA, YWCA, the United Way and others, houses 117 after
school care programs and is making effortif to establish others.

Progress has been made in uniting the efforts of the school system and other
agencies to help childreh who are hurt or neglected. The 1982/83 reporting period,

0. with a total of 7,500 reports, reflects an increase of 1,000 (tier the prior year.
Rece9t state revenue shortages havq caused the loss of eleveof HRS child abuse

counselors in district XI, this flecreaca, couplqd with the increase in repoiting, is
likely to cause delays in responding to' children who are in need of assistance.

Another significant aspect of child abuse which must receive greater attentiqnis
prevention. Health departments that receive federal maternal and child health
Omits could train gppropriate workers to identify potentially abusive families. The
grant must be expanded to increase the social service staff in order todqthis. These
social workers. could also provide treatment to-identified families. .

Consideration' should be given to amending H.R. 1397, the'family violence preveni
tion act, to place greater emphasis than 20 percent of-the proposed funding for pre-
vention. Families whose behaviors signal potential violience should be helped before
itsecometpecessary to flee to shelters.

STATEMENT OF JANE SNECINSKI, DIRECTOR, WAY CARE CENTER,
BAPTIST MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF MIAMI, INC,

CHAIRMAN MILLER. Thank you. .
4Jane.

Ms. SNECINSKI. Good morning. After hearing the other panel
members here I guess I am the bright spot in the morning. I repre-
sent Baptist emorial ,Hospital of Miami. r believewe were asked
to testify beta e Baptist Hostlital has been a forerunner in em-
ployer-based and ospital-based child care since the opening of our
day . ire center in April 19641

With all due respect to child, care and day care, we don't take
4. care of days; we take care of children. We were originally opened

by the department of 'nursing as a recruitment tool, not so much tt
get nurses to return to work after starting families, but to recruit
them out to the soon-to-be developed Kendall area. I

Anybody from South Florida knows that that was quite some
time ago, because Kendall is a booming area right now. We started
out with a whopping enrollment of two children at a fee of $0.15
per hour. The program was housed in a free-standing cottage struc-
ture already existing on the property and as the demand tincreased,
minor renovations allowed the facility to expand to meet its maxi-
mum space allotment, sufficient space for 35 children per shift.

Although the facility maintained the name of the Employees'
Day Care Center, it was not with 1970 when the day-care center
came under the direction of4iersonnel services that the services
were actually opened to all employees; the priority, however, re-
mained with' full-time and part-time nurses. With a constantly
growing waiting list, the effectiveness of day care services as a re-
cruitment tool or an employee benefit decreased due to the lack of
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ability to meet the needs of a potential employee in a timely
manner.

In May 1981 with a waiting list of over 100 children, the board of
trustees of Bapt.st Hospital approved a $750,000 commitment to
the employees to build a facility to house children's services, in-
cluding a development child care program for a maximum of 100
children per shift.

The children's center at Baptist Hospital of Mianii opened its
doors to children of all employee4 in May 1983 with the priority
given to any child-enrolled in a full-time program. We were given
the mandate to provide developmental child care, babysitting serv-
ices, dancing lessons, Saturday recreational program, find on and,
on. . .

A zoning variance has been applied for which will increase the
acceptable age level to 14 years, enabling after-school care to be of,
fered. We are open from 6 a.m. until midnight, 364 days a year.
The present fees range from $48-$53 for full-time enrollment (45
hours) and vary depending on the shift.

While the priMary purpose was recruitment, we have found re-
tention to be the primary purpose now; the need is to provide the
opportunity for your employees to plan for their child care as they
are planning their families: This provide s the ability to not have
nursing agencies involved at our ho 1. This decreases our cost
of nursing for patient care which, i turn, decrease our costs to the
Patient.

The demand in the 'Southeastern United States is one that
merits special attention. The Southeast ,population is expected to
grow about 19 percent in the 1980's, but it is interesting to note
that the population of children under 5 is growing at twice the rate
of the American population as a whole. In the Southeastern United
States the average number of children in the day care centers or
child care centers is expected to grow to 108 children, which will be
an average size child care center by 1985.

However, on the other hand, the average weekly rates are the
,lowest, whichIreflects the lowest cost of salaries, and the average

number of children per staff member is the highest. So you have a
very lenient child care staff ratio.

Employees in Southeast United States are special in that very
often they are recruited from other parts of the country. This
leaves grandma and grandpa up North somewhere when the family
moves down, and The family ties there aren't, which cause them to
search for child eare outside the home.

In addition, people who are recruited to the Southeast area usu-
ally are young, still of child-bearing age and still planning families.
Additionally, in the Southeast, South Florida, we have a special
large Latin community, and We have found the demand for child
care from that population is to assimilate the children into the
American culture and expose them to the American culture.

With the largest demand in the Southeast and lenient staff ratio,
it really becomes imperative to assure the parents that there is
going to be quality and tiffordable child care. Right now there is no
requirement for child care workers, almost to the point that if they
walk and talk, they can care for children in the community.
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For quite a while now there has been a push for regulation.certi-
ficatidn for child care employees which will assure parents that the
staff employed in these centers does know something about child
care and about how to provide appropriate activities for the chil-
dren.

If, in fact, a high standard was established for the certification
regulation which could be assured by a testing procedure, and it
was a requirement for licensure of a child care center, then it
would be up to the employer of the child care center to provide The
knowledge to the employees. This would assure that people in the
center know what they are doing and can take care of children and
relieve the financial burden from anywhere else.

Hospitals have long been a supporter of child care due to the ob-
vious number off' women employed in the hospital, usually about 85
percent, and the number of varied needs that the staffing pattern
in the hospital requires. A hospital-based child care center has
some unique characteristics which can be looked at.

One of theth is the extended hours aild number' ofdays that a
service which is open 24 hours a day, 365 days a year merits. Even
though day care centers in a hospital are usually not open.24 hours
a day, they do provide coverage for all employees because the
people who work' the 11 to 7 shift bring their children in the first
thing in the morning, and they are allowed a full 8 hours' sleep
while' children are involved in a quality program.

The hospital staff needs to fluctuate to meet the patient level
' within the hospital. And if you have outside community child care

centers, very often they are open at set times and don t especially
care if the parent is going to be held over to take care of patients
or if the staff fluctuates to increase or decrease according to pa-
tient levels. at,

Also, we. have found in a center within the hospital that the
highest standards of infection control, safety apd cleanliness that
the hospital requires are maintained. This furthermore gives the
'parents assurance that they are dropping their children off into a
surely high-quality program.

A very important aspect in employee-based child care servs is
that if employers take the responsibility to meet the needs created
by their special industry, this won't drain the community of 'much
needed slots within the community.

Just one last thing, in considering a hospital-based child care, as
obviously that is my point `of view here, there are financial consid-
erations which are coming up and should not be taken lightly.
Very often and in the past, the hospital has assumed a financial
loss, taking into consideration that child care is an employee bene-
fit. With the future change in Federal reimbursement, the proce-
dures have been creating pressures on the child care centers to
become break-even or at least financially stable operations. This is
.causing an increase in rates and depending on the employees' com-
mitment to the benefit, change in policy and procedures.

There is some anticipation across the country that Some centers
will be closing. However, there' is a hopeful light that most expect
to remain open. In employe and hospital-based child care, it be-
comes an interesting question of actually who is the consumer and
who is the program benefiting? Is it the child ,whose needs are
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being met., is it the parents who are paying partially or wholly for'
the, service, or is it the employer, in my case, the hospital, whose
needs are being met?

This dives an example of the complexity involved in providing
child care from an employer's point of view. Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Jane Snecinski follows:]
+ PREPARED STATEMENT OF JANE SNECINSKI

Baptist Hospital of Miami has been a forerunner of'employer-based/hospital-based
child care since the opening of its day care center in April, 1964. Originally opened
by the Department of Nursing ins a recruitment tool (not only to entice nurses to
return to work after starting a family but to draw nursing staff out to the ybt-to-be
developed Kendall area as well) and an employee benefit, the 5 day-a-week program
began with an enrollment of 2'children at a fee of $0.15 per hour and covered two
shifts. The program was housed in a free-standing cottage structure already existing
on the property and as the demand increased, 'minor renovations allowed the facili-
ty to expand to meet its maximum space allotment, sufficient space for :35 children
per shift. .

Although the facility maintained the 'Mime of the Employees' Day Care Center, it
i was not:until 1970 when the day care center came under the direction of Personnel

Services that the services were actually opefed to all employees; the priority, how-.
eve., remained with full-time and part-time nurses. With a constantly growing wait-
ing list, the effectiveness of day care services as a recruitment tool or an employee
benefit decreased due to the lack of ability to meet the needs of a potential employ-
Pe in a timely manner.

In May, 1981 with a waitieg list of over 100 children, the Board of Trustees of
Baptist Hospital approved a $750,000 commitment to the employees to build a facili-
ty to house children's services, including a developmental child care program for a
maximum of 100 children per shift.

The Children's Center at Baptist Hospital of Miami opened its doors to children of
all employees in May, 1983 with the priority given tkany child enrolled in a full-
time program. The new facility, open from 6;00 a.m.midnight, 364 days a year,
offers a wide scope of services to children between the ages of 6 weeks and 6 years
including a developmental child care program, babysitting services, dancing lessons,
Saturday recreational .trogram. movies and a summer camP program. A zoning
variance has been applied for which will increasisthe,acceptable age level to 14
years, enabling after-school care to_be offered. The Present fees range from $48$53
for fulltime enrollment (45 hours) and vary depending on the shift.

While the day care center's initial purpose of nurse recruitment has enabled Bap-
tist Hospital of Miami to offer a number of diverse nurse staffing options meeting
the hospital's need without the necessity of augmentation by a nursing agency,
there has been a shift in primary purpose, exemplified nation-wide, from nurse re-
cruitment to employee retention. This enables employees to plan their return to
work in conjunction with their plans for family development. Additionally, Baptist
Hospital is striving to meet a shift in demand from babysitting services to diverse
child care services for children of all ages) and an extention of hospital/community
services..

The financial and personal needs of caKeer oriented parents, as well as a desire to
provide children with a broil spectrum of educational experiences. has significantly
increased the nliind for afftordable, mIality child care services. The demand has
increased for the infant population and has shifted . from bahysitting services to
quality programs geared to the child's needs. The greatest demand appears to be for
oAnts between 1;-- weeks of age, to enable the mother to speedily return to work
after a medical leave, thereby decreasing the financial pressure caused by a lack of
all ncoming salary. In order for parents to devote their efforts toward the job. or for
nonworlsing parents to obtain preschool exposure for their child, there must he as

.. suranou-4 hat the child care services they have chosen maintain a loving, safe. clean,
ilealthy and stimulating environment !Or the child Free from any worry. workin
Mirents can concentrate on their duties and responsibilities, resulting in an increase
in emplor.ve retention rate and decrease in employee turnover rate.

The national needs for child care services vary from section to section of the oun
try and the Southeast region reflects the economic and social facets of its popula
i it )n T Ill po 1) u 1;0 v nt in the S(11101V:ISt is expected to increase 19 percent in the
Peso's I farard 'Business Review March April, 19S:ii but the population of children
coder the ;u.;, oaf' 7t his bee/1 IIICP:Ning at twice' t hi' rilti. Of the Arnericin population
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as a whble, since 1980 (American Demographics, September, 1982). Ackditionally,, the
employment growth rate for 1979-1990 is expected to equal 26 percent, only sur-
passed by the Western' region (2? percent) (American Demographics, 1982). And pro-
portionally with the enrollment supporting child care centers, in the Southeast, the
licensed caikeity is expected to grow to an average of 108 children/child care center
by 1985 (CCIE Center Directors' Survey, 1983). The average weekly fees are the
lowest in the country for all age groups reflecting'the lowest average hourly wages
in the country for all child care employees (CCIE Center Directors' Survey, 1983)
and the highest number of children per staff member required for licenliing ("The
Comparative Licensing Study", 1983). Taking the population explosion in the South-
east into consideration, it only seems logical that this region has the greatest
number of 3-4 year olds enrolled in child care facilities (National Day Care Study,
1973) and the greatest percentage of centers providing services for younger children
(1-2 year olds) (CCIE Center Directors' Survey, 1983).

The reasons behind the growth in child care services in the Southeast may seem
self-explanatory; the growth in childcare services increased proportionally with the
growth in employment rates, However, the source and type of employees merits con-
sideration. Many employees are recruited from other parts of the country and re-
locate to the Southeast. This eliminates the familial support sy§tem usually offered
by grandparents, or other family members and thus creates a demand for outside
child care. The majority of the tiline the population who has the greatest need,
desire and ability to re-locate are young, still of child-bearing age and planning fam-
ilies. Additionally, with the large Latin population who do have strong, available
family ties, especially in South Florida, there appears to be a push for child care
services to "expose" and "assimilate" the children into the American culture.

With.the largest demand, the highest average number of chidren per center, the
lowest hourly wage and the most lenient child/staff licensing ratios being in the
Southeast, there becomes an imperative need for a quality assurance mechanism to
be placed on the child care employees to meet the demand of quality child care. One
such mechanism which has been in the creation and implementation process for
some time, is a regulated certification which would be required of all child care em-
ployees. Hopefully, the mechanism would assure the purchasers of child care that
the caregivers have been trained in basic child growth and development, handling
skills, cooperative working skills and can carry out appropriate activities. Addition-
ally, there should be an ongoing education requirement to maintain such a certifica-
tion which would provide caregivers with current knowledge, trends and ideas. This
certification could be obtained through a testing procedure which would be based on
an established level of knowledge. A high standard will assure quality child care
and if this standard is necessary to license a child care facility, the employers of
child caregivers will provide the necessary training/education.

Many employers in the Southeast have made a commitment to support child care
as an employee benefit. Various degrees of commitment are exemplified by the fol-
lowing efforts: Participation in a referral network, provision of a person within the
organization to find appropriate child care services, a contract with an outside
source to provide the service off-site and subsidize a portion of the fees, a contract
with an outside source to operate and manage child care services on-site while the
employer maintains ownership of the building andmay or may not provide support
services, renovation of space and operation of the service or the building of a facility
and operation of the service, Although one may argue that an employer is not in
the business of child care, there are many advantages to offering child care services
at the place of employment. In this way, good employee relations are fostered and
the employer can be assured of a high quality program and the flexibility to meet
the demands of the company. Also, it is more convenient for fees to be 'payroll de-
ducted, tardiness end absenteeism is reduced when the parents have to make only
one stop for both themselves and the child, and the parents have a tendency to
worry less knowing that should they be needed, the child care facility is within close
proxipity of their place of work.

Hospitals have long been supporters of child care due to the large percentage of
female employees and the number of varied staffing needs to be met. Hospital-based
child care presents some unique characteristics which merit some consideration. or
example, a hospital-based child care center requires extended hours and services on
a 7 day-a-week basis to meet the demand of all employees involved in a 24-hour
service business. (Note: the vast majority of hospital-based child care facilities close
at midnight but still provide services to the night shift-11:00 p.m.-7:00 a.m.by
providing child care during the day, while the parent sleeps.) Furthermore, in order
for the hospital staff to fluctuate to meet the changing patient levels, so too the
child care facility must allow enough flexibility to fluctuate in proportion to staffing

1 0



101

levels. Also, a hospital-based child care facility is 'required to uphold the highest-
standards of cleanliness, safety and infection control standards as are practiced in
the hospital. In a community with a shortage of child care services, if the hospital,
and other employers, meet these responsibilities, not only are their special needs
met, but a drain of child care slots is not created in the community. This'allows the
outside community'k needs as well as the needs of the hospital to be met in the best
possible manner.

As hospitals have been forerunners rn child-care, they may possibly be the prede-
cessors of the expansion of child care services to family services by industry. As em-
phasized previously, there has been a thrust for quality child care programs to re-
place babysitting services. Similarly, there is a push currently to expand child care
services to improve different aspects of child's and family's life. Many programs are
growing to include dance and arts and crafts lessons, before and after-school care,
family outings, information discussions with qualified persons to discuss family/pa-
rental 'concerns and there is a increasing number of parent resource centers, parent
support groups and sibling and parenting classes. In the hospital 'setting, it may be
the child care facility that host these types of programs to the community in an
effort to create a stonger community/hospital bond.

In considering the operation of hospital-based child care, the operating financial
situation should not be taken lightly, Pn most cases, child caregivers who are em-
ployed by the hospital are placed on a salary scale which usually increases retention
to such al) extent that child caregivers are paid well above the norm due to their
longevity in the organization. In upholding the same quality of care which exempli-
fied in the hospital, the staffing ratio in the child care facility generally is much
higher than what is required. These additional salary expenses, when added to the
other expense:;, have resulted in a higher cost of providing child care in the hospital
setting. While in the past, most hospitals have absorbed a financial loss in the oper-
ation of child care services to provide this employee benefit, a change in federal re-
imbursement 0.0m-ires has created pressure of child care services to become
-break-even" or fairly self-sufficient operations, depending on the organization's
commitment to this benefit. This is causing an increase in rates and change in poll-
cies and procedures; the results will become evident within the next few years.

Perhaps then, ii is here in the hospital setting that the question of who is the
consumer ()I' child care services is best exemplified: Is it the child who re:eives and
benefits from the services, the parent who partially or wholly purchase:. the serv-
ices, or is it the employer whose needs are being met? The answer to this question
illustrates the growing complexity involved in providing employer-based, quality
child are servicesthe commitment of industry to its employees and its future
leaders.

Chairman MILLER. On that point, many employers I have talked
to about the issue of child care describe the improvements that
they have had in terms of productivity, cooperation of workers, as
well as reductions in absenteeism and tardiness.

Do hospitals experience similar benefits?
Ms. SNEC!NSKI. We have found a significant increase in the rate

of retention; the hospital employees schedule their day of return
from maternity leave before they leave. When you only have to
drop your child off at the same place you park your car to work,
you have a very good sem? that if something happens, you can be
right there. Our absentee and tardiness rate is very much reduced
in the hospital, also.

Chairman MILLER. NIichael, your testimony touches on the per-
centage of the adult population in our prisons and jails that were
themselves abused as children. What do we know about the popula-
tion in your State training schools with regard to histories of
abuse?

Mr. LEVINE. I don't have specific answers td that, We did a
random sample in 1980 of I() percent of the training school popula-
tion and found there was reported abuse in over 30 percent of the
children. That does not speak to the actual incidence of abuse, but
reported abuse was found in that percentage.
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Chairman MILLER. The young people that were in the lockup fa-
cility responded to an inquiry?

Mr. LEVINE. No, this was in reading their records. That would be
reported abuse.

Chairman MILLER. So there is no way to really tell in terms of
the actual incidence. Do we know about juvenile populations?
Lockpp facilities?

Dr. CUPOLI. Yes, 'there are a number of studies that mention, and
never less than 50 percent, saying that children who have been
interviewed by the people, who are in this kind of situation- -

Chairman MILLER. That is the juvenile population?
Dr. CUPOLI. Yes. One scope of that that I didn't mention was that

we don't know the numbers. But we think almost as manythild 'en
who are physically abused Eire sexually abused. And one good study
of that, 7.0 to 80 percent of prostitutes had been sexually abused by
somebody caring for them, and 70 percent of them said that that
was a major reason for them going into prostitution. They had al
ready been used and felt that they may as well benefit from it.

The sexual abuse story is in the written testimony, and it is a
great problem. Knowledge concerning' sexual able in the 1980's is
where our knowledge about child abuse was in the 1950's. We are
scared to admit to the fact that it is probably at the same level.

Mr. LEVINE. Representative Miller, an additional point I would
make is there is a very fine line between corporal punishment and
abuse. I think through interviews with children who. are in the in-
stitutions, to a person, you are talking about children who are
beaten at home in a disciplinary manner. I am not sure whether
we can determine where that becomes abuse.

Chairman MILLER. Are the State training schools lockup facili-
ties?

Mr. LEVINE. There are lockup-facilities within the State training
schools. Two of them are fenced in. They are secure to that meas-
ure. The boys in the two major training schools live in cottages, so
I will not say that tjley all liye in closed cells as is the case in de-
tention.

Chairman MILLER. Whet* does the facility rate in terms of sever-
ity of punishment? In a young person's mind, where would it be on
a scale of punishment? Is that the last stop, the State training.
school?

Mr. LEVINE. In the juvenile system, yes.
Chairman MILLER. You mentioned that only 20 percent of them

have been involved in crimes of violence.
Mr. LEVINE. On record, right. That is a good questiOn:
Chairman MILLER. Why are the otherr80 percent there?
Mr. LEVINE. Property offenses.
Chairman MILLER. Repeated offenses at this point?
Mr. LEVINE. Yes, repeated offenses. However, as I stated, nearly

half, 43 percent, are first commitments, meaning that a lesser type
of program, a community program, has not been attempted for that
number.

Chairman MILLER. Is the 300,000 hours of community work serv-
ice. under the JASP program, at the direction of the court?
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Mr. LEVINE. The court is not involved in this, It is with the
agreement of the State attorney, but it is implemented with pri-.
vate providers in each of the districts in Florida. ,

Chairman MILLER. This is an effort of diversion by the State at-
torney's office?

Mr. LEVINE. 'Absolutely.
Chairman MILLER. So you don't haye to take the offender to

court?
Mr. LEVINE. No, there is no court involved. If the results are not

satisfactory to the State attorney, then there is the option to go
ahead and file.

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Mrs. Boggs.
Mrs. Bodes. Thank you. Thank all of you for your testimony, for

your work that it represents and for being with us today. Of
course, we hear the-need for education, and for training. Ms. Bell,
who was in the CETA program, one of the fine programs that did.
allow AFDC mothers to go out and better themselves and help
their families to break out of the welfare syndrome; we have cut
back on this, which is very difficult.

I am glad to know vocational education is being geared to take
care of the needs of the people who need it the most: Perhaps we
will find in South Carolina some kind of a system where we 'can
gear vocational education to the job opportunities within the com-
tnunity.

But I was especially touched by the fact that you mentioned the
feminization of poverty because throughout the testimony, we are
finding it is mostly the children of single-parent families and
mostly female single-parent families who are at the greatest risk.

Mrs. LeGard didn't have a chance to say it, but in her written
testimony she was very concerned about the job training and 00...
cational possibilities of poor children because of computer and
other technological gaps. I think this 'is something we have' to ad-
dress ourselves to, especially if we are going to avoid the feminiza-
tion of poverty. In an industrial age, of course, we-trained women
into the lower paying jobs, and they could never break out of the
system.

When we have the boys not applying for health service jobs, and
young women applying for it and boys applying for the machinist
positions, it is mostly because of the pay differential. Boys are sup-
posed to be able to get into jobs that.pay. more. And the girls get
jobs that traditionally have not paid as much.

We are going to have to do something about.comparatite pay for
comparative jobs, whether actually, the same job or not, if we are
ever going to break the feminization of poverty. So I am very grate-
ful to you for that.

Ms. McAliley, I am especially pleased that you mentioned H.R.
1397, as that is a bill Congressman Miller and I cosponsor, and we
will take your advice very seriously. . ,

Mr. Biamby, I was so pleased that you pointed out to us the prob-
lem of AIDS and children. As Mr. Miller knows, this has been a
very special concern of mine from the beginning of the publicity
about the AIDS difficulty..I felt that before it reached crisis propor-
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..tions, with the effect upon children, that we should try to do some-
thing in this committee about it.

You have brought us some very special information .today for
which we are very grateful. I hope we will call upon the aactors to
make certain that the immunologists are.able to see that there are
specialists out there that can do.the research and can do it quickly.
If indeed we an infuse some Federal moneys into the -program
with alacrity 'Ind in sufficient amounts, the problem can perhaps
be solved in time so that many children would not be affected by it.

I don't think 'wr should wait until it reaches the proportions of
polio that so frightened adult parents of my children's generation
because it was' mySterious, because it attacked so peculiarly, and
because they didn't know how to combat it at first. Where we
really devoted resources of the country we were able to detect it
early enough, to determine what its causes were and develop some
type of treatment that controlled and that eliminated. the disease.
So thank you very, very mud for that ,special concern that you
!Aught us.

Chairman MILLER. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Watson, 'why do you think there is a discrepancy that you

have noted`between the demand projections for future jobs and the
vocational courses that are currently offered in most of the voca-,
tional education programs?

Ms. WATSON. Well, I think that vocational education traditional-
ly grew out of trades and industry types approache§.to jobs back in
the sixties and fifties. And at about the same time that voc-ed was
gearing up in South Carolina, we had a tech system that came
along which was really the fair-haired child of the State. It was the
tech system that got the attention of public relations, publicity, ko
kind of address itself to high technology and new jobs that were
emerging.

I don't really knoW why people are reluctant at almost .every
level to talk about voc-ed, except that it does have that perception
of being forthe academic underachiever, that these are children
who after all you know, they don't have the intellectual capacity to
succeed; so, therefore, we are going to put them in this program
that will keep their hands busy.

I think that that ultimately translates into teaching them the
minimum. We still have programs now that are very traditional in
nature, and if we decide that we want to spend $50 million a year
in State and local money to teach a student how to work on his or
her car, or how to build a birdhouse in the backyard, that is fine.

But then we need to call it an avocational system, not a vocation-
al system. The system is not being paid attention to. There is a
move in South Carolina, tremendous move on the part of the Gov-
ernor, to look at public education and to get people to talk about
voc-ed within that move. It is very difficult.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you.
Mr. Levine, you spoke about suspensions. I agree with much of

what you say. But what is the alternative? I mean, the alternative
when the teacher repeatedly has this problem with this person who
is disrupting the class, and the teacher's responsibility to the other
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students in the class who can't learn because of the disruption?
How do we hindle that?

Mr. LEVINE. Mr. Bliley, you are painting a very limited picture of
the suspension problem. My understanding is that the large majori-
ty of suspensions from public schools in Florida are. for a category
of undefined breach of conduct. When we look at the record, specift
is records per child, why he was suspended, it is generally in the
area of disrespect. Very rarely is it a case of a child being a danger,
to others."

Now in the area of.disrespect, I believe that respect is gotten as
it is 'given. I think that there is a cycle involved with disrespect. I
think the child is having problems in school, and that if those are
not attended to, that will aggravate the child's behavior. 'So it is
difficult to intercede into the cycle at one point.

But I don't think that chililreti .are coming to school with the
intent to disrupt; Basically we have a circumstance that our chil-
dren are being underserved by the school system, 'awl it shows
itself in the behavior of disruption. There are very progressive
studies out and specific prescriptions of what education systems
can do to make their discipline programs much more progressive,
and, therefore, decrease the exclusion of children.

I would- 'fecommend' my colleagUe's education projratn to you as
one that has generated such research.

Dr. CUPOLI. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BIALEY. Yes, doctor.
Dr. CUPOLA. Another instance to that is the need for referral for

testing. The bulk of children don't have problems with discipline in
school in the sense that they are looking for trouble. Many of them
have stayed back 1, 2, and 3 years and yet have never been tested
for learning problems, I still occasionally see children at 10 ypars
of age who are for the first time diagnosed as mentally retarded. I
think that is something that has not been addressed.

The acting out behavior in schools is often due to the school's
failure to treat a child's particular needs, often medical needs. The
angry fighting child when treated as an individualthere are
many model programs across the country that I am sure you have
heard about' that deal with'difficult children. There has been no
corporal punishment in a number of schools and many, many less
suspensions when the children are treated as individuals rather
than as troublemakers.

Mr. BLILEY. I have one question for you, while you are there at
the mike. In your opinion, is the incidence of child abuse rising?

I)r. CuPoi.i. The reporting of child abuse definitely is rising.
Mr. The reporting.
I)r. CUPOLI. The incidence of child abuse, in th sense of severe

cases, I will answer the question directly cone rning physical
abuse, that seems to be rising.

Mr, BLILEY. What is your opinion for the cause. -that rise?
I)r. Anybody who has written about child abuse tends to

talk about four major causes: chronic stress, precipitated by failure
.to deal with a very specific stress; isolation; community standards
that support violence. Financial burden is the most common recur-
rent st
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b.,. :. Child abuse riiso occurs in middle and upper classes. It is more
likely to be emotional abuse and neglect. If I were to adopt a child
who had been abused, I would probably adopt a physically abused
child because that is episodic, whereas neglect and emotional abuse
tends to b chronic and much more devastating over time.

We don' know how to take care of our kids. There are very few
mothers 0 to 25 in this generation who have ever babysat or taken
care of,6 younger brother or sister. And to take home a 2-day-old
child OW is kicked out of the hospital without any training be-
cause there are people coming in behind, and going home to an
empty home, is an incredible disadvantage and disservice.

The story that I tell is that of a 19-year-old girl mother who has
had a child, now in the second month of (age. He has had diarrhea,
has an earache and gi andmother just went home. The child, maybe
he is 21/2 months, now he turns over and gets some diarrhea on the
bedspread The mother grass him by the ankle and pulls him back

4. onto the bed. If she is lu,:;ky, she will hurt the child's knee just a
little bit. If she is not so lucky, she will .hurt the child more. The
child will cry for a day. He will go to the hospital. Diagnosis of
abuse will be made at a low level, just a little chip on the knee,
and she will get supportive service and break into her frustration
before it gets worse.

If she is very unlucky, she will miss .the bed, the child will break
his leg and be taken away from her, never to bi returned; the
State average For foster care is 3.3 years. If she is really unfortU-
nate, the child will hit his head;)it will be fractured, and she v ill
go to jail. I think if we taught child development, not just child
education, but\ role models, 6-year-olds flaking care of infants in the
school, that w9uld make an impact. ;

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you.
Ms. Snecinski, having served on three hospitaljtoards, I would

like to know, how did you prevail upon the board to come up with
$750,000, and how did they get it? Did they pay it out- -

Chairman MILLER. You can plead the Nth, if you like.
Ms. SNECINSKI; We had a waiting list of well over 100 people at

the time. The children's center was no longer of benefit, it was no
longer a retention tool, it was an aggravation for the employee. We
maiie that commitment to the employees, and we don't have a
waiting list anymore. As a result, we have brought in people from
all over the country through recruitment.,

Mr. BLILEY. How did they raise the money, the $750,000, to build
the new facility? Was this included in their overhead for which
they are reimbursed, or did they have a public, a campaign to raise
$750,000?

Ms. SNECINSKI. Both. It was one phase of the expansion process
at the hospital.

Mr. BLILEY. Is it a reimbursable expense, in other words?
MS. SNECINSKI. NO.
Mr. BLILEY. It is not?
Ms. SNECINSKI. No.
Mr. BLILF:Y. So it either had to come out of accuniulated surplus,

or from operational?
Ms. SNECINSKI. Operational.
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Mr. 131.11.1.:y. Your $48 to $53 a week charge, how does that com-
pare with the going rate for child care facilities in the community
outside?

Ms. SNECINSKI. In our area, South Miami, we are at the lower
end of the middle range. In relation to other hospitals around, we
are right in the middle,' Many child care centers around the area
are up to $60, $70 a week.

Mr. BLILEY. What percentage of the total cost of operating the fa-
cility does your fee represent? In other words, how much is the hos-
pital picking up?

Ms. SNECINSKI. The hospital is picking up approximately $150,000
a year.

Mr. BLILEY. How does that translate?
Ms. SNECINSKI. We are recouping about 80 percent of our salary

expense.
Mr. BLILEY. In other words, 40 percent is being subsidized or

taken care of by the employer and 60 percent by the employee?
Ms. SNECINSKI. Twenty ,percent of the salary expense. All the

overhead, all the food, all tht.. supplies are subsidized by the hospi-
tal.

Mr. 131.n.i.:v. So the total Auld probably be close toclose to 70-
30?

Ms. SNECINSKI. It is close to 50-50 total expense.
Mr. 131.11.1.:v. Well, if 60 percent of the cost is furnished by the em-

ployee- -
Ms. SNECINSKI. Sixty percent of the salary expense.
Mr. BLILEY. But the other overhead is not counted, that would go

into the employer's contribution too.
SNECINSKI. Right.

Mr. BLILF.Y. My chairmpn is getting fidgety over here. I will ad-
dress that at another time.

I apologize, but I think it is a marvelous program hnd one to be -
commended not only to hospital .employers but all employers that
can.

Mrs. Bocw,s. Baptist Hospital in New Orleans has not as exten-
'.,e a program, but a similar program, a wery enlightened plan.
Chairman MILLER. Congressman Lehman.
Mr. LEHMAN. I just would like to address one item, then maybe a

second quickly.
How many of you have read this week's Newsweek, "To Kill or

Not tc Kill, the young man whose execution was stayed after he
was s.rapped down in Texas for the lethal injection?..That was a
perfect case of the result of child abuse, if anybody read that. They
even nad photographs in that story of this 10-year-old child with
the I.uird eyes.

So what I am thinking about is beyoi even 113e.§alvaging of the
family or salvaging of the child, himself ancr his future. These
abused children are nothing :Jut walking timetbombs ready to de-
stroy whatever gets in their way. This man was saying, "Things
just happen. Things just happen.- He b1c4 away three innocent
people in buying a six-pack of beer. That is what happens as a
result of child abuse.

I want to Congratulate you on your statement on corporal pun
ishment. I would like to comment from my own experience, we
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should try to isolate those students that seem to be the victims of
corporal punishment. I was on the school board, I was a teacher in
two hig schools. Ten percent of the teachers, 2 percent of the
teachers were 95 percent of the corporal punishment. It is certain
teachers that originate it, this type of so-called corrective behavior,
and it becomes not a punishment.

When I was at high school, the young student had d choice of
either detention or whacks. So "what does any red-blooded 15-year-

%
old boy choose? If he takes detention, he is a sissy. And the person
that provides this punishment, and you can say' whEit you want, 'but
in corporal punishment between an adult and a young man, there
is sadist-masochist sexuality. And it exists. Nobody brings that up;
And it is true.

Also we have to think about in corporal punishment, is it a re-,
.flection on our violent society? What is the position of the Dade
County Board of Education?

MCALILEY. They have a positiim on record which they pre-
sented to the boal.d in 1976. I have a copy of it. They are opposed to
any restrictions beyond what is in State law.

Mr. Chairman, one way we have been able to reduce the inci-
dence of. corporal punishment in Dade County is to keep the
records of it differently than we have before. And I think we can
now more easily identify who is doing it and who is receiving it,
and so forth.

There has been some opposition to theeven changing the way
. we keep the records on it. The teachers' union is one of the groups

that has objected to that. But we are--
Mr. LEHMAN. Next time you negotiate with the teachers' union,

let's make that part of the negotiation process.
Ms. MCALILEY. That is a good idea.

, Mr. LEHMAN. I did the same thing when I was on the school
board. I will tell ylu something very strange. A 16-year-old child
can drop out of the school system if he is a corporal punishment
victim and go into the adult education system, and he is not a cor-
poral punishment victim, he is not a problem. There is a change.
He is treated as an adult. All of a sudden he doesn't need whacks
anymore. So it isn't the child necesaat'ily.

The other thing is, he got whacks from the fourth grade. He goes
to the community college, 13th grade. He doesn't get whacks any-
more. What happens between 12th and 13th? It isn't the child that
has changed. It is the system. If you are going to whack, boys, why
don't you whack girls? Or do you?

Ms. McAt.ii.Ev. We do whack girls too.
Mr. LEHMAN. I mentioned sadomasochism once. I don't think I

need to mention it again. Who whacks girls?
Ms. MCALILEY. The assistant principals or principals who admin-

ister the discipline. It may be a, male administering it to the
female.

Mr. LEHMAN. You have got a problem.
Ms. MrAi.it,Ev. I think so too.
Mr. LEHMAN. Then I want to mention one other thing about vo-

cational education. I fought that thing in Congress and fought it
here about putting them in front of a $50,000, $75,000 machine and
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telling them to learn something about high technology. These arethe ones that aren't ready for that kind of equipment.
So they put junk machines in vocational education and then try

to teach them voc-ed, is that right?
Mq WATSON. I don't know if,I would call them junk machines. I

am just not sure what we ere teaching them in voc-ed is relevant
to the kinds of jobs they can get.

Mr. LEHMAN. I went over to two countries. They don't take the'one that can't go to 'college, they don't take the ones that are
losefs academically. They take the best of the students. That was
Switzerland and Israel. Man, if you aren't smart; you don't get vo-
cItional education in those two countries.

The same thing hapvens in Japan, and I would like to see whattheir voe-ed looks like over -there. That is why we are slipping
behind in our high-tech society, and we better get our vocational
educahion program straightened out aid not make it a stigma. It
was a stigma to go into voc-ed. It is still a stigma. It is almost like"being a retard," you know that phrase.

Ms. WATSON. A real pity about it too is that there are some voc-,ed systems that are now teaching computer technology. And where
computer technology is put under the program heading of business
and office occupations, which it is predominantly female enroll-
ment, but if you look at computer courses, it is usually white malesin the computer programs.

So all you have to do is have a program that relates to high-tech
that people think is going to find people a job and suddenlyithe stu-dents who are in voc-ed all these years don't get in those programs.

Mr. LEHMAN. You are comiig at it from a different angle. But Iwould likeif we wanted to do a junket, we could go study voc-edin Switzerland.
Chairman MILLEtt..Thank you.
I want to thank this panel. I think this has been a tough panel,but I think a very important one for this committee and for the

people who are participating in our efforts. I think that you have
pointed out the incredible problem we have with continuing tofund so many of the failures, and the cost that that brings to us.But also you have been able to highlight for us, maybe most dra-
matically through M. Bell, the opportunities for success if wereach for it. It can happen across the board.

I just want to thank you very much for your time and your testi-
mony. One of these nagging problems I have in my seat on the
Education Committee is how we are going to get job training to
mesh with job opportunity. It will not be easy, but I believe we are
going to get there.

Thank you very much for your time. ,
The committee will recess until 1:30, and it is our intent to comeback and hear the third panel.
[Whereupon, at 1:00 p.m., the committee was recessed to recon-

vene at 1:30 p.m. the same day.]

AFTERNOON SESSION
Chairman Miller. The select committee will come to order.

1 I
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At this time we will hear from the third panel. let will consist of
Linda Irwin, executive director of Youth Alternatives, Inc., New
Orleans, La.; Ellen Hoffenberg, program director of Guardian Ad
Litem, Tallhhassee, Fla.; Mario Jardop, who is executive director of
Northwest Dade Community Mental Health Center; Ana Rivas-
Vazquez, clinical director of the Children's Psychiatric Center,
Miami; Marie Mitchell, coordinator, teen services program, Grady
Memorial Hospital, Atlanta, Ga.; and Maurie Pressman, medical
director, Horizon Hospital, Clearwater, Fla.

Please proceed.

STATEMENT OF LINDA IRWIN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, YOUTH
ALTERNATIVES, met

Ms. IRWIN. Mr. Chairman, and members of the select committee, 4'.
I am Linda Irwin, executive director of Youth Alternatives, Inc. in
New Orleans. Founded in 1853, we are a private nonprofit agency "D

with 130 years of continuing service to children and with in need.
One of our current programs, the Greenhouse, has for 11 years

beeq the only emergency shelter and crisis counseling center for
runaway and homeless youth in New Orleans. It is from this per-
spective that I am pleased to address issues of interest to this coin-
mittee regarding crisis intervention needs of youth and the chal-
lenges related to trying to meet those needs.

One of the first difficulties we face in addressing these issues is
identifying the 'number of families and youth in crisis. When fig-
ures are projected for the number of runaway youth in this coun-
try each year, the upper and lower limits of the range may differ
by hundreds of thousands. An assumption in those projections is
that the majority of runaways may never be reported as missing by
their parents.

In the most recent data available in New Orleans, the mayor's
task force on human services estimated in its comprehensive needs
assessment of March 1980 that 5,000 to 8,000 runaways_vus
through New Orleans annually. This report further indicateOhat
neary 50 percent of these youth are pushout or throwaway, youth
from families who cannot care for them or do not want them.

Since running away in Louisiana is a status, offense, police statis-
tics give some hint of the number of youth in need. One hundred
ninety-five juveniles up to 16 years of age were arrested for 217 in-
cidents of runaway behavior by the juvenile division . of the New
Orleans Police Department according to their 1982 annual report.

Lieutenant Max Gagnard of NOPD indicates, however, that due
to cutbacks in the juvenile division and the high incidence of more
serious crimes involving juveniles, runaway offenses were often not
givei-. much attention or youth were directed to the Greenhouse. In
suburban Jefferson Parish, reports indicate 1,240 arrests of run-
away youth by the juvenile division of the Jefferson Parish sheriffs
office, in 1982.

Many homeless youth are away from their families because they
have been the victims of abuse and neglect. In 1981 the child abuse
unit of the New Orleans Police Department reported handling
1.032 cases involving children to' age 16 where physical or sexual
abuse or neglect were, suspected.
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Suzanne IThnilsoti, program.-specialist of the 'Orleans Parish
Crisis Intervention Unit of Children's Protective Services, recently
reported that the child abuse hotline is averaging 300 calls per
month in the first half of 1983. She further projedts that perhaps
no more than one case in four is reported.

In Jefferson Parish in 1982, the sheriff's office reported officers
intervening in 3,119 crises involving youth and their families.
These crises often include physical and sexual abuse and/or ne-
glect.

Given all these statistics, it is still difficult to determine an accu-
rate projection of the number of runaway and homeless yotith in
New Orleans who need emergency shelter and crisis intervention
services. What we do know is that the fiscal year just ended reflect-
ed a 12-percent increase in the utilization of our shelter over the
prior

Furthermore, for the 6-month period ending September 3110, our
average occupancy rate was 86 percent, In. a facility with a dynam-
ic bed capacity such as a shelter where the population may change
daily, this is a very high percentage. I think an amazing statistic is
that in a 5-year period the number of residents living in single-
parent households headed by 'their mothers increased from 18 per-
cent to 40 percent.

Fewer youth are returning home after leaving our program, and
perhaps most significantly between 1965 and 1981, the number of
residents reporting abuse at intake doubled. This partly explains
why fewer youth have returned home after leaving us. For the last
half ofthe last fiscal year, 73 percent of the residents in our pro-
gram were either already in the State's custody or it was deter-
mined that the youth was in danger of being abused if returned
home.

Length of stay has also shown a sharp rise, since youth awaiting
alternative placement require temporary shelter during the place-
ment process. The Greenhouse, like other shelters, provides tempo-
rary shelter, individual, group and family counseling for residents
and nonresident youth and families, information and referral,
client and family advocacy and systemmatic outreach.

It is very difficult to communicate the trauma behind all of the
data and statistics regarding the number of runaway youth. For ex-
ample, last year I had the experience of being on duty at the
Greenhouse when one of our female residents tried to commit sui-
cide by cutting her wrist. Her comment to a counselor while we
were waiting for an ambulance was "I didn't really want to hurt,
myself, but I wanted someone to understand that I don't want togo
back to the housing project to live, and I don't want my grandfa-
ther to rape me anymore."

Every one of the statistics has a story behind it like that young
woman's. The greatest chance of successful intervention in family
crisis involving runaway youth occurs when recognition occurs that
it is the family system which is in crisis, not just the young person.
Chances of success are greater when the family wants the youth
back in the family and when the family has the economic and emo-
tional resources to solve their problems and resolve the crisis.

The biggest challenges we face are with youth the family does
not want and with those youth that come to us from abused and
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neglectful situations. With abused and neglected youth, the system
designed to respond to them often continues 'victimization of them.
Sometimes this is a result of the fact that the youth have not re-
ceived information as to the process in which they are .involved and
what is going to happen to them. Often it is because the system is

so oxirloaded it has becpme unworkable:
Fttrthermore, and perhaps more dangerous, is the sykitem's am-

.bivalence about when to intervene. What I call the "not-bad,
enough syndrome." Partly as a result of the legal restraints under
which the system operates and partly because of a real desire to
resolve family crisis in the home if possible, the end result of this
drift in intervention is that-the message the ycgith internalize is,
"I have to' get hurt worse than this if I am going to be helpe

`The attitude is reflected in the current Louisiana Office f
Human Development Policy which reimburses us in our pro .am
only for, care of youth who are in the Stare's custody or if it is de-
termined that they are in imminent danger of abuse if they roturn
home. We can no longer receive Assistance fr m the State for a'
"voluntary" youth who comes to uWfrom a ram y in crisis where if
the crisis is temporarily resolved the State ma not have to inter- , .

vene further on a long-term basis if76-6 youtja uccessfully returns
home. .

If it were not for the Fedevil . Youth Development Bureau
moneys our program, currently receives, we would not be able to
!serve these youth in a preventive capacity at all, and these youth
are currently 27 percent of our population.

Possible responses to 'crisis i ention needs are many. Certain-
. ly community-based groups need t continue. to explore ways of

providing services such as parent, cation groups, parents' anony-
mous groups, hotlines, et c.etera. The youth themselves need access
to information about serv.ces they con access on their own. .

I think the role Sof the schools here is very, very important. Peer
support groups for youth and at-risk families are very important.
Private industry can encourage these same services.

Training is an important issue: Training o,f, workers in crisis
intervention services, whether public or private, need to be de-
signed to train multiskilled professionals who can provide emotion- ,1

al support to traumatized youth, intervene therapeutically in emo-
tional crises and negotiate service delivery systems. Crisis interven-
tion services must be available to abused children and youth, not
only because of the immediate trauma, this was emphasized so
much on the second panel, but because those abused youth are
likely themselves, if the trauma is unresolved, to become abusive
parents.

There are also some issues which I do not address, but which I

think are pertinent for consideration of the committee in the whole .

area of spouse abuse as well. Other at-risk populations include
pregnant teenagers, the poor, and the unemployed. Statistics on
these populations in New Orleans are staggering. Studies indicate
that 'in 1979 one out .of every eight female teenagers in New Orle-
ap was pregnant. Data lists New Orleans as the third poorest city
in the Nation with 34 percent living below the :ioverty level. Forty-
foor percent of the families in New Orleans with children under
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the age of 17 are below the poverty level; 44 percent of families
with children.

The unemployment rate in July in Louisiana was still at 10.8
percent. It is partly because of these larger issues that the Federal
initiative in crisis intervention services must remain strong. The
very situations which create a need for our services Os° mitigate
against the likelihood that local and State revenues wil! he avail-
able to support them or that the private sector can move in its sup-
port.

The tax base in New Orleans, because of our high poverty and
unemployment rates, is too low to support needed services. Louisi-
ana, as Congresswoman Boggs well knows, is an oil and gas State
whose revenue base plummeted with world crude prices. Because
we are so dependent on oil and gas industries, our economy is lag-
ging behind the rest, of the Nation in recovery.

Because our recovery is lagging behind the Nation's recovery,
our ability to access funds through the private sector then is alsolimited.

The Federal initiative can be important in mandating a nation-
wide attempt to identify families and youth in crisis. Accurate data
collection and projection of at-risk populations will be necessary to
assess needed new services and how they should be designed, im-
plemented, and funded.

Once identified and when service' delivery capacities are in place,
there needs to be continuing demand for program evaluation and
followup services delivered. We simply have to know if what we are
doing is effective.

For my community, perhaps the most important contribution
this committee can make in addressing the need for Federal poli-
cies th'at address issues which significantly impqct the health and
well-being of the American' family, is to link the lAtent of Congress
in that regard as strongly to the work of the Labor and Commerce
Departments as to the Departments of Health and Human Serv-
ices, Housing and Urban Development, and Justice. Any national
economic recovery which still leaves untouched what we have now
come to call the hard-core, urban poor and unemployed will leave
my community with as many families in crisis as ever.

Particularly on behalf of the youth in our programs, but also on
behalf of our board of directors and staff, I want to thank you for
the opportunity to submit this testimony. I would like to invite you
to visit Youth Alternatives, Inc. would like to leave you with the
words of a 17-year-old former Greenhouse resident who lived on the
streets for about 3 years. She said to a counselor, "I added 10 years
to my life on the streets. You wonder how people can think you are
young. I can't ever be the same again. ' "

[Prepared statement of Linda Irwin follows:]
PREPARED STATEME:NT OF LINDA IRWIN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, YOUTH ALTERNATIVES.

INC.

Chairman Miller and members of the Select Committee, I am Linda Irwin, Execu
tive Director of Youth Alternatives, Inc. in New Orleans. Founded in NM, we are a
private. nonprofit agency with 130 years of continuing service to children and youth
in need. One of our current programs, The Greenhouse, has for eleven years been
the only emergency shelter and crisis counseling center for runaway and homeless
youth in New Orleans. It is from this perspective that 1 am pleased to address issues
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of intre.st to this committee regarding crisis intervention needs of youth and the
challenges related to trying to meet those needs.

SCOPE OF THE PROBLEM ,

One of the first difficulties we face in addressing these issues is ident4ing the
number of families and youth in crisis. When figures are projected for the number
of runaway youth in this country each year, the upper and lower limits of theirange
may differ by hundreds of thousands. An assumption in those projections is that the
majority of runaways may never be reported as missing by their parents.

In the most recent data available in New Orleans, the Mayor's Task Force on
Human Services estimated in its Comprehensive Needs Assessment of March of
19strthat five to eight thousand runaways pass through New ()Peens annually. This
report further indicated that nearly 50 percent of these youth are "pushout" or
"throwaway" youth from families who cannot care for them or do not want them.

Since running away in Louisiana is a status offense, police statistics give some
hint of the number of youth in need. One hundred ninetypfive juveniles up to 16
years of age were arrested for 217 incidents of runaway behavior by the juvenile
division of the New Orleans Police Department according to their 1982 Annual
Report. Lt. Max Gagnard of N.O.P.D. indicates, however, that tie to cutbacks in the

'juvenile division and the high incidence of more serious crimes involving juveniles,
runaway offenses were often not given much attention or youth were directed to
The Greenhouse. In suburban Jefferson Parish, reports indicate 1,240 arrests of run-
away youth by the juvenile division of the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office in 1982.

Many homeless youth are away from their families because they have been the
victims Of abuse and neglect. In 198.1_the Child Abuse Unit of the New Orleans
Police Department reported handling 1,032 cases involving children to age sixteen
where ,physical or sexual abuse or neglect were suspected. Suzanne Danilson, pro-
gam specialist of the Orleans Parish Crisis Intervention Unit of Children's Protec-
tive Services, recently reported that the child abuse hotline is averaging 300 calls
per month in the first half of 1983. She further projects that perhaps no more than
one case in four is reported. In Jefferson Parish in 1982, the Sheriffs Office reported
officers intervening in 3.119 crises involving yOuth and their families. These crises
often included physical and sexual abuse and/or neglect.

Given all these statistics, it i still difficult to determine an accurate projection of
the number of runaway and homeless yotktlyin New Orleans who need emergency
shelter a.id crisis intervention services. What we do know is that the fiscal year just
ended reflected a 12percent increase in the utilization of our shelter over the prior
year. Furthermore, for the six month period ending September 30, our average occu-
pancy rate was Sfi percent. In a facility with a dynamic bed capacity such as a shel-
ter, where the population may change daily, this is a very high percentage.

CHANGES IN CLIENT POPULATION

Not only are we seeing an increase in the numbers of youth seeking shelter, but
the -profile- of the youth in crisis is changing. In May of 1982. Rene J. 'Naps, a
graduate student at the University of New Orleans, completed a study of intake
(Loa using a representative sample of Greenhouse residents in 197t1, 1978, and 1981.

Ifis findings indicate some significant changes:
Ili There has been an increase in the percentage of minority youth seeking serv-

ice;
121 There has been a steady increase in the number :1 residents from the New

Orleans area:
131 There has been a significant decrease in the number of youth who were living

with both parents prior to corning to us for shelter and a dramatic increase in the
number of residents who were living with their mother only. In 1975, 31 percent of
the youth siimpled lived with both parents: in 1981 this figure had dropped to 17

percent. In 1975. 18 percent were living in a single-parent family with their mother;
in 19s1 this figure had risen to 0 percent.

ill There has been a decline in the number of youth returning home upon leaving
The Greenhouse. There was a decrease of 12 percent in this area between 1975 and
posI, from Ii; percent to :i4 percent.

1:0 The most significant change may be that between 1975 and 1981 the incidence
of reporter; abuse by residents at intake doubled. The tremendous rise in the inci-
dence of reported abuse by residents partly explains the decrease in thi. number of
yialth returning home after leaving The Greenhouse. For the last half of fiscal year
pis_. s:;, 7:: percent of the youth who were residt.nts in The Greenhouse were either
alreiiii, in the custody of the Louisiana Department of Health and Human Re-
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sources, or they were from families where it wa.!, determined that the youth was in
danger of being abased if he or she returned home.

This may alsoeexplain why the average length of stay of residents has shown asharp rise. Youth who are awaiting an alternative placement because they cannotreturn to their families will require temporary shelter for a longer period of time.In the last five months the'average length of stay has been 11.1 days, compared to6.2 in 1975, and 4.9 in 1981.

SERVICES PROVIDED

Like ether shelters operating under fthe standard model regulations developed bythe Youth Development Bureau thr Ggh the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act,
The Greenhouse is a community-b d, voluntary program whose services are acces-sible to youth 24 hours each day. S rvices currently provided include:

01 temporary shelter for sixteen outh;
12) individual, group, and famiVcounseling for both residents and non-residentyokith and their families;
03) 24 hour crisis phone counseling;
41 information and referral services, as well us advocacy with.and for youth and

their families to access needed services for crisis resolution; and
e51 systematic community outreach efforts.
At the end of a decade of proViding these services to youth, The Greenhouse con-

ducted a direct mail needs assessment among 469 New Orleans professionals to de-
termine priority needs in the,area of crisis intervention services for youth. Theseprofessionals included 'residential treatment staff, mental health center workers,
community social service representatives, school principals, school guidance counsel-
ors, and social workers; child protection workers, probation officers, juvenile police
officers, juvenile judges, pfid youth advocacy legal services. Approximately 40 per-cent of those surveyed responded.

When asked to rank thirteen services adolescents in crisis might need in a' 1-13priority ranking, the three highest priorities were 01 individual counseling, (21 ternporary shelter, and (3) family therapy/counseling. When asked to rate each of thethirteen services on a 1-7 scale of their relative importance to troubled youth, theservice rated most important was youth employment programs. It was confirmed for`hen, that the professional community sees our services as addressing priority
needs of troubled youth. Our shared concerns with other professionals regarding
youth employment opportunities will be addressed further in a later section.All of the data we collect regardinr, rwmbers of youth and families in crisis, whothey are by numerous demographic Uescriptions, tells only part of the storx. I am anadministrator. That means that iti an agency Like ours, my role dictates that the' vast majority of my interactions are with colleagues I supervise within' our pro-
grams, representatives of funding sources, members of the Board of Directors, conemunity professionals, and occasionally an esteemed body such as this. It is easier
than I care to admit to become isolated from direct contact with the residents in our
programs who are the pulse of these data. This was made frighteningly apparent tome about a year ago when I happened to bcovering The Greenhouse one Sundayafternoon.

One of the female residents was scheduled to return home that evening. Just
before dinner another resident came to me and suggested that I go upstairs to check
on "Shirley." lie was afraid she was going to hurt herself. When I got to the girls'dorm, "Shirley" was lying on a couch, there were thin streams of blood at her
wrist:4, and she clutched a razor blade in one hand.

I sat down next to her and asked her to give me the razor blade so we could talk
about what was ,happening.,She didn't respond to my questions, but began to movetoward cutting her wrist again. I grabbed both her arms. sat down on her legs tohold her and began, to yell for help. However, no one could hear me and I wasafraid to leave her alone to summon someone. Fortunately, I knew that a counselorwould be walking past our door in a matter of minutes to come on duty. Since
"Shirley" began to struggle every time I asked her anything about what she was
doing or why, 1 decided that the safest things to do was to wait until I heard the
counselor and call for assistance. It is the height of the obvious to say that there is
no appropriate. way in such a situation to "make conversation." It is said that when
ane is in danger, one's entire life passes before one's eyes in a few seconds. In thosekw minutes of attaching myself to someone else's peril, what flashed before my
eyes fur review and confirmation were all the values I hold about the sanctity Ofhuman lite
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The counselor came as expected and together we were able to safely retrieve the
razor blade. While I was calling an ambulance, "Shirley" told a counselor, "I didn't
really want to hurt myself. But I wanted someone to understand that I don't want
to go back to Desire (Housing Project) to live, and I don't want my grandfather to
rape me anymore"

It is difficult to convey the power of those words in the data I have proiided. And
it is youth like "Shirley" whose stories weave the fabric of the larger story we are
trying to tell. Knowing. that it is youth like her who make up the percentages
quoted, I would like to address some of the challenges of trying to help.

CHALLENGES`

On of the most prevalent misconception about runaway and homeless youth is the
assumption that the rtytkway is "sick'" or "bad," and one of the biggest challenges
counselors in our program face is reshaping that thinking to see that a runaway
represents a family system that is in crisis. Sometimes the runaway is the healthi-
est person in that system because his or her behavior preeipitates an end to denial
of the crisis.

In talking with Greenhouse counselor Claudia Dabbs this week, she indicated that
counselors realize that they will experience their greatest chance of successful inter-
vention with a family which accepts this reality, which wants their children back,
and which leas the emotional and economic resources to resolve conflict. In this case
counselors' therapeutic skills can be applied and crisis can be resolved in workable
ways. They frustration counselors face is that the number of youth they are seeing
from families like this is declining.

Perhaps the biggest challenge we face is in addressing the needs of those youth in
need of shelter because they have been vi-tims of sexual, physical, and/or emotional
abuse or neglect. Because of recent medi, attention to these problems, the public is
thankfully becoming mope aware of the danger of victims of abuse who run away,
becoming further ,victimized on the streets. But it is one of the greatest challenges
we face as human service professionals to redirect our ways of intervening with
youth who have been abused so t at we do not also further contribute to their vic-
timization.

Greenhouse counselors find tha youth alleging abuse and neglect usually have
little or no understanding of the process in which they are involved and rarely is it
explanied to them by the workers whc n,.a investigating their allegations. Realizing
this, Greenhouse coudselors recently asked a local child protection worker, a good
worker, to come to afternoon group at the Greenhouse to explain how a youth re-
ports abuse and how the report is handled from there. The worker refused the invi-
tation. She said that in all good conscience she would have to recommend to the
youth that they not report the abuse unless they were in terrible danger because
the system designed to respond to them is so unworkable.

I want to hasten to add that I am not attempting to impugn the skills or motives
of most workers in the system. It is simply a system that, becausesof its own over-
load and because of the ambivalence of the larger society regarding interfering in
"family matters," is constrained from acting in the best interest of the youth.

We have all experienced the tension between our commitment to work to reunify
a youth with his or Fier family and the hard reality that we sometimes need to rec-
ommend that that bond be broken by state inrventien. With abused youth that
tension often leads to an insidious drift in intervention that can only be described as
the "it's not bad enough yet" approach. This can best be exemplified by the times
counselors have heard workers say in looking at youth's bruises or scars," "There
simply is not enough evidence here." While we can certainly understand the legal
constraints under which the system operates, the message to the youth is quite
clear. "We can't help you until you get hurt worse than this."

A current policy of the Louisiana Department of Health and Human Resources
Office of Human Development is reflective of the "It's not bad enough yet" ap-
proach. Prior to August of 1982, the policy of the Department had allowed our pro-
gram to receive state reimbursement fcr the cost of services to all youth who were
sheltered at The Greenhouse. The idea was, of course, that if a youth came to the
program and ti successful intervention was made in a family crisis, then it was less
likely that family stress and conflict would build to the point that abuse might
occur. The reimbursement by the Office was seen as part of its role in funding pre-
vent i ve servites.

However, as part of its response to cut expenditures in the face of declining state
revenues, the Office will no longer reimburse us for costs of services to these "volun-
tary" youth. They will reimburse us for clients in the custody of the state or where
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the risk of abuse is high . . . that is, "when it gets bad enough." Currently, without
Youth Development Bureau funds to The Greenhouse, we could not provide services
to 27 percent of our residents from families in crisis who do not meet the funding
criteria of the Office of Human Development.

WHAT, THEN, SHALL WE DO

Some of the ways to address' crisis needs in a preventive fashion are deceptively
apparent. For example, no one would deny that community-based services such as
community centers, churches, YMCA/YWCA's, etc. have a significant contribution
to, make in providing parent education classes, sponsoring Parents Anonymous
groups for abusive parents, staffing emergency hotlines and warm lines for crisis
counseling or parenting information, and sponsoring peer support groups for youth
in at-risk families. Certainly, school curriculumg need to inclpde parent education
classes for youth, and school personnel need to make youth aware of services avail-
able to them in their community which they can access on their own. In private
industry, employer assistance programs con provide the same services or can pro-s vide information and referral services to employees.

Training of professionals who work with youth in crisis intervention services is
another key area that can be addressed. Workers in Children's Prqtective Servicesneed not only to be trained as good case managers and investigators, but they need
to be skilled in providing the emotional underpinnings a youth needs,while in that
system. They particultirly'need to be expert in understanding the dynamics of separation and grief since so many youth with: whom they are working are.experiencing
the dissolution of fattiily bonds. Workers in services such as ours, however, need to
be trained well as counselors .and equally well trained in the ability tv negotiate
service delivery systems since so many of the youth 'and families with whom wework need systems advocacy. There are implications here for social work and psy-
chology curricula at both The undergraduate and graduate levels. There are also
pertinent issues of concern to Congress. Theitunaway.and Homeless Youth Act au,
thorized money for training of professionals working in programs funded under the
auspices of the Act. However, it appears'now that money for training is being either
.cut or redirected by administrative decision within the Department of Health and.Human Services.

Perhaps the most important wq to 'prevent the kind of family crises which
produce children and youth in crisis is to identify at-risk populations and to develop
early intervention strategies for those groups. There is no doubt that the population
most at risk of becoming abusive parehts are those parents who were abused them-
selves as children. This is one reason why the `abused child must have crisis inter-
vention services delivered by professionals committed to providing the emotional
support necessary to help the youth cope effectively with the trauma be or she is
experiencing and to help the youth integrate a positive self-concept. Many abused
children and youth blame themselves for what has happend to them and believethat they are "bad,""'unworthy," or "unlovable." If those concepts are internalized,
the youth is likely to develop a self-destructive lifestyle, and the seeds are also sown
for the next generation of abusive parents.

Other at-risk populations include pregnant teenagers, the poor, and the unem-ployed It is imperative that we not suggest that any individual in any of these
groups, or the groups as such. are bad parents. But their lack of resources can cer-tainly produce stresses which create or exacerbate family crisis. In New Orleans, a
review of demographic data is a staggering experience.

In 1979. Dr. Flora Cherry of t'he Maternal Child Health Section of the Tulane
University School of Public Health researched the adolescent preganancy rate inNew Orleans. Her study indicated that in that year one of eight teenage girls in
New Orleans was pregnant. In 1982. 31 percent of the babies delivered at Charity
Hospital in New Orleans were born to mothers udder the age of 20. 41; percent of all
births to women of all ages at Charity in 1982 were born to women who were not
married. This means that the emotional stress of parenting is increased for these
women by being single-parent with very limited financial resources.

The MO census data indicates that New Orleans has the third largest percentage
of people living beneath the poverty level among large cities in the nation 20 4 perent the population of New Orleans lives below the poverty level. 44 i.ercent ofthe families with children under seventeen are poor. In July of 1911:3 our unemploy-
ment rate was 11. percent Figures released this past week indicate that the unem
ployment rate' is improving except for certain populations For example the unem-ployment rate among the nation's black ma le youth is 52 percent. In a cit 'Ike New
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Orleans whose population is over 50 percent black, I can only assume that the youth
unemployment rate remains of crisis proportion.

It is partly because of these larger issues that the federal initiative in crisis nter-
vention services must remain strong. The very situations which create a need for
our services also mitigate against the likelihood that local and state revenues will
be available to support them or that the private sector can move in its support. ThQ
tax base in New Orleans, because of our high poverty and unemployment rates, is
too low to support needed services. Louisiana ig an oil and gas state whose revenue
base plummeted with world crude prices. Because we are so dependent on oil and
gas industries, our economy is lagging behind the rest of the nation in recovery. The
prospects for turning to the private sector for increasing support of our services are
certainly affected by that.

The federal initiative can be important in mandating a nationwide attempt to
identify families and youth in crisis. Accurate data collection and projection of at-
risk populations will be necessary to assess needed new services and how they
should be designed, implemented and funded. Once identified and when service de-
livery capacities are in place, there needs to be continuing demand for program
evaluation and follow-up services to guarantee the effectiveness of the services deliv-
ered. Contrary to the opinion held by many, we believe in accountability. We agree
that we should be able to demonstrate our effectiveness. We do ask that we be al-
lowed to sham, from our expertise and experience, what we would indicate as meas-
ure of success.

For my community, perhaps the most important contribution this committee can
make in addressing the need for federal policies that address issues which signifi-
cantly impact the health and well-being of the American family, is to link the
intent of Congress in that regard as strongly to the work of the Labor and Com-
merce Departments,as to the Departments of Health and Human Services, Housing
and Urban Development, and Justice. Any national economic recovery .which still
leaves untouched what we have now come to call the hard-core, urban poor and un-
employed will leave my community with as many families in crisis as ever. Particu-
larly on behalf cif the youth in our programs, but also on behalf of our Board of
Dirbctors and staff, I want to thank you for the opportunity to submit this testimo-
ny. I would like 'to invite you to visit Youth Alternatives, Inc. I would like to leave
you with the words of a 17 year old former Greenhouse resident who lived on the
streets for about three years. She told Greenhouse counselor, Claudia Dabbs, in an
interview last year; :I.added ten years to my life on the streets. You wonder how
people can think you re young. I can't ever be the same again . . ."

STATEMENT OF ELLEN IIOFFENBERG, PROGRAM DIRECTOR,
GUARDIAN Al) ',ITEM

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
M. IIOFFENBERG. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, members of the

committee, I thank you for this opportunity to address you on the
consequences of child abuse and neglect. My name is Ellen Hoffen-
beg. I am presently a child welfare attorney acting as director of
the State of Florida Guardian ad litem program with the supreme
court of Florida.

Our program coordinates the efforts of over 1,F00 volunteer lay
citizens who\ represent the victims of child abuse and neglect as
guardians ad !item.

I would like to digresS from my testimony, some of the members
of 'the audience who may not know exactly what a guardian ad
!item is. They are independent representatives appointed in all
child abuse and judicial proceedings. The volunteer guardian ad
!item in our program is a lay citizen, who investigates, monitors,
protects, and reports on the child throughout the proceeding.
Again, we are coordinating the efforts of volunteers to do this ex-
taordinary service for children.

eumnieilts are based on my professional experience, research
on the ccntsequences of child abuse and neglect and the program's
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volunteer experience with cvet. 8,000 victims that we have repre-
sented since 1980.

I would like to begin with our knowledge of criminal offenders. I
was introduced to child abuse as a public defense attorney repre-
senting a 16-year-old boy facing the death penalty for murder and
rape of an 8-year-old child.

My investigation led me to the State of his birth and childhood. I
learned of his rape at 3 years of age by his father, the beatings
with a 2-by-4 board at age 5 by the mother resulting in brain
damage, and rape and molestation at the age of 0, 12, and 14 by
foster caretakers.

A psychiatri t and psychologist testified to his severe emotional
disturbance a subsequent behavior as part of the battered child
syndrome. Th jury and prosecutor were unimpressed because the
criminal system did not understand the child abuse in those days.
In 1982, Florida recognized 80 to 90 percent of our prison popula-
tion were abused as children. Seventy percent of sexual offenders
have been victims of sexual abuse or trauma. We have yet to pro-
vide them with effective treatment. Florida is starting its first
treatment program for children who commit sexual offenses and
have histories of being sexually abused children. There will be 12
beds in this program. I am sure we will keep those beds full since
Florida's training schools and delinquency programs alone house

'Isl.hundreds of treated abused children.
Is there a re ationship between spouse abuse and child abuse? In

a research project repbrted in "Behind-Closed-Doors, Violence in
American Families," it was found that spouse abuse is low for fam-
ilies with no children and increases with each additional child,
being highest in families with 5 children, an incidence rate of 6 to
9 percent in a 2,000-family sample.

Additionally, they were related to the extent that children were
abused, excuse me, spouses were abused 50 percent more in fami-
lies that were also abusing their children. A large number of iden-
tified stressful events in families increase likelihood of spouse
abuse and child abuse to between 33 and 50 percent of family inter-
viewees with stressful events, including background information I
have submitted to thecommittee. Abuse of pregnant wives was re-
ported, directed to the unborn child.

Do children who are abused and neglected and remain untreated,
engage in delinquent behavior? Guardians ad litem accept this as
an undisputed fact. Abused children enter adolescence without the
physical. educational, intellectual, and emotional skills and devel-
opmental progress necessary to cope with an otherwise difficult
period of life. Child abuse and neglect damages a child's ability to
exercise good judgment. An abused child perceives the world as a
dangerous, hostile placeadults as persons who cause pain if trust-
ed. Uncared for, these children will attempt to survive by any
means. The value of a person's life and property are often mean-
ingless because the child has learned he or she is of no value. Stud-
ies of Florida's children show that as much as 44 percent of the
children reported in child abuse will be charged later as delin-
quents.
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New York's Commission on Child Abuse found through a longitu-
dinal study that one out of every two families sharing history of
abuse of one child revealed delinquency offenses by a sibling.

Do child abuse victims engage in runaway, truant, or ungovern-
able behavior. Guardians ad litem, again who represent status of-
fenders; often almost unanimously report long history of abuse and
neglect. The Office of the Inspector General, Department of Health
and Rehabilitative. Services released preliminary findings which
will be published at the end of the year. Although the findings are
not surprising, they are worthy of recitation. The agency records of
status offenders were reviewed. In addition to children being held
in delinquent detention centers for status offense behavior, investi-
gation showed 30 percent as having been abused or neglected, 20"
percent as having committed crimes; 50 percent of these children
have been diagnosed as learning disabled, mentally retarded or
emotionally disturbed, 36 percent come from unstable hones; 40
percent having single parents.

-Thirty percent of these children have been referred to the agency
five or more times for intervention and help. The overwhelming
reason for placing them in detention centers is lack of appropriate
resources. Abused children enter adolescence without a stable con-
nection to family, serious disruption of sexual identity development
as a result of sexual abuse, with survival and coping mechanisms
which dictate that running away from beatings is the only answer
to parental abuse; and that pain and disappointment are best han-
dled through abuse of alcohol and drugs. Their educational devel-
opment has been significantly impaired at an early age, and they
are unable to cope with the intellectual demands of a secondary
school. The child's sexual abuse syndrome describes the sexually
abused girl as having difficulty in school, engaging in runaway be-
havior, promiscuous and seductive. We are more likely to sympa-
thize with a young person' suffering child abuse. We discredit an
adolescent's statement that she or he is being beaten or molested
as an attempt to manipulate strict parents. We react to her hostili-
ty with further punishment. Yet, we should not be surprised that a
child's unheeded call for help will result in a child who later dis-
trusts a helping hand or is angered by a life of disappointment,
physical violence, pain, and bitterness.

Having described the children and adult victims of child abuse
who squeek the wheel or engage our attention because of antisocial
behavior, I'd like to tell you about the quiet victim. As an inexperi-
enced guardian ad litem, I learned to listen to the silent voice of
child abuse when one of my clients committed suicide. Let's call
him Johnny. Johnny was a handsome, 16-year-old adopted at the
age of 12. The first 8 years of his life were an unbroken series of
physical beatings by an alcoholic father. At 8, he was placed in a
foster residence with 40 other children. His first adoptive father
beat him, his second adoptive father died. Johnny's culture dictated
a code of quiet suffering of pain.

When we tried to help Johnny, we underestimated the emotional
damage and failed to reach out to his problems. When we ignored
him, he wrote a letter to us that life was too painful and frighten-
ing and that he would rather die.
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In my personal experience representing over 300 children, I have
yet to meet a child who emerges from an abusive home without
emotional scars, children who have no significant person they can
consistently lovechildren who can't talk or walk because they are
so emotionally traumatized, children whose emotional scars make
them unable to make friends, the children who eventually take
their own lives.

Waiting lists for child therapy are the equivalent of a lifetime for
a child. It looks like we punish children for committing the crime
of being abusedchild abuse is rarely prosecuted. The child is
taken from the home, placed in shelters with untrained persons
unable to provide the extensive emotional support they need. Shel-
ters often house up to twice as many children as they are licensed
for. We have yet to identify or fully execute and fund an effective
screening and training process for foster parents of abused chil-
dren. A study completed in 1981 by the Institute of Criminal Jus-
tice on New 'York City's foster homes indicated that a substantial
number of foster children are beaten while in care, often severely.
Twenty-seven percent of foster parents interviewed use an object to
discipline children. Guardian ad litem reports an alarming rate of
sexual abuse by temporary care providers.

Children who are victims of child abuse face a system incapable
of protecting child victims. If the cases are prosecuted, these chil-
den are often subjected to lie detector tests, repetitive questioning,
sometimes by 20 or 30 different people, and are required to bear
the traumas of the criminal justice system that leaves healthy
adult victims with extensive psychological scars. Child witnesses
are threatened by parents, are stigmatized, have their privacy con-
tinually invaded, and become emotionally and physically ill wait-
ing for resolution of their cases.

Our children are often the ones that can't fit in a foster home or
are hard to place. This is not surprising, since we don't have the
diagnostic resources to accurately assess the extent of the emotion-
al, intellectual, moral, and physical damage to the victim of child
abuse. If we had these resources and had them quickly enough, it
would not solve the problem since we don't have the skilled profes-
siolal caretakers and treatment specialists in sufficient numbers to
help the child overcome his or her individual problems. Communi-
ties that have these resources are often in a pilot stage, facing con-
tinual financial struggles and trying to provide too much with too
little. fl a program is available, most children are separated from
natural families by hundreds of miles. Even if' they receive help,
t hey face a high probability of relapse, since they have not learned
how 4o function outside of treatment and their parents have not
participated' in treatment to help their children succeed because of
the large geographical distances. That is if a parent is available.

Guardian ad litem volunteers represent the most sericusly
abused and neglected children in the State. Out of 90,000 referrals
in 1980, approximately .10,001) cases of reported child abuse and ne-
glect are considered valid. Only 4,000 are brought to our attention.
The oerwhelminglyoverwhelming experience of these 4,00(1 chil-
dren prove us unable to adequately treat the victims of child abuse
and neglect.

1
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There are many more that need court protection, but we have in-
sufficient staff to adequately handle and investigate reports of
abuse. By the time we try to help these children, they are often so
physically and psychologically damaged that there is little hope we
can restore.a semblance of a normal life. I find it extremely sad-
dening to be faced with a 3-year-old whose broken bones and mind
have established a couro of placement in numerous foSter homes
with future runaway, and possible criminal behavior.

Our volunteers' challenge is to fight the barriers of lack of fund-
ing, resources, and agencies unequipped to effectively intervene.
The awareness of Americans has consistently been raised about
identifying and reporting child abuse and neglect since you passed
the Child Abuse and Treatment Act in 1975our. program has met
your challenge to providd extra,ordiriary advocacy for these chil-
dren in our courts. We must effectively intervene now to provide
quality support, guidance, and treatment for the multitude of chil-
dren that we will be asked to help. There is no more deserving pop-
ulation. If we fail, our law enforcenient, social service agencies, and .
courts will continue to expend energy and moneys attempting to
afford temporary housing for the victims of today who inevitably
will become the child abusers, sexual offenders, emotionally ill, and
criminal offenders of tomorrow. There are thousands of caring pro-
fessionals and volunteers waiting for the day we can succeed in
.preventing and treating child abuse and our children are waiting.
Please do not let us all run out of time.

Thank you very much for the opportunity to present this to you
today.

[Prepared statement of Ellen Hoffenberg follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ELLEN IRENE HOFFENBERG, ESQ., STATE PROGRAM DIRECTOR,
o STATE OF FLORIDA, GUARDIAN AD LITEM PROGRAM

Hi. Chairperson, members of the commitie:(

Thank you for this opportunity to address you on the consequences of

child abuse and neglect. My name is Ellen Hoffenbeiy. I am a child welfare

attorney and presently direct the State of Florida Guardia'n Ad Litem Program

of the Supreme Court of Florida. Our program coordinates the efforts of

over 1,500 volunteers who represent tha victims of child abuse and neglect

as guardians ad litem. My comments are based on my own professiondl

experience, research on the consequences of abuse and neglect and the

Guardian Ad Litem Program volunteers' experieqce with over 8,000 victims

that we have represented since 1980.

Let's begin with our knowledge of criminal offenders. I was intro-

duced to chil2 abuse as a public defense attorney representing a 16 year

old boy facing the death penalty for the murder and rape of an 8 year

old child. My investigation led me to the state of his bifih and child-

hood. I learned of his rape at 3 years of age by his father; his beatings

with a 2x4 at age 5 by his mother esulting in brain damage; rape and

molestation at the ages of 9, 12, and 14, by foster caretakers.

A psychiatrist and psychologist testified to his severe emotional

disturbance and subsequent behavior as part of the battered child syndrome.

The fury and piosecutor were unimpressed because the criminal system did not

understand child abuse in those days. In 1982, Florida recognized that

th) to 30% of our prison population were abused *as children. 70% of

sexual offenders have been victims of sexual abuse or trauma. We have

yet to provide them with effective treatment. Florida is starting its

first treatment program for children who commit sexual offenses and have

historie6 of being sexually abused as children. There will be 12 beds. I

sm sure we will keep them full since Flroida's training schools and delin-

quency program alone are housing hundrqds of untreated abused children.

Ls there a relationship between spouse abuse and child abuse? In

a reearch project reported it Straus, Stimmet and Gelles book "Behind

Door:, - Violence It the American Family" - it was found that spouse

abuLt. is low tor families with nu children, and increases with each additional

chill, tx.inq hiqh,t.t in families with five children an incidence rate of

t, )t IN a !iaMplc of 2,000 families. A large number of identitied stre4tul
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events in a family's year increased the likelihood of spouse abuse and child

abuse to bettoren 33% and 50% of families interviewee. Abuse of pregnant

wives w reported 6s significanti due to marital stress La directed to

the unwanted unborn child.

Do children who are abused or. neglected and remain untreated engage

in delinquent behavior? The Guardians Ad Litem who represent delinquent

children accept this , an undisputed fact. Abused children enter adorescence

without the physical, educational, intellectual and'emotional skills

developmental progress necessary to cope with an otherwise difficult period

ut life. Child abuse and neglect damage a child's ability to exercise

good judgment. An 'abused child percieves the world as a dangerous, hostile

place - adults as persons who cause pain if trusted. Uncared for, these

children will attempt to survive by any means. The value of a pers'on's life

and property are often meaningless because the child has learned that he or

she iN4of nu value. Two studies of Florida's children show that as much

an 4% of Lhildren reported for child abuse will be charged with delin-

quent otteeses. Studies in other states rer!eal as much as I16% of delinquent

population., studied have histories of abuse or neglect as children. Child

abuse is a disease that affects the whole. family. New York'p Select Commission

on Child ALure found that one out of every two families sharing a history

of aOa:A, ot one child revealed delinquency offenses by sibling.

aLuse victims engage in runaway, truant or ungovernable, i.e.

ntatlie ..t tense behavior? Guardians ad litem who represent status'otfur.ders

almost unanimously report a long history'of abuse and neglect.

The Jllice the Inspector General, Department of Health and Schabili-

tati,n servi,:us, recently released preliminary findings on Florida's status

o.tenfer i,lelatiun which will be published at the end of this yelr. Although

the findinw; are not surprluing, they are worthy of recitation. The agency

,:tat us offenders were reviewed,
in addition to children being held

ir; i oent detention centers for status of Tense behavior . 11,v04t ijat.

iv, t t. .;Bowed Pis having been abused and :leg ltcted , having

,ut of these children had been dignesed is learning d.!:-

.W1,1, mntally retarded or emotionally
disturbed; 36t come Ion du(;umenti.A

h.ir.u; 4i f.avinq :Jingle parents. !Ut, of they ,hildrfin had

:A, 1,511],,s , the aaen.'i 5 or more times foi intetventi,,n, Th, vetwhlminy
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reason for placement in detention cantors is a lack of appropriate' resources.

Abused children enter adolescence without a stable connection to family( with

a serious disruption of sexual identity development as a result of sexual

abuse; with survival and coping mechanisms which dictate that running away

froin beatings is the only answer to parental abuse; and that pain and

disappointment are best handled through abuse of alcohol and drugs. Their

educational development has been significantly impaired at an early. age

and they are unable to cope with the intellectual demands of secondary

school. Anaccepted evidentiary principle - the thild sexual abuse

syndrome - describes a sexually abused adolescent girl as having difficulty

in school, engaging in runaway behavior, promiscuous and seductive. Our

society is more likely to sympathize with a young victim of child abuse. We

discredit an adolescent's statement that she or he is being beaten or molested

as an attempt to manipulate strict parents. We react to her hoW,ity and

anger with further punishment. Yet, we should not be surprised Chat a child's

unheeded call for help will result in a child who later distrusts a "helping

hand" or is angered by a life of disappointment and physical violence, pain

and bitterness.

Having described the children and adults victims of child abuse who

'squeak the wheel" or engage our attention because of anti-social behavior,

I'd like to tell you about the quiet victims. As an inexperienced guardian ad

litem, I learned to listen to the silent voice of child abuse when one of

my clients committed suicide. Let's call him Johnny. Johnny was a handsome

Li 16 year old boy who was adopt s0 at the ago of 12.' The first eight years of

his life were an unbroken series of physical beatings by an alcoholic father.

At eight, he was placed in a foster residence with forty other children. His

first adoptive father beat him, his second died. Johnny's culture dictated a

code of quiet suffering of pain. When we tried to help Johnny, we under-

estimated the emot.ional aamage and failed to reach out and deal with his

problems. When we ignored him, he wrote a letter to us that life was too

painful and frightening and that he would rather die.

In my personal experience representing over 30 children, combined with

our volunteers' experience, I have yet to meet a c ld, who emerges from an

abusive home without emotional scars - children wh have no significant person

130
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A
that they can consistently love, children who cannot talk or walk because

they are so emotionally traumatized, children whose emotional scars make them

unable to make friends, the children who eventually take their own lives.

Waiting lists for child therapy are the equivalent of a lifetime Thr

a child. It looks likewe punish children for committing the crime of being

abused - child abuse is rarely prosecuted. The child is taken from the home

and placed in shelters with untrained persons unable to provide the ex-

kenstve emutional support these children need. Shelters .Aten house up to

twice as many childreh C.v., arc lic,nJed for. We have yet to identify or

filly execute and fund at. eUective scrcening and training process for foster

parents of alfused children. A study completed. in 1981, by the Vera

Institute of Criminal Justice on New York City foster homes indicated that

a substantial number of foster children are beaten while in care, often

severely. 27% of foster parents interviewed use an object to discipline

cheldrn. Guardians ad litem report an alarming rate of sexual abuse by

temporary caretakers.

Children who are victims of child abuse fa e t system incapable of

protecting child victims. If the case is prosecuted, these children are often

sebjected to lie detector tests, repetitive questioning - sometimes by tweArc

or thirty different people and required to bear the traumas of the criminal

justice system that leaves healthy adult victims with extensive psychological.

scars. Child witnesses are threatened by their parents, are stigmatized,

have their privacy continually invaded and become emotionally and physically

ill waiting for resolution of a criminal case.

out children are often the ones that cannot "fit" in a foster home or

are "hard to place." This is not surprising, since we do not have the

diagnostic resource:: to accurately assess the extent of emotional, intellectual,

physical and moral damage to the victim of child abuse. If we had these

resources, it would nut solve the problem, since we do not have skilled

1.rotesstunal caretakers and treatment specialists to help a child overcome

his or her individual problems. Communities that have these resources are

Aten in a pilut. stage and facing continual financial struggles and

trying to provide too much with to little. If a program is available in

moat children are separated from natural families by hundreds of

..v.1; it they receive help, they face a high probability of relapse
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h,since they have not learned how to function outside of treatment and their

parents have not participated inIghe treatment to help their

children succeed. That is if a parent is available.

41 The Guardian Ad Litem volunteers represents the most seriously abused and

neglected children in the state. Out of 90,000 dependency referrals in 1980,

40% or approximately 40,000 cases of reported abuse and neglect are considered

valid. Only 4,000 of these cases are brought to the court's attention; the

others are closed after one or two visits or an offer of services. The

overwhelming experience of these 4,000 children prove us inablo to adequately

treat the victims of abuse and neglect.

There are many more that need court protection, but we have insufficient

staff in the child welfare system to adequately handle and investigate reports

of abuse. By the time we try to help these children, theyare often so

physically and psychologically damaged that there is little hope we can

restore a semblance of a normal life. I find it extremely saddening to

be faced with a 3 year old whose broken bones and mind have established a

course of placement in numerous foster homes, and future rUnaway behavior,

Our volunteerwehallenge is to fight the barriers of lack of funding,

resources and agencies uneqUippe8 to effectively intervene. The awareness of

Americans had consistently been raised about identifying and reporting

child abuse and neglect, since you passed the Child Abuse Prevention and

Treatment Act in 1975 - our program has met jour challenge to provide

extraordinary advocacy for these children in courts. We must effectively

intervene - to provide quality support, guidance and treatment for the

multitude of children that we will be asked to help. There is no more or

deserving population. If we fail, our law enforcerftbnt, social service

agencies and courts will continue to energy and monies attempting

to afford temporary housing for the victims of today, who inevitably will

become the child abusers, sexual offenders, emotionally ill, and criminal

offenders of tomorrow. There are thousands of caring professionals and

volunteers waiting for the day that we can succeed in preventing and treating

child abuse - and our children are waitiag. Please au nut let us all run

ou'
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BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Relationship between Spouse Abuse and Child Abuse

Murray A. Straus, Richard J. Gelles & Suzanne K. Steinmetz,
Behind Closed Doois - Violence In The American Family, (New York:
ArTEE177Moks) 1980.

A national survey representative of American families -

Sample population: 2,143 families in 1976, interviews conducted
with 1060 men and 1,183 women; 1,146 having childyen between the
ages of three and seventeen livinin the home.

Relevant Findings:

Spouse abuse low for men and women with no children, increased
with each additional child up to six, and nonexistent in homes
with six, seven and eight children. Rate of wife abuse
was between 0 and 4 % with no children at home; increasing from
4% to 6% for families with one to five children,, and thereafter
declining. Rates are higher for Ipsband abuse reaching 9 % tgx
amilies with 5 children.

Couples with the lowest family income showed the rate of wife
abuse doubled from-one to two child homes. For higher
income groups the rate of husband-battering is three times greater in
two-child than in one-child homes.

ti

Parents of two children have rates of child abuse 50% higher
than parents who have one child. The highest rate of child abuse
exists in homes with five children.

Stress events identified: trouble wifth employment; arrest; death
in the family; pregnancy or childbirth; serious sickness or injury;
mortgage or loan foreclosure; seriods heal p: or behavior problem
in family; sexual difficulties; financial problems; divorce
and separation; move to another area; child problems with
school or criminal behavior.

I
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Rellationship between'delinquent behavior and child abuse

Department of Health & Rehabilitative Services, District 6 (Tempe)
Florida:

Longitudinal study of children reported to HRS for child abuse
since 1975 showed that 18.9% of these children were later referred
for delinquent offenses.

epartment of Health & Rehabilitative Services, Office of Evaluation
of the Inspector General -

Study in 1980 of children reported to the system state-wide
since 1978 showed that 35% of children referred to the agency for
child abuse had later referrals for delinquent offenses. This
figure represents a 22%incidence rate for children under 12 years;
and 44% for children over 12.

Alfaro, Select Commission on Child Abuse, New York 1978 - a five
year longitudinal study revealed:

a review of delinquent children referred to the system over
a 20 year period showed that 17 to 23 % of those referred had
been abused or neglected.

50% of families having a history of abusing one child show
referrals of a sibling for delinquency behavior

Gluecks, Unraveling Juvenile Delinquents - a longitudinal study
of 500%OelinqUent boys showed that they were twice as likely
to bee known to the system for abuse and neglect. A history
of abuse and neglect was found in 86% of the cases.

Study of Delinquency, Parental Psychoparthology and parental
criminology, Connecticut - a study of 218 children, 8.6% of
those with delinquent behavior were reported 4s ?bused and neglected
as opposed to a 1% incidence rate of child alitise, for non-delimptient
children. 36% of the abuse required hospitatlization, for sevete
head 4 facial trauma.

I
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Relationship between status offense behavior and child abuse

Department of Health andRehabilitative Services, Office of Evaluation
of the Inspector General - in a study to be published in December
1983, preliminary rough findings indicate:

Random sample of HRS referrals of status offenders (300) and
20 children in detention centers:

30% had been previously referred for child abuse or neglect
30% had 5 or more referrals to HRS for intervention and assistance
50% had been in at least pone program prior to the referral, 50%

in programs outside of the home, and 30 % in detenti n centers.
50% had diagnoses in the records for learning disability mental
retardation, emotional disturbance, or alcohol or drug ependence.

40% from families with mother present only (including live-in boyfriends
but excluding step-fAthers)

36% from unstable home environments

Judges responded that detention centers were used for placedent of
status offenders because there were-no other programs available
to protect the child.

M
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State of Florida legislative findings in support of the Child
Abuse Prevention Act , Florida Statute 827.075 (1982).

In 1979 the number of reported cases of sexual assault on
children in Florida increased by 600%.

70% o) more of all sex offenders have been the victims of a sexual
assa%ilt or have experienced a sexual trauma during childhood

Studies of prison populations have indicated that as many as 80 to
90%.of the inmates have been abused as children

65% of dependent'children admitted to state hospitals in 1978
had histories of abuse and neglect

38% of children who were abused or neglected have later known histories
of status offense or delinquent behavior

Child abuselis the reason 1509 children a year develop cerebral Palsy
/as a result of brain damage and many children become mentally
z9etarded.

The Le/islature recognizes the costs associated with abuse
and neglect not only with regard to the victimized child and family
but also hidden costs of child abuse in later generations

Only 18 to 23% of abuse and neglect cases in'a 21 year period were
required voluntarily or involuntarily to receive counseling or
services, and only 9% were judicially handled.

136
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what is a guardian ad Mem.?
Thousands of abused and neglected children become the subject of judicial
proceedings each year in Florida. Their voices are often unheard, and best
interests overlooked in the complicated and overburdened adversary process.
Guardians Ad Litem are citizens who volunteer to become part of a court
n "ogram to represent the best interests of an assigned child. The volunteer
Guardian Ad Litem is a representative for the child before the Court, eocial
service agencies and the community. He/ehe also protects the child during the
family crisis, court proceedings, and follows the child's progress after the Court
disposes of the case.

what does a guardian ad litem do?
The Guardian Ad Litem represents the best interests of the child in a variety of
ways. The Guardian Ad Litem is an:

investigator The Guardian Ad Litem independently conducts a thorough
investigation on behalf of the child. He/she interviews many
people: the child, counselors, pediatricians, psychiatrists and
psychologists, mental health professionals, people from the
neighborhood, schools, churches and law enforcement, and
friends. The Guardian Ad Litem also examines and collects
records from many sources concerning the child. The
Guardian Ad Litem then takes thislnformation to the experts
in the community for recommendations on what is best for the
child.

monitor The Guardian Ad Litem serves as a monitor of the agencies and
persons who provide services to the child. He/she assuree that
orders of the Court are carried out, and that families and
children in need receive the help that they should.

protector The Guardian Ad Litem protects the child from insensitive
questioning and the often harmful effects of being embroiled in
the advereary court process

spokesperson The Guardian Ad Litem assures that the child's wishee are
heard, and that the best interest of the child le preeentod to the
Court and agehclee dealing with the child

138
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reporter The Guardian Ad Litem presents information to the Court and
helps the Court determine what is in the child's best interest.
He!she prepares a written report which becomes a permanent
part of the child's record.

who assists the guardian ad litem in
performance of his/her functions?
Each area has a local program coordinator who trains volunteers, matches
cases and assists each Guardian Ad Litem in his work. Staffznembers assist the
Guardian Ad Litein in preparation of reports and other material. Erick& program
has a lawyer who advises volunteers on the protection of children's rights and
represents the Guardian Ad Liteth and the child in contested court proceedings.
In addition, each program has a network of community resources and experts
who are available to assist each Guardian Ad Litem.

who can be a guardian ad litem?
Apy person who has common sense an goodjudgement can be a Guardian Ad
Lltem. A Guardian Ad Litem does not hive to be a lawyer, counselor, therapist or
parent, since he:she does not perform these roles for the child, A volunteer
Guardian Ad Liter should be a person who has perhaps dealt with crises in
h,s3 her own life, afsd is capable of helping a child in crisis. He/she should be a
person who CARES . . and is able to give TIME to help a child. Volunteers will be
matched with children depending on how much time they are able to give, the
seriousness of the case, and the backgrounds of the volunteer and the child.
Cases usually require frum two to ten hours per week.

for further information contact:

139
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State of Florida Guardian Ad Litem PrograniOffice of the State Court:. AdministratorSupreme Court Building
TallJhassee, Florida 32301
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GUARDIAN AD LITEM PROGRAM

In 1978, the Florida Legislature enacted Florida Statute
b27.07(16) mandating the appointment of guardians ad litem to
.represept children in all abuse and nnglect judicial proceedings.
The 1980 Legislature funded a pilot project to be directed by the
Office of the State Courts Administrator to report the effective-
ness of three different models: representation by the Office of
the Puplic Defender; private attorneys; and, volunteer lay
citizlens.

The Office of the State Courts Administrator began pilot
testing a program utilizing lay citizen volunteer guardians ad
litem in child abuse and neglect cases in August, 1980. The
purposes of the project were: (1) to develop comprehensive train-
ing for volunteer lay citizens; (2) to implement several volunteer
guardian ad litem project* within selected judicial circuits of the
state; and, (3) to determind the comparative cost and quality
effectiveness of three methods of Florida's guardian ad litem
legislative mandate.

IMPLEMENTATION

By 1981, ten circuit programs had been implemented in the
state. Project staff in the Office of the State Courts Administra-
tor assisted circuit judges and court administrators in hiring and
training staff, which included a local director (Circuit Coordina-
tor), assistant, and program attorney. Each program is supervised
locally by judges and court administrators, with the assistance of
community advisory boards, and receives funding from the county for
physical support of the program. Additional staff support is
provided by local experts in the medical, mental health, law
enforcement, and social work professions, who donate their time in
training and advising volunteers. The program now functions in the
following areas:

Circuit Location

1st
ind

4th

tth
7th

1Ltn
lith
1.th

.

PensacOla
Tallahassee

Jacksonville
Clearwater
Daytona Beacn
Gainesville

Bartow
Miami
Sarasota
.mama CIty

Counties Served

Escamblia, Okaloosa, Santa Rosa, Walton
Franklin, Gadsden, Jefferson, Leon
Liberty, Wakulla
Clay, Duval, Nassau
Pasco, Pi ellas
Flagler, utnam, St. Johns, Volusia
Alachua, aker, Bradford, Gilchrist,
Levy, Un on
Hardee, Highlands, Polk
Dade
De Soto, Manatee, Sarasota
Bay, Calhoun, Gulf, Holmes, Jackson,
Washington

Fcrt La..;d:roale Broward

1 I o



18th Sanford
Titusville

20th Fort Myers
Naples
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Seminole
Brevard
Charlotte, Glades, Hendry, Lee
Collier

TRAINI NG AND EDUCATION

Comprehensive training manuals and curriculum were
developed for instruction of project staff and individual volun-
teers appointed to represent children. An audio- visual program was
developed to assist in public education and awareness of the
problems of abused and neglected children, and the need for
providing quality' representation to children in court proceedings.
With the assistance of program brochures, the audio-visual presen-
tation was used to recruit members of the community interested in
serving as guardians ad litem.

Staff training manuals outline the methods of implementing
'local programs, public education and recruitment, selecting and
supervising volunteers, and the use of community resources. Volun-
teer manuals instruct volunteers on the role and responsibilities
of guardians ad litem, skills necessary to perform duties, and the
types of resources available to the court for helping children.
Volunteers also receive in-depth training from staff in areas iden-
tified in the project's training curriculum.

The Grogram is presently developing a revised manual of
minimal standards for operation and procedures, curriculum, and
legal services.

EVALUATION

During the first year of program implementation, indepen-
dent evaluators determined that the volunteer model was the most
cost effective bised upon the data presented from 600 cases.
Volunteer guardians ad litem performed five major roles for the
child and court in each case:

Investisator: Volunteers conduct numerous hours of inde-
pendent investigation on behalf of the child. Such include inter-
views with medical professionals, mental health staff, sources tn
the neighborhood, the cnild's family, school officials, law
enforcement personnel, and the child. As well, volunteers collect
and review numerous records and documents. Over 60 percent of
volunteer time is spent investigating the allegations of ehild
abuse and neglect and preparing recommendations to the court.

Monitor: The volunteer assures that agencies and persons
provide services or communicate with the child properly, in
tdditIon to assuring that orders of the court are carried out.

141
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Protector: The volunteer protects the child from insensi-
tive questioning and the often harmful effects of being embroiled
in the adversary court process, and assures that legal counsel in
the program represent the child in contested legal proceedings.

s Spokesperson: The volunteer assures that the child's
# wishes are heard and that the best interest of the child is

presented to the court and agencies dealing with the child. .Volun-
teers spend significant time providing emotional support to the
child during the difficult judicial process.

Reporter: The volunteer presents information to the court
in a written form at each hearing in the proceeding to assist the
court in determining what is in the child's best interest.

Continued evaluation has shown that volunteer guardians ad
litem provide necessary services to the court and the child,
especially in the areas of monitoring the child's progress and
locating more effective resources for the child and family, or more
beneficial temporary placements for the child in thAcommunity.
The latter benefit saved the state monies in excesf of the cost of
the pilot project.

The guardian ad litem is viewed as an officer or "arm" of
the court, who presents an independent, objective analysis of the
facts to the judge prior to decision-making. Local supervision of
the prograth assures that staff and volunteers meet the needs of the
juvenile judge and children in varying communities of the state.

The program was found to have several humanistic benefits.
Volunteers have become more aware of local child abuse and neglect
problems and judicial proceedings. Each volunteer spends countless
hours in service to needy children in the juvenile system.
Additionally, volunteers bring prior professional and life
experiences to bear in helping children, and provide an intelli-
gent, thorough, common-sense approach to resolution of family
problems. They unite children with relatives (previously unknown
to local agencies) who provide more caring environments for the
child as opposed to institutional placements. When children are
`placed by the court back in the home of parents Suffering from
'protlems, the volunteer assures that the child is not further
encangered, and that the family receives necessary services from
cor-unity agencigs.

Evallators concluded that the pilot project should be
Implemented throughout the state in a permanent status. Their
reco--enCation was favorably accepted by the LegislatUre in 1982.

4
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SUMMARY

The State of Florida Guardian Ad Litem Program is a unique
approach to providing independent representpation to children and
needed information and assistance to juvenile judges. The program
has established*

minimum standards for screening,'tralning, and
suerviaing volunteers to assure quality performance. State tech-
blical assistance and coordination have provide& continued staff
'training, communication between programs, and ongoing data collec-
tion and case management of geographical, cultural, and economic
problems4faced by each program.

To date the program has repruited and trained over 900
volunteers who have represented 4,000 children in need.

Prepared Cy: Ellen Horfenterg, Esq.
State Program 21rector
State c: Florlma Guardian Ad Litem Program

Revised 1 April 19E3
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STATEMENT OF MARIO JARDON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
NORTHWEST DAI)E COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC,

Mr. JARDON. Thank you very much for giving me the opportunity
to present this testimony today. I would like to simply highlight
the major points of my statement.

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Mr. JARDON. First I direct a community mental health center

serving a population of about 250,000. In any gixen year, we see
about 2 percent, or '5,000 clients. We are averagikg about 80,000
race-to-face encounters in a year.

As against this background, on my way here I asked myself what
is the problem, so I could share with you the one I need the most
help with, sort of speaking before God. That problem has to do with
children that I think .Ms. Hoffenberg has referred largely to in her
presentation. I am talking about children who, before or after
being exposed to institutions, have no place to go.

I am talking about children kvho, for instance, are homicidal,
wish to kill their mothers, cannot remain in the home. The mother
is a rather poor person, has other childrqn in the family, teenagers
out of school, preschoolers, so on and so forth. And the child then
cannot remain in the home. We are also talking about children
who have failed in school, have learning problems, so on and so
forth.

I am also talking about children we see in emergency rooms,
throughout patient care, et cetera, Who come after years of expo-
sure or life in an institution or foster care, still with very severe
learning disabilities, very severe emotional disturbances, cannot be
managed in the school system; their parents, not having means to
take care of them.

And the children are given to us by agencies of the State's De-
partment of Health and Rehabilitative Services as being mentally
ill. They are not mentally retarded and, therefore, would not qual-
ify for other programs given to the mentally retarded. Yet we have
children who have ho place to go. And that is the issue, no pla6e
go.

A word about the system and why the system is incapable' of
taking care of these children. As good as the original Community
Mental Health Systems Act was in developing a program that has
made a major impact in the Nation in terms of reducing the level
of tertiary care, that is, meeting the needs of the mentally ill soon
enough so as to prevent major disability, it is obvious to us now,
after 20 years, that the original act did not contemplate the needs
of populations such as these.

The act provided for outpatient care, inpatient careaare for
people who had levels of skills or some resources that could be
maintained in the community. It did not quite address the needs of
very dependent populations, adult or children. The children that I
am addressing here, while the community health system developed,
largely were taken care of by State psychiatric hospitals, during
the initial phases, by foster care systems, and in many cases, by
private-run residential progri..ms.

All of these, dJ.le to one reason or another, ate not doing the job
anymore. To begin with, private programs can really impose very
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selective criteria. Believe it or not, there are children who fail the
criteria of many programs. So the child can no longer be in a pro-
gram and is.given back to the State for someone to take care of.

Fo4er care is used effectively in some short-term situations, but
frankly it cannot work when the major agenda that both the child
and family has is really not to fall in love with each other, because
it is considered to be a temporary arrangement.

State psychiatric hospitals, we know; have been the object of a
major policy to be, if not eliminated, at least reduced in scope be-
cause children who go to institutions really do not develop the
living skills necessary to become as productive or independent as
possible. The problem, as we face it today, is that we have no, alter-

, native.
We hav an established purchase of services ca e review commit-

tee that ets biweekly. At any point in time it ould have easily
20 childre afflicted by the most severe conditio for whom we
find no homes. As pointed out in my written testim ny, the entire
State of Florida maintains 87 children. From Da e County, we
have 87 children out of 390,000 in placement. i

In terms of other statistics that we know of, this ratio of less
than 2 per 10,000 is really ridiculous. What it shows is that we
simply do not have the facilities. When this case review committee
meets to discuss new cases coming up, there is no alternative.
There is no place to go. We have 18 in the State psychiatric hospi-
tal, 9 placed out of State. There isn't one more dollar. No place to
ge for these children. 0 .

Meanwhile, new children are constantly identified by the school
systems, by juvenile courts, by HIS agencies as needing immediate

. and long-term care. There is no place to go, no place to go.
So I came with a wish, a wish that I think is very cost effective

and has tremendous potential for alleviating pain in the lives of so
many of these children who really are not being taken care of by
anyone else in society. We know the State pays in excess of $4.8
million in out-of-State placements. From Dade County' alone, we
know about $1.7 million are used to

,
pay foe out-of-State place-

ments.
`If only we had a residence in the county, if only we had a facility

which is what the private entrepreneurs have', the capital. After all
of the years through the 1960's and 1970's, after all of the grand
years that we have had, the Federal Government's seed money con-
cept really never planted trees. There were never any big roots to
those Federal programs. We never purchased or acquired facilities.

In these kind of programs, the facility together v.ith the staffing
is what makes the program..I can assure you that a one-time grant
of no more than $1 stallion will provide easily for 40 beds, which I
am sure we could negotiate with the State of Florida in terms of
their providing the operational funds. In other words, we simply
would then contract with the State to provide those beds in this
community for those children who are out of State, State psychiat-
ric hospitals, and going nowhere.

We will get then the oKrational funds to run the facility. The
State would regulate its use. And I-am sure that we would allot sate
tremendous pain and tremendous human loss. That is my wish.
-A [Letter from Mario Jardon follows:]
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THE NORTIIWPST DADE COMMUNITY MENTAL. HEALTH CENTER, INC.,
Hialeah, FM., October 12, 198i.

Mr. Chairman George Miller and Members of the House,Select Committee on
Children, Youth and Families, I am pleased to have this opportunity to give testimo-
ny on behalf of children and families of Dade County.

There is consensus in the public mental health field about what can, and should
be, done in these times of reduced Federal spending and economic recession. The
first priority for public funding sources is to serve those in direst need. Need in this
context is defined not only in clinical terms based on the acuteneits or the chronicity
of the child's or family's syndrome, but'also, in terms of the socio-economic charac-
teristic that often are associated with severe illness..Children who are born in pov-
erty without parental support, are learning disabled or other whose organically im
paired, certainly need more. assistance than others who are not confronted by the
same ills.

Need also must be defined from the perspective of what it is that the present
system oficare can, or cannot do, for the neediest of children and their families.
After 20 years of the passing of the Community Mental Health Act by the late
President John F. Kennedy, we find a community based system consisting mostly of
outpatient psychiatric care, inpatient care in some cases and certainly little, if any,
residential care. Currently 87 out of 390,000.children of Dade County, are placed in
institutions. Eighteen of these reside at the State Psychiatric Hospital, nine are
placed out of State, which begins to give an indication that the issue not that
children of Dade County do not require residential placement but tha there is
hardly anything available. At any given point in time over 20 children a icted by
the most severe conditions languish for months in the waiting lists of 'e State's
established Purchase of Services Case Review Committee.

The State of Florida already spends about:34,380,000 in maintaining present
placehient slots. In view of the demand for funding from so many other underserved
groups. little relief can be expected short of the State's passing an income tax. An
implausible possibility. Yet the State of Florida spends about $1.7 million in out of
State placements, tvhich moneys could be used for maintenance of residences for
children in our communities assuming that the facility is available.

Thus, a pattern emerges for the revival of old alliances between Federal, State
and local agencies. As with the original Community Mental Health Act, construc-
tion moneys could be made available. A one time grant of $1 million to Dade County
would provide minimally 40 beds for short term and long term care purposes, which
likely would be financed operationally by the State.

This problem of homeless, dependent children takes place nationwide. Let the
Federal Government provide a home; let the States regulate and fund its operation
and let us local, concerned workers have the opportunity to give these children a
chalice for a goo4 life.

Sincerely,
MARIO E. JARGON, L.C.S.W.,

Executive Director.
%.

STAAMENT OF ANA RIVAS-VAZQUEZ, CLINICAL DIRECTOR,
CHILDREN'S PSYCHIATC CENTER,

Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Dr. RIVAS-VAZQUEZ. Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the children and

families of Dade County, I am pleased to give a brief report of the
services that the Children's Psychiatric Center, irk conjunction with
the Northwest Dade Community Mental 'Health Center, provide to
a segment of our population in this county. The Children's Psychi-
atric Center is a large private, nonprofit organization which has
served approximately 1,300 children and their families this past
year.

The Markenson Unit, of which I am director, and whose figures
and programs I will be presenting to you, is only one of the agen-
cy's three clinics. We are located in a highly Hispanic populated
area and have served this past year over )500 children and their
families and have in addition to that a father incredible waiting
list.
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At present, our active caseload is 240 families which include 860

ndiOiduals. During this past mon'th` of September, we opened 31
new cases of which 30 were Hispahics and 1 was Anglo. The ethnic
breakdown by country of origin was: 2g Cuban, 4 Colombian, 1
Chilean, 1 Mexican, and 1 Nicaraguan.

The range of our services include outpatient psychotherapeutic
treatment, both individual and family, outreach services to 5
schools in our area and 10 other schools in the area that: are des-
perately asking us for services, educational progranis for parents, .
psychiatric consultations and an adolescent day care center..

In the short 3 years which we have worked in close association
with the Northwest Dade Community Mental Health Center, we
have developed a whole array of needed prograrhs to serve our very
needy and deprived community. We developed,a summer accultura-
tion camp, a thetapeiltic nursery, a therapeutic group home for
girls, and independent living pilot project for 18- to 21 -year olds, as
well as an adolescent treatment center. Due to cutstn fpnds, all of
these special programs, with the exception of the adolescent treat-
ment center, are defunct at present.

Yet the need has not ceased and by no means is abating in terms
of the political reality in Latin America. I am a Cuban American
that came to this country 23 years ago. Initially the big influx was
of Cubans. Right now we are getting South Americans, Central
Americans, Nicaraguans, people from all over the country. They
are here. We have to listen to them.

Please let us not think of this as a need of an interest group, but
as a mental health priority. The influx and' migration to our shores
has not stopped. These groups all have specific needs and charac-
teristics that we need to address. Have no doubt that we are talk-
ing about a population at risk with many extremely emotionally
disturbed youngsters going through the traumatic experience of ac-
culturation, of migration and resettlement.

Help them now and rather than seeing them go to jails or
mental hospitals, let us aid them in becoming productive citizens in
this free society. The reality is dramatic, but the choice is simple.
Pay now or pay later. Pay now; that is, provide adequate programs
on a priority basis for these minorities, or pay later in bigger an4
more inflated dollars when the taxpayers will then have to bear
the brunt of delinquency, crime and mental illness.

[Prepared statement of Ana Rivas-Vazquez follows:]
PREPARED STATEMENT OF ANA A. RIVAS-VAZQUEZ, PH.D. CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGIST AND

CLINICAL DIRECTOR, MARKENSON UNIT, THE CHILDREN' PSYCHIATRIC CENTER, INC.

On behalf of the children and families of Dade County, I am pleased to give a
blef reivrt of the services that The Children's Psychiatric Center, in conjunction
with the Northwest Dade Community Mental Health Center, provide to a segment
of our population in this Coulity. The Children's Psychiatric Center is a large pH-
vale, non-profit organization which has served approximately 1,300 children and
their families this past year. The Markenson Unitof which I am Directorand
whose figures and programs I will be presenting to youis only one of the Agency's
three clinics. We are located in a highly Hispanic populated area and have served
this past year over 500 children and their families. At present our active case load is
240 families which include 860 individuals. During this past month of September,
we opened 31 new cases of which :30 Were Hispanics and bne was Anglo. The ethnic ;
breakdown by country of origin was: 23 Cuban, 4 Colombian, 1 Chilean, 1 Mexican
and 1 Nicaraguan. The range of our services include out-patient psychotherapeutic
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treatmentboth inilividu f '1 each services to 5 schools in our area,
educational programs for paren iatric consultations, and an adolescent day
care center.

In the short 3 years which we have wor.ited in close association with the North-
west Dade Community Mental Health Center, we have developed a whole array of
needed programs to serve our very needy and deprived community. We developed a
summer acculturation camp, a therapeutic nursery, a therapeutic group home for
girls, and Iikependent Living Pilot Project for 18 to 21 year olds, as well as an Ado-
lescent TreEirment Center. Due to cute in funds all of these special programs with
the exceptiortabf they Adolescent Treatment Center are defunct at present. Yet the
need has not ceased and by no means is abating in terms of the political reality ig
Latin America. Please let us not think of this as a n of an interest group, but as
a mental health priority. The influx and migration bur shores has not stopped.,
These groups all have specific needs and characteristics that we need to address.
Have no doubt that we are talking about a population at risk with many extremely
emotionally disturbed youngsters, going through the traumatic experience of migra-
tion and resettlement. Help them now, and, rather than seeing them go to jails or
mental hospitals, let us aid them in becoming productive citizens in this free coun-
try. The reality is dramatic, but the choice is simple. Pay now, or pap' later. Pay
nowthat is, provide adequate programs on.a priority basis for these minoritiesot
pay later in bigger and more inflated dollars when the tax payers will then have to
bear the brunt of delinquency, crime and mental illness.

t
STA MENT OF MARIE MITCHELL, COORDINATOR, TEEN

SINVICES PROGRAM, GRAM' MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
Ms. MITCHELL. Mr. Chairman, I am Marie MitChell. Thank you

very much for asking me to testify about helping young people
postpone sexual involvement. Teenage pregnancy is a ser. na-
tional problem affecting every community in the Uni Sta s.
Young people who give birth at an early age are m e ikely to
have complications during pregnancy, to die in childbirth and to
have a low birth weight baby, which is associated with mental re-
tardation, than are women wh give birth in their 20's.

The health outcomes are j st one aspect of teenage pregnancy.
Pregnancy for the young gir is also an emotional experience, one
that affects her view of herself, her relationship with others andlr attitude toward a child. There are educational vocational out-
comes as well.

The young mother who is provided with education during preg-
nancy and encouraged to return to school following the birth of her
baby is much more likely to finish school and, therefore, much less
likely to experience unemployment, underemployment, and welfare
dependency.

Grady Memorial Hospital has long been concerned and involved
with the problem of teenage pregnancy. It was the site of one of
to firs, maternal and infant care projects funded in the country,
charged, with providing care to higher risk women who are preg-
nant. It established a specialized service for all adolescents 15 and
under who became pregnant, as well as a service to provide family
planning services to adolescents 16 and under who gave birth to a
baby. .

The department of gynecology, and obstetrics at Emory Universi-
ty, working with Grady Hospital and the Atlanta public school
system, also began the first pilot program in a major school system
that permitted pregnant girls to remain in school with special sup-
ports. Following this pilot program, the Atlanta public schools
passed a resolution making them the first major school system in
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the country to permit pregnant girls to camain in their regular
classroom.

Since that time, Grady Hospital has put increased effort into
pregnancy prevention),In 1976, we entered into a formal agreement
with Atlanta public schools to provide human sexuality education
to all eighth grade students, with the goal by 1981 to Have educated
all 13- to 16-year-old children in the school system, some 21,000
young men and women. Hence, the Atlanta community is one in
which commonly proposed solutions to teenage pregnancy, sex edu-
cation, and birth control are already in place and having whatever
impact they can have.

The fact that the teen pregnancy rate has been reduced since im-
plementation of these services show that such services are neces-

. sary and can have some effect. Indeed, Fulton County, which in-
cludes Atlanta, has lower pregnancy rates than the rest of Georgia
as a whole,

The fact that the teen pregnancy rate remains unacceptably
high, however, probably means they are not totally sufficient for
dealing with the problem. "Postponing Sexual Involvement," an
education series for young people, age 13 to 15, is a new approach
aimed at reducing teenage pregnancy by reducing the number of
teens that become sexually involved.

Developed by the teen service program of Grady Hospital and
the department of gynecology and obstetrics at Emory University,
the "Postponing Sexual Involvement" series is being offered to
schools and community groups throughout the State of Georgia be-
ginning in the late fall of 1983.

The "Postponing Sexual Involvement" series does not offer factu-
al. information about reproduction, nor does it discuss family plan-
ning. It concentrates on the social and peer pressures which lead
youth into early sexual behavior. Its major emphasis is on building
skills which help young people deal with these pressures.

One of the main ways in which postponing sexual involvement
differs from most sex education programs is that it starts with a
given value. You ought not to be having sex at a young age. Every-
thing in the series is designed to reinforce this value. All informa-
tion, exercises, and skill building are aimed at helping the young
person carry out the decision not to have sex at a young age.

Another principal difference in this apprOach is most sex educa-
tion programs currently being used in this country use a decision-
making model. Young people are asked to consider facts, alterna-
tives, and make choices based on consideration of these and possi-
ble outcomes or consequences. Such a model may indeed be the
most appropriate one for older students. However, according to
noted psychologist Piaget and other theorists, the ability to move
from concrete to operational thinking and, therefore, to make de,1-
sions based on future orientation, starts somewhere around the age
of 11 and is not complete until about age 15 or 16.

Thus, those providing information to adolescents 16 and under
about human sexuality and family planning maybe facing a group
with diverse cognitive development. Some young people may well

be able to grasp and apply the decisionmaking model which hinges
heavily on weighing alternatives and consequences and making

149

at



'

145

choices based on the ability to conceive the future. Others may find
such a model too advanced for their cognitive state.

The challenge for us, then, became to develop another teaching,
information-giving tool to help young people protect their fertility
and act responsibly until such a time as they are cognitively able
to apply a full clecisionmaking approach to their sexual choices..
The need for a curriculum such as the "Postponing.Sexual Involve-
ment" series, which aims at helping young people 15 and under
gain skills to deal with both early sexual maturity and social, and
peer pressures, is made more imperative by the fact that the aver-
age age of fertility among young women has now dropped to about
121/2 , and the age at first intercourse is also earlier than it had pre-: viously been.

A study done in 1979 by Kantner and Zelnik indicated that 22.5
percent of 15-year-olds at that period had already had intercourse,
up from 14.7 in 1970. Through funds granted, by; the Georgia De-
partment of Human Resources, the Mary Reynolds Babcock Foun-
dation, Cleveland Foundation and George Gunn Foundation of
Cleveland, the series "Postponing Sexual Involvement" was field
tested on approximately 1,500 people in Atlanta, Ga., and Cleve-
land, Ohio.

The goal of the field test was to ascertain acceptance level by
both the community and participants, as well as to learn what de-
livery styles are most effective. Preliminary findings indicate that
while the series can be effectively led by an adult leader or peer
leaders, peer leaders are most effective. The young participants of
the series understandably identify, more with their peers. They felt
the peer leaders were going through and experiencing many of the
same feelings and pressures they were experiencing.

Other findings of the field test indicated that the series is effec-
tive when used in a variety of settings, such as girls clubs, boys
clubs, housing projects, schools, or church groups. Acceptable and
effective with a variety of ethnic and socioeconomic groups, effec-
tive with girls groups alone and boys groups alone, but it was
thought to be most effective when the young groups were com-
bined.

The "Postponing Sexual Involvement'' series also has an impor-
tant parental involvement component that was tested. In half cf
the field test sessions parents were asked to participate. They re-
ceived the same information and went through some of the same
exercises as the young people did, but in separate rooms. The pur-
pose of this was based on experiences with other educational pro-

- grams.
For example, when the new math was first implemented in

public schools, a whole generation of parents was frustrated and
upset about not being able to help their children with their home-
work. We felt that if we were attempting to give young people a
new mindset about postponing sexual involvement we needed to
share that with parents. It is our expectation that parents would
not only acquire a better understanding of the implications of the
sexual pressures young people are experiencing, but also become
reinforcement agents for the series.

The series on how tc say no was designed to provide young
people with tools to help them bridge the gap between their physi-
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cal development and their cognitive ability to handle the implica-
tions of such development. It was not designed to replace the provi-
sion of factual informationeabout human sexuality and family plan-
ning.

It is our feeling that teens who decide not to have sex get little,
support and few rewards from agencies and others for their behav-
ior. Programs and support systems are designed for those who have
sexual intercourse and/or become pregnant, not for those who
don't. The "Postponing Sexual Involvement" series can, at a Mini-
mum, strengthen the resolve of young people who have already de-
cided they don't want to become sexually involved and make them
feel supported in their decision.

For those whi are ambivalent about Jpeginning to have sexual
intercourse, it can help them develop ,attitudes and skills which
will assist them in postponing sexual activity. It can also help sexu-
ally involved young people. A random survey of the Emory/Grady
Teen Services clinic population of sexually active girls 16 and
under showed surprisingly that what they most wanted informa
tion on was how to say no without hurting the other persons feel-
ings. Thus, the curriculum also has the potential for helping these
young people communicate more effectively in their current and
future relationships.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Marie Mitchell follows:1

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARIE E. MITCHELL, R.N., PROGRAM SUPERVISOR. TEEN
SERVICES, GRADY HOSPITAL, ATLANTA, GA.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I have been asked to testify about
helping young people postpone sexual involvement because teenag" pregnancy is a
serious national problem affecting every community in the United States. Young
people who give birth at a young age, art more likely to have complications during
pregnancy, to die in childbirth, and to have low birth weight babies which is associ-
ated with mental retardation, than are women who giVe birth in their twenties.

The health outcomes are just one aspect of teenage pregnancy. Pregnancy for the
young girl is also an emotional experience, one that effects her view of herself, her
relationships with others, and her attitude toward her child. It is especially impera-
tive for the young person that the pregnancy be a positive experience. How the
young mother feels about herself is often dependent upon the support and attitudes
conveyed to her by those she is most in contact with: family, relatives, friends, those
in youth-serving institutions such as schools. How the young mother feels about her -
elf directly influences how she will view her child and her parenting role.

' There are educational/vocational outcomes as well. The young mother who is pro-
vided with education during pregnancy and encouraged to return to school following
the birth of her baby is much more likely to finish school and therefore much less
likely to experience unemployment, underemployment and welfare dependency.

Often in our attempt to label problems and develop programs to meet them, we
arbitarily segment our view of peoplein this case teenage girls and boys. We tend
to forget the pregnant teenager, the prospective young father were only a few
months before part of the mainstream of other teenagers. We tend to forget the
young teenage mother of today before that was one of the many teens 'who are
tempted to engage in sexual activity at an early age. The young person is one and
the same and at whatever stage she or he is in, she or he needs our concern and
help. Programs need to be designed and. implemented around all aspects of teenage
sexuality, teenage pregnancy, and parenthood. In that process we must be particu-
larly aware of the fact the one unit that is always involved with the young person is
the family and it is the family's support that often is the final factor in : iaking
difference in outcomes fyr young people.

For example. of those single teen mothers who lived with parents or relatives, W2
percent were graduated from high school, compared to just 41 percent of those who
11%1i alone, 60 percent got jobs, compared to just .11 percent of those who lived
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alone, and only 43 percent received welfare assistance, compared to 65 percent of
the young mothers who lived away from their parents. When grandparents or the
father of the child helped the teenager care for the baby, the child's cognitive devel-
opment was found to be superior to that of children brought up by a young mother
alone.

The family's important role is one of the reasons in designing the educational
series "Postponing Sexual Involvement" which I am about to discuss, that we struc-
tured a component to help parents better help their young people resist pressures to
become sexually involved and therefore help protect them from pregnancy and sexu-
ally transmitted diseases.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, Grady Memorial Hospital has long
beeirconcerned with and involved with the problem of teenage pregnancy. Grady
Hospital was the site of one of the first Maternal and Infant Care Projects funded in
the United States. Charged with providing care to highrisk women who were pregnunt, it established a specialized, service for all adolescents 15 and under who
became pregnant. Its also established an interconceptional care program to assist all
adolescents Hi and under who gave birth to a baby with future family planning
needs. The Department of Gynecology and Obstetrics at Emory University working
with Grady Hospital and the Atlanta Public Schools also began the first pilot pro-
gram in a major school system that permitted pregnant girls to remain in school
with special supports. Following this pilot program, the Atlanta Public Schools
passed a resolution making them the first major school system in the United States
to permit prifgnant girls to remain in their regular school classrooms.

Since that time Grady Memorial Hospital has put increased efforts into pregnan-
cy prevention. The interconceptional care program was changed to the Teen Serv-
ices Program Lind a thrust toward prevention of the first pregnancy was added to
the effort of prevention of second pregnancies among adolescents. The Teen Services
Program in I976 entered into a formal agreement with the Atlanta Public Schools
to provide human sexuality education to all eighth grade studentsthe goal by 1981
to have educated all 13 to 16-year-olds in the Atlanta Public Schools, 21,000 young
men and young women.

Hence, the Atlanta Community is one in which commonly proposed solution to
teen pregnancy (sex education and birth control) are already in place and are
having whatever impact they can have. The fact that the teen pregnancy rate here
has been rt.duced\tiiitce implementation of these services shows that such services
are necessary and can have some effect. Indeed Fulton County (Atlanta) has lower
pregnancy rates than the rest of Georgia as a whole. The fact that the teen preg-
nancy rate remains unacceptably high, however, probably means they are not suffi-
cient for dealing with the problem.

"Postponing Sexual Involvement: An Education Series for Young People Age 13-1:i is a new approach aimed at reducing the teenage pregnancy rate by reducing
the number of teens who became sexually involved. Developed by the Teen Services
Program of Grady Memorial Hospital and the Department of Gynecology and Ob-
sttrics at Emory University. The Postponing Sexual Involvement series is being of-fered to schools and community groups throughout the state of Georgia beginning in
late fall 1933.

The "Postponing Sexual Involvement Series" does not offer factual information
about reproduction. nor does it discuss family planning.'It concentrates on the social
and peer pressures which lead youth into early sexual behavior, and its major em-phasis is on building skills which help young people deal with these pressures.

One main way in which the Postponing Sexual Involvement curriculum differs
from most sex education programs is that it starts with a given value: "You ought
not to he having sex at a young age. Everything in the series is designed to rein-
force this value. MI information, exercises, and skill building are aimed at helpingthe young person carry out the decision not to have have sex at a young age. Al.
though traditional sex education programs often implicitly have that as a hoped-for
outcome, they generally include information on birth control so that if the young
people do choose to have sex, they can behave responsibly. This Series avoids thedouble message implicit in such programs.

Another principal difference is in the approach. Most sex education programs
throughout the country (and the one employed by the Teen Services Program in the

:mita Public Schools) use a decision-making model. Young people are asked to
consider values. facts, and alternatives and then make choices based on consider
:itiun of these and possible outcomes or consequences. Such a model may indeed he
the most appropriate one for older students However, according to noted psycholo-
gist Plaget and other theorists. the ability to move from concrete to opt-rationalthinking therelort., to made decision,y based on a future orientittioni involves a
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gradual shift Martin? somewhere around 11 and not completed until about age 15 or
16. Thus those providing information to adolescents 16 and younger about human
sexuality and family planning may be facing a group with diverse cognitive develop-
ment. Some of the young people may well be able to grasp and apply the decision
making model (which hinges heavily on weighing alternatives and consequences and
making choices based on ability to conceive the future); others may find such a
model too advanced fpr their/tognitive stage.

The challenge thus becomes to develop other teaching information-giving tools to
help young people their fertility and act responsibly until such time as they are cog-
nitively able to apply a full decision-making approach to sexual choices. The need
for a curriculum such as the Postponing Sexual Involvement Series, which aims at
helping young people (15 and younger) gain skills to deal with both early sexual ma
turity and social and peer sexual pressures, is made more imperative by the fact
that the average age of fertility among young women has now dropped to 12.5, and
the age at first intercourse is also earlier that it has previously been. A 1979 study
by Kantner and Zelnik indicated that 22.6 percent of the 15-year olds at that period
had already had intercourse (up from 14.7 percent in 1970).

The Postponing Series is different, too, in that it is not based, as are many sex
education programs, on the notion that knowledge alone can change behavior. That
this notion is not always so is seen clearly from smoking behavior. Despite wide-
spread knowledge that smoking causes cancer, millions of people still smoke. Hence,
the Series emphasis is not on knowledge itself, but on participatory exercises, skill
building, reinforcement, and practice.

Another contrast is that the Series doe not use the "role plays" common to many
sex education programs, in which young people experience being in a situation
before it happens to them and, in an open-ended framework, play out to whatevar
conclusion emerges. Role plays are an excellent teaching tool, but since the Postpon:
ing Series is designed to support one value, role plays are not used on the chance
that the result might not reinforce the desired value of postponment. Instead, young
people are given a situation similar to one might be given in a role play, but are
told to write a skit in which the lead character (male or female) has to say "no" to
the pressure he or she is receiving.

Through funds granted by the Georgia Department of Human Resources, The
Mary Reynolds Babcock Foundation, The Cleveland Foundation and the George
Fund Foundation, The Series on Postponing Sexual Involvement was field tested on
approximately 1500 people in Atlanta, Georgia and Cleveland, Ohio. The goal of the
field test was to ascertain the acceptance level by both the Community and the pat-
ticipants (parents and young people), as well as to learn what delivery styles are
most effective. Our preliminary findings indicate that while the series can be effec-
tively lead by an adult leader or peer leaderspeer leaders are most effective. The
young participants in the series understandably identified more with the peers.
They felt the peer leaders were going through and experiencing many of the feel-
ings and pressures they are experiencing.

Other findings of the field test indicated the series is: effective when used in a
variety of settings (Girl's Clubs, Boy's Clubs, housing projects, schools or church
groups); acceptable and effective with a variety of ethnic and socio-economic groups;
and effective with girl's groups alone and boy's groups alone, but was thought to be
the most effective when the groups are combined.

The Postponing Sexual Involvement Series also has an important parental in
volvement component that was tested. In half of the field test sessions, parents were
asked to participate. They received the same information and went through the
same exercises as the young people did (but in a separate room). The purpose of this
was based on experiences with other educational programs. For example, when the
"new math" was first implemented in the public schools a whole generation of par-
ents were frustrated and upset about not being able to help their children with
their homework. We felt that if we're attempting to give young people a new "mind-
set" about postponing sexual involvement, we need to share that with the parents.
It was our expectation that parents would not only acquire a better understanding
of the implications of the sexual pressures young people are experiencing but would
also become reinforcement agents for the series.

Thus far, interim field-test results show overwhelmingly positive community re-
sponse to this program. Many community groups, including several church groups,
have found the Series to be the first program acceptable to them and have eagerly
asked to have it given to their parents and young people. We have also found the
parents to be enthusiastically responsive. To this point, no parents have refused to
let their child be involved, and they have been among those most likely to call on
behalf of their church. school or other organization asking to have a Series present.
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ed. In sessions where parents are invited to participate, at least half have attended.
In this time of working parents, small nuclear families, and single-parent house-
holds, we feel that having over half the parents participate in The Series is extraor-
dinaryr-We have also had a good response rrom the young people themselves who
indicate that they have been made more aware of the sexual pressures they receive
and feel more confident in their ability to respond to pressure. One-year field test
follo,w-ups will help us learn more about what parents, young people, and particpat-
ing groups feel the impact of the the Series has been.

Structure pnd content: The Series is divided into four sessions, each one and one-
half hours long. The first three sessions are given fairly close together, either on the
three consecutive nights or once a week on three consecutive weeks. The fourth ses-
sion is given as a reinforcement session anywhere from three to six months later.

The first session presents information and exercises relating to social pressure.
Participants are given opportunities to explore why they feel young people engage
in sex at an early age. The reasons they give most often show what need they are
trying to meet. The leaders then help the young people to see that these needs ("to
be popular," "to hang onto a boyfriend," etc.) will not necessarily be met by having
sexual intercourse. This session also gives young people opportunities to look at the
actual social pressures of today's world. For example, the advertistments that use
sex to sell products are examined objective:y. Leaders help young people understand
that what often happens is that people forget about the product but remember the
sexual message.

Session II presents information and exercises relating to peer pressure, both in
group situations and on a one-to-one basis. Young people are given opportunities to
become familiar with common pressure statements and, after responses are modeled
for them. they practice responding in their own words. Session III presents informa-
tion and exercises relating to problem solving. It promotes understanding of the ap-
propriitteness of limiting physical expression of affection and, through the develop-
ment and performance of skits, provides guidance in handling difficult social situa-
tions. Session IV provides reinforcement exercises for using new skills.

Summary: The Series on 'how to say no" was designed to provide young people
with tools to help them bridge the gap between their physical development and
their cognitive ability to handle the implications of such development. It was not
designki to repla.e the provision of factual inforthation about human sexuality and
family planning. It is.our feeling that teens who decide not to have sex get little
support and few rewards from agencies and others for their behavior. Programs and
support sytlems are designed for those who have sexual intercourse and/or become
pregnant. not for those who don't.

The Postponing Sexual Involvement Series can, at a minimum, strenghten the re-
solve of young people who have already decided they don't want to become sexually
involved. and make they feel supported in their decision. For those who are ambiva-
lent about beginning to have sexual intercourse, it can help them develop attitudes
and skills which will assist them in postponing sexual activity. It can also help sexu-
ally involved young people, A random sample survey of the Emory-Grady Teen
Services clinic population of sexually active girls 16 and under showed, surprisingly,
that what they most wanted information on was "how to say no without hurting the
other person's feelings". Thus. the curriculum also has the potential for helping
t her young people communicate more effectively in their current and future rela-
tionships

( hairman MILLER. Thank you. Dr. Pressman.

STATEMENT OF MA1TRIE PRESSMAN

Dr. PREssmAN. Mr. Chairman, members of the select committee,
I too want to thank you for this privilege of being here and offering
test imony.

I want to say that I too want to be a hero by being extemporane-
ous, but I am afraid I don't have enough courage. I am afraid I will
leave something out, so I will make a promise that my presentation
will take Hl minutes.

[laving said that, I would like to In. xsemporaneous for a
moment. That is----

Chairman MILLER. flaring your cake and eating it too, you know.
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Dr. PRESSMAN. Right. Frankly, I would like to make my contribu-
tion, so I will be addressing the problem of health care in the
United States, especially to youth and children, but not only them.

I would like to also suggest that we follow the wisdom of the sage
that said it is better to give a fishing pole than a fish, ant, to try to
encourage that principle as we go on, to see programs which will in
turn produce for society so they may in turn fund themselves. So
much for courage.

The present, ctisis in burgeoning health care costs provides a
background for a new approach for the alleviation of human suffer-
ing of medical illness and of America's health.

Our crisis will be addressed by seizing it with two prongs of the
tong:

On the one hand, to increase efficiency and thereby reducing
health care costs, but, on the other, to alleviate suffering by the
promotion of health and wellness and the release of human poten-
tial.

This is relevant to all ages, but most paiticularly to children and
youth.

For some time now we haye been aware that the application of
psychiatric or psychological consultation to the general medical pa-
tient reduces the need for overall medical care dramatically. This
has been very well described in a series of studies which have been
gathered together by Kenneth R. Jones and Thomas R. Vischi.

Their publiption in Medical Care, an official journal of the med-
ical care secn of the American Public Health Association, pro-
vides an excellent review of the literature concerning the impact of
alcohol, drug abuse, and mental health treatment on medical care
utilization.

This was published in December 1979, and is furnished as an ap-
pendix of this presentation, describing the studies which reach
back to 1967 and their impact upon the practice of American medi-
cine and, therefore, their impact upon the reduction of health care
costs has been negligible.

It is well known that the rate of progression of health care ex-
penses is alarming to the point of bankrupting our economy, our
country, and private corporate efforts in the foreseeable future.

The review of the research literature by Jones and Vischi coordi-
nates with clinical observations to the effect that our medical
schools focus for the most part upon material and physical phe-
nomena.

Laboratory studies and physical findings and history revolve
upon so-called objective data. -

The psychological investigation of the individual is minimized as
less pure and less scientific. At the same time, we see that human
suffering is always a mixture, an alloy of physical organic phenom-
ena and psychological phenomena.

The rapid progression of neurochemical research in the field of
psychiatry now brings to bear knowledge about the so-called place-
bo effect. The placebo, once scorned as a contribution of imagina-
tion, is now recognized as a powerful instrument, perhaps produc-
ing positive results in 30 to 40 percent of the research population,
and mediated by the mobilization of the body's own stores of mor-
phine or endorphins, and related substances.

15:)
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Expanding research indicates that the psychological effects have
everything to do with the management of anxiety and, in fact, that
there are abroad in the body, the body's own analogues of valium
and librium, the well-known tranquilizers.

Therefore, we are rapidly build,ing a view of the bridges which
exist between the powers of the mind and the chemical responses
of the body.

All of this coordinates well with the fact that psychological fac-
tors have everything to do with the genesis of illness and with the
rate of recovery. Unfortunately, our medical body is still trained
eschew the investigation of psychological factors; therefore, if
.one comes into the hospital with low back pain, even low bac
which may be predicated upon a visible herniated disc, attent
directed toward stretching the patient, giving him muscle rela
and to let it go at that. The point I was trying to make is that
well knownthat psychological factors participate importantly.

Now, this ignoring of the psychological factor is indeed unfortu-
nate, for it is well recognized by orthopedists that psychological fac-
tors contribute even to those proven organic cases of herniated
disc.

The patient, once stretched, may recover and then be sent hop
to the very factors which generated anxiety and the problem in'the
first place, to ,,rigger the organic event.

This is, indeed, unfortunate, for it is now easy to investigate psy-
chological events and to take care of them with modern and rapid
techniques for managing anxiety, family problems, sexual difficul-
ties, and so on.

This brief example, as it pertains to low back pain, can be multi-
plied many times in ,terms of the management of hypertension.
High blood pressure is symptom of stress in by far the predomi-
nant number of cases, rather than the outgrowth of kidney disturb-
ances, GI disturbances, and many so-called idiopathic disorders.

The result, therefore, is that perhaps a most important determin-
ing cause of medical suffering is unrecognized, often the root of the
trouble is not eradicated, the patient returns repeatedly to the phy-
sician's office, or hospital, wherein the over-established ideal is
practiced of investigating the patient with X-rays, CT scans, labora-
tory studies, and various other physical approaches, while the im-
portant contributory agency remains undisclvered.

It is my firm belief, buttressed by such studies as that by Jones
and Vischi, that the mandating of brief psychological investigation
and when indicated brief psychological treatment will significantly
reduce this phenomenon of partial diagnog:.; and significantly
reduce, therefore, the need for repeated expensive laboratory and
X-ray studies, as well as repeated experisive hospitalizations.

This approach of mixing psyoliglogical diagnosis with medical di-
agnosis can now be supported and buttressed by the fact that we do
have so many new and effective psychochemical and rapid treat-
ment approaches to patients.

So much. for the addressing of an issue of reducing health care
costs through the application of psychological diagnosis. What
about reducing the need for crisis health care through the applica-
tion of health and wellness principles and the release of human po-
tential.'
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What about the application of this to the specific issues of child,
youth and family services?

It was Freud's great discovery that a huge portion of the mind
operates unconsciouslybeyond the patient's awareness. Whereas
psychoanalysis has proven to be a very expensive annime-consum-
ing treatment, its gift to the medical profession resides in its func-
tioning 'very much like an X-ray of the mind.

By the appliCation of psychodynamic spectacles, we can, so to
speak, look inside a person and Bee where his potential lies, where
his hidden well-springs of desire and interests lie; where his barri-
cades of anxiety and inhibition reside, barricades which prevent
the flow of interest.

It is our firm belief that if one can assist a person of any age to
find the source of his hidden well-springs of interest and help those
springs to flow, that the result will be a free flow of interested ac-
tivity, a better result in terms of the product, and a smooth-func-
tioning human organism who is so engaged in his pleasureful and
productive activities that time becomes a seOndary factor.

The basic theme is that if we can discover the base of the hidden
potential of the human being and release it, if we can do this by
also removing the inhibitions and false anxieties which may pre-
vent him from following his star, we can enable an individual to
flow. The benefits will reside not only in increased mental health,
but also its corollary, increased physiological health.

Experience with Olympic athletes, "Mind Over Figures," Skating
magazine, 1978; "Psychological Techniques for the Advancement, of
Sports Potential," Coach, Athlete, and the Sports Psychologist,
1979, "Psychological Techniques for the Advancement of Spnrts Po-
tential," Psychology in Sports: Methods and Applications, 1980;
"Psychodynamic Experiences in an Olympic Skating Camp," Sport
Psychology: An Analysis of Athlete Behavior, 1980, indicate that it
is much easier to work with a well poptilation than with a popula-
tion which is medically or psychologically at risk. The psychologi-
cal and psychotherapeutic instruments which, when applied to the
neurotic or sicker patient, require a great and repeated push in
order to move the patient forward, produce a quite different result
in the well and well-motivated person. Such people as the Olympic
aspirates would seize the opportunities which were offered with
these new techniques and spring forward, as would a spring re-
leased from a closed box.

We, therefore, propose a program called "fitness by five," and
here I would like to pay tribute to Dr. Marvin Clein, formerly of
the University of Denver, who authored and elaborated this idea.

"Fitness by five" is a matter of producing an optimal state in a
child by the time he is 5 years old. This rests upon applying the
same techniques to the developing child as we apply to the Olympic
athlete; namely, to take a biomechanical assessment of his various
muscles, bones, joints, and see wherein his weaknesses and
strengths lie, and then to create a program to develop that poten-
tial to its fullest.

Similarly with the inner physiology, to develop to its optimum
the cardiovascular, the respiratory, the neurological apparatus.

Similarly with the psychological apparatus, the child would be
evaluated psychologically. His areas of weakness and potential sur-
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veyed and a program laid forth which would help him to develop in .
the best possible way.

This same tripartite formula, biomechanical, exercise, physiologi-
cal, psychological,would be applied similarly to members of the
family, as well as recreational athletes.

Applying ,this formula to the sport of choice will allow the person
to improve his physical and psychological health, becoming better
at his chosen recreational athletic activity.

The application of the formula of fitness by five also implies the
need for an important educational process.

We thoroughly believe that education and the promulgation of
knowledge can be a powerful instrument for good if it is distributed
in an atmosphere in which the *soil, so to speak, will lap up the
liquid of knowledge.

Accordingly, we would propose the prom dation of information
to families through not only conventional means, but also floppy
discs, inexpensively manufactured and carrying a message of 9 to
10 minutes, sent to the heart of the household, usually the mother,
to distribute knowledge gathered by and discussed by the best au-
thorities in the field-We would educate in areas of normal psycho-
logical development and pitfalls of psychological health, being in
the areas of child rearing, sexual difficulties amongst parents, drug
addiction, and many others. This suggestion, of course, does not
preclude the use of conventional outlets for the distribution of in-
formation, but possibly is a novelty which can spread information
of well recognized authorities in a way that will captute the inter-
est of the family for 9 to 10 minutes.

Health fitness centers. As testimony of that, we are on the verge
of developing such a center, hopefully in a morein a rounder way
in Ocala, with Mr. Sid Colen. Sid Colen is a developer who is very
optimistic, I believe. He is developing a!90,000-person city there. He
wanted to name the city "Icare," so people would go around saying
they are from kare. It would take the concept to the well person
and apply it to the people to help people assess physiological age,
assess areas of strength and weakness and promote those both in
the physical and physiological spheres, as well as in terms of edu-
cation and psychological sphereto apply this not only to the
young, but to people of all agesfollowing the formula of releasing
health and wellness and thus reducing health care costs.

We further believe and suggest that there be screening tech-
niques supplied through special psychological and psychiatric coun-
selors at various schools in much the same way that the schools
now have the advantage of speech and hearing evaluations.

There should also be a brief and relevant and effective evalua-
tion of the individual's psychological achievements and certain pit-
fall syndromes, such as the propensity toward or the presence of
learning disabilities.

-Using this as a simple and single example, let us state that many
learning disabilities are due to a different kind of information proc-
essing in the child than is usual in his school community.

The learning disabled child very frequently comes from a family
of architects; therefore, instead of using ti lateral. domination of
one side of the brain or the other, he a bilateral symmetry
which in turns allows him to see things t ree dimensiontilly. This
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becomes a hazard when he is put into the usual educational
system.

Instead of seeing the difference between a small "b, p, d," he will
vision these letters three dimepsionally and notice they are all the
same; therefore, substitute one for the other, creating an apparent
learning disability in our present educational system.

It is easy to see that what has become a disability also.represents
a considerable latent talent and such a child can go on to become a
talented architect.

Thank you.
[Prepared statement of Maurie D. Pressman, M.D., follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MAURIE D. PRESSMAN1, M.D., HORIZON HqSPITAL,
CLEARWATER, FLA.

The present crisis in burgeoning health care costs provide a background for a new
approach for the alleviation of human suffering of medical illness and of America's
health. Our crisis will be addressed by seizing it with two prongs of the tong: On the
one hand to increase efficiency, thereby reducing health care costs; but on the other
to alleviate suffering by the promotion of health and wellness and the release of
human potential. This is relevant to all ages, but lost particularly to children and
youth.

For some time now we have been aware that the application of psychiatric and
psychological consultation to the general medical patient reduces the need for over-
all medical care dramatically. This has been very well described in a series of stud-
ies which have been gathered together by Kenneth R. Jones and Thomas R. Vischi.

OP« Their pliklication in
gathered

Care" (an official journal of the medical care section
of the Alnerican Public Health Association) provides an excellent review of the liter-
ature concerning the "Impact of Alcohol, Druff Abuse and Mental Health TreatMent
on Medical Care Utilization". Though published in 1979 and describing studies
which reach pack to 1967 with their impact upon the practice of American medi-
cine, their impact upon the reduction of health care costs has been negligible. It is
well known that the rate of progression of health care cost is alarming, to the point
of bankrupting our economy, our country and private corporate efforts in the fore-
seeable future.

The rev,i,ew of the research literature by Jones and Vischi coordinates with clini-
cal observations to the effect that our medical schools focus for the most part upon
material and physical phenomena. Laboratory studies and physical findings and his-
tory revolve upon so called objective data. The psychological investigation of the in-
dividual is minirt4ika as less pure and less scientific. At the same time, we see that
human suffering-is always a mixture, an alloy, of physical organic phenomena and
psychological phenomena. The rapid progression of neurochemical research in the
field of psychiatry now brings to bear knowledge about the so called placebo effect.
The placebo, once scorned as a contribution to imagination, is now recognized as a
powerful instrument, perhaps producing positive results in 30-40 percent of the re-
search population, and mediated by the mobilization of the body's own stores of
morphine lendorphinst and related substances. Expanding research indicates that
the psychological effects have everything to do with the management of anxiety
and, in fact, that there are abroad in the body, the body's own analogues of valium
and librium, the well-known tranquilizers. Therefore, we are rapidly building a view
of the bridges whioh exist between the powe rs of the mind and the chemical re-
sponses of the body. All of,this coordinates well with the fact that psychological fac-
tors have everyting to do with the genesis of illness and with the rate of recovery.
Unfortunately. our medical body is still trained to eschew the investigation of psy-
chological factors: therefore, if someone .comes into the hospital witbalow back pain,
even low back pain which may be predkated upon a visible herniated disc, attention
is directed toward stretching the patient, giving him muscle relaxants, and to let-
ting it go at that. This is, indeed, unfortunate for it is well recognized by orthope-
dists that psychological factors contribute even to those proven organic cases of her-
niated disc.. The patient. once stretched may recover and then be sent home to the
very factors which generated anxiety and the problem in the first place. This is,
indeed, unfortunate for, it is now easy to investigate psychological events and to take
care of them with modern and rapid techniques for managing anxiety, family prob-
lems. !.exual difficulties, and so on. This brief example, as it pertains to low back
pain can be multiplied many times, in terms of the management of hypertension
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thigh Mood pressure is a symptom of stress in by far the predominant number of
cases), (II disturbances, and many so called idiopathic disorders. The result,there-
fore, is that perhetsit a most important determining cause of medical suffering is un-
recognized, often the root of the trouble is not attended, the patient returns repeat-
edly to the physician's office tor hospital), and to our established ideal of investigat-
ing the patient with x-rays, CI' scans, laboratory studies, and various physical ap-
proaches, while the important contributory agency remains undiscovered.

It is my firm belief Ibuttessed by such studies as that by Jones and Viscid) that
the mandating of brief' psychological investigation and when indicated psychological
treatment. will significantly reduce this phenomenon of partial diagnosis and sig-
nificantly reduce, therefore, the need for repeated .expensive laboratory and x-ray
studies. as well as repeated expensive hospitalizations. This approach of mixing psy-
chological diagnosis with medical diagnosis can now be supported and buttressed by
the fact that we do have so many new and effective and rapid treatment approaches
to patients. More importantly, these new approaches lead to a change in life style,
in turn releasing human potential, both physically and psychologically.

So much for the addressing of an issue of reducing health care costs through the
application of psychological diagnosis. Let us address the issue of reducing the need
for crisis health care through the application of wellness principles and the release
of human potential. Let us address specific issues of Child, Youth and Family Serv-
ices.

It was Freud's great discovery that the greater portion of the mind operates un
consciouslybeyond awareness and voluntary control. Whereas psychoanalysis has
proven to be a very expensive and time-consuming treatment, its gift to the medical
profession resides in its functioning very much like an x-ray of the mind. By the
application of psychodynamic spectacles, we can so to speak, look inside and see
where a person's potential lies; where his hidden well-springs of desires and inter-
ests lay; where barricades of anxiety and inhibition reside, barricades which prevent
the flow of interest. It is our firm belief that if one can assist a person of any age to
find hi.. hidden well-springs of interest and help those springs to flow, that the re-
sults w .11 be beneficial indeed: a free flow of interested activity, a better result in
terms of the product, and a smooth-functioning hunlan being who is so engaged in
his pleasureful and productive activities that time becomes a secondary factor. Our
basic theme is that if we can discover the base of the hidden potential of the human
being and release it, if we can do this by also removing the inhibitions and false
anxieties which may prevent him from following his star, we can enable an individ
ual to flow. The benefits will reside not only in.increused mental health, but also its
corollary increased physiological health.

Experience with olympic athletes indicates that it is much easier to work with a
well population than with a population which is medically or psychologically at risk.
The psychological and psychotherapeutic instruments which, when applied to the
neurotic or sicker patient require a great and repeated push in order to move the
patient forward, produce a quite different result in the well and well-motivated
person. Such people as the olympic aspirants would seize the opportunities which
were, offered with these new technique s and spring forward as if released. We, there-
fore, would propose a pilot program lled, "Fitness by Five".1 "Fitness by Five" is
a matter of producing an optimal st to in a child by the time he is five years old
This rests upon applying the same technique.sthe developing child as we apply to
the olympic athlete; namely, to take a btomechanical asssessmnt of his basic frame
f MUSWIeti, bun's, joints) wherein his weaknesses and strengths lay, and then to
create it program to develop that potential to its fullest. Similarly with the inner
physiology, to develop to its optimum the cardiovascular, the respiratory, the neuro-
logial apparatus. Similarly with the psychological apparatus The child would be
evaluated psychologically. Ills areas of weakness and potential surveyed and a pro.
grain lind forth which vould help him to develop in the best possible, way This
same tripartite tOrmula dnomechanical, exercise physiological, psychological, would
be implied similarly to members of the fininly, as well as recreational athletes.

Applying this formula to the sport of choice; will allow the person to improve his
physical and psychological healt1,, becoming better at his chosen recreational athlet-
ic activity. The application of the formula of "Fitness by Five" also implies the need
tor an important educational process.

We thoroughly believe that education and the promulgation of knowledge, can be
powerful instrument for good Accordingly, we would propose the promulgation of

ot,irmation to families through nut only conventional means. but also novelty

Fr,htit.. hen. p,tit1 1)r N1,tn. in 1.11In. Hrtlierl, the. I 1)Priv, r. who all
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methods: For example, flexible phonograph discs (inexpensively manufactured and
carrying a message of 9-10 minutes) sent to the heart of the household, the mother,.
to distribute knowledge gathered by and discussed by the best authorities in the
field. We would educate in areas of normal psychological development, and pitfalls of
psychological health; in the areas of child rearing, sexual difficulties amongst par-
ents, drug addiction, and many others. This, of course, does not preclude the use of
conventional outlets for the distribution of information, but possibly is a novelty
which can spread information of well recbgnized authorities in a way that will cap-
ture the interest of the family.

We would propose the development of health fitness centers (with particular at-
tention to child, youth, and family) as part of a living community. We are pursuing
a project in conjunction with Mr. Sidney Co len, in Ocala (On Top of the World 4

Center). Mr.folen is developing a 90,000 person community, and has agreed in prin-
ciple to develop health fitness centers as part of the living comillex. Our plan is to
perform the tripartite Health-Fitness evaluation upon the constituent members of
the community, and offer., this as part of their maintenance fee, and then to design
and deliver a program for releasing physical and psychological potential. This will
allow for regular seminars centers upon health issues, centered upon normal devel-
opment, the ages of landmark achievement. We will deal with family problems, the
scapegoated child, the abused child, sexual problems, the danger of addiction in this
modern-day society, and so forth, and so on.

We further believe and suggest that there be screening techniques supplied by
tipecial psychological and psychiatric counselors at various schools in much the same
manner that schoolshave the advantage of vision, speech, and hearing evaluations.
There should also be a brief and relevant and effective evaluation of the.individual's
psychological achievements and certain pitfall syndromes, such as the propensity
toward or the presence of learning disabilities. Using this as a -imple and single
example, let us recognize that many learning disabilities are due to a different kind
of information processing in the child than is usual in his school community. The
learning disabled child frequently comes from a family of architects; therefore, in-
stead of using the lateral domination of one side of the brain or the other, he has a
bilateral symmetry which in turn allows him to see things three dimensionally. This
becomes a hazard when he is put into the usual educational system. Instead of
'seeing the difference between a small "b, p, d", he will vision these letters three
dimensionally and notice they are all the same; therefore, substitute one for the
other creating an apparent learning disability in our present educational system. It
is easy to see that what has become a disability also represents.a considerable latent
talent, and such a child can go on to become a talented architect. This illustrates
the fact.that if we were to apply useful screening techniques for such a disorder as
learning disabilities in the school, we could discover the disorder early, we could
apply the correct educational design for such a child, and prevent a great deal of
not only learning disability, but also psychological disability inherent in the fact
that during his developmental years he has been exposed to a great deal of failure
and attendant ridicule. This example can be multiplied.

Many times the drug addiction problem needs to be ferreted out, not by psycholo-
gists and psychiatrists alone, but by the specialists working in conjunction with ex-
perienced addiction counselors. It is these counselors who have been through it and
have been on the scene for a period of time who can sniff out and identify early
addiction problems. This is a most important area of effort, not only because of the
size of the problem that exists in our country currently, but also because of the fact
that the child or youth once seized, begins to specialize in an adaptation which is an
excellent adaptation to the drug scene and to the addiction society, but of course a
very poor adaptation to the tasks of life at large. During the years of his addiction,
he has fallen farther and farther behind in those other skills which will be neces
sary in order to serve him in the pursuit of a happy and productive life as i, useful
and respected member of society.

In summary, if we discover the hidden potential of our children, youth and other
citizenry. release it and reward it all society will benefit

The xray instrument of psychological screeningthe use of psychology in plan-
ning- -will add a new and important dimension to the solution of problems and the
release of human potential.
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Chairman MILLER. Linda, in your testimony you mention the
mayor's task force in New Orleans, which in 1980 estimated that
between 5,000 and 8,000 runaway youth pass through the city each
year. You are not talking bout 5,000 to 8,000 residents? You are
talking about those who c e to New Orleans?

Ms. IRWIN. Right, but tli one thing we ttre noticing is that that
is significantly changing. ..

It changed very quickly. I don't know whathow dated that is,
but when we examined our records in 1981, over 50 percent were
residents of New Orleans. Now, what we have no way of assessing
is where those youth are from who are out on the streets and never
get to us and of that 5,000 to 8,000 they are projecting, it could be
they were projecting that large numbers of those are still from out
of State. .

We do not see those youth any more. We see mostly local youth.
I think some of that is because of the shift in the profile. We are

not seeing youth who are on the road looking for Utopia. We are
seeing youth who are running away from sometimes very life-
threatening situations, but at minimum a family in a great deal of
crisis.

Chairman MILLER. You use the term "a pushout and throwaway
youth." What is your definition?

Ms. IRWIN. Well, a pushout or throwaway is simply some. ,dy
who is not running away by choice, but who is sent to the door and
told, we would like not to see you back here again.

Chairman MILLER. You are saying 50 percent of the children you-
see now are in that category?

Ms. IRWIN. Fifty percent of the projected runaways in the
mayor's task force were estimated to be throwaways. I would say
that probably that is not as high in our residential population. We
are seeing right now a high, high number of youth who have been
pulled out of their homes by the State because they are in poten-
tially abusive situations.

The frustration for us in that is that even in a highly abusive
situation the family bond is so strong sometimes that you will see a
youth, and I went through this experience just a few weeks ago,
who voluntarily chose to go home, even though he had been severe-
ly beaten, and that is a tension with which we live all the time.

Whether, is the family situation workable, because if it is, then
we want to reconcile that situation so the youth can return, but we
are seeing fewer and fewer of those youth.

Chairman MILLER. Your, testimony strongly suggests that not too
long ago it was thought these were children who were running
away.
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You are now suggesting that the population is much more evenly
balanced between children who might be running away and chil-
dren who might be asked to leave or have been pushed out of their
homes for whatever reasons.

I assume when you say pushed out, you are talking about an un-
acceptable living situation.

Ms. IRWIN. Sometimes it is purely economic reasons. The family
will simply say when a youillg man gets to be 16, "We have enough
trouble feeding this many people. Now it is time for you to go."

That may be said to a girl as well. Sometimes the pushing out is
simply for economics.

I suppose that we use "push-out" for that population. When we
say a throwaway kid, for us we aire talking about a young person
whose family does not want him, for whatever reason.

Chairman MILLER. The end of the scenario, though, is that the
social services system or somebody inherits a child.

Ms. IRWIN. Yes.
Chairman MILLER. Now they are your child as their guardian ad

litem. They become wards of the State, so to speak, or private non-
profit charitables or whoever runs this network of services. But
they are no longer for all intents and purposes part of that family.

Ms. IRWIN. Absolutely. Seventy-three percent of the youth that
we saw in the. last 6 months, between January 1 and June 30, were
either already in custody of the Department of Health and Human
Resources, or were not allowed by the State to return home be-
cause of some abusive situation.

Chairman MILLER. So the family of the city of New Orleans is
growing, if you will, in a formal sense. In your testimony you men-
tion 90,000 dependency referrals where the State is being asked, I
assume, to take some action with respect to the situation in which
this child finds him or herself in.

You say that approximately 40 percent of those are reported as
abuse and neglect cases.

Am I reading your testimony correctly?
Ms. HOFFENBERG. There were approximately 90,000 referrals for

abuse and neglect. About 40 percent are considered valid by the de-
partment of health and rehabilitative services. That is, part of that
is our suspicion is part of the reason only 40 percent are considered
valid is because there are not enough people to go around and
handle reports of child abuse.

Our rates in Florida, since the Child Abuse Prevention and
Treatment Act spurred this reporting rate, have risen dramatically
and continue to rise and rise and rise and rise.

Chairman MILLER. But again, if I read your testimony correctly,
you are talking about 40,000 children who again are involved with
the social services system of the State of Florida, and you suspect
that one of the main reasons they are there is because of a history
of abuse and neglect with 'respect to their family living situation.

That is a very significant number of children.
Ms. HOFFENBERG. The thing I wanted to comment about on

throwaway children and some of those problems, also abuse and
neglect, one of the basic problems I see is that when crisis hits a
family, whether it be they can't control an adolescent child, or
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whether there is an abusive situation in the home, we don't have
enough counselors to deal with that family.

It is a lot easier for our social sev-ilce agencies to just take that
child away from the custody of the parents. Our systems sometimes
promote parents to not be responsible for their children. Our court
systems don't punilk parents and say "You must be responsible for
your children."

We sometimes make it easy to take children away from parents
instead of what I would like to see in Florida, the juvenile court
having authority not only over the childit is like the child is a
pruperty right in 'court when the child has a problembut over the
families, to order the family go to counseling or engage in support-
ive services.

Chairman MILLER. Some years ago when I was involved in writ-.
ing Public Law 96-72, one of the most revealing things we learned
was that prior to removal of the child from the home, over 80 per-
cent of the families had no other contact with social service agen-
cies. Nobody was coming in to see what services might be provided,
like job training, counseling, or some other low-grade intervention
which could be tried before taking the child out of the family and
putting him into very expensive foster care or institutionalized
care.

We learned that even after the child was removed from the
family, over 80 percent of the families never heard from the Social
Services Department again. That is the reason we required a show-
ing by the court or to the court that these actions have been taken.

But what you are suggesting is that with respect to abused and
neglected children whO aren't immediate candidates for foster care
the same kind of thing is taking place. No one is working with that
family unit prior to the point'where we absorb the entire cost and
responsibility for the children. There really is no system of care or
services for abused and neglected family units.

Ms. HOFFENBERG. We 'lave some pilot projects. We have a couple
of what are called intensive crisis counseling projects where people
intensively work with families. We have a couple of them. A drop
in the bucket, in pilot stages.

Highly' skilled, trained professionals. I think it is an excellent
project.

One of the problems is that you can have that service for 6
weeks. With serious sexual abuse, serious physical abuse, with par-
ents who have lived in a lifetime of violence, been abused as chil-
dren, we are asking them to turn around their whole lives, say, in
a period of 6 weeks. That is nice, but often not realistic.

The same thing with mental health counseling. Very often with
.sertously sexually abused children, the abuser is asked to go to
counseling and is disconnected from the counseling because we
can't carry the person in therapy. We don't have the money. We
ask the chilli to go back to the home before the family is rehabili-
tated.

I believe in keeping families together, but we have to do a lot
more

Chairman MILLER. What struck me about your figures is that
they strongly suggest that we are accelerating the pace at which
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the public body is absorbing these children, and diminishing efforts
at what I would call reunification.

In many instances reunification obviously is not going to work. It
is not best for the health of the child and family that they get liack
together. But there appear to be instances where there is certainly
a strong possibility that with proper help that family unit can stay
together.

Ms. HOFFENBERG. We are much more aware, not everybody is
aware, but Parents United is a great program, but we don't really
have a united kind of prosecution effort to really get that thing
going.

We might have one pilot project. With all the needs we have in
that particular community, plus all the referrals from other com-
munities, that just doesn't handle. it. We aren't getting treatment
resources and prevention efforts and reunification crisis efforts fast
enough into the community to hit this enormous rate that is going
on.

Another thing we haven't touched on, we are telling the schools,
law enforcement, neighbors, all kinds of people, to report child
abuse and neglect, and sometimes they can't even get you on the
phone.

People aren't calling back and saying what happened. Sometimes
we are just turning that family or that child in need away from the
system. So we are kind of defeating ourselves.

Dr. PRESSMAN. I just wanted to say, to piggyback what has been
suggested, as I hear t, sort of a forced institutionalization of a
child, albeit,' what is being asked for, as I understand it, is some
kind of mandated family therapy on an out-patient basis first. so
that that may succeed at a much less costly pace, and prevent the
separation of the child from the family. That is a model that.has
worked with kids who have been mandated, remanded, rather, to
hospital programs who otherwise wouldn't be treatable, but, be-
cause they are forced to be under treatment by law, they are for a
period of time.

What is being said, I think, is that a family which may be disin-
terested may become treatable if the force of the law is behind it,
and if there is funding for out-patient treatment for this.

It rimy be less costly in the future:
As a principle, I would sure like to support that.
Chairman MILLER. Lindy.
Mrs. RoGGs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank all of you so very

much.
am especially pleased, of course, that you came ti) be with us

today, Linda, and I salute the success of Greenhouse. I think all of
you have said we have an inter-generational problem. We have to
addres the problems in that manner. You, of course, testified that
what we really need is individual counseling, temporary shelter
and family counseling, and to make the family whole again and to

. put the child back into a workable, livable situation, if that is pos-
sible.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that .nuch as Miami, San
Francisco, New York, and so on, New Orleans does attract run-
away children and throwaway children, and we have many of them
there. Rut I think in the last couple of ;ears we are seeing more
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children coming fur services, because of worsening economic condi-
tions, who are children from our own community.

It may be because the reputation of the program has been ad-
vanced as well, but I think that all of us are talking about the need
for prevention and how much less expensive it is in the long run.

I would like to ask you, Ms. Mitchell, how you went about get-
ting your program funded, because I have a group of young women
professors at Loyola University who several years ago wished to in-
stitute a program such as the one that you have been able to pull
together, and they were unable to get a Federal grar'. to do so.

I would like to know how you went about getting yours into
being.

Ms. MIVIIELL. OK. The funds for implementing the program in
the State of Georgia is from the Office of Adolescent Pregnancy,
which is a Federal grant, and the money we are using to imple-
ment the program in Atlanta Public School System is State fund-
ing, maternal child health funds through the job's bill money tar-
geted for jobs for the low-income unemployed. Peer leaders to
present the program in the schools were hired with these funds.

Field testing and preparation of the curriculum was done
through private foundations.

We also have money. from the Ford Foundation to implement the
program in the Atlanta school. system.

Mrs. 13o ;s. That is very good grantsmanship. That is a worder-
fully cooperative and coordinated effort.

Mr. Jordon, the treatment of the children that you are especially
interested in is something that is so severely needed in every State
in the' Union. Ms. Irwin will tell you that in Louisiana the State
was sued by some parents whose children had to be sent to Texas
because we didn't have any facilities for them in the State.

I know that you suggested that perhaps some bricks and mortar,
a wonderful facility that could provide 40 beds is a marvelous idea.
I wrote a little note to myself saying maybe we need a Hill-Burton
Act fir those kinds of beds for those kinds of patients.

But every State has this problem. Each State has persons such as
the two of' you devoted to the situation.

Do you have any suggestion other than Federal grants for actual
buildings, so that we could acquire the facilities for the children'?

Mr. JARDON. The State legislature every now and then approves
so-called special legislative projects, also called turkeys by others.

That is part of the problem. That there isn't a bill that will take
this up, per se. The State does fundamental health programs.
There is a major deinstitutionalization effort on the way for adult
and pediatric patients. There has been some consideration of begin-
ning to fund children's programs.

I wonder whether at least one has been funded statewide, so
t here is some movement afoot.

The problem is that there doesn't seem to be enough. I have been
to Tallahassee for the past 2 years just fighting to get a miserly 2-
percent increase over previous grants to help offset inflationary
cost increases. and so on and so forth.

I have seen the major battles waged by everyone asking for
moneys. and I have seen the fear in every State legislator regard
in;! what will happen if they increase taxes in order to meet all of
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these needs, and the message we get from year to year is that the
State can barely meet the operational needs of all of our programs,
let alone create new ones, and it is against that background that I
am saying here is a need for which I frankly have no solution.

If today I have a request from a judge or a family for family
therapy involving a child abuse situation, today I can deliver care.
We have created over the years an army of well-trained profession-
als. We have outpatient facilities; more or less. We may be quite
taxed at one point but not so taxed at another. Homes we don't
have. We do not have homes. Without homes our children go all
kinds of places. I have seen children who are at an age of 16 or 18
not being able to be placed anywhere, I see them on Biscayne Bou-
levard selling themselves for sexual favors at $5 a trick and that I
think is a total disgrace.

Again, the problem is not often in the amount of money needed,
but' in what you call it. The Federal grant programs rule under
title 45,:part 74 of the total Federal regulations, they don't allow
for construction moneys. In Dade County I can tell you, we get $5
million for mental health programs. Not $1 is for construction, for
one brick, and so we have to deal with that kind of a system that
has been created over the years.

That is where the frustration lies.
Mrs. Bowls. Thank you.
Ms. IRwm. Excuse me. One of the reasons why I suggested that

it seems like when we talk about human service needs we tend to
focus over at DIMS, I think somewhere if there were true tax in-
centives to the corporate community to make contributionse either
to public or private need, then we could go a long way. Because we
have the same situation in Louisiana, where operating funds re-
quests will be received, but for capital outlay the message is, go out
to the corporate community and solicit those funds.

Until we see incentives in the private sector, true incentives to
give, we are caught in a catch-22. I really think that is where some
of the information that is coming to this committee runs across a
lot of the Federal role in how those other structures are set up.

Mrs. BOGGS. We tried our best to get buildings whenever the op-
portunity seemed to exist. A naval hospital facility needed to be
taken over by private enterprise; we tried to get it to the'young
children with mental illness problems, mental retardation prob-
Icing. Then when the public health service hospital was closed, the
State tried to step in and get some priority acquisition there.

It is so frustrating. That was why I asked if you had some good
suggest ions.

Doctor, we were so pleased that you took your precious time to
come and be with us and to give us so much excellent information
and instruction.

I really wonder if you could tell us in the cost of health care, if
you think some of the ideas that you have could be incorporated
into schools of family health and how we can encourage the medi-
cal schools to make certain that the schools of family health are
given as high priority as surgical units and so on?

Dr. PRESSMAN. I think we an' on the edge of having this happen,
by the way. We wele not that interested in ()Id people until medi-
care came along and then there was a great interest in treating ()Id
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people. Many good things occurred as a result of that. Medicare is
having its own problems now, but it has been a marvelous program
and has really elicited an interest in the treatment of a segment of
the population.

Similarly, if we could, on a pilot basis, and maybe independent
industry would be interested in doing this because we'can demon-
strate to independent industry the effectiveness that these research
studies show, the effectiveness in terms of reducing their over-
whelming health care costs, so that if one mandates, for instance,
one or two psychological examinations, or brief psychotherapy, six
sessions, if necessary, and sees what happens over the course of a
year, you can be sure that self-insured corporations will then con-
tinue to mandate it and the practice of medicine and psychological
art will follow.

As far as the Government is concerned, I propose that similarly
it could look into making this part of an evaluation of a certain
medical segment of the population. Do a pilot study for the treat-
ment of hypertension which is a very destructive disease and very
re:,ponsive to self-help, frankly.

Certain techniques that we have, with biofeedback, so one could
therefore mandate a pilot program, do some studies as to what this
does in terms of overall health care costs for a population.
.1 think funding through insurance will follow and I think the

practice will follow: Similarly with many wellness aspects of medi-
cal treatment.

Chairman MILLER. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. I3LILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank the panel

again for sharing your information with us and pointing out the
many gaps in our service delivery system that we have today, hope-
fully giving us some direction as to where we might make recom-
mendat ions to go.

Ms. Mitchell, why do you suppose so few programs have chosen
to follow the kind of model that you have developed at Grady Me-
morial Clinic?

Ms. MITCHELL. Well, I don't know. This is a new approach that
we have recently taken and I think at one time we had looked at
family planning as a solution to teenage pregnancy. We provide
family planning services to all these young people who engage in
sex. Then I think we looked at sex education, but I think one of the
things experience has taught us over the years is, when you are
dealing with very young people, and our target population is 16
and under, it's not just looking only at adolescent pregnancy, but
the decreased fertility in these young people as they grow into
their early twenties and wish to have children, the effects of sexu-
ally transmitted disease, the emotional effects that early sexual in-
volvemeNnt has on them, it just came very clear to us that for what-
ever needs young people are having sex, that there has to be better
ways to meet those needs other than through sexual intercourse
because the long-range impact on their lives is just too great for
them to try to meet these needs through sex.

Mr. 131.11.F:Y. Did I understand you to say that your program is
nov,., or is about to be offered throughout the State in the various
school districts?

If;
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Ms. Mactai.L. Yes; we have received money from the office of
adolescent pregnancy to implement this program throughout the
State.

Mr. BLILEY. Do you have any estimate of how long it will be
before you have statistical data to show what effect this program
might be having'?

Ms. MITCHELL. It is going to be 3 to 4 years.
Mr. BLILEY. Three to four years.
MS. MITCHELL. Yes.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman MILLER. Is there money in the grants for doing foll9w-

up studies with the populations that will go through the program?
Ms. MITCHELL. There is a year's research money, evaluation.
Chairman MILLER. The only research you have done to date is on

the acceptability question, on which approach to take?
Ms. MITCHELL. The field testing is the only research we have

done to date. We just finished the field testing of this curriculum in
early spring. We have not finished the followup evaluation even on
the field test which is to be done, to see what impact the series ac-
tually had on the kids' behavior and see if they7--.

Chairman MILLER. So there is a followup study that will be done?
Ms. MITCHELL. To the field testing.
Chairman MILLER. Good.
Ms. MITCHELL. So that initial field test evaluation will be avail-

able in a year.
Chairman MILLER. Thank you.
Mrs. BOGGS. Mr. Chairman.
One thing, Ms. Hof:mberg, I am so glad the young people have

you as their advocate.
Ms. HOFFENBERG. There are 1,500 volunteers.
Mrs. BOGGS. I know that. What I was wondering, do you have

any sort of outreach to the young women in law school to encour-
age them to be helpful in the program?

Ms. HOFFENBERG. To become involved in the program? Not only
young women, but young men, old women, anybody. We are con-
sistently looking for people. We not only recruit citizens, we recruit
attorneys to assist as a team. We continue to loyrk for equipment
and other things.

We are very pleased with the support of the system.
Mrs. I3oGGs. It is like the doctors, you know. There is sometimes

more money in other fields. I hope the attorneys would feel a spe-
cial obligation to take care of the problems, legal problems of
young people.

Thank you.
Chairman MILLER. Mr. Lehman.
Mr. LEHMAN. Yes. I just want to let the members of the commit-

tee know how much I appreciate them coming to Miami to partici-
pate in these hearings, Chairman Miller, "Vice President" Boggs,
and Mr. Bliley from Richmond. It is an honor to have you down
here in the community.

I would like to ask Mario about this money for the buildings. Is
tlw problem that nobody wants the building in their neighborhood
anyhow?
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You have a double bind. All those drug addicts and sex maniacs
running around loose.

Chairman MILLER. That is it, Mario. You will never get a build-
ing now.

Mr. JARDON. We will build them at Hialeah though.
Mr. LEHMAN. One of the reasons we are unique is because we

have absorbed 120,000 refugees in a very short period of time. It is
an area where many of these refugee are located.

As we know, some of these refugeo$ are not exactly reunification
family people. What, off the top of your head, what impact has the
so-called refugee had in dealing with the psychological or other
problems you have in your role out there? How are we dealing as a
community with the impact of the social misfits that were sent,
rather than reunited with their families?

You can take the fifth if you want to.
Mr. JARDON. No, I would like Ana also to respond to this, but

originally we estimated that we would be, seeing 10 percent of all
the refugees that arrived at one point or another. That came about.

I remember in the very first initial phase when the shelters were
being established and they came before FEMA, before FEMA took
over, we had a 340-man buildingwe were seeing no less than 10
percent. We were seeing hundreds of them because of the depres-
sion, doubt, all kinds of anxiety, all kinds of symptoms.

In the year after that, we estimated that we would be seeing
about 2 percent of them and that 1 percent really would require
hospitalization or placement in a facility. These predictions turned
out to be true. We had about 25,000 estimated entrants settle in

. the 'area of Hialeah. That year we saw 500 of them and 250 or
0 thereabOuts were placed, were hospitalized or placed in a residen-

tial facility.
Having had the benefit of working with them for about 4 years, I

can make the following 'statement: We have closed more cases than
we ever anticipated. It is amazing. On the other hand, those that
have remained are very, very sick. The most likely person to be re-
hospitalized in our caseload is young entrant, male.

By the way, 83 percent of th came by themselves, having .no
family attachments whatsoever. hat makes it extremely difficult
to rehabilitate anyone. I would like Ana also to talk about the .,

Honor Co. adolescents that she has been working with.
Dr. RIVAS-VAZQUEZ. We had in the area 119 in the company

which we identified arid tried to resettle. Some of the programs
that I mentioned before were programs that were here, working
with them. Originally they were 3 percent severe emotional prob-
lems. Now, many of the crimes committed were committed by these
children. y

As of now it has shifted tremendously and some of the children
that really werenot had the experience of a relationship, have ac-
tually improyed tremendously. What we are seeing now is a slight-
ly different variation. They are more or less sort of a culture rating
to the community.

Now, interestingly enough, what we are seeing is an awful lot of
children from families that came, it is almost like there were cases
we are seeing already, now the problems to adapt to the communi-
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ty are enierging. So we are seeing a slightly different pathology in
terms of the entrants.

Mr. IAHMAN. It is not the exact aftershock you anticipated?
Dr. RIVAS-VAZQUEZ. Not exactly; no.
Mr. JARDON. There are signs. For instance, I believe about 250'

entrants are seen by Dade County courts every month. That makes
it about 3,000 per year. What happens is that a lot of them are
quite anti-social and they do not necessarily wish to be seen in our
facilities. We presently have in residence no lesb,than 4:0,of them,
which is a significant number. We keep hospitalizing:

Mr: LEHMAN. I just want to, as much as possible, get on the Fed-
eral record the fact of the burden thii community has had to con-
tend, with that was different from other communities, which is on
top of other problems we have had in this community.

So, hopefully, we can get some Federal help and I will try to
work with the committee in that line.

I would just like to ask Dr. Pressman, the young people that
come into your facility, they are paid for by the State for a while
under such a program, right?

Dr. PRESSMAN. Yes.
Mr. LEHMAN. This is a private hospital?
Dr. PRESSMAN. Private hospital, but we have a contract with the

State.
Mr. LEHMAN. They can stay there if they are mentally disturbed,

psychologically sick; they can stay a certain period of time, then
State funds are cut off?

Dr. PRESSMAN. Yes;. for acute care they are. There are the
backup of State institutions.

Mr. LEHMAN. I am trying to figure out, they need hospitalization;
they are not able to pay for the hospitalization. The 16-year-old,
mixed-up kid, the State money runs out, the family doesn't know
what to do with them, what happens to the child?

Dr. PRESSMAN. We have done a variety of things in conjunction
with the State. The State has assumed generously a terrific
burden. The amount of hospitalization w'hich is allowed by the
funding is really a matter of establishing the quelling of crisis and
trying to establish some links with outside agencies such as the
community mental health centers.

In all truth, let's say in the Tampa or Clearwater area where we
has'e a hospital, the community mental health centers are over-
whelmed and we have established just privately some intermediate
clinics to take care of these people until they can have their next
appointment; the point being, in summary, that the community
mental health system has done a great service. It is not able to
meet its obligations.

The private institutions, such as ours, coordinate With the State- /
funded institutions and do the best they can, but the whole thing is
really quite inadequate to the needs.

Mr. 1,Kiimat.i. It is all wired together with spit and glue.
Dr. PRESSMAN. It is. It could be wired together better.
Mr. LEHMAN. If you are a private institution, you can't afford to

keep them when the State is no longer paying for them.
Dr. PRESSMAN. That is right.

ii'l
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Mr. LEHMAN. Where you can put these people afterthere is
ally no catch-all operation. How many days can you hold them

with State money?
Dr. PRESSMAN. Fifteen on the average.
Mr. LEHMAN. After that you would have to keep them for free or

put them out to some institution or family or somewhere else that
really is not able to serve them?

Dr. PRESSMAN. We need more links. The State does send in its
social service facilities in order to enable continuity of care. We do
have the outpatient mental health centers as well as other agen-
cies, but the whole thing is really not up to meeting the problem.

Obviously we need more attention to their suffering.
Mr. LEHMAN. So we have people out of the institutions before

they are ready to hit the streets? or
Dr. DIVAS-VAzQuEz. I would like to add that these are the cases

we see and the case review committee, and the ones Mario was
talking about, that we have to send out of State because we don't
have any facilities in the State to actually put the children. That is
what 'happens to many of those cases.

I sit on the case work committee every 2 weeks.
Mr. LEHMAN. The same people go back and forth between Mario

and Dr. Pressman.
Mr. JARDON. May I point out something?
Again I think in the case of the Memorial Hospital, we are deal-

ing with an institution that is extremely sensitive to the needs of
the poor and is willing to work with community mental health cen-
ters, and state agencies, but let me illustrate what happens gener-
ally and how the same laws we write in the books are really not
doing their jobs.

Mr. LEHMAN. I am talking about children mainly.
Mr. JARDON. With children. I have recently a referral from a

mother who works, has insurance, and the child had severe emo-
tional problems, went to a local hospital. For over a year That is
more than a year in the hospital. Insurance benefits ran out.

Now the mother has no place to place that child. The ironic
thing is that the legislation such as medicaid would not pay for cer-
tain services such as residential. Yet it would pay for that hospital
for over a year. Here is where we have some things that, with only
minor tuning, the moneys could go a longer way.

Mr. LEHMAN. It just needs to be organized. Thank you very much
for being here today.

Chairman MILLER. On behalf of the committee, I want to thank
you and to thank Congressman Lehman for hosting this select com-
mittee hearing in Miami.

The select committee stands adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 3:33 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]

PREPARED STATEMENT 01, HUGH S. GLICKSTF:IN. DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL,
STATF: OF FLORIDA

Members of the Committee, I am grateful for the opportunity to provide you with
information for your record As organizer and chairman of the Florida liar's Special
Committee for the Needs of Children, I submit this statement for the record to tell
you what the children of this nation would tell you personally; namely. that yourleadership your per-i,onal, individual commitments are desperately needed now- to
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provide the resources to respond to America's greatest internal needsthose of its
children.

I want to read you part of the statement of purpose of the committee that I chair:
Our first pi.spose is as follows:

To raise the consciousness and support of the leaders and citizens of Florida in
order to achieve the commitment of resourcestangible and intangibleto the
needs of children based on the following premise;

It would be society's greatest rewardtangibly and otherwisewere the future
adult inhabitants of this state able to look back to the WHO's and reflect how their
predecessors finally came to recognize the priority to be given the well being of chil-
dren. Such future citizens would undoubtedly be the beneficiaries from (1) our
present awareness that children are our most precious gift and entitled to enjoy the
happiness which only adults can provide; at that they are our only priceless com-
moditythe key to the well-being of socie , and (2) our recognition that without
prioritizing the physical, emotional and edu tional needs of children, all the efforts
to eliminate crime, poverty and ignorance are only kneejerk, bandaid solutions
which cure none of society's basic ills.

, Attached to this statement is an appendix which illustrates that our committee is
"hands on" or "tusk oriented" as you must be. It functions through several subcom-
mittees who are in existence to do something, not just discuss it. Such actionmind-
edness is consistent with the history of the Florida Bar. As you can see from the
exhibits which are part of the appendix; we have enlisted the support of leaders of
the American Bar Association so that body, already committed to responding to cer-
tain needs of children, will expand its areas of focus not previously addressed.

I urge you to encourage the Senate to transform its existing informal caucus to a
standing committee which will address, like yourselves, the needs of children by a
permanent, staffed organization.

In closing, I reiterate my initial premise; namely, that children are not able to
speak for themselves. Only adults can provide them roots and wings. With your
caring, attention and ongoing commitment each child can someday have the oppor-
tunity he and she deserve.

APPENDIX TO STATEMENT

The purpose of this article is to acquaint you with the above, newly formed spe-
cial committee; to tell you a little bit about how it came to be; :Ind, most important,
to let you know what it hopes to accomplish with your assistance.

First. as to its origin, in the summer of 1982, I developed (a) the growing concern
that lxesic societal problems could only be attacked at their roots by focusing upon
children `..pd the belief that The Florida Bar should direct its energies in that
direction. As the father of three children, a practicing lawyer for over twenty years,
a prosecutor of capital cases, and a trial and apellate judge, I had experienced a
number of incidents that convinced me that every child had to be given as much
opportunity in life as was necessary to grow into a happy, productive individual.
Judges Barry Lee Anstead and Daniel T. K. Hurley of our court encouraged my
idea of the formation of a children's committee by The Florida Bar, as did Judge
William E. Gladstone. a friend of over 30 years and leader in the juvenile justice
system In November 1982, the Program Evaluation Committee of the Mir approved
the concept; and the Board of Governors then approved the committee's formation
in early 1989.

HefOre the eommit We's first organizational meeting, four projects were undertak
en by a handful of organizing memberse First, at Robert E. Livingston, Esq.'s sugges-
tion, the Board of Governors invited Marlene Josefsberg of Miami to appear at its
regularaneeting to discuss drug and alcohol abuse among children. From that ap-
pearance, Marlene aid the Board wives put together a program at the Bar's Annual
Convention, which hopefully will regularly be presented. Second. following Judge
Gladstone's appearance before the Board of Governors, we undertook to support the
Governor's Constituency for Children, which had been conceived -by Judge Glad-
stone This is a pilot program in nine Florida counties predicated upon bringing vol-
unteers and professionals together in recognizing and fulfilling children's needs in
each community. Third, Ellen Iloffenberg, Esq. put together a presentation at the
child abuse program held at the Capitol in April. Finally, all legislators, county bar
associations and major newspaper editors were informed by letter of the formation
of t he committee

On May 1. 19-.3. the organi/ational meeting produced the following statement of
purpose the illt111111t tetb'
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(Ti To raise the consciousness and'support of the leaders and citizens of Florida in
order to achieve the commitment of resourcestangible and intangibleto the
needs of children based on the following premise:

It would be society's greatest rewardtangibly and otherwisewee the future
adult inhabitants of this state able to look back to the 1980's and reflect how their
predecessors finally came to recognize the priority to be given the well being of chil-
dren. Such future citizens would undoubtedly be the beneficiaries from (1) our
present awareness that children are our most precious gift and entitled to enjoy the
happiness which only adults can provide; and that they are our only priceless com-
moditythe key to the well-being of society; and 12) our recognition that without
prioritizing the physical, emotional and educational needs of children, all the efforts
to eliminate crime, poverty and ignorance are only kneejerk, bandaid solutions
which cure none of society's basic ills.

(2) To effect a response to those needs by attention to the following and other
problems and by means of the following and other vehicles and programs:

A. Adoptive services;
B. Communications;
C. Constituency for Children;
D. Corporate support;
E. Delivery of legal services;
F. Delinquent and dependent children, including those that are abused, aban-

doned, neglected, and runaways, truants and ungovernables;
Deinst itutionalization;

II. Drug and alcohol abuse;
1. Education and day care;
J. Family law and preservation;
K. Fiscal and programmatic accountability;
L. Gull rdians-add item;
M. Information and resources;
N. Juvenile Justice;
0. Lay and professional volinnary 'services;
P. Legislation;
Q. Local bar, medical and other professional associations:
H. Medical services;
S. Mental health;
T. Missing and molested children;
U. Out-of-state activity:
V. Poverty and hunger;
W. Prosecutor and public defender associations: and
X. Scouting and family forum.
The members voted also to create the following ten sub-committe s to achieve the

cc an m t tee's aspirations:
Committee and statement of purpose..

Children and the law: Adoptive services;
12) Constituency for children: Constituency for children; Lay and professional vol-

untary services.
Drug and alcohol abuse: Drug and'alcohol abuse.

.11 Education: Education.
10 Family and community life: Family law and preservation.
(61 Health and welfare: Deinstitutionalization; Medical services; Mental health;

poverty and hunger.
171 Information, communications and resources. Communications, information and

resources.
I I Juvenile justice: Delinquent and dependent children, including those that are

alit;sed, abandoned, and neglected as well as runaways, truants and ungovernables.
49 Missing and molested children.
lib Voluntary services: Corporate support: guardians-ad-Mem; lay and profession.

ael voluntary services; local medical and other professional associations; out-of-state
activity: prosecutor and public defender associations.

The committee met again at the Annual Convention in June; selected chairper-
sons for each subcommittee; adopted requirements for recommending active support
(1 opposition by the Bar to legislation, and agreed to appear before r I r all county
bar associations to encourage each of them to create committees for the neds of
children: and t21 newspaper editors and coonty school hoards throughout the state
to discuss the committee's purposes

Since its organization, the committee has achieved the following:
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(I) Obtained a commitment from Nova Law Center to dedicate the winter issue of
its lax review to the needs of children and prepared the articles for that issue.

(2) Contributed substantial effort throughout the state in the organizational ef-
forts of communities to combat drug and alcohol abuse by involvement in the Chem-
ical People.

(3) Obtained the dynamic support of the Chairman of the Family Law Section of
the American Bar Association for (a) the Resolution initiated by the committee for
presentation to the American Bar Association and (b) the attention to the needs of
children by the Family Law Section.

(4) Effected the activation of a children's committee by the Family Law Section of
the Florida Bar.

15) Effected the creation of local children's committees by various bar associations
in Florida.

(6) Substantially assisted in obtaining legislative funding for the Governor's Con-
stituency for Children.

(7) Initiated, through its Health and %Afore Sub-Committee, the task of creating
a computerized information bank for Florida which will contain basic information
on both public and private resources and services statewide which are available to
meet the needs of children and families.

(8) Adopted and circulated Statements of Purpose for each of its Sub-Committees.
(9) Undertook, through its_. Education sub-committee, the study of the need for

character education in the public schools of Florida to the end of effecting character
education for children and role models for triachers.

110) Undertook the study of needed legislation, a Tting children, in order to pro-
mulgate a legislative program by the end of the yr.

COLUMBIA, S.C., October di. 1984.

l ion. Gt.:mica.: MILLER,
!louse of Representatives, Chairman, Select Committee on Children, Youth, and

Amities, Washington, RC
DEAR Ma. Mtt.t.mt: I am honored to respond to your invitation to submit written

testimony for the record of the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and Families.
I am sorry that I was not able to appear before the committee in Miami. Our volun-
tary organizations do not have the resources to support travel outside the state. I

am pleased to know that you have solicited comments from groups that are high on
commitment and energy and low on funds.

As a long time advolate for children and families in South Carolina, I am excited
about the potential impact the Select Committee can have on the quality of life for
,:11 families. My experience has been primarily in the private non-profit human
services sector. I was the founding Executive Director of the Council on Child Abuse
and Neglect. Inc., an agency serving four counties in South Carolina with preven-
tion, treatment, education, and advocacy programs. I was also the founding Execu
tive Director of SISTERCARE, INC., an agency §erving abused women and their de-
pendent chiliren. Last year I was privileged to be a member of the consulting team
which designed a continuum of care for emotionally disturbed children in South
Carolina. Governor Richard Riley recently appointed me to serve as one of his rep-
resentatives to the Joint Legislative Committee on Children of the South Carolina
General Assembly. My work in South Carolina for the past ten years has exposed
me to a range of critical issues confronting families and children.

The following testimony is drawn from my experience. The comments are my own
professional opinion and are not intended to be the representation of any one of
the organizations with which I am affiliated. Of course, I cannot possibly summarize
kill the critical needs within this context. I must instead focus on a number of priori- /
ty issues.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this information. I do hope the Select
Committee will continue to solicit input from the voluntary human services sector
as your study progresses. I wish you well as y proceed with your challenging tisk.

Sincerely.
ARLENE DOWERS ANDREWS.

BRF:I'ARED STATEMENT OF ARLENE BOWERS ANDREWS. COLUMBIA, S.C.

IOU must he drawn to the shocking level of violence behind the closed doors
of American homes. The violence, which is committed by family members upon one
another. takes many forms physical assault may include such actions as slaps. beat-
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ing with objects, using lethal weapons; neglect may include withholding food or
medical care; psychological abuse may include such acts as locking in a closet,
threats of harm, and intimidating acts which cause family and friends to withdraw
social support; sexual assault includes a range of physical assaults as well as forced
participation in pornography or other exploitative activities. The underlying causes
of these various forms of violence are many; further study is needed to understand
them.

However, the effects of the violence are all too obvious. Those familiy members
who suffer the most harm are children, women, elderly, and/or handicapped. Fol-
lowing are a few facts:

Twenty five percent of all married couples report having used physical force upon
one another. Researchers estimate the actual rate is underreported, and may be as
high as 50 percent. Several studies indicate women are the injured 'party in 95 per-
cent of domestic abuse cases; when psychological harm is included, they account for

percent of the victims. Children and elderly family members are at risk of harm
in families where spouses use violence.

Ninety eight percent of all parents use physical punishment with their children.
Many use the punishment at excessive levels, tesulting in abuse to between two and
six million children each year.

It is predicted that 30 percent to 40 percent of all children will be sexually as-
saulted before age 18.

Fourteen percent of all wives are sexually assaulted by their partners, most under
threat of violence. In 25 percent of couples studied, the assaulting parther commit-
ted the assault because he wanted to practice an act he had observed in the porno-
graphicgraphic media.

Perhaps as many as 500,000 elderly persons are abused each year by a family
member.

Often the victim of family violence is further victimized by the service system
which is supposed to offer help. Many helping systems are involved: social, medical,
legal, law enforcement, religious, economic. Yet intervention programs for family
problems are hampered by ambiguous and unclear policies. Tensioh.exists between
norms respecting the rights of family visits and those respecting, the individual
rights of family members. Rights of the victim are balanced with rights of the ac-
cused. An attitude of tolerance and reluctant intervention pervades many of the sys-
tems which could he responsive after family violence occurs. These attitudes affect
prevention efforts as well; few prograths exist to train parents, spouses, and children
in non-violent problem solving tactics or to promote positive support to reduce
family stress. The prevention programs that do exist are primarily in the private
sector with extremely limited funds. Assertive public policy support for prevention
and intervention efforts is needed.

One result of this tolerant atmosphere is that a system of "frontier justice" occa-
sionally prevails. The victimized wife or child, frustrated by attempts to seek help,
strikes back at the assailant with lethal means. Violence breeds violence. Or perma-
nent harm to the victim occurs, causing this problem to be passed on from genera-
tion to generation: note the numbers of emotionally disturbed and aggressive adoles-
cents who were early victims; the chronically depressed, suicidal victim of wife -bat-
tering: the self-aLusive victim who turns to alcohol, drugs, prostitution; the well-in-
tentioned adult who is unable to maintain a stable family life or practice healthy
parenting skills. The cycle of violence is perpetuated, from generation to generation.

tr I urge the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and Families to solicit testimony
from victims of family violence. The degree of terrorism in the homes of our country
is truly frightening.

An investigation of the adequacy of helping systems is also needed. I suspect you
will find a high level of inadequacy. Child protection systems are predominantly
state systems with federal social services block grant support. Child protection pro-
grams have developed an adequate ability to identify child abuse and neglect cases,
but are appallingly deficient in being able to offer treatment or safer alternatives
than what existed prior to case identification. Prevention of child abuse has been
left primarily to the private sector. Adult protection systems, aimed at the elderly
and handicapped adult. are like the other state programs, generally inadequate.
Services to victims of spousal violence have arisen primarily in the voluntary sector,
using courageous self-help models. Many states have provided partial funding, but
federal participation has been sparse.

Must Americans are committed to the ideology that our homes are havens of
peace and security In order lir this ideology to become reality. we Must have clear
national policy to maintain that hurting a family member is wrong and that it is in
the national interest to support services that will help victims of family violence,
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promote healthy' family relationships, and reduce stressors that exacerbate family
difficulties.

Other priortiy issues which create significant,stress for many American families
are.:

I Subsistence: One of every six families in South Carolina lives below the pover-
ty level. Many a these fmnilies are headed by women who encounter substantial
difficulty in finding stable jobs that will pr vide enough income to support a family.
Equal opportunity, equal pay, and gener ly equal rights for women will increase
the quality of life for families. Jobs and job training must continue to be available
to men its well as women.

Subsidized child care, housing,. medical care, and food supplies at adequate levels
are essential to help families help themselves out of the proverty cycle, Recent
budget cut.; for economic assistance and human services have had a serious impact
0a South Carolinians.

+21 Education: The status of education in South Carolina is critical, as our current
governor has assertively recognized. Our state has one of the highest illiteracy rates
in the country: our students typically are among the lowest achievers on national
standardized performance tests. We have a disproportionate number of disadvan-
taged learners. vet fewer resources to apply to our educational system. Federal
funds and technical assistance are essential for the well being of mi. educational
programs.

Adult education is also a priority issue, as our economic base is gradually chang-
ing from manufacturing to technological and research industries. Many of our indig-
enous residents cannot compete for new jobs requiring higher skills, particularly as
workers with higher skills move into the state from Other areas.

1:i) Health mental health: I would like to emphasize' the issues brought to your
attention by 111: .Joanne Fraser, who has also submitted written testimony -to your
committer' 1;a-rents: need special health care as well as .social support during the
first year ulna child's life. The quality of parent-child interaction during those' first
formative months is a key step to the prevention of subsequent child abuse and/o
neglect.

Families live with considerable stress associated with many factors: economic,
social. environmental. Attention must be focused on one factor which has only re-
cently begun to receive emphasis: the manufacture of nuclear weapons and other
actions in pr'e'paration for nuclear war are having a serious impact on children and
adults. Psychological studies have demonstrated that many children feel despair,
alienation, fear, and distrust of adults because of concern over the likelihood of nu-
clear war. Commitment to future family life, including procreation, is que'stione'd by
amiss children. The impact of national defense policy on our domestic life needs to
be evaluated

What can he done about helping families? I can share with you a glimpse of what
is being done in South Carolina. I regret that only a few projects can be shared.
These are intended to represent private sector and state initiatives.

Sistercare. Inc., is it private non-profit agency serving abused women and their
children in the Midlands area of South Carolina, with a population of 600,001). A
range of services are provided around the clock, including crisis telephone, shelter,
counseling. childreh's program, support groups, community education, and a special
prison program fur women inmate's who are former'victims of abuse. These service's
are provided by only six full ard three part-time employee's, thanks to over sixty
active volunteers who give time and hundreds of community citizens who give sup-
imirt m the forms ol material donations, funds, and occasional service's. Maintaining
Sistercae is a constant effort, since need for service is much higher than the capac-
ity to ri.spotl, and se-cure. funding from year to year can never be assured.

'Hie Midlands area. however, is more fortunate than many neighboring areas of
Shuth Carolina. %%filch have no service's for domestic violence victims. Start-up
funds. part ly for rural programs, are sorely needed.

W-leorne Baby and Parent Friends are programs of the Council on Child Abuse
and Neglect. Inc. Their goal is to provide caring, sharing, and summit for new moth-
ers through hospital and home visits soon after birth. They rely entirely on volun-
teers. with part-tune staff support for coordination and training. The Welcome Baby
In , ears lids been adapted throughout many parts of South Carolina and has been
Adapted by the I.' ti Department of the Navy for its hospitals worldwide.

Mlot program for to similar service in the Pee Dee region of South ('arolina.
using owil paraprofessionals as -resource mothers" for young single mothers, has
ifenionstr.ited that the health and competence of teenaged mothers and their babies

onpro\ ell by such hr 1p !Heins. Wandersman, & Unger).
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The S.C. Department of Social Servicei is training AFDC mothers to work as
homemaker-home health aids for the elderly. The quality of life for both families
that of the elderly and the homemakerstand to benefit from this program.

This year the South Carolina General Assembly- will consider proposed legislation
to establish a Children's Trust Funds, which would provide resources to private non-
profit organizations so that innovative children's programs can be initiated.

A pilot continuum of care for emotionally disturbed, children will be established
this year, thanks to the initiative of the South Carolina Governor's Office and the
state Developmental Disabilities Council. The Continuum is governed by a unique
interagency policy council. Its goal is to provide adequate treatment of children
whose behavior is such that conventional mental health, education, and youth serv-
ice agencies cannot fit them into their programs.

Working with many of these creative and cost-effective programs is often :ike
being the fiddler on the roof. One never knows when the support required to main-
tain the program may have to go. Dedicated volunteers work to the point of exhaus-
tion or until their own family lives begin to suffer. The problem is so vast; but when
children or threat to life is involved, prompt response is critical.

'You can help. Many of the issues brought to your attention by this testimony and
others require further study; all need stable national policy action. Theso issues are
certainly not an exhaustive list; rather, they are a select list of the more criti&al
factors affecting children and families as my experience indicates. I urge you to
study and take action on the following issues;
, Methods to stimulate family support initiatives by the private nonprofit human
services sector;

Legislation to stimulate intervention into and prevention of domestic violence;
Methods to stimulate state and local action on behalf or crime victims, particular-

ly victim compensation programs;
Evaluation of the adequacy of child protective services provided through the social

services block grant;
Assertive methods to reduce the production and distribution of all pornographic

materials (many concerned persons seem to avoid this issue because censorship is an
undesirable intervention; surely there are other creative ways to act on this issue);

Policies and programs to stimulate health parent-child bonding;
Methods t.i support single-headed families; particularly, support for the Equal

Rights Amendment;
Policies and programs to create jobs and job training;
Maintenance of the U.S. Department of Education and its programs; particularly

those directed at the di:iadvantaged and adult populations; and
Examination of the effect of nuclear defense policy on family quality of life, in-

cluding psychological, social, and economic impacts.

PREPARED STATEMENT or HoREnT S. STEMPEL, JR., M I).. UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI, PRO-
FESSoR AND VIII: CHAIRMAN, DEPARTMENT OE PEDIATRICS AND DIRECToR, MAILMAN
CENTER Eon CHILD DEVELOPMENT

This year Congress has seen fit to take a timely and extremely important step
toward the recognition of the needs of children and parents in creating the Select
Committee on Children, Youth and Families of the U.S. House of Representatives. It
is particularly encouraging that the Committee has chosen to emphasize Prevention
as one of its principal concerns.

The following is prevention system model presented for the Committee's consid
4 eration. It is being developed under the cosponsorship of the University of Miami

and the State of Florida in a federally inspired facility.
The University of Miami Mailman Center for Child Development was created in

197I as one of twenty University Affiliated Facilities (UAE"s1 through federal legis
lation enacted in the mid-1960's. This entailed a federal construction grant ikainst
which matching funds were provided by the Mailman Foundation and by the Joseph
P. Kennedy. Jr. Foundation and a multidisciplinary training grant administered
through DfIEWMaternal and Child Health. Over the past decade the Center's iic
tivities have been sustained by support from over thirty different federal. state and
private sources.

The original enahling legislation described' UAF's as centers of excellence to he
established for the purpose of increasing health manpower in the field of mental
retardation through graduate interdisciplinary training programs Over the ensuing
ears the. health care target was modified to include a broader range of handicap
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Imo: cold', lute, and the Center was allowed to,place more appropriate emphasis onin event ion
ther the. past four year.., ledoral sponsorship of the IJAF training program has

been progresskely reduced to but one-third the I9tko supportlevel Iiowever,
cause of tile Centel .sCOMIllit Ment to community health service, and training prior.
Ito's. the State. Of Florida elected to preserve the program, and in its 19S3

Session, appropriated latids to offset federal losses,
The mission of the Mailman ('enter is the preparation of professionals for leader.ship roles in health management for the developmentally disabled. Toward this

goal, the Center tubs developed graduate training programs of the highest quality
unlitin an exemplary service system under the supervision of academically com-
petitive, professionals The Center maintains a fulltina, faculty of flirty-five. in the
disciplines of pediatrics. psychology, nursing, social work, speech and hearing, nutri
two and special education who conduct programs that expriss a balance of training.

,,end research,in the area of prevention.
The most direct means of eliminating handicapping conditions is simply to pre-

vent their occurrence. Such "primary" prevention requires a more rapid elevation
of socioeconomic secular trends, the abrogation of unfavorable environmental influ-
ences. the universal application of sound family planning and prenatal care and the
efficient utdiration of diagnostic technology to identify and eliminate undesirable

%Pregniincy Assuming that all of these objectives are not immediately attainable, thehulk of our prevention resources must be applied to the "secondary" prevention of
consequences of conditions we have been unable to avoid.

By :11fil large, these effOrts have been influential in curtailing unfavorable out.
.omes and in None instances have proven to be efficient as well as costeffective
wg., infant metabolic MUSS !screening). In some other instances, there is as yet little
e...ideriee to war-ant intensive identification efforts in early infancy, either because
there es no therapy of proven efficacy or because intervention cannot be successfully
undertaken at that age.

Frequently, very early morbid events result in very iongterm developmental ab-
errations which are not clearly discernible during infancy. For example.. urrent in
te.n..15e newborn care is validated by favorable changes in mortality. considering salvao rates of the extremely low birthwight infants. and by a lower percentage of
seveody awl profoundly handicapped survivors. However, one-third of those who are.
thought to have escaped developmental delay are destined to encounter severe
learning problems in our schools.

Cioisider,ng both the structure and the resources of today's health care system it
is el. ide nt t hat the only feasible means of reaching prospective school failure is in
dealing with infant and early childhood populations who are known to be at tie
111,,list leels of risk of experiencing deyeloprnental problems Such vopulations

thii,e with known genetic risk, graduates of intensive newborn care, and those
ilrtected In mass population screening, in addition to those who survive severe ae

r11 0%111111,01c infectious illness
W itIi the piiitlaide exception of t hose whose risk is acquired. these populations are

1.1ent died in specific service pr.lects in most state's. the detection purpose being fal-
1 111.41 regularly 11.A...ever. the"eonsequent intervention responsibility is seldom given
1..0.11 credence and the relationship between detection and direct management ro
maw. distant or oliscure N10 management strategies undertaken in order to r

iixit.inle tall Into the educational domain. yet prugittl11113tIC Oitit!t1[1-
!% /. 1'n' -f'11 eel provanis rarely Amounts to 11111re than unilateral presci ipth.'e ellre. Il..n It .s 11,14e pH-slide r. make tion heti.velin child liraltia ,n41 c.te

l'erhap- the progruniniatic breach tenpins an historic Lick ot,hirilin.doon and velewat lona' hurauracos, but rece-ntls the St.atf. of Hot
':1,11 111 insuring avenue, to .ippropriatii intir% titition file early de

I, pry ;'Tills established b statute
in)dei beini.: implemented here provide, 11 y.tent )l promo-% and secon.l.ii%

ptendin, iron) the rigionol 11111:11,11 .1111 Orriel jilt
. 1 " 1 , 1 , : h r n U 0 1 , f .% tqllp !It ;i! .1111, t I .1111 I I Ill,' 110% r1110:11 111!1/-

W1 .r chtHijo.41
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hti all MI IVN cover diverse specialties as well as interdisciplinary services dliv
rd to approximately 5,00 children and their families through over 15,000 clinic
visits, annually. Of these families, greater than 50 percent are Hispanic and the
B d flBlack population of over 25 percent is growing rapidly to the influx of Haitian r
refugees in the Miami area. The University of Miami Pe atal Center is responsi
ble for approximatley 11,000 births annually of which over 1,000 are at high risk.

The Developmental Evaluation Program was originally confined to the longitudi-
nal assessment of infants at high risk graduating from intensive newborn care and
has enrolled over 5,000 such children over the past ten years. The Program has un /
dergone progressive expansion through additional sate support and is now being
applied to other infant populations at developmental risk because of congenital or
acquired conditions. This is programmatically and architecturally contiguous with
the Center's Developmental Intervention Program functioning at the infant, toddler
and preschool levels. In 1983, the Florida Department of Education sponsored a con-
jointly planned project with the Florida Diagnostic and Learning Resource System
of the Bureau of Education of Exceptional Students, linking the Center's early de. ,
tection and early intervention activities to the public schools. The purpose of the
program is to insure collaborative evaluation and prescriptive planning and to pro-
vide preservice and inservice traning to special educators and health professionals.
Only through partnerships of this type can appropri((:,. management planning be
developed for exceptional students, especially. as it relates to school problems having
their origin in early medical or developmental abnormalities.

,

!mem igative components fbr which these facilities serve as major resources con
cern the exploration of technology for the more definitive determination of levels of
risk, for a more effective means of examining outcome information and for the in-
vestigation of strategies applied in intervention for children and their families.
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The Children's home Society ()I' Florida is a voluntary non-profit organization es-
tablished in 1902 which provides a range of services for the benefit of children and
Lunches in Florida. The Society, the largest private child-en's agency in Florida
with twelve Division offices located thoughout the Stitt., had responsibility in 1982
for ,narly ; {.shin homeless, abused, neglected or roamed children and provided serk,
ices to 1.-4111 young parents. t'hildren's flame Society is accredited by the Council on
Accredit:010n of Services to Families and Children, Inc. and is It charter member of
the Child Welfar I,eague of America, an organisation which advocates for chil-
dran's rights and needed services throughout North America.

The Society's mission is to preserve and strengthen family life The goal of all the
servii...s provided is the hest permanent living plan for each child serked, preferably
vvith ht' own family and when this is not possible With an adoptive family or in
:trim hpr. Appruprialp permanent living situation

It is 1411 this reason that l'hildren's florin. Society is supportive of t In' purpose and
acti% it tit the house Select l'ommittee. We congratulate the I n it eel States House
id Representatives for it farsightedness in eslahlishing the Committee. There is
eiii%1114 recognition throughout the Irnited States of the value of our children and
the !wed to see that their physical, emotional. social. and (.(locatimuti needs are met

1.1'uada Iii As. ociat ion under the leadership of Julge. Hugh S Crlickstein of
the Fourth 1/r-tract I null of Appeal, State of Florida. established in 14.0,:i a Special
( ',importer. to the of Citiltiren In a letter to trivrntiers of the Florida Legtla

- chin,; tort h the purpose 4)1 the the Judge doscrbed children a.-

..iir iii,ist precious gilt and entitled to enjoy tIco haPpliit'SS which those adults 1.1.-

Ottr-.1?lle. /Or them c:tn protigh.- and further concluded !hilt unless ehrldrh's need:
or. filet .d1 the tlorts to eliminate crime., poverty' and ignorance ate only knee.

11;nni:nti solution; which core !vine nl siciety's basic ilk
oaf purpie:0 through this heariti; is to bring to the at tent ion of the Committee

need Ines' or readily' available relevant preventative :cr.% icvs ter
trait children The Society shares they concern of rill responsihle nrt!att V:1

, mai Itgkhttnts y he decry the number of abused
iirele,ted :InIfhtn %%114 I ftit.:n at the hands of Own- p;trent lir other

inher- ,serf at, (At ternelv con( erred ;Mout the thou-ariils chdolp,n Britt
,f1 C.in .%Ntl't11 nt.rtnina.nt III(. plan hvint; made tor thriti

:e.t% And kraut' ran, ;:rivr forts
1,h km 1, lIk!ng , :Ihri !toll
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lies have a right to,t he priority they command in terms of services and funding for
them

However. only part of America's,responsibility for its children is fulfilled by serv-
ing these children. The challenge is to strengthen families and to prevent family
deterioration which leads to child abuse and placement of children Sway from their
families. The Committee obviously recognizes this need as evidenced by its establish-
ment of a task force for prevention strategies. The task force can highlight this pH-

) ority need in a nation-wide arena where it will attract the attention of policy
makers, legislators, funding bodies, both public and private, child advocates, busi-
ness and industry. When budgets are tight and social services programs are in jeop-
ardy. the first services to be cut are usually the preventative ones that can avert or
at least reduce dependency, delinquency, abuse and neglect. This is due among
other reasons to the heavy demand for "survival services" to meet basic human
needs and the comparatively few verbal advocates for preventative services'whose
impact is not always immediately visible.

If preventative services are not available, many families with children will be
forced into economic and social dependency and so the cycle of dependency, delin-
quency, abuse and neglect is perpetuated. Children's Home Society has experience
providing preventative social services that demonstrate their cost effectiveness in
keeping families intact and in saving taxpayers dollars. For example, the Society's
therapeutic homemaker service provided to families with children who are trauma.
t lied by physical, emotional and economic problems has a 97 percent success rate in
keeping families intact by preventing the removal of children from their parents
into the puhlic foster care system. A rural outreach program recently initiated by
the Society is providing tangible services such as help with housing, employment
and health care needs, and parent training, parent-child play groups and child care
in crisis situatiorw via two mobile units that take these services to the clients.'A 2.1
hour toll free telephone service is in operation for the crisis situatio4s. In a six
months period several hundred parents, ninny of whom are isolated from population
centers where traditional services are located, have learned that a number or the
services they need are available in the community and how to use them.

For years preventative strvices have been provided by the private sector which
has the flexibility and the expertise to plan and to implement them. However, pri-
vate funds are not enough to carry the vast array of services needed. The combined
effort of the private and public sectors is required if prevention services are to cun
time and expend The policy on children adopted by the National Governors Assn-
cLitilai rn PIS:i I. tangible e.vaience of the concern of the public sector for children
and is in fact a commitment to establish and fund preventative family-based serv
Ices .ind tl. impiThe the. !width, education. and financial si.curity Of families with
children

The Select Committee. on Children. Youth and Families is in a unique position to
elicit 'he corcerns Americans have about children. to make known solutions pro
posed and operational that will improve the living conditions of children and their
lannlie' capability to care for them, and to advocate for their implementation
There must he services. and this means dollars, available at the -front end- to pre-
.nt l'uunuintr and social dependency or there will be a growing need for dollars It
!hr. -dpad girl" t.. warehooNv hoki.n sinitd, vomontleillly dependent children arid

IT ol.aitialaal programs h0111. t/I 1';vpr.ing their depnden.
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